
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

 
 

 
i 

CIVIC AFFAIRS 
 

To:   Committee Members: Councillors  Rosenstiel (Chair), Cantrill (Vice-Chair), 
Benstead, Herbert, Johnson and Pitt 
 
Alternates: Councillors Ashton and Boyce  
 

Despatched: Wednesday, 11 September 2013 

  

Date: Thursday, 19 September 2013 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall 

Contact:  Glenn Burgess Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
   

2    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 7 - 14) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2013.  
  

3    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda.  If any member is unsure 
whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular matter, they 
are requested to seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before the 
meeting.  

4   PUBLIC QUESTIONS   
 

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

5   ERNST AND YOUNG EXTERNAL AUDIT CONCLUSIONS AND 
APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 15 - 200) 
 

6   ANNUAL COMPLAINTS REPORT 2012/13 (Pages 201 - 226) 
 

7    COMPLAINT CONCERNING NUISANCE CAUSED BY THE USE OF THE 
GUEST HOUSE AT 70 GREEN END ROAD  
 

 Report attached separately   
 

8    UPDATE REPORT ON THE BUDGET SETTING PROCESS  
 

 Report attached separately   
 

9   REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING 
STATIONS  (Pages 227 - 236) 
 

10   CONSIDERATION OF MEASURES TO DISCOURAGE TAX AVOIDANCE 
(Pages 237 - 248) 
 

11   IMPLEMENTATION OF NATIONAL PAY AWARD (Pages 249 - 252) 
 

  



 
iii 

 
 

Information for the Public 
 

 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning or Licensing Applications is 
subject to other rules. Guidance for speaking on these 
issues can be obtained from Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 
 

 



 
iv 

Further information about speaking at a City Council 
meeting can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you have any feedback please 
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=42096147&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203  
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 

 



 
v 

For further assistance please contact Democratic 
Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/.  
 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������	
� ������ 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

��

�������������� �
� �������������
� ����������������
�
	
���
� ���!����""!	
�#!
��
$��"���%��	������$	�""��&�����%��	����
%$!���'�	(�	$��
�!%�
!������)�$$�
�
*�����	
��	�
��$ �
�%����+,���$�������$!���$$�����-
!��
.�	��$!	�!��#�
!�	��
�/�.�����'!	
�!!"�
'����!�����!��$��0�1�	����
�/���"���2���
�
'����!��'�����#�
!�	��
�/�.�(!	�%�1���
!��
'����!��3�$�	��"�����$�/�1$�����	�($	���
'����!��4�0�"�1�	����
���1��!��)�0%�
1$	�$�0���)	!��	����$�����
!	�/�.�((���5�������
)	������"�����$!	�/�6	��0�$�6�
%!��
�
+	�
$�7�8!��0��+,$�	��"�����$!	
��/�2�	-�'!�0
!��
3���������$�)�	
!�
�/�1����6	��������#!(�6����$$�
�
�

�������	��������������������

�

���������� ������ ���!�
�"#��
$��
�
��!"!0��
�9�	��	���������	!���""	�6��
$�����
�

�����%���� & 
'�����!��
�( �'��)��� 
��
�
:%������$�
�!��$%�����$��0
�%�"��!���;���	�"������������2���9�	��
�0�����
�
�!		��$�	��!	�
�(��$%���%��	��
�

�����*���� ��$�"
"� �
���!��
��
����
�
:%�	�� 9�	�� ���"�	�$�!�
� !�� ��	
!��"� ��$�	�
$
� ����	� ���<���3&� (�� �!����""!	�
�!%�
!������(�	�!��=��
!��$	���
����!��������!����""!	�)�$$�����(�	�!��>:4�
$	���
����!����
�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 7



�����������	
� ������ 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

��

�����+���� 	'#� $�,'��� �
��
�
:%�	��9�	���!���("���?��
$�!�
��
�

�����-���� �

'"����( �.��!��/���!!�$� (�
�����!��
��

"���'0 ��1�23�21���
�
:%��.�	��$!	�!��#�
!�	��
���$	!������$%��	��!	$�9%��%�%������!	�!	�$�������9�
1$����	�
�	�0�����!	���$�	��"�����$����$%��=@��$%��A)�("���1��$!	�3�$�	��"�����$�
1$����	�
B�� � ��� ���!	$��$� ��$�!�� ����	� $%�� �!��"������ ���� 5��"�$��
3��	!�����$� )"��� ���0�
� <��<��� 9�
� $%�$� +,$�	��"� �

�

���$
� ��
$� (��
�!����$��� �$� "��
$� !���� ���	�� ����� ���	
� �	!�� �� ?��"������ ����������$�
�

�

!	��	!��!�$
����$%��!	0���
�$�!����:%��'����!��3�$�	��"�����$�9!�"��(��
(	��0��0� �� 	��!	$� $!� �!���$$��� 
�$$��0� !�$� %!9� $%�
� ��9� �		��0����$� �!�"��
9!	-������!$����""	����$	�""B
��!����$�$%�$��$�
%!�"��(��9�$%���$%	������	
���!$�
������
�
�����(�01�
�
:!��!$��$%��#����9�!��$%��+����$�����

�!��3�$�	��"�����$���������
�

�����4���� ��"0��!��
��

"���'0 ��1��

'"���'0 ���� 
 �
�23�21���
�
:%�� '���� !�� 3�$�	��"� ����$� ��$	!������ $%�� 	��!	$� 	����9��0� $%�� ��
$� ���	���
:%�	��%���(���������	�!�����	����	��
���������$
���"���	���
�����������������
���	!�����$� ��� $%���

�	����� 	�$��0
�����!��	�""� $%����	��$�!��!�� $	���"�9�
�
�!
�$������#�
-�����0����$�
!�$9�	��%�
����	!������$�	��"��	!��

�
��
�
�""	�'�	(�	$��
-����(!�$� $%�� $�������$
� $%�$�0����!�"�� "���$����

�	���������
9%�$� �!""!9����%��� $%�	��(��������	$�-��� $!���
�	����$�!�
�9�	���!��"�$����
'���%�""��0���$%��9!	���0�!��$%��!��	�""�*����!��������	�������(��	��0���������
$%�� (��0�$� �!	���
$��0� �		!	� 9%��%� %��� (���� ��(�$��� �$� ��	�"B
� �!���$$���
���$��0���:%��'����!��3�$�	��"�����$�����	$!!-�$!��	!�����$%����$��"�!��$%��$���
����$
� "�
$��� ��� 
����	�� ��� <��� !�� $%�� *����!��� � '�� �"
!� ����
��� $%�$� $%��
*����!��9�
�0�����
!"�"��!��$%��(�
�
�!��$%��9!	-�3�$�	��"�����$�%�������	$!!-�
������������
�
3�� 	�
�!�
�� $!� �� ?��
$�!�� �	!�� �""	� ���$	�""� !�� %!9� �	�� !�$
$�����0� ��$�!�
�
9�	���
��"�$���� $%��'����!�� 3�$�	��"�����$� ����
��� $%�$�#�
-�#�0�
$�	
�9�	��
��
��

��� �$� .���	$���$�"� 2���0����$� :���
� ?��	$�	"�� ���� 
$	�$�0��� 	�
-
�

Page 8



�����������	
� ������ 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

��

9�	��	��!	$���$!�1$	�$�0���4����	
%���:�����9�$%�$%����,$����������"��������
�
���	!�	��$���"
!�
%�	���9�$%�+,���$�����!����""!	
��
�
2��(�	
� !�� $%�� �!���$$��� 9�"�!���� $%�� 	��!	$� ���� %����0� 	����9��� ����
�	!������ �%�""��0�� $!� $%�� !����!�� !�� $%�� '���� !�� 3�$�	��"� ����$�� 9�	�� !�� $%��
���9�$%�$���%�"�����	�����$������"����0���	����9�!��!�$
$�����0���$�!�
�
%!�"��
(���	!������$!�$%��>!���(�	��!���$$������$��0��
�
�����(�01�
�
:%�$������$�	����	!0	�

�	��!	$� �	!��$%��'����!��3�$�	��"�����$�(��(	!�0%$�$!�
�$
����>!���(�	����$��0��
�

�����5���� ���'
"
$�� �
")�.�
6� "
0� �
"!�� �

'"�� 7�(�

"
$��
��"��)�
��23�21���
�
:%��'����!��4�0�"�1�	����
���$	!������$%��	��!	$���3��	�
�!�
��$!���?��
$�!��
�	!�� $%�� �%��	�� $%�� '���� !�� 4�0�"� 1�	����
� ����
��� $%�$� �� 	��!	$� 9!�"�� (��

�(��$$���$!�$%���!���$$���!������"!���0�$%��	!"��!��$%��3���������$�)�	
!�
�
�2	�1����6	��������2	�#!(�6����$$���
�
:%���!���$$����!$�������	����9���$%�������"�C!��	������1$�$����$����D�
�
��'
$ �� ��
�$�))�
0�0�
�
:!����	!���$%���!���!���!	�!	�$��C!��	�������
�

����%3���� ��"��)�
���!��$$�'
���23�21���
�
:%��'����!�����!��$��0�1�	����
���$	!������$%��	��!	$�������	��"�$�����$�("��
!�����!	�$��!0	��%���"��!		��$�!�
�$!�$%�����!��$
��
���("�
%������$%���0�����
����(�	
�!�� $%���!���$$��� 	��!	$���!$%�	����!	��		!	
���	��0���(�$��9%��%�
9�	���!$�����
�
3��	�
�!�
��$!���	�?��
$��	!���!����""!	�)�$$��$%��'����!�����!��$��0�1�	����
�
9!�"�� �!�
���	� %!9� (�
$� $!� �	!����� �!����""!	
� 9�$%� �� �!��$��%����"� (	�����0�
�	�!	� $!� $%�� ��� 1��$��(�	� ���$��0� �$� 9%��%� $%�� ���!��$
� �	�� 
�(��$$��� �!	�

�0���0�!����
�
�

Page 9



�����������	
� ����<� 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

<�

�����(�0�8�
�
:!� �!$�� $%�� �	��$� 1$�$����$� !�� ���!��$
� �	�
��$��� ���� $%�$� ���!��$��0�
�!"����
�����$	��$���$
�!��9%��%�$%����	���	���	���(�����	!�����
�

����%����� �

'"������
���
�	
�(�
� �
��!��
"'0�9���

'�� �
�	�� $:�
"
0��)�� $"� �
���!��/���
 #�
:��$��
�
:%�� )	������"� ����$!	� ��$	!������ $%�� 	��!	$�� � #�0�	���0� $%�� �%��0�
� $!� $%��
�!���!���!����$� �!	�+��"!���
���!����""!	� �!%�
!���
-��� �!	��������$�� $!�
$%�� �!����$
� ��� ��	�0	��%� ���� 	�0�	���0� �!�
�"$�$�!�� (�$9���� $%�� '���� !��
'#�����$%�����!�
���:%���!���$$���9�
�����
���(��$%��'����!��'#�$%�$�$%�	��
9�	�� !��0!��0� ��
��

�!�
� �(!�$� $	���� ���!�� ��$���$�� !�$
���� !�� $%�� �!����"�
���� ��� 	�"�$�!�� $!� $%�� �!����"� ���"!���B
� 	!"�� �!	� $%�� �!����"�� � 3$� �!�"�� (��
�!""!9��0� $%�
�� ��
��

�!�
� $%�$� �"��	�	� 0��������������� $!� ���"!���
� �
�
	�?��	����
�
�""	�'�	(�	$��
-������$%�	���!�"��(��0	��$�	�$	��
��	��������!�����	���$�	�
$
��0��
�����$!9���"����	�%�
�"��-
�9�$%�������"!��	�$%���$%�$�
%!�"��(����("��"��-�!9���
:%�
� 0!�
� (��!��� $%�� 
���!	� !�����	� ��$�	�
$
� 9%��%� $%�� �%���� +,���$����
	����9��� �����""��� � *�����

� 
%!�"�� 	��"��$� $%�� �	��
� !�� 9!	-� $%�$� �!����"�
!�����	
���0�0���������$%��	�"�$�!�
%���$%�$�9!	-�%�
�9�$%�$%������
�!����-��0�
!��$%���!����"���:%���%����+,���$��������	$!!-�$!�"!!-��$�$%�
�9�$%�$%��'����!��
4�0�"�1�	����
��
�
:%�� �!���$$��� �!$��� $%�� ��$��"
� !�� �	����9%�
$"��("!9��0� ��$���$�� �!	� $%�� $9!�
���	
�����������������������	��!	�����$
�$%��-
��!	�$%��9!	-�����	$�-���!��
�	����$��0��	���������!		��$�!���
�
�����(�0�8��
�
:!� ���	!��� $%�� �%��0�
� $!� $%�� )	����$�!�� !�� E	���� ���� �!		��$�!�� �)E���
)!"�������� $%���!�$��$�!�� $%����������� $!� $%��)E��)!"�����"�
� $%���%��0�
�
�	!�!
��� $!� $%�� *�����	� �!��� !�� �!����$� $!� 	��"��$� $%�� 	�?��	����$
� !�� $%��
6	�(�	����$��
�
:!� ���	!��� $%�� ��������$
� �	!�!
��� $!� $%�� *�����	� �!��� !�� �!����$� $!�
	��"��$� $%�� �%��0�
� ����� $!� $%�� 0�������� !�� 0��$
� ���� %!
��$�"�$�� ����
���"�	�$�!�
�!���!��"��$
�!����$�	�
$��
�
�

Page 10



�����������	
� ����F� 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

F�

����%2���� ��0"����
�"$� �
�����"00
���� ��'����)�
� 
��!
�)��/��
#'0����!�
�$"�� 
���

�
�
�
:%�� �%���� +,���$���� ��$	!������ $%�� 	��!	$�� � :%�� �!���$$��� 9�"�!���� $%��
�	!�!
�"
�$!��%��0��$%�����	!��%��!	�$%��2:1��	!��

��������(�	�
�	�$����
(�� 1$	�$�0�� 7� #�
!�	��
� 1�	�$���� �!���$$��� !�� ��� 1��$��(�	�� � 2��(�	
�
�,�"���$"�� 	�?��
$��� $%�� �������	� ��������"� 	����9� 
%!�"�� �"
!� �!��	� ��������"�
��	�!	�������!	�$%����	
$�?��	$�	�!��������<��	��!	$��0�������	���	�����
��������
���	�
�������� �

��
�� �:%�	��9�
�0���	�"��0	�����$�!��$%�������$!���-��$%��
	��!	$� ����	
$����("�� 
!� $%�$� �$� �!�"�� (�� �� �
���"� $!!"� �!	� 2��(�	
� ���
��	�!	���0�$%��	���$��
����
�
�""	�'�	(�	$� 	�?��
$��� ��	$%�	� ���!	��$�!���$��� "�$�	�
$�0��!�� $%��
$	��$�	��!��
$%��6��0�$�1�$$��0�#��!	$��
�

�$%� 	�0�	�� $!� $%�� 	��!������$�!�� !�� ��
�0��$��0� �� ��9� '���� !�� E�������
�!
$��
�1��$�!���F��*�����	��$%���%����+,���$����%�0%"�0%$���$!�$%���!���$$���
$%�$� $%�
��	!�!
�"�9!�"��(��������	$�	�� �	!���3)E��0����"���
����	��<���<����
���� 	���	����� 9!�"�� ����� $!� (�� ����� ��� ��$�	�� �����"� C!��	������
1$�$����$
����
�
�""	� '�	(�	$� 
$�$��� $%�$� $%�� 9!	�� A���!	
�B� ��� $%�� 	��!������$�!�� 9�
�
�	�
���$�!�
��
�$%���%����+,���$���B
�	��!	$� $!�$%��4����	�����$%��1$	�$�0��
����#�
!�	��
�1�	�$�����!���$$���!����	�
$	��$�	��!��
���!	�����0����$����
$%�� #�
!�	��
� .���	$���$� %��� !�"�� G�
$� (���� ��("�
%��� ���� $%�	��!	�� $%�
�
�!���$$��������!$�%����$%����$��"�(��!	���$��:%���!���$$����0	����$!����!	��
���	!�	��$��	�
!"�$�!��(��	��!���0�A���!	
�B�9�$%�A	��
�
��!��!���	�
��(!�$B��
�
�����(�0�8�
�
1�(G��$� $!� �!	�� ��$��"��� �!�
���	�$�!�� (�� $%�� �!����"�� �!""!9��0� $%�� �%����
+,���$���B
� 	��!	$� $!� $%�� 4����	� ���� 1$	�$�0�� 7� #�
!�	��
� 1�	�$����
�!���$$����$%���!���$$���	��
�
��!��!���	�
��(!�$�$%���	!�!
�"�$!���
�0��$��
����9�'����!��E��������!
$��
�1��$�!���F��*�����	��
�
��'
$ �� ��
�$�))�
0�01�
�
:%�$�$%��6��0�$�1�$$��0�#��!	$�
%!�"��(��$%���"����9%�	��$%���!����"�
�$
�!�$�
�$
��������$�	����������"�
$	�$�0�������$�	�����	
��	�$%�	�$%���(���0��	!������
�
���
���	�$��2������:�	��1$	�$�0���!�����$�
�

�

Page 11



�����������	
� ������ 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

��

:%�$�$%���!����"�����	$�-�
���2���8��	�E�������"�#����9�����$
���$�������"��
�!��	�
��0�$%���!""!9��0��!	���"����$
 �
�

���:!��!�
���	�$%�����"���$�!�
�!�����	�������$��"
�!��(!$%�	�����������

����$�"� �,�����$�	�� 0!��0� �!	9�	�� ���� "���"� !�� 	�
�	��
� ���� ��	
$�

?��	$�	���	�!	�������0���
$��0	����(��0�$��

(��:!��!�
���	��������"���$�!�
��	!��$%�������"�1$�$����$�

��� :!�	��"��$������%��0�
��	!��$%��C!��	����$B
�6��0�$�����1������0�

#����9����!�������$
��

���:!�$�
$�����	"���0��

���$�!�
��(!�$����"�$�!��������$�	�
$�	�$�
����$%��

"�0%$�!��"�$�
$����!	��$�!�������!���$�!�
�

���:!�	����9��!	���
$
�!��	�$������(�
���

�	�$�������!����"�:�,����"�0%$�

!����$��"�0	!9$%�����"�$�
$��	!G��$�!�
��

��� :!��!�
���	�9%�$������$��""�!��$%���(!���%����!��	�
�	��
�������$�	��


����0
�$�	0�$
�

:%�$�$%���	!�!
���2���8��	�E�������"�#����9��!�����$�
%!�"��(���!�
���	���

(�� 1$	�$�0�� 7� #�
!�	��
� 1�	�$���� �!���$$��� (��!	�� $%�� 4����	� ��-�
� ��

	��!������$�!��$!��!����"��

:!� ��"�0�$�� ��$%!	�$�� $!� $%�� �%���� +,���$���� $!� ������ $%�� �!����"B
�

�!�
$�$�$�!��$!�	��"��$�$%�
����9��		��0����$
��

����%����� ��( �.��!��/����'
$ �;����
�
"$��	
�$�0'
���'����<	"
��%7��!�
�/����
�� �'� �
=�
�
:%�� 1$	�$�0��� )	!��	����$� ����
!	� ��$	!������ $%�� 	��!	$�� � 2��(�	
� !�� $%��
�!���$$��� ��(�$��� $%�� �	!
� ���� �!�
� !�� %����0� !��� 9	�$$��� ?�!$�$�!�� ��
�
	��!��������� !	� $9!�� �!	� �!�$	��$� ��"��
� ����	� H������� ���� !�� 9%�$%�	�

��-��0� A(�
$� ��"��B� 9�
� �	���		��� $!� A��"��� �!	� �!���B�� � :%�� 1$	�$�0���
)	!��	����$� ����
!	� 
$�$��� $%�$� �� "!$� !�� $%�
�� �!�$	��$
� 9!�"��� ��� $����� (��
���-��� ��� ��� 9���	� �!	�!	�$�� �!�$	��$
� ���� $%�� 0�������� 0����� $!� !�����	
�
9!�"���,�"����$%�$��$�9�
�0!!���	��$����$!�!($�����!	��$%���!���?�!$�$�!����:%��
�!���$$���9�
�
�$�
�����$!�-����9�$%�!���9	�$$���?�!$�$�!���
�$%�������$!	��
	�?��	����$�(�$�$!�	��9!	��$%��$�("���$�$%���	!�$�!��$%��#�"�
�$!����%�
�
��$%��

Page 12



�����������	
� ����;� 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

;�

����� $!� 0�$� (�
$� ��"���� � :%�� �!���$$��� ���� �0	��� $%�$� �$� 9�
� ���!	$��$� $!�
!($�����	�$%�	�$%���G�
$�����$������9	�$��0�?�!$�
��H�������H<��������
�
:%�� �!���$$��� 9�"�!���� $%�� ���$� $%�	�� 9!�"�� (�� �"�	�$�� !��	� 9%!� $!!-�
	�
�!�
�(�"�$�� �!	� �	!��	����$
����� 	�?��
$��� $%�$� $%��
����	�� $�("�� �$� $%��
�	!�$� !�� $%�� #�"�
� ���"���� ��� ����$�!��"� �!"���� $!� 	��"��$� 9%!� 9!�"�� (��
���!��$�("������9%!�9!�"�����!��$�$%�$���	
!���
�
��'
$ �� ��
�$�))�
0�0�8��
�
:!� ���	!��� $%�� �%��0�
� $!� )�	$� <C� !�� $%�� �!�
$�$�$�!��� �!�$	��$� )	!����	��
#�"�
��!	� ���"����$�$�!��9�$%������$��	!����>!���(�	���������>(��:%�
���	��
���������$!� $%����!�$�!������$��9�$%� $%���!���$$��B
��%��0�
����!	�!	�$���
����%�0%"�0%$�����
�

����%%���� ���$� �
��&":�23���<��( �.=>����$� �
�� 
�23�%�<���'��=�
�
0 ( 0'"�����$��
"����� ��
"� �
�"
0�$�
�'��"� �
��
����$��
"��!
"'0�
�
:%���%����+,���$������$	!������$%��	��!	$���#���		��0�$!�$%��"!��$�!��!���!""��0�

$�$�!�
�� ���(�	
� !�� $%�� �!���$$��� �
-��� $%�$� 9�$%� $%�� ���!���0� �!""��0�
��
$	��$� 	����9�� ��� !��!	$���$�� $!� "!!-� �$� "!��$�!�� �!	� 
$�$�!�
� 9!�"�� (��
9�"�!������:%���%��	��
-���$%�$�$%��
�0��0��
%!9��0�$%���"�%�(�$���"�
�"�$�(��
���	�

�9�$%���$%�����"�
$�$�!�
��
�������"��	�	���
�
3�� ��
��

�!�� !�� $%�� �!��"���$� �""�0��0� �� �!	0��� 
�0��$�	�� !�� �� �!����$�!��
����	���""	�)�$$�
$�$����!	�$%��	��!	��$%�$�%��(�"�������(�$������!$�-�!9��!	�
�	��
�
� ����$�$��
� %��� �!$� (���� 	����"��� �
� �$� 9�
� 9�$%� $%�� �!"����� $%�$� $%��
�!��"�����$�9�
�-�!9��$!�%����
�
*��$%����	$�!��$%��	��!	$��!��

���!��$%��+"��$!	�"��!���

�!�B
�3

��
�)���	�
!���"��$!	�"� �	��������
��������""���!
$�"��!$��0���!	��!�� $%���!���$$���9�	��
�0���
$���������
�$!�	�
$	��$��!
$�"��!$��0�$!�%�"���!�(�$��	�����
�
�����(�0�8��
�
:!��0	���$%�$�$%�������"�2��$��0�!��$%���!����"��
�%�"��!��:%�	
������������
���<����$%����$��!��$%��"!��"��"��$�!�
��	���!���	�����
����2������<�����$%�$�
!�����	
�	��!	$�$!�$%����,$����$��0�9�$%��!���$$�����$�
��!	����<��F��
�

Page 13



�����������	
� ����I� 
����
������������������

�

�
�
�

I�

�0	���$%�$���	�
�!�
��$!�$%��+"��$!	�"��!���

�!�B
��

��
�����	�!���"��$!	�"�
�	���� (�� ��	��"�$��� $!� $%�� �!���$$��� 9�$%� �� ����"� 	�
�!�
�� 
��$� �!""!9��0�
�!�
�"$�$�!��9�$%��%��	�����
�!-�
��
�
�
�

:%�����$��0��������$��������
�
�
�
�

������
�

Page 14



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Director of Resources

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 19/9/2013

WARDS: None directly affected

ERNST AND YOUNG EXTERNAL AUDIT CONCLUSIONS AND 
APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Ernst and Young has now largely completed the audit of the 
Statement of Accounts for 2012/13.  However, before giving the 
formal opinion on the accounts there is a requirement to present their 
audit findings and to obtain a letter of management representation 
signed by both the Director of Resources and a member on behalf of 
‘those charged with governance.’  Under the Council’s Constitution, 
this responsibility rests with the Civic Affairs Committee.

1.2 Ernst and Young’s report on their audit is attached at Appendix A and 
a representative will be at the meeting to present and discuss the 
contents.

1.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that the accounts be 
approved by resolution of a committee of the Council (or the full 
Council) by 30 September 2013.  Under the Council’s Constitution, 
this responsibility rests with the Civic Affairs Committee.

1.4 A version of the Annual Report incorporating a brief summary of the 
Statement of Accounts has now been drafted based on the audited 
financial statements.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee receive the report presented by Ernst and 
Young.

Agenda Item 5

Page 15



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

2.2 That the Statement of Accounts for the year ending 31 March 2013 
be approved.

2.3 That the Chair of the meeting be authorised to sign the Letter of 
Representation and audited Statement of Accounts for the financial 
year ending 31 March 2013 on behalf of the Council.

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 Approval of the Statement of Accounts for 2012/13 by the Civic 
Affairs Committee and publication of those accounts is required by 30 
September 2013, in line with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

3.2 The Civic Affairs Committee reviewed the draft Statement of 
Accounts for 2012/13 on 26 June 2013.  Ernst and Young have since 
been carrying out their audit.  Changes made to the accounts since 
the draft was reviewed by the Committee in June are discussed in 
section 4 below and are presented in Appendix B.

3.3 International Auditing Standard (UK and Ireland) 260 requires 
auditors to communicate a number of matters to those charged with 
governance, before issuing their audit opinion.

3.4 International Auditing Standard (UK and Ireland) 580 requires the 
auditor to have received a Letter of Representation drawn up by the 
Council that provides written confirmation on matters that might be 
relevant or significant to the statement of accounts.  This letter is 
signed as near as possible to the date of the auditor issuing his 
opinion.  The auditing standard requires that the letter is ‘discussed 
and agreed by those charged with governance and signed on their 
behalf……... to ensure that all those charged with governance are 
aware of the representations on which the auditor intends to rely in 
expressing the auditor’s opinion on those financial statements’.  Ernst 
and Young therefore requires the Letter of Representation to be 
signed by the Director of Resources and by the Chair of Civic Affairs 
Committee.  A draft of the letter is included at Appendix C.

4 CHANGES TO THE ACCOUNTS SINCE CIVIC AFFAIRS REVIEW 
IN JUNE

4.1 A schedule of changes made to the accounts, since presentation of 
the draft to Civic Affairs in June 2013, is provided at Appendix B.  
The revised version of the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts, 
incorporating these changes, is provided at Appendix D.

Page 16



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

4.2 In particular, consensus has been reached with external audit on the 
accounting treatment of HRA properties earmarked for 
redevelopment and disposal.

4.3 The adjustments required to the main financial statements have had 
no impact on the Council’s total usable financial reserves as reported 
in June 2013.

4.4 As detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement on Page 9 of the 
Statement of Accounts, usable reserves totalled £60.1 million at 31 
March 2013.  These reserves comprised:

£’000

General Fund Balance (7,995)

Housing Revenue Account Balance (5,495)

Earmarked General Fund Reserves (20.236)

Earmarked HRA Reserves (3,863)

Capital Receipts Reserve (13,210)

Major Repairs Reserve (5,111)

Capital Grants Unapplied (4,155)

Total Usable Reserves (60,065)

4.5 Further detail on the earmarked reserves can be found in Note 5 to 
the Statement of Accounts.

4.6 The remaining adjustments have been made to correct typographical 
errors or to aid understanding of the disclosure notes.

5 SUMMARY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

5.1 The audited Statement of Accounts is required to follow a largely 
prescribed format as laid down by The Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom.

5.2 A brief summary of the accounts, designed to be easier for the 
general public to interpret, together with the annual report has been 
drafted and is provided at Appendix E for information.  This document 
will be published on the Council’s website together with the full 
version.

Page 17



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

6 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications None

(b) Staffing Implications None

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

An Equalities Impact Assessment was not required as no revision to 
a strategy, policy, plan service or contract is being proposed.  The 
Statement of Accounts and the summary document can be made 
available in accessible formats on request.

(d) Environmental Implications

None. Paper copies of the Annual Report and Statement of 
Accounts and Summary document will only be produced on request.  
Electronic versions will be available on the Council’s website.

(e) Procurement None

(f) Consultation and communication

The full and summary accounts will be published on the Council’s 
website.  A notice advertising that the audit of the accounts has been 
concluded will be published in the Cambridge News and on the 
website.

(g) Community Safety None

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

None

To inspect these documents contact Charity Main on extension 8152.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Charity Main on 
extension 8152.

Report file:

Date originated: 09 September 2013
Date of last revision: 09 September 2013

Page 18



Cambridge City Council 
 
Civic Affairs Committee Summary 

For the year ended 31 March 2013 
 
 

Audit results report – ISA 260 
 
19 September 2013 

▌ Mark Hodgson, Director 

▌ mhodgson@uk.ey.com 

 

▌ Ruth Pritchard-Wooles, Manager 

▌ rpritchard-wooles@uk.ey.com 

 

APPENDIX A

P
age 19



► Executive Summary 

► Extent and progress of our work 

► Addressing audit risk 

► Financial statements audit – findings & issues 

► Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness 

► Independence and Audit Fees 

► Appendices 

Contents 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 2 

P
age 20



Executive Summary 
Key findings  

 
▌ Audit results and other key matters 
 
The Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) requires us to report to ‘those charged with governance’ on the work 

we have carried out to discharge our statutory audit responsibilities together with any governance issues identified. 

 

This report summarises the findings from the 2012/13 audit which is substantially complete. It  includes the messages arising from 

our audit of your financial statements and the results of the work we have undertaken to assess your arrangements to secure value 

for money in your use of resources. 

 

                 Financial Statements 

► As of 19 September 2013, we expect to issue an unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  

 

Value for Money  

► We expect to conclude that you have made appropriate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in your use of resources but will report an exception in respect of arrangements for maintaining a sound 

system of internal control. 

 

Whole of Government Accounts 

► We expect to issue an unqualified confirmation to the National Audit Office (NAO) regarding the Whole of 

Government Accounts submission. 

 

Audit Certificate 

► The audit certificate is issued to demonstrate that the full requirements of the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit have 
been discharged for the relevant audit year. We expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the Audit 

Opinion. 

 

 

 
 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 3 

P
age 21



Extent and purpose of our work 

▌ The Council’s responsibilities 

 
▌ The Council is responsible for preparing and 

publishing its Statement of Accounts, 

accompanied by the Annual Governance 

Statement. In the Annual Governance 

Statement, the Council reports publicly on the 

extent to which they comply with their own 

code of governance, including how they have 

monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of 

their governance arrangements in the year, 

and on any planned changes in the coming 

period.  

 

▌ The Council is also responsible for putting in 

place proper arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 

use of resources. 

 

▌ Purpose of our work 

 
▌ Our audit was designed to: 

► Express an opinion on the 2012/13 financial statements 

▌ Report on any exception on the governance statement or other 

information included in the foreword 

▌ As a component auditor, follow the group instructions and send to the 

National Audit Office our group assurance certificate, audit results report 

and auditor's report on the consolidation schedule 

▌ Consider and report any matters that prevent us being satisfied that the 

Council had put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (the Value for Money 

conclusion) 

▌ This report contains our findings related to the areas of audit emphasis, 

our views on the Council’s accounting policies and judgments and 
material internal control findings.  

 

▌ This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Council. It 

is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than this 

specified parties. 

 

 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 4 

P
age 22



Addressing audit risks 
Significant Audit risks 

▌ We identified the following audit risks during the planning phase of our audit, and reported these to you in our Audit Plan. Here, 

we set out how we have gained audit assurance over those issues. 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 5 

Audit Risk identified within our Audit Plan Audit Procedures performed Assurance gained and issues arising 

Significant audit risks 

Valuation of property assets 
 
This is a significant accounting estimate. The high values 
of property  mean that the impact of inappropriate or 
erroneous assumptions  in the valuation of properties 
could lead to a material error in the financial statements. 
 

 

We sought to place reliance on the valuations obtained by 
the Council from external valuers (management’s expert). 

We: 
• Evaluated the competence , capabilities and objectivity of  
   management’s experts;  
• Obtained an understanding of the work of management’s    
   experts 
• Evaluated the work of management’s experts 
• Concluded whether the work of management’s experts was  
   adequate for our purposes. 

We  concluded  that work of management’s experts 

was adequate for our purposes  and we could rely on 
the external valuers. 
 

Our audit discussions with officers identified an issue  
with the accounting treatment  and classification of 
social housing designated for redevelopment which 
resulted in the need for those properties to be valued 
on different basis .  
 
This resulted in an overstatement of the asset values  
by £6.065m and the financial statements have been 
amended for this error. 

Other audit risks 

Material misstatements arising from fraud 

 
Management has the primary responsibility to prevent and 
detect fraud. It is important that management, with the 
oversight of those charged with governance, has put in 
place a culture of ethical behaviour and a strong control 
environment that both deters and prevents fraud. 
Our responsibility is to plan and perform audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free of material misstatements 
whether caused by error or fraud. As auditors, we 
approach each engagement with a questioning mind that 
accepts the possibility that a material misstatement due 
to fraud could occur, and design the appropriate 
procedures to consider such risk.  

Based on the requirements of auditing standards our 
approach focused on: 
• Identifying any fraud risks during the planning stages. 
• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the  
   controls put in place to address those risks. 
• Understanding the oversight given by the Civic Affairs  
   Committee, as those charged with governance, of  
   management’s processes over fraud. 
• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s  
  controls designed to address the risk of fraud. 
• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those  
  identified risks of fraud. 
• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of  
  specifically identified fraud risks. 

Our audit procedures and testing have not identified 
any instances of misstatements arising from fraud. 

P
age 23



Financial Statements audit 
Issues and errors arising from the audit 

 ▌ Progress of our audit 

► The following areas of our work programme remain to 

be completed. We will provide an update of progress at 

the Audit Committee meeting: 

► Receipt of a Letter of Representation. 

► Whole of Government Accounts 

► Subject to the satisfactory resolution of the above items, 

we propose to issue an unqualified audit report on the 

financial statements. 

 

▌ Corrected Errors  

▌ Our audit identified a limited number of numerical and 

disclosure errors which my team have highlighted to 

management for amendment. All of these have been 

adjusted during the course of our work.  

▌ We consider a number of these errors to be significant and 

we set out the context and nature of them in Appendix 1 to 

this report.  

 

▌ Uncorrected Errors 

▌ There remain no unadjusted errors for your consideration. 

 

 

 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 6 

▌ Other Matters 

▌ As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying 

communication requirements, we are required to communicate to 

you significant findings from the audit and other matters that are 

significant to your oversight of the Council’s financial reporting 
process including the following:  

▌ Qualitative aspects of your accounting practices;  

▌ Matters specifically required by other auditing standards to 

be communicated to those charged with governance. For 

example, issues about fraud, compliance with laws and 

regulations, external confirmations and related party 

transactions. 

▌ Other audit matters of governance interest 

 

We have no matters we wish to report. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



Findings and issues 
Internal Control 

 

▌ We  carried out additional work in relation to the Council’s 
budget setting process and reported our findings to the Chief 

Executive on 23 January 2013 and 19 February 2013. 

▌ We found that the budget gap of £2.3m had occurred as a 

result of  an unidentified error in the opening reserve figure. 

The internal control framework was  not operating as it was 

designed and adequate scrutiny and review of the budgets 

had not taken place and version control was weak, so that 

the error was not identified. 

▌ The council has now put in place an action plan to address 

the weaknesses identified 

▌ We have concluded that this weakness did not increase the 

risk of a material error in your 2012/13 financial statements. 

▌ We have concluded that this weakness is relevant to my 

consideration the Council’s arrangements to secure 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

and intend to report it as an exception to my overall 

conclusion. 

 

 

 

 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 7 

▌ Internal Control 

▌ It is the responsibility of the Council to develop and implement 

systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper 

arrangements to monitor their adequacy and effectiveness in 

practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider 

whether the Council has put adequate arrangements in place 

to satisfy itself that the systems of internal financial control are 

both adequate and effective in practice. 

▌ We have tested the controls of the Council only to the extent 

necessary for me to complete my audit. We are not expressing 

an opinion on the overall effectiveness of internal control.  

▌ We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can 

confirm that: 

► it complies with the requirements of CIPFA/SOLACE 

Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 

Framework; and 

► it is consistent with other information that we are aware of 

from our audit of the financial statements. 

 

Internal Control Weakness 

▌ In December 2012, the Council notified us of an issue with the 

2013/14 budget setting process and an identified gap within 

the budget and the Medium Term Financial Plan.  

▌ We identified this as a significant risk to the Value for Money 

conclusion (financial resilience and underlying criteria of 

budget setting / internal control). 

 

 

 

P
age 25



Findings and issues 
 Written Representations & Whole of Government Accounts 

 

▌ Whole of Government Accounts 
 

▌ Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also 

review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole 

of Government Accounts return. The extent of our review and 

the nature of my report are specified by the National Audit 

Office. 

▌  We are currently concluding our work in this area and will 

report any matters that arise to the Audit Committee. 

 

 

 
 

 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 8 

 

▌ Request for written representations 

 

▌ We have requested a management representation letter to 

gain management’s confirmation in relation to a number of 
matters, for which we do not currently have sufficient audit 

evidence. We have not requested any non standard 

representations. 

P
age 26



Arrangements to secure economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness 

The Code of Audit Practice (2010) sets out our responsibility to satisfy ourselves that Cambridge City Council has put in place 

proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. In examining the Council’s 

corporate performance management and financial management arrangements, we have regard to the following criteria and 

focus specified by the Audit Commission. 

▌ Criteria 1 - Arrangements for securing financial 

resilience  

► “Whether the Council has robust systems and processes 

to manage financial risks and opportunities effectively, 

and to secure a stable financial position that enables it to 

continue to operate for the foreseeable future” 
► We did identify a significant risk in relation to this criteria 

as a result of the potential control weaknesses in the 

budget setting process. 

► We have concluded that the Council’s arrangements for 
securing financial resilience are adequate. 

 

▌ Criteria 2 - Arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness 

► “Whether the Council is prioritising its resources within 

tighter budgets, for example by achieving cost reductions 

and by improving efficiency and productivity.” 

► We did not identify any significant risks in relation to this 

criteria. 

► We have no issues to report in relation to this criteria. 

 

 

 

 

Other Considerations 

• In meeting our responsibility relating to economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness, the Audit Commission Code of Audit Practice 

requires auditors to review and, where appropriate, examine 

evidence that is relevant to the audited body’s underlying 
corporate performance and financial management 

arrangements. 

• We have concluded that the significant internal control 

weaknesses identified in relation to budget setting should be 

reported as an exception. This does not modify our overall 

conclusion.  

• The exception wording of our Value For Money (VFM) 

conclusion is shown at Appendix 2. 

 

 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 9 

P
age 27



 

 
► We confirm there are no changes in our assessment 

of independence since our confirmation in our Audit 

Plan dated 20 March 2013.  

 

► We complied with the Ethical Standards for Auditors 

and the requirements of the Audit Commission’s Code 
and Standing Guidance and in our professional 

judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity 

of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has 

not been compromised within the meaning of 

regulatory and professional requirements. 

 

► We confirm that we are not aware of any relationships 

that may affect the independence and objectivity of the 

firm that we are required by auditing and ethical 

standards to report to you. 

 

► We consider that our independence in this context is a 

matter that should be reviewed by both you and 

ourselves. It is therefore important that you consider 

the facts of which you are aware and come to a view. 

If you wish to discuss any matters concerning our 

independence, we will be pleased to do so at the 

forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee on 19 

September 2013. 

 

 

 

Independence 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 10 

► We confirm that we have met the reporting requirements to the 

Audit Committee, as ‘those charged with governance’ under 
International Standards on Auditing (ISA) 260. Our 

communication plan to meet these requirements were set out in 

our Audit Plan 20 March 2013.  

▌ Independence 

P
age 28



 

▌ Audit fees 

The table below sets out the scale fee and our final proposed audit 

fees. 

 

 

►  

 

 

 

 

Audit Fees 

► Our actual fee is in line with the proposed final fee at 

this point in time, subject to the satisfactory clearance 

of the outstanding audit work. 

► We confirm that we have  undertaken work outside of 

the Audit Commission’s Audit Code requirements 
(non-code) . We were engaged by the Council to 

investigate the error in the budget setting process, as 

set out in the table opposite. 

Proposed final 
fee 2012/13 

Scale fee 
2012/13 

Variation 
comments 

£s £s 

Total Audit 
Fee – Code 
work 

86.405 68,405 Additional fee of 
£18,000 agreed to 
address risk of 
budget setting 
control 
weaknesses (Phase 
1). 

Certification 
of claims 
and returns 

12,900 12,900 Work not yet 
complete 

Non-Audit 
work 

21,000 n/a Phase 2 work in 
relation to the 
Budget Setting 
issue. 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 11 

P
age 29



Appendix 1 - Adjusted Audit errors 

▌ The following adjustments, which are greater than £0.148m, have been identified during the course of our audit.  

▌ These adjustments have been made by management within the revised financial statements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item of Account Nature of Error Error Type 
Statement of Comprehensive 

Income & Expenditure 
Balance Sheet 

Description F, P, J Debit  (Credit) Debit  (Credit) 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

Valuation basis 
change F (5,882,274) 

Short Term Assets Held 
for Sale 

Valuation basis 
change F (183,000) 

Revaluation Reserve 
Valuation basis 
change F 5,071,122 

Non Distributed Costs 
Valuation basis 
change F 1,330,872 

Other Operating 
Expenditure 

Valuation basis 
change F (336,720) 

Balance sheet totals 

5,071,122 

 (6,065,274) 

Income effect of 
corrected adjustments 

1,330,872 
 (336,720) 

Cumulative effect of 
uncorrected 
misstatement NIL 

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 12 

▌ Key  

► F – Factual error 

► P – Projected error based on audit sample error and population extrapolation 

► J – Judgemental error 

 

P
age 30



Appendix 2 – Modified VFM Conclusion 

Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and the auditor 

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and 
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard 
to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission. 

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding that the Authority has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 

and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in November 
2012, as to whether the Authority has proper arrangements for: 

• securing financial resilience; and 

• challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the Authority put in place 
proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2013. 

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on whether, in all 
significant respects, the Authority had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

Conclusion 

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published by the Audit Commission in November 2012, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects, 
Cambridge City Council put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2013. 

Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources  

Report by exception 

The Audit Commission's guidance also requires us to report by exception on any other significant additional matters that come to our attention and which we consider to be relevant to 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.  

Such a matter has come to our attention relating to a significant weakness in Cambridge City Council’s arrangements for ensuring appropriate internal control over the preparation of the 
2013/14 budget. The Council has set out this matter within its Annual Governance Statement on page XXII of the financial statements. 

Our conclusion above, that we are satisfied that in all significant respects Cambridge City Council  put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2013, is not modified by this finding. 

 

  

 

  

Civic Affairs Committee Summary Page 13 

P
age 31



EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory 

Ernst & Young LLP 

© Ernst & Young LLP. Published in the UK. 

All Rights Reserved. 

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales 

with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited. 

Ernst & Young LLP, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF. 

ey.com 

In March 2010 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ (Statement of responsibilities). It is available from the 
Chief Executive of each audited body and via the Audit Commission’s website. 

The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between the Audit Commission’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 

The Standing Guidance serves as our terms of appointment as auditors appointed by the Audit Commission. The Standing Guidance sets out additional requirements that auditors 
must comply with, over and above those set out in the Code of Audit Practice 2010 (the Code) and statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring 
nature. 

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as 
appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party. 

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you 
may take the issue up with your usual partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London 
SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our 
service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our professional institute. 

P
age 32



Cambridge City Council Statement of Accounts 2012/13

Changes to accounts since Civic Affairs June 2013 APPENDIX B

Details of Change Reason for Change Note/Statements Affected

Change Director of Resources statement from ‘In 
my opinion..’ to ‘I certify..’

External audit requirement that the certification is a 
statement rather than an opinion.

Introduction (Page 6)

Revision to accounting treatment and valuation 
basis of Housing Revenue Account Properties 
earmarked for redevelopment or disposal.
Reduce book value of Property, Plant & 
Equipment from £619.8m to £613.9m and value 
of current assets held for sale from £1.0m to 
£0.8m.  Corresponding changes to accounting for 
revaluation adjustments.

Revisions to the Council’s initial treatment, 
communicated to auditors in May 2013, were not 
agreed until after the draft accounts were prepared.

Movement In Reserves (Page 9)
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement (Page 11)
Balance Sheet (Page 12)
Note 3 (Page 18)
Note 4 (Page 19)
Note 6 (Page 26)
Note 9 (Pages 27 & 28)
Note 16 (Page 34)
Note 17 (Page 36)
Note 27 (Page 46)
Note 35 (Pages 50, 51 &52)
HRA Income and Expenditure Account 
(Page 71)
Statement of Movement on the HRA 
Balance (Page 72)
Note 4 to the HRA (Page 74)
Accounting Policy 5 (Page 85)

£120k moved from an earmarked reserve to 
being presented as a creditor.

Payment was made in April 2013, but agreed in 
2012/13.  Identified during external audit testing of 
payables vouchers.

Movement In Reserves (Page 9)
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 
Statement (Page 11)
Balance Sheet (Page 12)
Note 5 (page 25)
Note 9 (pages 27&28)
Note 30 (page 47)
Note 37 (Pages 56&58)

Revisions to wording on estimation uncertainty 
within Note 2.

The draft accounts were based on the CIPFA model 
accounts wording.  Ernst and Young believe that the
original wording implied that the accounts included
material errors and suggested alternative wording.

Note 2 (Page 17)

P
age 33



Cambridge City Council Statement of Accounts 2012/13

Changes to accounts since Civic Affairs June 2013 APPENDIX B

Details of Change Reason for Change Note/Statements Affected

Details of amounts paid to the Mayor and Deputy 
Mayor outside of the Members Allowances 
Scheme have now been included in Note 12.

Transparency Note 12 (Page 30)

Amended grants paid figure from £246,266 to 
£245,949 and number of members with an 
interest from 12 to 11.

Error in working paper identified during external 
audit.

Note 13 (Page 31)

Amended exit packages note to correct the 
number of departures and total cost.

Council officers identified two errors with the note 
included in the draft accounts.

Note 14 (Page 33)

Amounts and analysis of amounts included as 
audit costs have been amended.  Total costs in 
2011/12 amended from £125k to £130k. Total 
costs in 2012/13 amended from £119k to £120k.

Revised / simplified presentation of this note agreed 
with external audit.

Note 15 (Page 33)

Amended useful lives of other buildings to 50 –
60 years.

External audit identified a property with a life of 50 
years.

Note 18 (Page 37)

Rearranged layout of intangibles note to make it 
clearer to follow.

External audit request. Note 23

Amended split of lease payments between 1 to 5 
years, and over 5 years.

Previous analysis was incorrect. Note 24 (Page 42)

Amended minimum lease payments from £411k 
to £440k.

Typographical error. Note 24 (Page 42)

Amended Loans & Receivables figures disclosed 
as financial instruments (both current and prior 
year).

Draft accounts excluded lease premium prepayment 
which should be included.

Note 37 (Pages 56, 58 & 60)

Amended fair value of assets in the local 
government pension scheme at 31 March 2011 
from £130.1m to £132.6m.

Typographical error. Note 39 (Page 64)

P
age 34



Cambridge City Council Statement of Accounts 2012/13

Changes to accounts since Civic Affairs June 2013 APPENDIX B

Details of Change Reason for Change Note/Statements Affected

Amended difference between the expected and 
actual return on assets in 2010/11 from 1.3% to 
-0.6%.  Amend experience gains and losses on 
liabilities to -1.3% from 0.0% in 2011/12.

Typographical errors Note 39 (Page 66)

Removed disclosure of amendment to treatment 
of £22k trading surplus in 2011/12 comparative.

Disclosure not  required as not considered material. Note 43 (Page 67)

Restated comparative 2011/12 figure in HRA 
Income and Expenditure Account for depreciation  
and impairment from £5.5m to £5.0m.  
Corresponding adjustments in Statement of 
Movement on the HRA balance, amending net 
revaluation losses from £3.7m to £4.7m and the 
transfer from the Major Repairs Reserve from 
£4.2m to £4.7m.

Typographical error. Comparative Draft statement of 
accounts not updated to match working papers.

HRA Income and Expenditure Account 
(Page 71)
Statement of Movement on the HRA 
Balance (Page 72)

Amended HRA dwelling capital income from 
£4.6m to £4.4m

Incorrect figure included in draft accounts. Note 9 to the HRA (page 76)

Amended total number of houses and bungalows 
from 3,659 to 3,658 and number of vacant 
properties from 90 to 91.

Incorrect figures included in draft accounts. Note 6 to the HRA (Page 75)

P
age 35



P
age 36

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Enquiries to: 
David Horspool
Director of Resources
T: 01223 457007
E: david.horspool@cambridge.gov.uk

PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 0JH                                           

www.cambridge.gov.uk  Switchboard: 01223 457000

Mark Hodgson
Ernst & Young LLP
One Cambridge Business Park
Cowley Road
Cambridge 
CB4 0WZ

23 September 2013

Dear Mr Hodgson

Cambridge City Council - Audit for the 2012/13 year ended 31 March 2013

I confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief, having made appropriate enquiries 
of other officers and members of Cambridge City Council, the following 
representations given to you in connection with your audit of Cambridge City 
Council’s financial statements for the 2012/13 year ended 31 March 2013. All
representations cover the Authority’s accounts included within the financial 
statements.

Financial Statements and Financial Records

I have fulfilled my responsibility, under the relevant statutory authorities, for 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting (CIPFA Code).

I acknowledge my responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements.  
I believe that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the 
CIPFA Code and are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  I have 
approved the financial statements.

I have reviewed the accounts, reviewed all relevant written assurances relating to 
the accounts and made other enquiries as appropriate.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements are appropriately described within them.

I believe that the Council has a system of internal controls adequate to enable the 
preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the CIPFA Code that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

APPENDIX C

Page 37



2

Fraud

I acknowledge my responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

I confirm that I have disclosed the results of our assessment of the risk the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

I have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving management or other 
employees who have a significant role in the Council’s internal controls over financial 
reporting.  In addition, I have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud involving 
other employees in which the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.  I have no knowledge of any allegations of financial improprieties, 
including fraud or suspected fraud, (regardless or the source or form and including 
without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”) which could result in a 
misstatement of the financial statements or otherwise affect the financial reporting of 
the Council.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

I have disclosed to you all known actual or suspected non-compliance with laws and 
regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial 
statements.

Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

The Council has provided:

 Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters as agreed in terms of the audit engagement;

 Additional information as requested for the purpose of the audit; and

 Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are 
reflected in the financial statements.

All minutes of the meetings of the Council and its relevant committees (or summaries 
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared) held 
through the year to the most recent meeting held on 19 September 2013.

I confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of 
related parties.  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties 
and all related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including 

Page 38



3

sales, purchases, loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services, leasing 
arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions and transactions for no 
consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or from such 
parties at the year end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed in the financial statements.

I have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual 
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event 
of non-compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of 
outstanding debt.

Liabilities and Contingencies

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether 
written or oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements.

I have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or 
not they have been discussed with legal counsel.

I have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation and 
claims, both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in the financial statements all 
guarantees given to third parties.

Subsequent events

Other than described in the financial statements, there have been no events 
subsequent to the period end which require adjustment or disclosure in the financial 
statements or notes thereto.

Accounting Estimates

I believe that the significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates, 
including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

In respect of accounting estimates recognised or disclosed in the financial 
statements:

 The measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, 
used in determining accounting estimates are appropriate and the application 
of these processes is consistent.

 The disclosures relating to accounting estimates are complete and 
appropriate in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.

 The assumptions used in making accounting estimates appropriately reflects 
the intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the 
entity, where relevant to the accounting estimates and disclosures.

Page 39



4

 No subsequent event requires an adjustment to the accounting estimates and 
disclosures included in the financial statements.

Going Concern

I have made you aware of any issues that are relevant to the Council’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including significant conditions and events, our plans 
for future action, and the feasibility of those plans.

Signed on behalf of Cambridge City Council

I confirm that this letter has been discussed and agreed by the Civic Affairs 
Committee of Cambridge City Council on 19 September 2013.

Signed : Signed : 

David Horspool Councillor C Rosentiel

Director of Resources Chair of Civic Affairs Committee

Date : Date : 

Page 40



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ANNUAL REPORT AND
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 MARCH 2013 

FINAL DRAFT FOR CIVIC AFFAIRS – 
19 SEPTEMBER 2013

  

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

!"#$ %&'()*+, #$ -.-#/-0/* &+ &(1 2*0$#,* -, 2223'-)01#%4*34&.3(5 

Page 42



 !"#$%&'() %*+) ,-./%0)
1..-!0)2(3,$*)4)5*!*("(.*),6)1//,-.*7)

89:8;:<)
)
)

)

Contents

)

Annual Report)=============================================================================================================================================)%)
)

Statement of Accounts
)

5*!*("(.*),6)2(73,.7%#%0%*%(7)==========================================================================================================================)>?)
)

1..-!0)@,?($.!./()5*!*("(.*))===================================================================================================================)>?%%)
)

1-&%*,$7A)2(3,$*),.)*B()1//,-.*7))================================================================================================================)>>?)
)

Introduction to the Statement of Accounts)=======================================================================================):)
)

)

C!%.)D%.!./%!0)5*!*("(.*7E)
)

 ) C,?("(.*)%.)2(7($?(7)5*!*("(.*)==============================================================================)F)
)

 )  ,"3$(B(.7%?()G./,"()!.&)H>3(.&%*-$()5*!*("(.*)================================================)::)
)

 ) I!0!./()5B((*)==========================================================================================================):8)
)

 )  !7B)D0,J)5*!*("(.*)===============================================================================================):<)
)
)

Notes to the Main Financial Statements)===========================================================================================):K)
)

Additional Financial Statements and Information:
)

 ) L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)G./,"()!.&)H>3(.&%*-$()1//,-.*)==================================)M:)
)

 ) 5*!*("(.*),6)C,?("(.*),.)*B()L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)I!0!./()========================)M8)
)

 ) N,*(7)*,)*B()L,-7%.')2(?(.-()1//,-.*)===================================================================)M<)
)

 )  ,00(/*%,.)D-.&)=========================================================================================================)MO)
)

Statement of Accounting Policies and Glossary:
)

 ) 5*!*("(.*),6)1//,-.*%.')P,0%/%(7)==============================================================================)O<)
)
 ) @0,77!$+),6)D%.!./%!0)Q($"7)!.&)1##$(?%!*%,.7)========================================================)FF)

)
)
)

Page 43



Page 44



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%%%%%%%2%
%

Annual Report 2012/13 

3#.4*2,5'%32+6%3)"!02$%(*)72,'1%#%82,'% *#!5'%)/%1'*720'1% +)%(')($'% +9#+% $27'% 2!:%8)*;% 2!%#!,%7212+%
3#.4*2,5'<%%

=9'%1'*720'1%(*)72,',%46%+9'%32+6%3)"!02$%2!0$",'>%%

 % ?''(2!5%+9'%1+*''+1%#!,%("4$20%)('!%1(#0'1%0$'#!<%%

 % @.(+62!5%*'/"1'%#!,%*'060$2!5%42!1<%%

 % A*)72,2!5%#%* #!5'%)/% $'21"*'% /#02$2+2'1:% 2!0$",2!5%182..2!5%())$1%#!,%0).."!2+6% 0'!+*'1:% #!,%
(*)72,2!5%'!+'*+#2!.'!+%2!%+9'%32+6B1%(#*;1%#!,%#+%+9'%3)*!%@C09#!5'<%%

 %  8#*,2!5%#%82,'%*#!5'%)/%5*#!+1%+)%1"(()*+%$)0#$%)*5#!21#+2)!1%#!,%0).."!2+6%5*)"(1<%

 % A*)72,2!5%#%82,'%*#!5'%)/%($#6%#0+272+2'1%/)*%092$,*'!%#!,%6)"!5%(')($'<%%

 % D'7'$)(2!5% #%!'8% $)0#$% ($#!% /)*%3#.4*2,5'% +)%5"2,'% ,'7'$)(.'!+% +)% EFGH:% )//'*2!5% ($#!!2!5%
#,720':%(*)5*'112!5%($#!!2!5%#(($20#+2)!1%#!,%.#;2!5%1"*'% +9#+%!'8%4"2$,2!51%#!,%#$+'*#+2)!1%
#*'%1#/'<%%

 % A*)72,2!5% 9)"12!5% #,720'% #!,% 1"(()*+:% #!,% 8)*;2!5% 82+9% (#*+!'*1% +)% .''+% (')($'1B% 9)"12!5%
!'',1<%%

 %  0+2!5%#1%$#!,$)*,%+)%)7'*%I:HFF%0)"!02$J)8!',%(*)('*+2'1<%%

 % A*)0'112!5%9)"12!5%4'!'/2+%#!,%0)"!02$%+#C%1"(()*+%#(($20#+2)!1<%%

 % K)!2+)*2!5%#!,%'!/)*02!5%/)),%#!,%,*2!;%9652'!'%1+#!,#*,1:%+)5'+9'*%82+9%+9'%0)!+*)$%)/%('1+1%
#!,%,21'#1':%!)21'%#!,%#2*%()$$"+2)!<%%

 % L20'!12!5%/)),%(*'.21'1:%1+*''+%+*#,'*1%#!,%'!+'*+#2!.'!+%7'!"'1<%%

 %  ,,*'112!5%#!+2J1)02#$%4'9#72)"*:%2!%(#*+!'*192(%82+9%+9'%A)$20'%#!,%)+9'*%#5'!02'1<%%

 % K#!#52!5%0)"!02$%*"!%0#*%(#*;1<%%

 % M*5#!212!5%#!,%.#!#52!5%'$'0+2)!1%#!,%+9'%'$'0+)*#$%*'521+'*<%%

=9'%32+6%3)"!02$%1'*7'1%#%()("$#+2)!%)/%#4)"+%HEG:NFF%*'12,'!+1%2!%#!%#$.)1+%'!+2*'$6%"*4#!%#*'#%2!%
#!% )+9'*821'%.#2!$6% *"*#$% 0)"!+6<% 3#.4*2,5'% 21% #% 1"4J*'52)!#$% 0'!+*'% 82+9% 9259% $'7'$1% )/% 2!8#*,%
+*#7'$% +)% 8)*;% #!,% /)*% 19)((2!5% #!,% $'21"*'% #0+272+2'1:% 89209% #,,1% 125!2/20#!+$6% +)% +9'% ,#6J+2.'%
()("$#+2)!<%=9'%3)"!02$%(*)72,'1%.#!6%1'*720'1%+9#+%#*'%"1',%46%(')($'%89)%$27'%)"+12,'%)/%+9'%02+6%
#1%8'$$%#1%*'12,'!+1:%89209%($#0'1%#,,2+2)!#$%(*'11"*'%)!%)"*%*'1)"*0'1<%%

=9'%02+6%21%#+%+9'%0'!+*'%)/%#%9)"12!5%5*)8+9%*'52)!:%82+9%.#!6%!'8%9).'1%($#!!',%/)*%12+'1%)!%+9'%
1)"+9'*!% #!,%!) *+9J8'1+% /*2!5'1% )/% 3#.4*2,5'<% =9'% (*)7212)!% )/% 5)),% O"#$2+6% #//)*,#4$'% #!,%
1"1+#2!#4$'% 9)"12!5% 21% #% (*2)*2+6% /)*% +9'% 3)"!02$% #!,%2 +% 9#1% 1'+% #% +#*5'+% /)*% ,'7'$)('*1% )/% PFQ%
#//)*,#4$'%9)"12!5%+)%4'%(*)72,',%)!%+9'%$#*5'*%5*)8+9%12+'1<% %

Page 45



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,,% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!-%.+#+'/'!+%)0% 11)"!+2%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

What we want to achieve

3#/4*,-5'%3,+6%3)"!1,$%7#2%#%1$'#*%8,2,)!% 0)*% +7'% 0"+"*'%)0% +7'%1,+69%#%8 ,2,)!%:7,17% ,2%27#*'-%:,+7%
3#/4*,-5'%1,+,;'!2%#!-%:,+7%(#*+!'*%)*5#!,2#+,)!2<%%

Vision Statement

Cambridge - where people matter

 %  %1,+6%:7,17%1'$'4*#+'2% ,+2%-,8'*2,+69%"!,+'2% ,!% ,+2%(*,)*,+6% 0)*% +7'%-,2#-8#!+#5'-%#!-%2+*,8'2% 0)*%
27#*'-%1)//"!,+6%:'$$4',!5%

 %  %1,+6%:7)2'%1,+,;'!2% 0''$% +7'6%1#!% ,!0$"'!1'%("4$,1%-'1,2,)!%/#=,!5%#!-%#*'%'>"#$$6%=''!% +)%
("*2"'%,!-,8,-"#$%#!-%1)//"!,+6%,!,+,#+,8'2%

 %  % 1,+6%:7'*'%(')($'%4'7#8'%:,+7% 1)!2,-'*#+,)!% 0)*% )+7'*2%#!-%:7'*'%7#*/%#!-%!",2#!1'%#*'%
1)!0*)!+'-%:7'*'8'*%()22,4$'%:,+7)"+%1)!2+*#,!,!5%+7'%$,8'2%)0%#$$%

Cambridge - a good place to live, learn and work

 %  % 1,+6% :7,17% *'1)5!,2'2% #!-% /''+2% !''-2% 0)*% 7)"2,!5% )0% #$$% =,!-2% ?% 1$)2'% +)% @)42% #!-%
!',574)"*7))-%0#1,$,+,'2%

 %  %1,+6%:7,17%-*#:2%,!2(,*#+,)!%0*)/%,+2%,1)!,1%7,2+)*,1%1'!+*'%#!-%#17,'8'2%#%2'!2'%)0%($#1'%,!%#$$%
)0%,+2%(#*+2%:,+7%5'!'*)"2%"*4#!%)('!%2(#1'2%#!-%:'$$A-'2,5!'-%4",$-,!52%

 %  %1,+6%:,+7%#%+7*,8,!5%$)1#$%'1)!)/6%+7#+%4'!'0,+2%+7'%:7)$'%1)//"!,+6%#!-%4",$-2%)!%,+2%5$)4#$%
(*'A'/,!'!1'%,!%$'#*!,!5%#!-%-,21)8'*6%

 %  %1,+6%:7'*'%5'++,!5%#*)"!-%,2%(*,/#*,$6%46%("4$,1%+*#!2()*+9%4,='%#!-%)!%0))+%

Cambridge - caring for the planet

 %  %1,+6% ,!% +7'% 0)*'0*)!+%)0% $):%1#*4)!% $,8,!5%#!-%/,!,/,2,!5% ,+2% ,/(#1+%)!% +7'%'!8,*)!/'!+% 0*)/%
:#2+'%#!-%()$$"+,)!<%

Priorities

B7'%!#+,)!#$% '1)!)/,1% 2,+"#+,)!% #!-% +7'%5)8'*!/'!+C2% ($#!2% +)% +#1=$'% +7'% !#+,)!#$% -'4+%:,$$% 4'%#%
17#$$'!5'%0)*%+7'%3,+6%3)"!1,$%4'1#"2'%)8'*%+7'%!'D+%0':%6'#*2%:'%:,$$%7#8'%$'22%/)!'6%+)%2('!-<%
 2%:'%($#!%0)*%+7'%0"+"*'%)"*%#,/%:,$$%4'%+)E%%

 % (*)+'1+%2'*8,1'2%0)*%8"$!'*#4$'%,!-,8,-"#$2%#!-%1)//"!,+,'2%

 % (*)+'1+%+7'%4#2,1%2'*8,1'2%+7#+%=''(%)"*%1,+6%$))=,!5%5))-%#!-%:)*=,!5%:'$$%

 % /#='%2"*'%+7#+%:'%5'+%*,57+%+7'%+7,!52%:'%)!$6%7#8'%)!'%17#!1'%+)%5'+%*,57+%?%2"17%#2%($#!!,!5%
!':%1)//"!,+,'2<%%

%
%

Page 46



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%222%
%

How we will achieve our vision for Cambridge

Portfolio Plans 

34'% 56'0"+27'% 21% .#,'% "(% )/% +4'% 8'#,'*% )/% +4'% 9)"!02$% #!,% 126% 56'0"+27'% 9)"!02$$)*1:% 5#04%
56'0"+27'%9)"!02$$)*%21%*'1()!12;$'%/)*%#%1('02/20%<*)"(%)/%1'*720'1=%>!)?!%#1%#%()*+/)$2)=%#!,%+4'@%
0#!% .#>'% ,'0212)!1% #;)"+% +4'% 1'*720'1% +4'@% #*'% *'1()!12;$'% /)*:% % A"*2!<% BCDBEDF% +4'% 1'7'!%
()*+/)$2)1%?'*'G%%

 %  *+1=%-()*+1%H%I";$20%I$#0'1%

 % 9).."!2+@%A'7'$)(.'!+%#!,%J'#$+4%

 % 9"1+).'*%-'*720'1%#!,%&'1)"*0'1%

 % 5!72*)!.'!+#$%#!,%K#1+'%-'*720'1%

 % J)"12!<%

 % I$#!!2!<%#!,%9$2.#+'%94#!<'=%#!,%%

 % -+*#+'<@:%%

5#04%56'0"+27'%9)"!02$$)*%4#1%#%($#!% +4#+%1'+1%)"+%4)?% +4'%1'*720'1% +4'@%#*'% *'1()!12;$'% /)*%?2$$%
0)!+*2;"+'%+)%+4'%#042'7'.'!+%)/%+4'%0)"!02$L1%7212)!%/)*%9#.;*2,<':%%

34'%/)$$)?2!<%(#<'1%)"+$2!'%?4#+%?'%#042'7',%)7'*%+4'%(#1+%@'#*%#1%#%*'1"$+%)/%+4'%BCDBEDF%()*+/)$2)%
($#!1=%#!,%?4#+%)"*%($#!1%#*'%/)*%BCDFEDM:%%

Arts, Sports & Public Places Portfolio Plan 

A"*2!<%BCDBEDF%?'G%%

!% N.(*)7',% #00'11% +)% #*+1=% 1()*+1% #!,% (";$20% ($#0'1% /)*% #$$% 02+@% *'12,'!+1% +4*)"<4% +4'% $'21"*'%
<*#!+1% (*)<*#..'% #!,% ;@% '!<#<2!<% ?2+4% <*)"(1% )/% (')($'% +4#+% ,)% !)+% 0"**'!+$@% "1'% +4'1'%
1'*720'1:%%

!% 9'$';*#+',%+4'%8)!,)!%BCDB%O$@.(20%#!,%I#*#$@.(20%P#.'1:%3421%2!0$",',%+4'%1+#<2!<%)/%#!%
O$@.(20% 3)*04% &'$#@% #+% I#*>'*1% I2'0'% ,"*2!<% +4'% Q2<%K''>'!,% '7'!+=% ?4204% #++*#0+',% )7'*%
RC=CCC%(')($'=%2!%S"$@%#!,%+4'%#**27#$%)/%+4'%I#*#$@.(20%/$#.'%,"*2!<% "<"1+:%%

!% N.(*)7',% +4'% T"#!+2+@% #!,% T"#$2+@% )/% (*)7212)!% )/% *'0@0$2!<=% $2++'*% #!,% ,)<%?#1+'% ;2!1% )!% )"*%
)('!%1(#0'1:%%

!% U#,'%2.(*)7'.'!+1%+)%)"*%)('!%1(#0'1=%1()*+1=%*'0*'#+2)!%#!,%(";$20%#*+%(*)7212)!%+4*)"<4%#%
*#!<'%)/%(*)V'0+1%/"!,',%;@%,'7'$)('*1:%%

!% N,'!+2/2',% ?#@1% /)*% +4'% 9)"!02$% +)% (*).)+'% (";$20% #00'11% +)% (";$20% )('!%1 (#0'% !)+% ,2*'0+$@%
.#2!+#2!',%;@%+4'%92+@%9)"!02$:%

!% 51+#;$214',% #%($ #!% #!,% (*2)*2+2'1% +)% '!4#!0'% $)0#$% '!72*)!.'!+#$% T"#$2+@=% ;2),27'*12+@% #!,%
1"1+#2!#;2$2+@:%%

%
%
%

Page 47



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,-% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

4"*%($#!3%1)*%567897:%,!%+;'% *+3<%/()*+3%=%>"?$,2%>$#2'3%()*+1)$,)%,!2$".'@%%

 % A#**B,!C% )"+% '33'!+,#$% ,0(*)-'0'!+3% +)% +;'%A)*!%DE2;#!C'% #!.%F",$.;#$$%G#$$3% #!.%,0(*)-'%
+;',*%0#*H'+,!C%#3%(#*+%)1% +;'% 1,*3+%B'#*%)1%#% +;*''%B'#*%?"3,!'33%($#!% +)% ,!2*'#3'%+;'%!"0?'*%
#!.%+B('%)1%'-'!+3%;'$.I%

 %  J#*.,!C%#%!'J%3'-'!%B'#*%$',3"*'%0#!#C'0'!+%2)!+*#2+I%

 % /"(()*+,!C% #!.% '!2)"*#C,!C% 0)*'% $)2#$% C*)"(3% +)% #(($B% 1)*% C*#!+3% 1*)0% +;'% A)"!2,$K3%  *'#%
A)00,++''3%1)*%3()*+3%#!.%#*+3%*'$#+'.%(*)L'2+3I%

 % 4*C#!,3,!C%#2+,-,+,'3%J,+;%(#*+!'*3%+)%2'$'?*#+'%+;'%7M6+;% !!,-'*3#*B%)1%+;'%N))+?#$$% 33)2,#+,)!%
#!.%+;'%:66+;% !!,-'*3#*B%)1%>#*H'*3%>,'2'I%

 % O'-'$)(,!C%+;'%*)$'%)1%+;'%A#0?*,.C'% *+3%P'+J)*H%+)%?'++'*%2))*.,!#+'%#!.%(*)0)+'%+;'%2,+BK3%
#*+3% #!.% 2"$+"*'% )11'*% #!.% ,0(*)-'% !'+J)*H,!C% #!.% 3"(()*+% #0)!C3+% #*+3% (*)-,.'*3% #!.%
(*#2+,+,)!'*3I%

 % >*)."2,!C%#%!'J%1,-'QB'#*%($#!%1)*%/()*+3%O'-'$)(0'!+<%4('!%/(#2'%#!.%>$#BI%

 % O'$,-'*,!C% .'-'$)('*% 2)!+*,?"+,)!Q1"!.'.% >"?$,2%  *+3% (*)L'2+3% +;#+% #*'% (*,)*,+,3'.% ?B% +;'%
A)"!2,$K3% *'#%#!.%/2*"+,!B%A)00,++''3I%

 % R!2*'#3,!C%(#*+,2,(#+,)!%?B%"!.'*Q*'(*'3'!+'.%C*)"(3%#!.%(')($'%J,+;%(*)+'2+'.%2;#*#2+'*,3+,23%
,!%#*+3<%3()*+3%#!.%#2+,-,+,'3%,!%("?$,2%($#2'3I%

 % R!2*'#3,!C%+;'%!"0?'*%)1%#$$)+0'!+%($)+3%#!.%2)00"!,+B%)*2;#*.3%,!%A#0?*,.C'I%

 % >$#!!,!C% #!.% 2))*.,!#+,!C%0"$+,Q#C'!2B% #**#!C'0'!+3% 1)*% +;'%S)"*% .'%N*#!2'@%F*#!.%O'(#*+%
+;,*.%$'C%3+#*+%1*)0%A#0?*,.C'%+)%T)!.)!I%

 % R!+*)."2,!C%#%*'-,3'.%S*''%U#!#C'0'!+%>*)+)2)$%+;#+%#$,C!3%J,+;%+;'%A)"!2,$K3% *'#%A)00,++''%
.'2,3,)!Q0#H,!C%2B2$'I%%%

Planning and Climate Change Portfolio Plan 

O"*,!C%5675978%J'@%%

 % A)!3"$+'.% )!% #% *#!C'% )1% ,33"'3% #!.% )(+,)!3% +;#+% !''.'.% +)% ?'% 2)!3,.'*'.% #3% (#*+% )1% +;'%
.'-'$)(0'!+%)1% +;'%!'J%A#0?*,.C'%T)2#$%>$#!<%J;,2;%J'*'% ,0()*+#!+% 1)*% +;'% 1"+"*'%($#!!,!C%
#!.%.'-'$)(0'!+%)1%+;'%2,+BI%%

 % V)*H'.%J,+;% +;'%A)"!+B%A)"!2,$% #!.%/)"+;%A#0?*,.C'3;,*'%O,3+*,2+%A)"!2,$% )!% +;'% *'-,'J%)1%
+;'%T)2#$%>$#!<%#!.%)+;'*%($#!!,!C%0#++'*3<%+)%'!3"*'%#%2)Q)('*#+,-'%#!.%2))*.,!#+'.%#((*)#2;%
+)%($#!!,!C%1)*%+;'%A#0?*,.C'%3"?Q*'C,)!I%%

 % R0(*)-'.%)"*%($#!!,!C%#(($,2#+,)!%('*1)*0#!2'%)!%0#L)*%($#!!,!C%#(($,2#+,)!3I%

 % F*#!+'.% ($#!!,!C% ('*0,33,)!% 1)*% +;'% W!,-'*3,+B% )1% A#0?*,.C'% P)*+;QV'3+% A#0?*,.C'%
.'-'$)(0'!+I%

Page 48



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%2%

%

 % 3)..'!0',% 4)*5% )!% +6'% 78.(6% (*)9'0+% 4:+6% 0)!1"$+#+:)!% )!% +6'% /:*1+% (6#1'% )/% +6#+% (*)9'0+%
1+#*+:!;%:!%+6'%!)*+6%#*'#%)/%+6'%0:+<=%%

 % 3)!1"$+',% '>+'!1:2'$<% #?)"+% $)0#$% (*:)*:+:'1% /)*% +6'% "1'% )/% ,'2'$)('*% 0)!+*:?"+:)!1% 06#!!'$$',%
+6*)";6% )"*%  *'#% 3)..:++''1% #!,%: ,'!+:/:',% @A% :!:+:#$% (*:)*:+<% (*)9'0+1B% #.)"!+:!;% +)% )2'*%
CDD8B888B%+)%.''+%$)0#$%!'',1=%%%

E"*%($#!1%/)*%78@FG@H%:!%+6'%I$#!!:!;%#!,%3$:.#+'%36#!;'%()*+/)$:)%:!0$",'J%%

 % 3)!1"$+:!;%)!%+6'%1"?.:11:)!%1+#;'1%)/%+6'%!'4%$)0#$%($#!%#!,%+6'%5'<%1+#;'1%)/%)"*%#((*)#06%
+)%+6'%3).."!:+<%K!/*#1+*"0+"*'%L'2<%#!,%1"?.:++:!;%+6'%!'4%$)0#$%($#!%/)*%'>#.:!#+:)!%?<%+6'%
-'0*'+#*<%)/%-+#+'=%

 % M#5:!;% #%$ '#,% *)$'% "!,'*% +6'% ,"+<% +)% 0)N)('*#+'% :!% +6'% ,'$:2'*<% )/% +6'% '.'*;:!;% 1+*#+';:0%
($#!!:!;% /"!0+:)!% #+% +6'% 1"?N*';:)!#$% $'2'$% #!,% :!% +6'% )!N;):!;% 4)*5:!;% #**#!;'.'!+1% )/% +6'%
L)0#$%O!+'*(*:1'%I#*+!'*16:(=%

 % P)*5:!;%9):!+$<%4:+6%-)"+6%3#.?*:,;'16:*'%Q:1+*:0+%3)"!0:$%#!,%3#.?*:,;'16:*'%3)"!+<%3)"!0:$%
)!%+6'%*'2:'4%)/%$)0#$%($#!1%#!,%3)"!+<%M*#!1()*+%-+*#+';<=%

 % Q'$:2'*:!;%)"*%)!N;):!;%1+#+"+)*<%($#!!:!;%/"!0+:)!%#!,%;*)4+6%0)..:+.'!+1%:!%#00)*,#!0'%4:+6%
+6'%(*'1'!+%$)0#$%($#!%R788AS%+)%#;*'',%+:.'%#!,%T"#$:+<%)/%)"+0).'1=%

 % K.($'.'!+:!;% (*:!0:($'1% )/% +6'% L)0#$:1.% #;'!,#% *'$#+:!;% +)% 0).."!:+<% '!;#;'.'!+% :!% +6'%
,'2'$)(.'!+%($#!%(*)0'11%#!,%!':;6?)"*6)),%($#!!:!;%*'1()!1:?:$:+:'1=%

 % U"*+6'*%:.(*)2:!;%+6'%('*/)*.#!0'%#!,%'//:0:'!0<%)/%)"*%($#!!:!;%1'*2:0'B%'1('0:#$$<%:!%+6'%#*'#%
)/%($#!!:!;%#(($:0#+:)!%(*)0'11:!;=%

 % P)*5:!;%0$)1'$<%4:+6%,'2'$)('*1%#!,%)+6'*%1+#5'6)$,'*1%+)%'!1"*'%+6#+%!'4%,'2'$)(.'!+1%#*'%
)/% #% 6:;6% ,'1:;!% T"#$:+<% #!,%'!2 :*)!.'!+#$$<% 1"1+#:!#?$'% #!,% 0)!+*:?"+'% ()1:+:2'$<% +)% +6'%
06#*#0+'*%)/%+6'%?":$+%#!,%;*''!%1(#0'%)/%+6'%0:+<=%

 % 3)!+:!":!;%+)%1'0"*'%/"!,:!;%/)*%#%*#!;'%)/%("?$:0%#*+%(*)9'0+1%#0*)11%+6'%0:+<=%

 %  ,)(+:!;% #% +*''% 1+*#+';<B% :!% 0)!1"$+#+:)!% 4:+6% 5'<% 1+#5'6)$,'*1B% +6#+% 1'+1% )"+% +6'% 0)"!0:$V1%
)2'*#*06:!;% ()$:0<% /)*% +6'% +*''1% 4:+6:!% +6'% 0:+<% #!,% 6)4% +6'<% 4:$$% ?'% (*'1'*2',% /)*% /"+"*'%
;'!'*#+:)!1=%

 % W#5:!;%)"*%($#!!:!;%'!/)*0'.'!+%/"!0+:)!%.)*'%*'1()!1:2'%#!,%2:1:?$'%:!%+6'%0:+<=%

 % Q'$:2'*:!;%#%*',"0+:)!%:!%0#*?)!%'.:11:)!1%/*).%)"*%'1+#+'%#!,%)('*#+:)!1=%

 % M#5:!;%/)*4#*,%#%9):!+%(*);*#..'%4:+6%(#*+!'*%$)0#$%#"+6)*:+:'1%+)%,'$:2'*%#%X*''!%Q'#$%.),'$%
/)*%3#.?*:,;'16:*'=%

 % O>($)*:!;%4:+6%(#*+!'*1%:!%+6'%3#.?*:,;'%&'+*)/:+%(*)9'0+%#%$)!;N+'*.%#((*)#06%/)*%/:!#!0:!;%#!,%
,'$:2'*:!;%'!'*;<%'//:0:'!0<%:.(*)2'.'!+1%+)%'>:1+:!;%(*)('*+:'1%:!%3#.?*:,;'=%

 % P)*5:!;% 4:+6% (#*+!'*1% )*;#!:1#+:)!1B% :!0$",:!;% +6'% "!:2'*1:+:'1% :!% 3#.?*:,;'% #!,% +6'% (*:2#+'%
1'0+)*%+)%,'2'$)(%)(+:)!1%/)*%#%0)..'*0:#$$<%2:#?$'%,:1+*:0+%6'#+:!;%106'.'=%

Page 49



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,-% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 4'$-,'*-!5%!'6%+*#!3()*+%0'#3"*'3%#!.%#2+-)!3%+)%-0(*),'%1#2-$-+-'3%1)*%('.'3+*-#!37%282$-3+3%#!.%
("9$-2%+*#!3()*+%"3'*37%-!2$".-!5%-!%+:'%!'6%.','$)(0'!+3%-!%+:'%2-+8;%

 % <)!+*-9"+-!5% +)% +:'% *',-'6% )1% #*'#% +*#!3()*+% ($#!3% #!.%(* )()3'.% (*)='2+3% 1)*% -!,'3+0'!+7%
3"(()*+-!5%+:'%$)2#$%(*)2'33%1)*%9-..-!5%1)*%!'6%#!.%-0($'0'!+-!5%*'$',#!+%1"!.-!5%3)"*2'3;%

 % >"++-!5% -!%($#2'%6-+:%)"*%(#*+!'*37%3"9='2+% +)% +:'%)"+2)0'%)1%2)!3"$+#+-)!37%#..-+-)!#$%!'6%?@%
0(:%A)!'3%#2*)33%+:'%2-+8;%

 % <#**8%)"+%#%("9$-2%2)!3"$+#+-)!%'B'*2-3'%)!%+:'%(*'1'**'.%)(+-)!3%1)*%+:'%*'.','$)(0'!+%)1% +:'%
>#*C%/+*''+%2#*%(#*C%3-+'%#!.%#!%#2+-)!%($#!;%

 % 4'$-,'*-!5%#..-+-)!#$%282$'%(#*C-!5%($#2'3%-!%#22)*.#!2'%6-+:%)"*%282$'%(#*C-!5%(*)='2+;%%%%%%

Community Development and Health Portfolio Plan

4"*-!5%?@D?EDF%6'G%%

 % >*),-.'.%$)2#$%*'3-.'!+3%6-+:%0)*'%)(()*+"!-+-'3%+)%-!1$"'!2'%.'2-3-)!3%#9)"+%+:'-*%$)2#$%#*'#%98%
"3-!5%+:'%$'#*!-!5%1*)0%+:'%H)*+:% *'#%<)00-++''%(-$)+%+)%3"(()*+%#*'#%6)*C-!5%#2*)33%+:'%2-+8I3%
)+:'*%+:*''%#*'#3;%%

 % &',-'6'.% :)6% +:'% <-+8% <)"!2-$I3% 2)00"!-+8% 1#2-$-+-'3% 6'*'% 0#!#5'.7% +#C-!5% #22)"!+% )1%
(*)()3'.%1#2-$-+-'3%-!%+:'%5*)6+:%3-+'3%#!.%+:'%)(()*+"!-+-'3%(*'3'!+'.%-!%+:'%J)2#$-30%K-$$;%%

 % L)*C'.% 6-+:% +:'% MN< % #!.% 8)"!5% (')($'% +)% 'B($)*'% .-11'*'!+% )(+-)!3% 1)*% (*),-.-!5% #% !'6%
1#2-$-+8%1)*%8)"!5%(')($'%-!%+:'%2'!+*'%)1%<#09*-.5';%%

 % <)!+-!"'.% +)% 3"(()*+% +:'% -!+'5*#+-)!% )1% !'6% 2)00"!-+-'3% 6-+:% 'B-3+-!5% *'3-.'!+3% +:*)"5:% +:'%
(*),-3-)!%)1%2)00"!-+8%#2+-,-+-'3;%%

 % L)*C'.% 6-+:% (#*+!'*3% +)% 0#C'% 3-5!-1-2#!+% (*)5*'33% +)6#*.3% .'$-,'*-!5% !'6% 2)00"!-+8%
-!1*#3+*"2+"*'%-!%+:'%H)*+:%L'3+%#!.%/)"+:'*!%1*-!5'3%)1%<#09*-.5'7%-!2$".-!5%+:'%O*"0(-!5+)!%
N'#.)63%>*-0#*8%/2:))$%#!.%+:'%!'6%0"$+-P"3'%2)00"!-+8%1#2-$-+8%#+%<$#8%Q#*0;%%

 % /'+%"(%#!.%3"(()*+'.%#%J)2#$%R'#$+:%>#*+!'*3:-(%+)%-0(*),'%("9$-2%:'#$+:%-!%<#09*-.5';%%

 % 4','$)('.% #% 0).'$% )1% &'3+)*#+-,'% S"3+-2'% 1)2"3-!5% )!% +:'% !''.3% )1% ,-2+-037% '!2)"*#5-!5%
)11'!.'*3%+)%+#C'%*'3()!3-9-$-+8%1)*%+:'-*%#2+-)!3%#!.%+)%*'(#-*%+:'%:#*0%+:'8I,'%.)!'7%-!%)*.'*%+)%
*'."2'%*'P)11'!.-!57%#!+-P3)2-#$%9':#,-)"*%#!.%$)6P$','$%2*-0'%-!%<#09*-.5';%%

 % L)*C'.%6-+:% )"*% (#*+!'*3% +)% *'."2'% +:'% (*'3'!2'% )1% 3+*''+% .*-!C'*3% #!.% +:'% #33)2-#+'.% #!+-P
3)2-#$%9':#,-)"*;%%

 % <)!+-!"'.% +)% 3"(()*+% ','!+3% #!.% (*)5*#00'3% +)% 2'$'9*#+'% .-,'*3-+87% 3"2:% #3% K$#2C% R-3+)*8%
N)!+:7%<#09*-.5'%<'$'9*#+'3% 5'7%4-3#9-$-+8%R-3+)*8%N)!+:7%T!+'*PQ#-+:%L''C7%&'1"5''%L''C7%
JUKO%R-3+)*8%N)!+:7%R)$)2#"3+%N'0)*-#$%4#8%#!.%T!+'*!#+-)!#$%L)0'!I3%4#8;%%

 % <)!+-!"'.%+)%(*)0)+'%#!.%0#!#5'%5*#!+%1"!.-!5%3)% +:#+%,)$"!+#*8%5*)"(3%#*'%#9$'%+)%#22'33%
5*#!+% #-.% #!.% )+:'*% 3"(()*+% +)% :'$(% +:'0% 9"-$.% +:'-*% C!)6$'.5'7% 3C-$$3% #!.% 2)!1-.'!2'% #3%
(#*+!'*3%6-+:%+:'%<-+8%<)"!2-$%#!.%3"3+#-!%,-9*#!+%$)2#$-+-'3%#!.%!'-5:9)"*:)).3;%

Page 50



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%233%

%

 % 4)*5',%63+7%+7'%83+9:1%+6)%8*',3+%;!3)!1%+)%7'$(%+7'.%/3!,%#,,3+3)!#$%2)$"!+''*1%#!,%+)%(*).)+'%
+7'3*%1'*230'1% +)%8#.<*3,='%*'13,'!+1% 3!%)*,'*%+)%,'+'*%+7'%"1'%)/%73=7% 3!+'*'1+%(#9%,#9% $)#!1%
#!,%$)#!1%/*).%$)#!%17#*51>%%

 % ?*),"0',%#%@"13!'11%?$#!% +)%,'$32'*% +7'% /3!,3!=1% /*).%)"*% *'23'6%)/%)"*%873$,*'!%#!,%A)"!=%
?')($':1%?#*+303(#+3)!%-'*230'%B87A(?-C%1)%+7#+%+7'%1'*230'%/)0"1'1%)!%)('!%#00'11%($#9%/)*%DE
FG%9'#*%)$,1H% +#5'1%#%.)*'%'!+*'(*'!'"*3#$%#((*)#07H%.#5'1% +7'%<'1+%"1'%)/% +7'%153$$1%)/% +7'%
1+#//H%"1'1%2)$"!+''*1%+)%3!0*'#1'%0#(#03+9%#!,%='!'*#+'1%3!0).'>%%

I"*%($#!1%/)*%JKFGLFM%3!0$",'N%%

 % O'$32'*3!=%+7'%/3*1+%9'#*%)/%)"*%($#!%/)*%)"*%873$,*'!%#!,%A)"!=%?')($':1%?#*+303(#+3)!%-'*230'%
B87A(?-CH%#073'23!=%)"*%3!0).'%+#*='+%)/%PGK5%#!,%0#**93!=%)"+%#%*'23'6%)/%7)6%+7'%/3*1+%9'#*%
6'!+>%

 % O'$32'*3!=% )"*% ($#!% /)*% +7'% /"+"*'%.#!#='.'!+% )/% +7'% 8)"!03$:1% 0).."!3+9% /#03$3+3'1% +7#+% 63$$%
,'$32'*% 1#23!=1% )/% PGQ5% 3!% JKFGLFM% 673$1+% (*)+'0+3!=% +7'.% 3!% +7'% $)!=E+'*.% /)*% 8#.<*3,='%
*'13,'!+1%#!,%+#5'%3!+)%#00)"!+%+7'%$)0#$31.%#='!,#%#!,%/"+"*'%(*'11"*'1%)!%("<$30%1('!,3!=>%

 % 8)!+3!"3!=%+)%(*).)+'%#!,%.#!#='%#%0).(*'7'!132'%=*#!+1%(*)=*#..'%+7#+%1"(()*+1%+7'%03+9:1%
0).."!3+9%#!,%2)$"!+#*9%1'0+)*>%

 % O'2'$)(3!=% )"*% 0)..'.)*#+3)!1% 1'*230'% +)% 'R+'!,% 07)30'1% +)% +7'% <'*'#2',% #!,%.#53!=% +7'%
1'*230'%)('*#+'%.)*'%'//303'!+$9>%

 % -+*'!=+7'!3!=% )"*% 0).."!3+9% '!=#='.'!+%6)*5% #0*)11% +7'% 1)"+7'*!% /*3!='% =*)6+7% 13+'1% #!,%
'1+#<$3173!=%!'6%0).."!3+9%'!=#='.'!+%1+*"0+"*'1%#0*)11% +7'%!)*+7E6'1+%8#.<*3,='%=*)6+7%
13+'1>%

 % S!2)$23!=% 1+#5'7)$,'*1%#!,% *'13,'!+1% 3!% +7'%,'13=!%#!,% /"+"*'%.#!#='.'!+%#**#!='.'!+1% /)*%
!'6%0).."!3+9%/#03$3+3'1%#+%8$#9%T#*.H%+7'%;!32'*13+9%13+'%#!,%US @F%#!,%(#*+303(#+3!=%#0+32'$9%
63+7%(#*+!'*1%+)%)('!%!'6%/#03$3+3'1%#+%V*".(3!=+)!%W'#,)61>%

 % X!1"*3!=%+7#+%+7'%8#.<*3,='%Y)0#$%Z'#$+7%?#*+!'*173(%1'+1%(*3)*3+3'1%/)*%$)0#$%("<$30%7'#$+7%6)*5%
+7#+%#$3=!%+)%$)0#$%!'',%#!,%+7'%8#.<*3,='173*'%Z'#$+7%#!,%4'$$E<'3!=%-+*#+'=9>%

 % S.($'.'!+3!=% ($#!1% /)*% "$+*#E/#1+% <*)#,<#!,% 0)2'*#='% 63+73!% +7'% 03+9% #*'#H% #1% #% (#*+% )/% +7'%
[8)!!'0+3!=%8#.<*3,='173*'\%3!3+3#+32'H%1"<]'0+%+)%1"00'11/"$%<3,1%/)*%=)2'*!.'!+%/"!,3!=>%%

Customer Services and Resources Portfolio Plan 

O"*3!=%JKFJLFG%6'N%%

 % 4)*5',%63+7%(#*+!'*%)*=#!31#+3)!1%+)%#=*''%#%0)..)!%#((*)#07%+)%+7'%.#!#='.'!+%)/%("<$30%
1'0+)*% )6!',% (*)('*+9% #11'+1H% +)% ,'$32'*% +7'% .#R3.".% ()113<$'% <'!'/3+% +)% +7'% 03+3^'!1% )/%
8#.<*3,='>%

 % -+*)2'%+)%.#5'%)(+3.".%"1'%)/%+7'%8)"!03$:1%#00)..),#+3)!H%(*)23,3!=%1"(()*+%+)%'!#<$'%)"*%
1+#//%+)%6)*5%1.#*+'*%#!,%.)*'%/$'R3<$9>%%

 % I<+#3!',%=*'#+'*%2#$"'%/)*%.)!'9%/*).%+7'%8)"!03$:1%1('!,3!=%)!%(*)0"*'.'!+>%%

Page 51



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,---% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 4!3"*'.% +5#+% +5'% 6),'*!0'!+73% 8'$1#*'% *'1)*03% 8'*'% '11-2-'!+$9% #!.%' 11'2+-,'$9% -0($'0'!+'.%
$)2#$$9:% -!2$".-!6%2)!3"$+#+-)!%#;)"+%#!.% -0($'0'!+#+-)!%)1%#%!'8%<)2#$%=)"!2-$%>#?%/25'0'%
+5#+% (*)+'2+'.% +5'% 0)3+% ,"$!'*#;$'% -!% +5'% 2-+9:% 8-+5% #2+-)!% ;'-!6% +#@'!% +)% 0-+-6#+'% 5#*.35-(%
85'*'%()33-;$'A%%

 % B*'(#*'.% 1)*% +5'% *'+'!+-)!%)1% $)2#$%;"3-!'33% *#+'3%#3%(#*+%)1% +5'%<)2#$%C),'*!0'!+%&'3)"*2'%
&',-'8A%%

 % =)!+-!"'.% +)% '?($)*'% 5)8% 8'% #3% #!%)* 6#!-3#+-)!:% #!.% 8-+5% )"*% (#*+!'*3:% 2#!% (*),-.'% 0)*'%
D)-!'.E"(%2"3+)0'*%3'*,-2'3A%%

 % F','$)('.% #!.%2 )!3"$+'.% )!% #% ;"3-!'33% ($#!% +)% 3"(()*+% +5'% .','$)(0'!+% )1% #% ;-.% 1)*% #%
G"3-!'33% H0(*),'0'!+% F-3+*-2+% 8-+5-!% =#0;*-.6':% -!% )*.'*% +)% '!#;$'% +5'% -!,)$,'0'!+% #!.%
#((*)(*-#+'%1-!#!2-#$%-!("+%1*)0%+5'%2-+973%;"3-!'33%2)00"!-+9%+)%+5'%1"+"*'%.','$)(0'!+%)1%+5'%
2-+9A%%%

I"*%($#!3%1)*%JKLMNLO%-!2$".'P%%

 % H!+'6*#+-!6%+5'%=)"!2-$73%-!1)*0#+-)!%393+'03%'11'2+-,'$9%#!.%3-0($-19-!6%)"*%-!+'*!#$%(*)2'33'3%
#!.%.'$'6#+-)!3%+)%-0(*),'%)"*%'11-2-'!29A%

 % I;+#-!-!6%6*'#+'*%,#$"'%1)*%0)!'9%1*)0%+5'%=)"!2-$73%3('!.-!6%)!%(*)2"*'0'!+A%

 % H.'!+-19-!6% 1"*+5'*% )(()*+"!-+-'3% +)% 8)*@% -!% 2)$$#;)*#+-)!:% )*% 35#*'% 3'*,-2'3% 8-+5% )+5'*% (";$-2%
3'2+)*%)*6#!-3#+-)!3:%-!%)*.'*%+)%2*'#+'%'11-2-'!2-'3%)*%-0(*),'%)"*%*'3-$-'!2'A%

 % F','$)(-!6%#%0)*'%2)00'*2-#$%#((*)#25%1)*%)"*%+)"*-30%3'*,-2'%#!.%-.'!+-19-!6%#%3"3+#-!#;$'%
0).'$%)1%+)"*-30%+5#+%-3%$'33%*'$-#!+%)!%+5'%=)"!2-$A%

 %  6*''-!6%#%3+*#+'69%1)*%+5'%)(+-0"0%"3'%)1%+5'%=)"!2-$73%#22)00).#+-)!%1)*%+5'%('*-).%JKLM%+)%
JKLQ%+5#+%#$3)%3"(()*+3%)"*%=IJ%*'."2+-)!%+#*6'+3A%

 % F','$)(-!6%#%($#!!'.%0#-!+'!#!2'%(*)6*#00'% 1)*% +5'%=)"!2-$73%#.0-!-3+*#+-,'%;"-$.-!63% +5#+%
*'."2'3%+5'%=)"!2-$73%*"!!-!6%2)3+3%#!.%$','$%)1%=IJ%'0-33-)!3A%

 % 4!#;$-!6% 0)*'% 3+#11% +)% 8)*@% 0)*'% '11'2+-,'$9% #!.% 1$'?-;$9:% #!.% +5'*'1)*'% 0)*'% '11-2-'!+$9:% ;9%
(*),-.-!6%#((*)(*-#+'%3"(()*+%-!%+'*03%)1%;"-$.-!63:%+'25!)$)69%#!.%8)*@-!6%(*#2+-2'3A%

 % R#?-0-3-!6% +5'%2)00'*2-#$% *'+"*!% 1*)0% +5'%.','$)(0'!+%)1%6*)8+5%3-+'3%)!% +5'%3)"+5'*!%#!.%
!)*+5E'#3+'*!% 1*-!6'3% )1% +5'% 2-+9:% 3";D'2+% +)% +5'% =)"!2-$73% )+5'*% );D'2+-,'3% 1)*% +5'3'%
.','$)(0'!+3A%

 % S!.'*+#@-!6%1)2"3'.%8)*@%+)%-0(*),'%'$'2+)*#$%*'6-3+*#+-)!%*#+'3%-!%+5'%=#0;*-.6'%=-+9%'$'2+)*#$%
#*'#%#!.%0#@'%(*'(#*#+-)!3%1)*%+5'%-0($'0'!+#+-)!%)1%H!.-,-."#$%4$'2+)*#$%&'6-3+*#+-)!A%

 % /"(()*+-!6%+5'%!'8%G"3-!'33%H0(*),'0'!+%F-3+*-2+%+)%.'$-,'*%+5'%(*)D'2+3%3'+%)"+%-!%-+3%G"3-!'33%
B*)()3#$A%

 % H0($'0'!+-!6% )"*% <)2#$% =)"!2-$% >#?% 325'0'% #3% (#*+% )1% +5'% 6),'*!0'!+73% 8'$1#*'% *'1)*03:%
'!3"*-!6%+5#+%+5'%0)3+%,"$!'*#;$'%-!%+5'%2-+9%#*'%3"(()*+'.A%

Page 52



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%23%
%

 % 4*'(#*2!5% +6'% 7)"!02$81% )9!% 1:1+'.1% #!,% $2#212!5% 92+6% (#*+!'*1;% 1"06% #1% +6'% <'(#*+.'!+% )/%
=)*>%#!,%4'!12)!1;%/)*%+6'%/"+"*'%2.($'.'!+#+2)!%)/%9'$/#*'%*'/)*.1?%%

Environment and Waste Portfolio Plan 

<"*2!5%@AB@CBD%9'E%%

 % F))>%1+'(1%+)%2!0*'#1'%*'0:0$2!5%2!%7#.G*2,5';%G:%(*)H2,2!5%0"1+).'*1%92+6%.)*'%!'9%/#02$2+2'1%
/)*%I*'0:0$2!5%)!%+6'%5)8;%'!0)"*#52!5%+6'%*'0:0$2!5%)/%(#*+20"$#*%.#+'*2#$1%+6#+%#*'!8+%0)!121+'!+$:%
*'0:0$',%G:%*'12,'!+1%#0*)11%+6'%02+:%#!,%G:%+#*5'+2!5%(#*+20"$#*%5*)"(1?%

 % J!0*'#1',%+6'%*#!5'%)/%.#+'*2#$1%2+%21%()112G$'%+)%*'0:0$'%2!%+6'%G$"'%G2!%G:%#,,2!5%($#1+20%()+1;%
+"G1%#!,%+*#:1%+)%+6'%.23?%

 % J!+*),"0',% 1.#$$% =#1+'% K$'0+*20#$% #!,% K$'0+*)!20% KL"2(.'!+% G#!>1% +)% M% G*2!5% G#!>1% 12+'1%
#0*)11%+6'%02+:%$)0#+',%2!%1"('*.#*>'+%0#*%(#*>1?%

 % N)9%6#H'%BDM%&'0:0$2!5%76#.(2)!1%#0*)11%+6'%02+:?%%76#.(2)!1%#++'!,%$)0#$%'H'!+1%+)%(*)H2,'%
2!/)*.#+2)!%#!,%0).."!20#+'%92+6%*'12,'!+1%#G)"+%#!:%G#**2'*1%+6':%.#:%6#H'%+)%*'0:0$2!5?%

 % J!0*'#1',% +6'% !".G'*% )/% 0)..'*02#$% 0"1+).'*1% 92+6% *'0:0$2!5% 1'*H20'1% #!,% +621% 21%
,'.)!1+*#+',%G:%*'1"$+1%+6#+%16)9%#!%2!0*'#1'%/*).%@BO%+)%@PO%*'0:0$2!5?%

 % K3($)*',% 6)9% 9'% 0)"$,% G'++'*% 9)*>% 92+6% (#*+!'*1% +)% 2.(*)H'% +6'% '//202'!0:% )/% )"*% 9#1+'%
1'*H20'1?%%

 %  ,,*'11',% +6'% 2.(#0+% +6#+% '30'112H'% !)21'% 6#1% )!% *'12,'!+1;% G:% .#((2!5% !)21'% 0).($#2!+1%
#0*)11%7#.G*2,5';%',"0#+2!5%0).."!2+2'1%#!,%'!/)*02!5%06#!5'%96'!%!'0'11#*:?% ++'!,#!0'%
#+%1+",'!+%'H'!+1%+)%*#21'%#9#*'!'11%)/%!)21'%!"21#!0'%#!,% 2.(#0+% +)%+6'2*%!'256G)"*1% 2!% +6'%
72+:?%

 % 7)!+*2G"+',%+)%2.(*)H'.'!+1%2!%+6'%6'#$+6%)/%7#.G*2,5'%*'12,'!+1%G:%9)*>2!5%92+6%)"*%(#*+!'*1%
+)% 2.($'.'!+%!'9%("G$20%6'#$+6%#**#!5'.'!+1;%#!,%G:%9)*>2!5% +)%*',"0'%+6'%6'#$+6% 2.(#0+%)/%
#$0)6)$% #!,% +6'% !256+Q+2.'% '0)!).:? F6'% (#*+!'*162(% (*)H2,',% R41% 92+6% #% 0$'#*% #!,% 12.($'%
12!5$'%()2!+%)/%0)!+#0+%+)%96206%+6':%0#!%*'()*+%6'#$+6%211"'1%0#"1',%G:%6)"12!5%92+6)"+%6#H2!5%
+)%2,'!+2/:%+6'%!#+"*'%)/%+'!"*'?%

 % 4$#!!',% /)*% +6'% 2!+*),"0+2)!% )/% !'9% $20'!12!5% $'521$#+2)!% #!,% 9)*>2!5% 92+6% +6'% S"12!'11%
J.(*)H'.'!+%<21+*20+%92$$%*'1"$+%2!%0$'#!'*;%1#/'*%1+*''+1%2!%+6'%02+:%0'!+*'?%%

 % T#,'%2+%'#12'*%/)*%(')($'%+)%*'()*+%$2++'*;%5*#//2+2%#!,%/$:%+2((2!5%)!$2!'%#!,%G:%+'3+?%%

 % =)*>',% 92+6% +6'% 7)"!+:% 7)"!02$% +)% 2.(*)H'% #2*% L"#$2+:% #!,% *',"0'% '.2112)!1;% G:% )G+#2!2!5%
'.2112)!% 2.(*)H'.'!+1% /*).% ("G$20% +*#!1()*+% H'620$'1% #!,%G: % (*).)+2!5% #$+'*!#+2H'1% +)% +6'%
(*2H#+'% 0#*?% N'9% U"#$2+:% S"1% 4#*+!'*162(% (*),"0',% 92+6% 1+*)!5'*% ()9'*1% +)% '30$",'% !)!Q
0).($2#!+%H'620$'1%/*).%+6'%0)*'%#*'#?%

 % -'+%#%1+#!,#*,%/)*%'.2112)!1%2!%+#321%#!,%.)H',%+)9#*,1%'!1"*2!5%+6'%+#32%/$''+%92$$%.''+%K"*)%
VCM%1+#!,#*,%G:%@ABV?%

 % J.($'.'!+',%+6'%N#+2)!#$%W)),%X:52'!'%&#+2!5%-06'.'?%

Page 53



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!-%.+#+'/'!+%)0% 11)"!+2%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 3'*'%#4#*-'-%#%5*#!+%)0%6789888%0*)/%:;<& %0)*%#%(*)='1+%+)%>?*'%'@"?(/'!+%#!-%?+2%)('*#+)*2%
+)%/)!?+)*%*'#$A+?/'%+#?$A(?('%'/?22?)!2B%

C"*%($#!2%0)*%D8EFGEH%?!1$"-'I%%

 % J"++?!5%?!%($#1'%#%(*)5*#//'%)0%#1+?K?+?'2%+)%?!1*'#2'%+>'%(*)()*+?)!%)0%4#2+'%+>#+%?2%*'1L1$'-%?!%
+>'%1?+LB%

 % C00'*?!5% M"2?!'22'2% ?!1'!+?K'2% +)% "2'% )"*% *'1L1$?!5% 2'*K?1'2% +)% ?!1*'#2'% +>'% (*)()*+?)!% )0%
1)//'*1?#$%4#2+'%*'1L1$'-B%

 % ."11'220"$$L%!'5)+?#+?!5%#%2('1?0?1#+?)!%0)*%#%=)?!+%N#+'*?#$2%&'1L1$?!5%<#1?$?+L%1)!+*#1+B%

 % :'$?K'*?!5% #% (*)5*#//'% )0% =)?!+% (*)='1+2% 4?+>% (#*+!'*2% ?!% +>'% &;O J%  -K#!1'-% 3#2+'%
J#*+!'*2>?(B%

 %  5*''?!5% #%1 *)22AM)*-'*% *'0"2'% #!-% *'1L1$?!5% 1)$$'1+?)!% #**#!5'/'!+% 4?+>% .)"+>%
O#/M*?-5'2>?*'% :?2+*?1+% O)"!1?$% +)% /''+% +>'% !''-2% )0% )"*% !'4% -'K'$)(/'!+2% +>#+% 2+*#--$'%
M)"!-#*?'2B%

 % P!1*'#2?!5%+>'%!"/M'*%)0%2+*''+%#!-%*'1L1$?!5%M?!2%#!-%-)5%$?++'*%M?!2%?!%+>'%1?+LB%

 % 3)*Q?!5%4?+>% +>'%J)$?1'%#!-%JO.C2% +)% +#Q'%'!0)*1'/'!+%#1+?)!%#5#?!2+%-)5%0)"$?!5% 0)$$)4?!5%
+>'%?!+*)-"1+?)!%)0%-)5%1)!+*)$%)*-'*2B%

 % P!+*)-"1?!5%#%*#(?-%*'2()!2'%+'#/%+)%*'2()!-%+)%'!K?*)!/'!+#$%'/'*5'!1?'2%)"+2?-'%)0%+>'%1?+L%
1'!+*'B%

 % O)!+?!"?!5% *'0"*M?2>/'!+% )0% )"*% ("M$?1% +)?$'+2% #!-%$ ))Q?!5% #+% )(()*+"!?+?'2% 0)*% (*)K?-?!5%
1)//"!?+L%+)?$'+2B%

 % O)/($'+?!5% +>'% RO#/M*?-5'% &'#$% ;/?22?)!2S% (*)='1+% 4?+>% )"*% (#*+!'*2% +)% (*)K?-'% -'+#?$'-%
'K?-'!1'%)0%#?*%@"#$?+L%?/(#1+2%)0%1?+L%1'!+*'%+*#!2()*+%)(+?)!2B%

 % P!2+#$$?!5%?!A1#M%+'1>!)$)5L%+)%)"*%*'0"2'%+*"1Q2%+)%?/(*)K'%2'*K?1'2%+)%)"*%1"2+)/'*2B%

Housing Portfolio Plan

:"*?!5%D8EDGEF%4'I%%

 % P!K'2+'-% ?!% )"*% ',?2+?!5% >)"2?!5% 2+)1Q% #!-% 2+#*+'-% +)% -'$?K'*% #% !'4% 1)"!1?$% >)"2'% M"?$-?!5%
(*)5*#//'B%%

 % 3)*Q'-%4?+>%-'K'$)('*29%&'5?2+'*'-%J*)K?-'*2% T>)"2?!5%#22)1?#+?)!2U%#!-%($#!!'*2% +)%'!2"*'%
+>#+% +>'%1?+LV2%2)1?#$%#!-%/#*Q'+%>)"2?!5%2+)1Q%T?!1$"-?!5%(*?K#+'%*'!+'-%>)"2?!5U%1)!+?!"'2%+)%
5*)49% ?!1$"-?!5% H8W%  00)*-#M$'% X)"2?!5% ?!%/)2+% !'4% -'K'$)(/'!+2% #!-% +>'% -'$?K'*L% )0% +>'%
O)"!1?$V2%)4!%!'4%M"?$-%(*)5*#//'B%

 % P!1*'#2'-% +>'% '!'*5L% '00?1?'!1L% )0% ',?2+?!5% >)/'2Y% (*)/)+?!5% 2"2+#?!#M$'% -'2?5!% #!-%
1)!2+*"1+?)!% /'+>)-2% #!-% (*)/)+?!5% >?5>% 2+#!-#*-2% )0% '!K?*)!/'!+#$% 2"2+#?!#M?$?+L% )0% !'4%
>)/'2%#!-%1)//"!?+?'29%?!1$"-?!5%4#+'*%/#!#5'/'!+B%%

Page 54



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%23%
%

 % &'43'5',%)"*%#((*)#06%+)%'!1"*'%!'5%1('03#$31+%6)"13!7%31%(*)43,',8%3!0$",3!7%#!%#11'11.'!+%
)/%()+'!+3#$%9:(1:%#!,%;*#4'$$'*%13+'18%#1%(#*+%)/%+6'%$)0#$%($#!%,'4'$)(.'!+<%%

 % =).($'+',% #%* '43'5% )/% +6'% =)"!03$>1% ?'++3!7% @)$30:% +)% '!1"*'% +6#+% (*3)*3+:% /)*% *'A6)"13!7%
0)!+3!"'1%+)%B'%734'!%+)%+6)1'%56)%6#4'%$'#1+%)(()*+"!3+:%+)%#00'11%.#*C'+%6)"13!7<%%

 % D#3!+#3!',%#!,%(*).)+',%1'*430'1%+)%+#C'%#0+3)!%'//'0+34'$:%#7#3!1+%(*34#+'%1'0+)*%$#!,$)*,1%+6#+%
,)%!)+%0).($:%53+6%6)"13!7%6'#$+6%#!,%1#/'+:%.#++'*1%#1%5'$$%#1%$#!,$)*,%#!,%+'!#!+%311"'1<%%

 % E!,'*+))C% #% *'43'5% )/% )"*% '.(+:% 6).'1% ()$30:% 3!% +6'% $376+% )/% !#+3)!#$% ()$30:% 06#!7'% 1)% +6#+%
'//'0+34'%#0+3)!%31%+#C'!%+)%7'+%4#0#!+%6).'1%B#0C%3!+)%"1'<%

 % F.(*)4',% +6'% 1"(()*+% (*)43,',% +)% *)"76% 1$''('*18% 3!0$",3!7% +6'% 0).($'+3)!% )/% +6'% G3..:>1%
 11'11.'!+% ='!+*'% (*)H'0+8% +)% 6'$(% *',"0'% +6'% 3!03,'!0'% )/% *)"76% 1$''(3!7% #!,% "1'% )/%
+'.()*#*:%#00)..),#+3)!%#1%6)"1'6)$,1%.)4'%.)*'%'//'0+34'$:%+)%1'0"*'%('*.#!'!+%6)"13!7<%%

I"*%($#!1%/)*%JKLMNLO%3!0$",'P%%

 % Q)*C3!7% 53+6% ,'4'$)('*18% &'731+'*',% @*)43,'*1% #!,% ($#!!'*1% +)% '!1"*'% +6'% 03+:>1% 1)03#$% #!,%
.#*C'+% 6)"13!7% 1+)0C% 0)!+3!"'1% +)% 7*)5% #1% +6'% /3*1+% !'5% 6)"13!7% B'73!1% +)% '.'*7'% )!% +6'%
1)"+6'*!%/*3!7'1%)/%+6'%03+:<%

 % =).($'+3!7%+6'%*','4'$)(.'!+%)/%-':.)"*%=)"*+%+)%3!0$",'%+6'%(*)4313)!%)/%JK%!'5%6).'1%/)*%
)$,'*%(')($'<%

 % R!1"*3!7%+6#+%+6'%0"**'!+%1+#!,#*,%)/%B"3$,3!7%B:%*'731+'*',%(*)43,'*1%31%.#3!+#3!',%3!%+'*.1%)/%
13S'8%0)!1+*"0+3)!%#!,%$#:)"+%+)%#+%$'#1+%$'4'$%/)"*%)/%+6'%=),'%/)*%-"1+#3!#B$'%6).'1<%

 % R!1"*3!7%+6#+%!'5%1('03#$31+%6)"13!7%31%(*3)*3+31',%/)*%*'4'!"'%/"!,3!7%B:%(#*+!'*%#7'!03'1%#!,%
(#*+!'*163(1<%

 %  11'113!7%+6'%()+'!+3#$%/)*%+6'%(*)4313)!%)/%#,,3+3)!#$%9:(1:%#!,%;*#4'$$'*%13+'1%#1%(#*+%)/%+6'%
,'4'$)(.'!+%)/% +6'%?)0#$%@$#!8% 3!%,310"113)!%53+6%-)"+6%=#.B*3,7'163*'%T31+*30+%=)"!03$%#!,%
=#.B*3,7'163*'%=)"!+:%=)"!03$<%

 % F!0*'#13!7% +6'% !".B'*% )/% 1+#//% 3!% =3+:% U).'1% +)% 6'$(% .3+37#+'% +6'% .)1+% #,4'*1'% 3.(#0+1% )/%
5'$/#*'%*'/)*.1%#!,%1'++$3!7%(')($'%.)43!7%)!+)%#$+'*!#+34'%6)"13!7%/*).%'231+3!7%6)"13!7%+6#+%
31%#B)"+%+)%B'%*','4'$)(',<%

 % =).($'+3!7%)"*%#!!"#$%($#!!',%.#3!+'!#!0'%(*)7*#..'%)/%5)*C1%+6#+%'!1"*'%=3+:%U).'1%#*'%
.#3!+#3!',%+)%+6'%B'1+%()113B$'%1+#!,#*,<%

 % =)!+3!"3!7% +)% +#C'%#0+3)!%#7#3!1+%(*34#+'%1'0+)*% $#!,$)*,1% +6#+%,)%!)+%0).($:%53+6%6'#$+6%#!,%
1#/'+:%*'V"3*'.'!+1%)*%7)),%+'!#!+%.#!#7'.'!+<%

 % @*)43,3!7%6)"13!7%#,430'%+)%C''(%6).'$'11!'11%+)%#%.3!3.".%#!,%6'$(%(*'4'!+%6).'$'11!'11%
B:%)//'*3!7%'#*$:%#,430'%)!%#$+'*!#+34'%6)"13!7%)(+3)!1<%

 % F!0*'#13!7%+6'%*#!7'%)/%+'.()*#*:%6)"13!7%#4#3$#B$'%+)%.3!3.31'%+6'%3.(#0+%)!%6)"1'6)$,1%+6#+%
B'0).'%6).'$'11%)*%+6*'#+'!',%53+6%6).'$'11!'11<%

%

Page 55



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% ,--% %%%%%%% !!"#$%&'()*+%#!.%/+#+'0'!+%)1% 22)"!+3%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Strategy Portfolio Plan 

4"*-!5%678698:%;'<%%

 % =)!3"$+'.% $)2#$% *'3-.'!+3>% (#*+!'*3?-(3% #!.%', ('*+3% )!>% #!.%#.)( +'.>% #%* '1*'3?'.% =$-0#+'%
=?#!5'%/+*#+'5@>%3'++-!5%)"+%)"*%3+*#+'5-2%#((*)#2?%+)%2$-0#+'%2?#!5'%)A'*%+?'%!',+%1-A'%@'#*3B%

 % /+#*+'.% +)% -0($'0'!+% )"*% =#*C)!% D#!#5'0'!+% E$#!% +)% *'."2'% +?'% =-+@% =)"!2-$F3% 2#*C)!%
1))+(*-!+% #!.%'!' *5@% C-$$3>% 1)*% -!3+#!2'% +?*)"5?% +?'% -0($'0'!+#+-)!% )1% A)$+#5'% )(+-0-3#+-)!%
+'2?!)$)5@%-!%0)*'%)1%)"*%C"-$.-!53%#!.%+?'%"3'%)1%3)$#*%+?'*0#$%?'#+%-!% CC'@%())$3B%

 % G"*+?'*%.'A'$)('.%(*)()3#$3%;-+?%=#0C*-.5'%H!-A'*3-+@%1)*%#%()+'!+-#$%.-3+*-2+%?'#+-!5%32?'0'B%%

 % /+#*+'.% +)% -0($'0'!+%)"*%/-!5$'%IJ"#$-+-'3%/2?'0'% +)%'!3"*'% +?#+%;'%C'++'*% "!.'*3+#!.%#!.%
0''+%+?'%.-A'*3'%!''.3%)1%+?'%2-+@F3%2)00"!-+-'3>%1)*%-!3+#!2'%(*)A-.-!5%+*#-!-!5%1)*%)"*%3+#11%)!%
0'!+#$%?'#$+?%-33"'3%#!.%3"(()*+-!5%#%*#!5'%)1%$)2#$%5*)"(3%+?*)"5?%5*#!+3%#!.%)+?'*%#2+-A-+-'3B%

 % =)!+-!"'.% +)% '!5#5'% #!.% 2)!3"$+% $)2#$% 2)00"!-+-'3% )!% K'@% -33"'3% #11'2+-!5% +?'0% "3-!5% )"*%
=).'%)1%L'3+%E*#2+-2'%)!%=)!3"$+#+-)!%#!.%=)00"!-+@%I!5#5'0'!+%+)%'!3"*'%)"*%#((*)#2?'3%
;'*'%#((*)(*-#+'%#!.%'11'2+-A'%M1)*%-!3+#!2'%#.)(+-!5%#%0)*'%3)(?-3+-2#+'.%#((*)#2?%+)%C".5'+%
2)!3"$+#+-)!%+?#!%-!%(*'A-)"3%@'#*3NB%%

 % &'.'3-5!'.%#!.%*'O$#"!2?'.%)"*%;'C3-+'%3)%+?#+%)"*%2"3+)0'*3%2#!%2)!."2+%'A'!%0)*'%)1%+?'-*%
C"3-!'33% )!$-!'%0)*'% '#3-$@P% #!.%2)!+-!"'.% +)%0#K'% '11'2+-A'% "3'3% )1%3)2-#$%0'.-#>%;-+?% )"*%
Q;-++'*%#22)"!+%#2?-'A-!5%)A'*%:>777%1)$$);'*3B%%

 % I!3"*'.%5*'#+'*% +*#!3(#*'!2@%#!.%)('!!'33%#C)"+%?);%;'%2)!."2+%)"*%C"3-!'33>%C@%0#K-!5%
0)*'% -!1)*0#+-)!% #!.% .#+#% #C)"+% +?'% =)"!2-$F3% 3'*A-2'3% #!.% ('*1)*0#!2'% #A#-$#C$'% -!% 0)*'%
#22'33-C$'%;#@3B%%

 % =)!+-!"'.%+)%;)*K%;-+?%)"*%(#*+!'*3%+)%.*-A'%1)*;#*.%+?'%'2)!)0-2%.'A'$)(0'!+%)1%+?'%2-+@%#!.%
-+3%3"**)"!.-!5%#*'#%+?*)"5?%+?'%R)2#$%I!+'*(*-3'%E#*+!'*3?-(B%%

 % I!3"*'.% +?'% =-+@% =)"!2-$% -3% 'J"-(('.% +)% .'$-A'*% +?'% =)"!2-$F3% A-3-)!% 1)*% +?'% 2-+@% ;-+?-!% +?'%
*'3)"*2'3% #A#-$#C$'>% C@% +#K-!5% #%3 +*"2+"*'.% #((*)#2?% +)% -.'!+-1@-!5% 3#A-!53% #!.% 1"*+?'*%
'11-2-'!2-'3B%%

S"*%($#!3%1)*%678:98T%-!2$".'<%%

 % =)!+*-C"+-!5%+)%2)!+-!"-!5%*'."2+-)!3%-!%*'2)*.'.%-!2-.'!+3%)1%#!+-O3)2-#$%C'?#A-)"*B%

 % &'A-';-!5%+?'%-0(#2+%)1%)"*%2"**'!+%-!+'*A'!+-)!3%;-+?%+?'%3+*''+%$-1'%2)00"!-+@%#!.%.'A'$)(-!5%
#% *'1*'3?'.%#2+-)!%($#!%;-+?%)"*%(#*+!'*3% +)%0#,-0-3'%)"*% +*#!31)*0#+-A'% *)$'%;-+?%A"$!'*#C$'%
-!.-A-."#$3B%

 % U-A-!5% A-2+-03% #% 5*'#+'*% 3#@% -!% +?'% 3)$"+-)!3% +)% #!+-O3)2-#$% C'?#A-)"*% #!.% $);% $'A'$% 2*-0'% C@%
-!2*'#3-!5%)"*%*'1'**#$3%+)%V'-5?C)"*?)).%&'3)$"+-)!%E#!'$3B%

 % /'2"*-!5%)!O5)-!5%*'3)"*2'3%1)*%)"*%=)00"!-+@%/#1'+@%E#*+!'*3?-(%+)%'!#C$'%2)!+-!"'.%3+*)!5%
-!+'*O#5'!2@%3()!3)*3?-(%)1%(*)W'2+3B%

Page 56



 !!"#$%&'()*+%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%&'()*+%#!,%-+#+'.'!+%)/% 00)"!+1% %%2333%
%

 % -+*'!4+5'!3!4% )"*% (#*+!'*153(% 63+5% +5'% 7)0#$% 8!+'*(*31'% 9#*+!'*153(% #!,% )+5'*1% +)% /)1+'*%
1"1+#3!#:$'%4*)6+5%3!%+5'%;*'#+'*%<#.:*3,4'%'0)!).=>%

 % <)!0$",3!4% !'4)+3#+3)!1% /)*% #% <3+=% ?'#$% /)*% +5'% ;*'#+'*% <#.:*3,4'% 1":@*'43)!% 63+5% +5'%
;)A'*!.'!+B%'1+#:$3153!4%'//'0+3A'%4)A'*!#!0'%#**#!4'.'!+1%#!,%:'43!!3!4%+)%3.($'.'!+%C'=%
(*)D'0+1>%

 % 82($)*3!4%+5'%()+'!+3#$%/)*%4'!'*#+3!4%3!0).'%/*).%0)"!03$%1'*A30'1%#!,%+5'%/'#13:3$3+=%)/%15#*3!4%
1'*A30'1%63+5%)+5'*%(#*+!'*1%3!%+5'%(":$30%1'0+)*>%

 % ?'03,3!4%)!%#!%#00)..),#+3)!%1+*#+'4=%/)*%+5'%0)"!03$%#!,%3+1%#11)03#+',%1#A3!41>%%%%

How to find out more 

E"*+5'*%3!/)*.#+3)!%#:)"+%+5'%<)"!03$F1%('*/)*.#!0'%#!,%+5'%<)"!03$F1%(*3)*3+3'1%/)*%GHIJKIL%0#!%:'%
/)"!,%3!%)"*%9)*+/)$3)%9$#!1%65305%#*'%#A#3$#:$'%)!%)"*%6':13+'%%

5++(1MKK666>0#.:*3,4'>4)A>"CK()*+/)$3)@($#!1%

%

%

%

%
%
%
%
%

%

Page 57



Page 58



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)#*+'%*,-,.,!,#*&('/&!0#&
 !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*&

&
&

&
& 1%%3".&)#+'/!&"%4& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*& &&56&
&

The Council’s Responsibilities

70#&8'3%2,.&,*&/#93,/#4&!':&

 & $";#&"//"%<#$#%!*&('/&!0#&+/'+#/&"4$,%,*!/"!,'%&'(&,!*&(,%"%2,".&"((",/*&"%4&!'&*#23/#&!0"!&'%#&
'(& ,!*&'((,2#/*&0"*&!0#&/#*+'%*,-,.,!=& ('/& !0#&"4$,%,*!/"!,'%&'(&!0'*#&"((",/*>&& ?%&!0,*&8'3%2,.@&!0"!&
'((,2#/&,*&!0#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*B&

 & $"%"<#&,!*&"((",/*&!'&*#23/#&#2'%'$,2@&#((,2,#%!&"%4&#((#2!,6#&3*#&'(&/#*'3/2#*&"%4&*"(#<3"/4&
,!*&"**#!*B&"%4&

 & "++/'6#&!0#& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*>&

The Director of Resources’ Responsibilities

70#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&,*&/#*+'%*,-.#&('/&!0#&+/#+"/"!,'%&'(&!0#&8'3%2,.C*& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*&
,%& "22'/4"%2#& D,!0& +/'+#/& +/"2!,2#*& "*& *#!& '3!& ,%& !0#& 80"/!#/#4& ?%*!,!3!#& '(& E3-.,2& F,%"%2#& "%4&
122'3%!"%2=&G8?EF1H&8'4#&'(&E/"2!,2#&'%&I'2".&13!0'/,!=&122'3%!,%<&,%&!0#&J%,!#4&K,%<4'$>&

?%&+/#+"/,%<&!0#& !"!#$#%!&'(&122'3%!*@&!0#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&0"*:&

 & *#.#2!#4&*3,!"-.#&"22'3%!,%<&+'.,2,#*&"%4&!0#%&"++.,#4&!0#$&2'%*,*!#%!.=B&

 & $"4#&L34<#$#%!*&"%4&#*!,$"!#*&!0"!&D#/#&/#"*'%"-.#&"%4&+/34#%!B&"%4&

 & 2'$+.,#4&D,!0&!0#&8'4#&'(&E/"2!,2#>&

70#&A,/#2!'/&'(&)#*'3/2#*&0"*&".*':&

 & ;#+!&+/'+#/&"22'3%!,%<&/#2'/4*&D0,20&D#/#&3+&!'&4"!#B&"%4&

 & !";#%&/#"*'%"-.#&*!#+*&('/&!0#&+/#6#%!,'%&"%4&4#!#2!,'%&'(&(/"34&"%4&'!0#/&,//#<3."/,!,#*>&

&
&
&
&
&

Page 59



Page 60



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%/)0'*-%#!1%,-#-).)!-%'2% ++'"!-3% %%4(55%
%

Scope of Responsibility

6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$% 53% *)30'!357$)% 2'*% )!3"*5!8% -:#-% 5-3% 7"35!)33% 53% +'!1"+-)1% 5!% #++'*1#!+)%
;5-:% -:)% $#;%#!1%0*'0)*%3-#!1#*13<%#!1%-:#-%0"7$5+%.'!)9% 53%3#2)8"#*1)1%#!1%0*'0)*$9%#++'"!-)1%
2'*<%#!1%"3)1%)+'!'.5+#$$9<%)225+5)!-$9%#!1%)22)+-5()$9=%6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$%#$3'%:#3%#%1"-9%"!1)*%
-:)%>'+#$%&'()*!.)!-% +-% ?@@@% -'%.#A)%#**#!8).)!-3% -'% 3)+"*)% +'!-5!"'"3% 5.0*'().)!-% 5!% -:)%
;#9%5!%;:5+:%5-3%2"!+-5'!3%#*)%)4)*+53)1<%:#(5!8%*)8#*1%-'%#%+'.75!#-5'!%'2%)+'!'.9<%)225+5)!+9%#!1%
)22)+-5()!)33=%%

B!%153+:#*85!8%-:53%'()*#$$%*)30'!3575$5-9<%6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$% 53%*)30'!357$)%2'*%0"--5!8%5!%0$#+)%
0*'0)*% #**#!8).)!-3% 2'*% -:)% 8'()*!#!+)% '2% 5-3% #22#5*3<% 2#+5$5-#-5!8% -:)% )22)+-5()% )4)*+53)% '2% 5-3%
2"!+-5'!3<%#!1%;:5+:%5!+$"1)3%#**#!8).)!-3%2'*%-:)%.#!#8).)!-%'2%*53A=%%

6#.7*518)% 65-9% 6'"!+5$% :#3% #00*'()1% #!1% #1'0-)1% #% 6'1)% '2% 6'*0'*#-)% &'()*!#!+)<% ;:5+:% 53%
+'!353-)!-%;5-:% -:)% 0*5!+50$)3% '2% -:)%6BCD E,F> 6G%D*#.);'*A%H)$5()*5!8%&''1%&'()*!#!+)% 5!%
>'+#$% &'()*!.)!-=%  % +'09% '2% -:)% 6'1)% 53% '!% '"*% ;)735-)% #-% ;;;=+#.7*518)=8'(="A% '*% +#!% 7)%
'7-#5!)1% 2*'.% -:)% 6:5)2% G4)+"-5()<% I:)% &"5$1:#$$<% 6#.7*518)=% I:53% 3-#-).)!-% )40$#5!3% :';%
6#.7*518)% 65-9% 6'"!+5$% :#3% +'.0$5)1% ;5-:% -:)% 6'1)% #!1% #$3'% .))-3% -:)% *)J"5*).)!-3% '2% -:)%
 ++'"!-3%#!1% "15-%KG!8$#!1L%/)8"$#-5'!3%MN??%*)8"$#-5'!%OKPL<%;:5+:%*)J"5*)3%#$$%*)$)(#!-%7'15)3%
-'%0*)0#*)%#!% !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-=%

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

I:)% 8'()*!#!+)% 2*#.);'*A% +'.0*53)3% -:)% 393-).3% #!1% 0*'+)33)3<% +"$-"*)% #!1% (#$")3% 79% ;:5+:%
6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$% 53% 15*)+-)1% #!1% +'!-*'$$)1% #!1%5 -3% #+-5(5-5)3% -:*'"8:%;:5+:% 5-% #++'"!-3% -'<%
)!8#8)3%;5-:%#!1%$)#13%5-3%+'.."!5-5)3=%B-%)!#7$)3%-:)%#"-:'*5-9%-'%.'!5-'*%-:)%#+:5)().)!-%'2%5-3%
3-*#-)85+%'7Q)+-5()3%#!1%-'%+'!351)*%;:)-:)*%-:'3)%'7Q)+-5()3%:#()%$)1%-'%-:)%1)$5()*9%'2%#00*'0*5#-)%
3)*(5+)3%#!1%(#$")%2'*%.'!)9=%%

I:)%393-).%'2%5!-)*!#$%+'!-*'$%53%#%358!525+#!-%0#*-%'2%-:#-%2*#.);'*A%#!1%53%1)358!)1%-'%.#!#8)%*53A%
-'%#%*)#3'!#7$)% $)()$=% B-%+#!!'-%)$5.5!#-)%#$$%*53A%'2%2#5$"*)%-'%#+:5)()%0'$5+5)3<%#5.3%#!1%'7Q)+-5()3%
#!1%+#!%-:)*)2'*)%'!$9%0*'(51)%*)#3'!#7$)%#!1%!'-%#73'$"-)%#33"*#!+)%'2%)22)+-5()!)33=%I:)%393-).%
'2%5!-)*!#$%+'!-*'$%53%7#3)1%'!%#!%'!8'5!8%0*'+)33%1)358!)1%-'%51)!-529%#!1%0*5'*5-53)%-:)%*53A3%-'%-:)%
#+:5)().)!-%'2%6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$R3%0'$5+5)3<%#5.3%#!1%'7Q)+-5()3<% -'%)(#$"#-)% -:)% $5A)$5:''1%
#!1%0'-)!-5#$% 5.0#+-%'2% -:'3)% *53A3%7)5!8% *)#$53)1<%#!1%-'%.#!#8)%-:).%)225+5)!-$9<%)22)+-5()$9%#!1%
)+'!'.5+#$$9=%

I:)% 8'()*!#!+)% 2*#.);'*A% :#3% 7))!% 5!% 0$#+)% #-%6#.7*518)%65-9%6'"!+5$% 2'*% -:)% 9)#*% )!1)1%P? %
S#*+:%MN?P%#!1%"0%-'%-:)%1#-)%'2%#00*'(#$%'2%-:)%#!!"#$%*)0'*-%#!1%3-#-).)!-%'2%#++'"!-3=%

The Governance Framework

I:)% A)9% )$).)!-3% '2% -:)% 393-).3% #!1% 0*'+)33)3% -:#-% +'.0*53)% -:)% #"-:'*5-9R3% 8'()*!#!+)%
#**#!8).)!-3%5!+$"1)T%

 % I:)% 6'"!+5$R3% F7Q)+-5()3<% ;:5+:% 2'+"3% -:)% 6'"!+5$R3% )22'*-3% 5!% #+:5)(5!8% -:)% (535'!% 2'*%
6#.7*518)=%

 % I:)% !!"#$%,-#-).)!-<%;:5+:%*)5-)*#-)3%-:)%(535'!%#!1%3)-3%'"-%#%*#!8)%'2%#+-5(5-5)3%-:)%6'"!+5$%
;5$$%"!1)*-#A)%5!%-:)%9)#*%#:)#1%-'%#+:5)()%-:)%(535'!<%#!1%5-3%+'*)%"!1)*05!!5!8%(#$")3=%

Page 61



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% /(000% %%%%%%% !!"#$%1)2'*-%#!3%,-#-).)!-%'4% ++'"!-5%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 67)% !!"#$%1)2'*-8%970+7%+'!-#0!5% 0!4'*.#-0'!%'!% 40!#!+0#$%2)*4'*.#!+)%#!3%#+70)().)!-%'4%
:"50!)55%':;)+-0()5%#5%#*-0+"$#-)3%0!%-7)%2'*-4'$0'%2$#!5<%

 % 67)%#!!"#$%:"3=)-%#!3%5)*(0+)%2$#!!0!=%2*'+)55%970+7%-*#!5$#-)5%-7)%>'"!+0$?5%@:;)+-0()5%0!-'%
#+-0'!5%#-%2'*-4'$0'%#!3%'2)*#-0'!#$%$)()$<%

 % 67)%>'"!+0$A5%B)30".%6)*.%C0!#!+0#$%,-*#-)=D8%970+7% 03)!-040)5%7'9%-7)%>'"!+0$%90$$% *)5'"*+)%
0-5%#520*#-0'!5%#!3%2$#!5%4'*%#!D%40!#!+0#$%*05E5<%

 %  % F"3=)-% ,)--0!=% 1)2'*-8% 970+7% 5)-5% '"-% '()*#$$% 52)!30!=% 2$#!5% #!3% 0!+$"3)5% #% 6*)#5"*D%
B#!#=).)!-% ,-*#-)=D% ,-#-).)!-8%  !!"#$% G!()5-.)!-% ,-*#-)=D% #!3% B0!0.".% 1)()!")%
H*'(050'!%H'$0+D%,-#-).)!-<%

 % 67)%#**#!=).)!-5%4'*%*)="$#*%:"3=)-%.'!0-'*0!=%#!3%*)2'*-0!=%'4%50=!040+#!-%(#*0#!+)5%-'%5)!0'*%
.#!#=).)!-<%

 %  !%0!3)2)!3)!-%G!-)*!#$% "30-%4"!+-0'!%90-7%#%*05EI:#5)3%#"30-%2$#!<%

 %  !%#!!"#$%'20!0'!%'4%-7)%J)#3%'4%G!-)*!#$% "30-%'!%-7)%#"-7'*0-D?5%0!-)*!#$%+'!-*'$%)!(0*'!.)!-%
#!3%*05E%.#!#=).)!-%4*#.)9'*E<%

 % 67)%>'"!+0$?5%>'!5-0-"-0'!8%970+7%5)-5%'"-%-7)%3)+050'!I.#E0!=%2*'+)558%-7)%-)*.5%'4%*)4)*)!+)%
4'*%)#+7%+'..0--))%#!3%-7)%*'$)5%#!3%*)52'!50:0$0-0)5%'4%B).:)*5%#!3%'440+)*5<%

 % 67)% B).:)*K@440+)*% 2*'-'+'$8% 970+7% #035% )44)+-0()% +'.."!0+#-0'!% :)-9))!% '440+)*5% #!3%
B).:)*5%#!3%+$#*040)5%-7)0*%*)52)+-0()%*'$)5%#!3%*)52'!50:0$0-0)5<%

 % >'3)5% '4% >'!3"+-% 4'*% B).:)*5% #!3%' 440+)*58% 970+7% 7#()% :))!%4 '*.#$$D% #22*'()3% #!3%#* )%
*)(0)9)3%*)="$#*$D%#!3%#(#0$#:$)%-'%#$$%B).:)*5%#!3%5-#44<%

 % 67)% >'"!+0$?5% >0(0+%  44#0*5% >'..0--))8% 970+7% 2*'.'-)5% #!3% .#0!-#0!5% 70=7% 5-#!3#*35% '4%
+'!3"+-%:D%B).:)*5%#!3%970+7%7#5%'()*#$$%*)52'!50:0$0-D%4'*%-7)%>'"!+0$A5%+'.2$0#!+)%90-7%$#95%
#!3%*)="$#-0'!5<%

 % 67)% >'"!+0$?5% H*)()!-0'!% '4% C*#"3% #!3% >'**"2-0'!% H'$0+D% 970+7% 05% 0!% 2$#+)% #!3% *)(0)9)3%
*)="$#*$D%:D%-7)%>'"!+0$?5%>0(0+% 44#0*5%>'..0--))<%

 %  %1)=05-)*%'4%G!-)*)5-58%970+7%05%.#0!-#0!)3%#!3%*)(0)9)3%*)="$#*$D<%

 % C0!#!+0#$%1)="$#-0'!5%#!3%C0!#!+0#$%H*'+)3"*)%1"$)5%970+7%2*'(03)%#%4*#.)9'*E%4'*%.#!#=0!=%
-7)%>'"!+0$?5% 40!#!+0#$%#44#0*5%#!3%5)-%'"-% -7)% 40!#!+0#$%#++'"!-#:0$0-0)5%#!3%*)52'!50:0$0-0)5% 4'*%
B).:)*5%#!3%'440+)*5<%

 %  % +'*2'*#-)% 105E% B#!#=).)!-% C*#.)9'*E8% 970+7% 0!+$"3)5% #%1 05E% B#!#=).)!-% ,-*#-)=D%
#22*'()3% :D% B).:)*5% #!3% #% +'.2*)7)!50()% *05E% *)=05-)*% 03)!-04D0!=% -7)% E)D% +'!-*'$5% #!3%
#+-0'!5%*)L"0*)3%-'%.#!#=)%-7)%>'"!+0$?5%2*0!+02#$%*05E5<%

 % 67)% *'$)%'4% -7)%>'"!+0$?5%>0(0+% 44#0*5%>'..0--))8%970+7% 4"$40$5% -7)%+'*)% 4"!+-0'!5%'4% #!% "30-%
>'..0--))% #5% 03)!-040)3% 0!% >GHC ?5% M "30-% >'..0--))5% N% H*#+-0+#$% &"03#!+)% 4'*% O'+#$%
 "-7'*0-0)5?<%

%

Page 62



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%/)0'*-%#!1%,-#-).)!-%'2% ++'"!-3% %%454%
%

 % 67)%8*'+"*).)!-%8'$5+9%#!1%,-*#-):9%#!1%-7)%;'"!+5$<3%;'!-*#+-%8*'+)1"*)%/"$)3=%>75+7%3)-%
'"-%7'>%-7)%;'"!+5$%>5$$%0*'.'-)%)22)+-5()%0*'+"*).)!-%#+*'33%-7)%;'"!+5$?%

 % 67)%;75)2%@4)+"-5()% 53%-7)%;'"!+5$<3%A)#1%'2%8#51%,)*(5+)%#!1%-7)%A)#1%'2%B):#$%,)*(5+)3%53%
-7)% ;'"!+5$<3% C'!5-'*5!:% D225+)*?% 67)5*% *'$)3% #!1% *)30'!35E5$5-5)3% #*)% 3)-% '"-% 5!% -7)% ;'"!+5$<3%
 *-5+$)3%'2%-7)%;'!3-5-"-5'!?%%

 % 67)% 25!#!+5#$% .#!#:).)!-% #**#!:).)!-3% #-% ;#.E*51:)% ;5-9% ;'"!+5$% +'!2'*.% >5-7% -7)%
:'()*!#!+)%*)F"5*).)!-3%'2%-7)%;G8H %,-#-).)!-%'!%-7)%/'$)%'2%-7)%;75)2%H5!#!+5#$%D225+)*%5!%
B'+#$%&'()*!.)!-%IJKLKM?%

 % 67)%;'"!+5$<3%#33"*#!+)%#**#!:).)!-3%+'!2'*.%>5-7%-7)%:'()*!#!+)%*)F"5*).)!-3%'2%;G8H <3%
,-#-).)!-%'!%-7)%/'$)%'2%-7)%A)#1%'2%G!-)*!#$% "15-%5!%B'+#$%&'()*!.)!-?%

 %  %NO753-$)E$'>5!:<%8'$5+9=%>75+7%53%5!%0$#+)%#!1%#(#5$#E$)%'!%-7)%;'"!+5$<3%5!-*#!)-?%%

 % 67)%;'"!+5$<3%;'.0$#5!-3%8*'+)1"*)=%>75+7%53%#(#5$#E$)%'!%-7)%;'"!+5$<3%>)E35-)?%

 % 67)%#!!"#$%+'.0$#5!-3%*)0'*-%-'%;5(5+% 22#5*3%;'..5--))=%>75+7%#!#$93)3%-*)!13%5!%+'.0$#5!-3%
#:#5!3-%-7)%;'"!+5$%#!1%>7#-%7#3%E))!%1'!)%-'%#11*)33%-7).?%

 % C).E)*% G!1"+-5'!% -*#5!5!:% #!1% #% :"51)% 2'*% !)>%C).E)*3=% -':)-7)*% >5-7% '!:'5!:% -*#5!5!:% 2'*%
C).E)*3%'!%P)9%3P5$$3%#!1%.'*)%5!Q1)0-7%)40$#!#-5'!3%'2%533")3%+'!+)*!5!:%-7)%;'"!+5$?%%

 % 67)%;'"!+5$<3%8)*2'*.#!+)%/)(5)>%0*'+)33%>75+7% 53%"!1)*-#P)!%#!!"#$$9%#+*'33% -7)%;'"!+5$%
2'*%#$$%3-#22?%%

 % 67)%;'"!+5$<3%;'.0)-)!+9%H*#.)>'*P=%>75+7%53%5!%0$#+)%2'*%#$$%3-#22%#!1%.#!#:)*3?%

 % 67)%;'"!+5$<3%8)'0$)%,-*#-):9=%>75+7%3)-3%'"-%7'>%-7)%;'"!+5$%>5$$%*)+*"5-=%*)>#*1%#!1%1)()$'0%
5-3%3-#22%-'%*)#+7%-7)5*%2"$$%0'-)!-5#$?%

 % 67)%C)15#%8*'-'+'$=%>75+7%3)-3%'"-%-7)%0*'+)33)3%2'*%1*#2-5!:%#!1%+$)#*5!:%!)>3%*)$)#3)3%#!1%
)!:#:5!:%>5-7%-7)%.)15#?%

 % 67)% ;'*0'*#-)% ;7#!:)% 8*':*#..)% R'#*1=% >75+7% +'..5335'!3% #!1% .'!5-'*3% 0*'S)+-3% -'%
5.0$).)!-%+7#!:)%#!1%-*#!32'*.#-5'!?%

 % 67)% ;5-5T)!3<% ,"*()9=% >75+7% 53% "!1)*-#P)!% 0)*5'15+#$$9% -'% :#":)% -7)% 0"E$5+<3% 0)*+)0-5'!% '2%
;'"!+5$%3)*(5+)3=%'"*%30)!15!:%0*5'*5-5)3=%+'.."!5+#-5'!%>5-7%"3%#!1%2))$5!:3%'2%3#2)-9?%

 % 67)%;'1)%'2%;'*0'*#-)%&'()*!#!+)=%>75+7%3)-3%'"-%-7)%>#93%5!%>75+7%-7)%;'"!+5$%)!3"*)3%-7#-%
5-3%E"35!)33%53%+'!1"+-)1%5!%#++'*1#!+)%>5-7%$#>%#!1%0*'0)*%3-#!1#*13%#!1%-7#-%0"E$5+%.'!)9%53%
3#2):"#*1)1%#!1%0*'0)*$9%#++'"!-)1%2'*?%

 %  %2*#.)>'*P%-'%:"51)%-7)%;'"!+5$<3%)!:#:).)!-%>5-7%)4-)*!#$%0#*-!)*37503%-7#-%>5$$%)!3"*)%-7)%
;'"!+5$<3%0#*-!)*37503%#*)%#++'"!-#E$)%#!1%)22)+-5()?%

 % 67)%+'*0'*#-)%>)E35-)=%*)351)!-3<%.#:#T5!)%#!1%3'+5#$%.)15#%+7#!!)$3=%>75+7%#$'!:%>5-7%'-7)*%
0"E$5+#-5'!3% #!1%+ '.."!5+#-5'!3% 0*'(51)% 2'*% 5!2'*.5!:% #!1% )!:#:5!:% *)351)!-3% #!1% '-7)*%
3-#P)7'$1)*3%5!%3)*(5+)%1)$5()*9%#!1%0'$5+9%2'*."$#-5'!?%

Page 63



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% //% %%%%%%% !!"#$%0)1'*-%#!2%,-#-).)!-%'3% ++'"!-4%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 %  %5'2)%'3%6)4-%7*#+-8+)%'!%5'!4"$-#-8'!%#!2%5'.."!8-9%:!;#;).)!-<%#2'1-)2%=9%->)%5'"!+8$%
?>8+>%4)-4%'"-%->)%5'"!+8$@4%#11*'#+>%-'%+'!4"$-#-8'!A%

 % B!-)*!#$% C"#*-)*$9% 1)*3'*.#!+)% *)1'*-8!;% #;#8!4-% D)9% 1)*3'*.#!+)% 8!28+#-'*4% 3'*% )#+>% 4)*(8+)%
1*)1#*)2% 3'*% #!2%1* )4)!-)2% -'% ->)% 4-*#-);8+% $)#2)*4>81% -)#.% -'% +'!482)*% !)+)44#*9% *).)28#$%
#+-8'!A%

%
%
%
% %

Page 64



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%/)0'*-%#!1%,-#-).)!-%'2% ++'"!-3% %%445%
%

Review of Effectiveness

6#.7*518)% 65-9% 6'"!+5$% :#3% *)30'!3575$5-9% 2'*% +'!1"+-5!8;% #-% $)#3-% #!!"#$$9;% #%* )(5)<% '2% -:)%
)22)+-5()!)33% '2% 5-3% 8'()*!#!+)% 2*#.)<'*=% 5!+$"15!8% -:)% 393-).%'2% 5!-)*!#$% +'!-*'$>%?:)% *)(5)<%'2%
)22)+-5()!)33%53%5!2'*.)1%79%-:)%<'*=%'2%-:)%@5*)+-'*3%#!1%A)#13%'2%,)*(5+)%<5-:5!%6#.7*518)%65-9%
6'"!+5$% <:'% :#()% *)30'!3575$5-9% 2'*% -:)% 1)()$'0.)!-% #!1% .#5!-)!#!+)% '2% -:)% 8'()*!#!+)%
)!(5*'!.)!-;% -:)% A)#1% '2% B!-)*!#$%  "15-C3% #!!"#$% '05!5'!;% #!1%#$ 3'% 79% +'..)!-3% .#1)% 79% -:)%
)4-)*!#$%#"15-'*3%#!1%'-:)*%*)(5)<%#8)!+5)3%#!1%5!30)+-'*#-)3>%%

?:)%6'"!+5$C3%6'!3-5-"-5'!%1)-#5$3%@5*)+-'*3C% *)30'!3575$5-5)3% 2'*% -:)%.#5!-)!#!+)%'2%+'!-*'$3%<5-:5!%
-:)5*%1)0#*-.)!-3>%%?:)%393-).%'2%5!-)*!#$%+'!-*'$%53%3"7D)+-%-'%*)8"$#*%*)(5)<%79%B!-)*!#$% "15->%%?:)%
<'*=%'2%-:)%3)*(5+)%53%5!2'*.)1%79%-:)%6'"!+5$C3%*53=%*)853-)*;%<5-:%-:)%#$$'+#-5'!%'2%#"15-%*)3'"*+)3%
+'!-*'$$)1% -:*'"8:% #!% #!!"#$% *53=E% 7#3)1% '0)*#-5'!#$% 0$#!;% <:5+:% 53% #8*))1;% #!!"#$$9;% 79% -:)%
6'"!+5$C3%65(5+% 22#5*3%6'..5--))>%F).7)*3%#*)%=)0-%5!2'*.)1%'2%-:)%<'*=%'2%B!-)*!#$% "15-%-:*'"8:%
#%1)15+#-)1%F).7)*3C%B!-)*!#$% "15-%<)7E0#8);%<:5+:%0"7$53:)3%+'05)3%'2%-:)%G4)+"-5()%,"..#*5)3%
'2% "15-%*)0'*-3>%

B!15(51"#$% B!-)*!#$%  "15-% *)0'*-3% #*)% 533")1% 15*)+-$9% -'% -:)% *)$)(#!-% @5*)+-'*;% -:)% @5*)+-'*% '2%
/)3'"*+)3;%-:)%H)#1)*%'2%-:)%6'"!+5$%#!1%-:)%*)$)(#!-%G4)+"-5()%6'"!+5$$'*>%G4)+"-5()%,"..#*5)3%
'2%B!-)*!#$% "15-%*)0'*-3%#*)%+5*+"$#-)1%-'%-:)%6:5)2%G4)+"-5()%#!1%-:)%6'"!+5$C3%F'!5-'*5!8%I225+)*%-'%
)!3"*)% -:#-% -:)9% #*)% 5!2'*.)1% '2% 0'-)!-5#$% #*)#3% '2% !'!E+'.0$5#!+)% <5-:% $)853$#-5'!>% % G#+:% #"15-%
*)0'*-%+'!-#5!3%#!%5!1)0)!1)!-%#33"*#!+)%'05!5'!%'!%-:)%#1)J"#+9%#!1%)22)+-5()!)33%'2%-:)%5!-)*!#$%
+'!-*'$3%5!%0$#+)%-'%.5-58#-)%*53=3>%%F#!#8).)!-%#+-5'!3%#8*))1%5!%B!-)*!#$% "15-%*)0'*-3%#*)%)!-)*)1%
5!-'% -'% -:)% 6'"!+5$C3% /53=% /)853-)*% #!1% 0*'8*)33% '!%- :)5*% 5.0$).)!-#-5'!% 53% *)0'*-)1% -'% #!1%
.'!5-'*)1%79%-:)%6:5)2%G4)+"-5()%#!1%-:)%,-*#-)85+%H)#1)*3:50%?)#.>%%

B!%#115-5'!%-'%-:)3)%#**#!8).)!-3%-:)%6'"!+5$%*)+)5()3%#!1%*)30'!13%-'%*)0'*-3%2*'.%'-:)*%*)(5)<%
#!1%#33"*#!+)%.)+:#!53.3>%

?:)%@5*)+-'*%'2%/)3'"*+)3%53%-:)% "-:'*5-9C3%6:5)2%K5!#!+5#$%I225+)*%#!1%53%*)30'!357$)%2'*%-:)%0*'0)*%
#1.5!53-*#-5'!%'2% -:)%#"-:'*5-9C3% 25!#!+5#$% #22#5*3>%?:)%@5*)+-'*% '2%/)3'"*+)3% *)0'*-3%15*)+-$9% -'% -:)%
6:5)2%G4)+"-5()%#!1%53%#%.).7)*%'2%-:)%,-*#-)85+%H)#1)*3:50%?)#.>%

?:)%6'"!+5$C3%65(5+% 22#5*3%6'..5--))% 53% *)30'!357$)% 2'*%#1(535!8%'!%#!1%.'!5-'*5!8% -:)%F).7)*3%
6'1)%'2%6'!1"+-%#!1%2'*%#1(535!8% -:)%6'"!+5$%'!% -:)%)-:5+#$%#30)+-3%'2% -:)%+'*0'*#-)%8'()*!#!+)%
2*#.)<'*=>% % ?:53% #**#!8).)!-% *)0$#+)3% -:)% 0*)(5'"3% *)30'!3575$5-5)3% '2% -:)% 6'"!+5$C3% ,-#!1#*13%
6'..5--));%<:5+:%<#3%1537#!1)1%5!%L"$9%MNOM>%

P)%:#()% 7))!%#1( 53)1% '!%- :)% 5.0$5+#-5'!3% '2% -:)% *)3"$-% '2% -:)% *)(5)<%'2% -:)% )22)+-5()!)33% '2% -:)%
8'()*!#!+)% 2*#.)<'*=% 79% 65(5+%  22#5*3% 6'..5--))% #!1% -:#-% -:)% #**#!8).)!-3% +'!-5!")% -'% 7)%
*)8#*1)1% #3% 25-% 2'*% 0"*0'3)% 5!% #++'*1#!+)% <5-:% -:)% 8'()*!#!+)% 2*#.)<'*=>% ?:)% #*)#3% #$*)#19%
#11*)33)1%#!1%-:'3)%30)+525+#$$9%#11*)33)1%<5-:%!)<%#+-5'!3%0$#!!)1%#*)%'"-$5!)1%7)$'<>%

%

%

%
%
%
% %

Page 65



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% //00% %%%%%%% !!"#$%1)2'*-%#!3%,-#-).)!-%'4% ++'"!-5%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Action Plan to Address Significant Governance Issues

1 Issue

6**'*5% 7)*)% 03)!-040)3% 0!% -8)% 9'"!+0$:5% ;"3<)-% 5)--0!<% 4'*)+#5-% 4'*% =>?=@?AB% 780+8% *)5"$-)3% 0!% #!%
"!3)*@5-#-).)!-% '4% -8)% 9'"!+0$:5% 52)!30!<% *)C"0*).)!-5D% E8)5)% )**'*5% 7)*)% 0!()5-0<#-)3% ;F% -8)%
9'"!+0$:5%6/-)*!#$% "30-'*5B%6*!5-% #!3%G'"!<B%#!3% 0!% *)52'!5)% -'% -8)0*% *)2'*-% #!%#+-0'!%2$#!%7#5%
2*'2'5)3%-'%#33*)55%-8)%055")5%*#05)3D%%

E8)%#+-0'!%2$#!%7#5%#<*))3%#-%90(0+% 44#0*5%'!%?H% 2*0$%=>?AD%

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 % 6!5"*)%0.2$).)!-#-0'!%'4%-8)%#+-0'!5%#<*))3%;F%90(0+% 44#0*5I%

!% %J.2*'().)!-%-'%-8)%+'!-*'$%)!(0*'!.)!-%4'*%-8)%+'"!+0$:5%40!#!+0#$%.'3)$$0!<%
%
Head of Internal Audit / Head of Accounting Services 
31 July 2013
%

!%  33*)550!<%5-#440!<%*)$#-)3%055")5%

Chief Executive / Head of Accounting Services / Head of Human Resources
31 May 2013
%

!% ,-*"+-"*)%

Chief Executive
From June 2013
%

!% J.2*'().)!-5%-'%4"-"*)%2*'+)55)5%

Chief Executive  
31 July 2013 

2 Issue

 !% J!-)*!#$%  "30-% *)(0)7% '4% -8)% 9'"!+0$:5% 105K% L#!#<).)!-% M*#.)7'*K% 7#5% "!3)*-#K)!% 3"*0!<%
=>?=@?AD%E8)%#"30-%+'!+$"3)3%-8#-%-8)%4*#.)7'*K%<')5%#%$'!<%7#F%0!%.))-0!<%-8)%2*0!+02$)5%'4%<''3%
<'()*!#!+)B% 0!% -8#-% -8)*)% #*)% 5'"!3% 2*'+)3"*)5% 0!% 2$#+)% 4'*% .#!#<0!<% *05K% #!3%- 8)*)4'*)% #%
N50<!040+#!-:%#55"*#!+)%*#-0!<%7#5%<0()!%-'%-8)%*05K%.#!#<).)!-%4*#.)7'*KD%%

O'7)()*B% -8)% #"30-% 4'"!3% -8#-% 5'.)% 5)*(0+)5% 8#()% !'-% F)-% 4"$$F% ).;)33)3% -8)% *05K%.#!#<).)!-%
2*'+)55)5% 0!-'% -8)0*% '!@<'0!<% 5)*(0+)%.#!#<).)!-% #**#!<).)!-5% #!3% -8)*)4'*)% '()*#$$% #%N $0.0-)3:%
#55"*#!+)%*#-0!<%7#5%<0()!%;F%-8)%#"30-%*)(0)7D%

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 %  5% #% *)5"$-% '4% -8)% J!-)*!#$%  "30-% *)(0)7% 0-% 7#5% #<*))3% -8#-% -'% )!5"*)% -8)% *05K% .#!#<).)!-%
2*'+)55% ;)+'.)5% 4"$$F% ).;)33)3% #+*'55% -8)% 9'"!+0$% -8)% 980)4% 6/)+"-0()% #!3% ,-*#-)<0+%

Page 66



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%
%  !!"#$%/)0'*-%#!1%,-#-).)!-%'2% ++'"!-3% %%44555%
%

6)#1)*3750% 8)#.% 95$$% +'!-5!")% -'% )!3"*)% -7#-% 0*':#+-5()% #+-5'!% 53% -#;)!% -'% "01#-)% -7)% *53;%
*)<53-)*%'!%#%-5.)$=%>#353?%

Chief Executive
Ongoing from 30 April 2013

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 %  %2'$$'9:"0%-'%-7)%#"15-%'2%-7)%/53;%@#!#<).)!-%A*#.)9'*;%95$$%>)%+'.0$)-)1%5!%BCDE:DF?%

Head of Internal Audit
31 December 2013

3 Issue

 !%G!-)*!#$% "15-%*)(5)9%'2%-7)%@#!#<).)!-%'2%H'!-*#+-'*%I)#$-7%J%,#2)-=%9#3%"!1)*-#;)!%1"*5!<%
BCDB:DE?%8753%#"15-%2'"!1%-7#-%#$-7'"<7%'225+)*3%7#()%>))!%"!1)*-#;5!<%#00*'0*5#-)%+7)+;3%'!%-7)%
+'!-*#+-3% -7)=%#*)%.#!#<5!<K% 5!%.#!=%+#3)3% -7)=%#*)%!'-%1'+".)!-5!<% -7)3)%+7)+;3% -'%)(51)!+)%
-7#-% -7)=% 7#()% -#;)!% 0$#+)?% 8753% 533")% 7#3% #$3'% >))!%)( 51)!-% 5!% #%!" .>)*% '2% '-7)*% +'!-*#+-3%
*)(5)9)1%5!%0*)(5'"3%=)#*3%#!1%+'()*3%#%*#!<)%'2%1522)*)!-%#30)+-3%'2%+'!-*#+-%.#!#<).)!-?%

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 % L!1)*-#;)% #% 2'$$'9:"0% #"15-% '2% -7)%@#!#<).)!-% '2% H'!-*#+-'*% I)#$-7% J% ,#2)-=% -'% )!3"*)% #$$%
#<*))1%#+-5'!3%2'*%1'+".)!-5!<%+7)+;3%"!1)*-#;)!%'!%+'!-*#+-3%7#()%>))!%5.0$).)!-)1?%

Head of Internal Audit
31 March 2014

4 Issue

87)% M*)()!-5'!% '2% A*#"1% J% H'**"0-5'!% M'$5+=% 7#3% >))!%"01#- )1% -'% 0*'(51)% #!%' ()*(5)9% '2% -7)%
N*5>)*=% +-%BCDC%#!1%5-3%5.0$5+#-5'!3%2'*%-7)%H5-=%H'"!+5$?%

 !%G!-)*!#$% "15-%*)(5)9%'2%&52-3%J%I'305-#$5-=%7#3%>))!%"!1)*-#;)!%#3%0#*-%'2%-7)%BCDB:DE%G!-)*!#$%
 "15-%M$#!?% %O,5<!525+#!-P%#33"*#!+)%*#-5!<%9#3%<5()!%-'%-753%*)(5)9K%>"-%-7)%*)0'*-%75<7$5<7-)1%-7)%
!))1%2'*%<*)#-)*%+$#*5-=%5!%-7)%Q225+)*%H'1)%'2%H'!1"+-%'!%97#-%+#!%>)%#++)0-)1%#!1%97#-%!))13%-'%
>)%*)+'*1)1%5!%-7)%<52-3%#!1%7'305-#$5-=%*)<53-)*?%%

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 % Q!+)%#<*))1K%-7)%*)R"5*).)!-3%'2%-7)%"01#-)1%Q225+)*%H'1)%'2%H'!1"+-%5!%*)$#-5'!%-'%<52-3%#!1%
7'305-#$5-=%37'"$1%>)%37#*)1%95-7%#$$%3-#22%#!1%.#!#<)*3?%

Principal Auditor
31 July 2013

Page 67



 !!"#$%&'()*!#!+)%,-#-).)!-%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% //0(% %%%%%%% !!"#$%1)2'*-%#!3%,-#-).)!-%'4% ++'"!-5%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

5 Issue

67)%+"**)!-%,+7).)%'4%8)$)9#-0'!5:%#5%+'!-#0!)3% 0!% -7)%;'"!+0$<5%;'!5-0-"-0'!:% *)="0*)5%*)(0)>%-'%
)!5"*)%0-%05%"2%-'%3#-)?%

Action
[Target date & Officer Responsible]

 % 1)(0)>%-7)%;'"!+0$<5%,+7).)%'4%8)$)9#-0'!5%-'%)!5"*)%0-%05%"2%-'%3#-)?%

Head of Legal Services
31 December 2013

%

%

@)%2*'2'5)%'()*% -7)%+'.0!9%A)#*% -'% -#B)%5-)25% -'%#33*)55% -7)%#C'()%.#--)*5% -'% 4"*-7)*%)!7#!+)%
'"*% 9'()*!#!+)% #**#!9).)!-5?% % @)% #*)% 5#-0540)3% -7#-% -7)5)% 5-)25% >0$$% #33*)55% -7)% !))3% 4'*%
0.2*'().)!-5% -7#-% >)*)% 03)!-040)3% 0!% '"*% *)(0)>% '4% )44)+-0()!)55% #!3%> 0$$% .'!0-'*% -7)0*%
0.2$).)!-#-0'!%#!3%'2)*#-0'!%#5%2#*-%'4%'"*%!)/-%#!!"#$%*)(0)>?%

%

%

%

Councillor Tim Bick
Leader of the Council
Date:  

Antoinette Jackson 
Chief Executive 
Date:  

Page 68



 !"#$#!"#!%&'(")%*+,-&.#$*+%&%*&%/#&
0#12#+-&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&

&
&

&
& '!!(59&.#$*+%&5!"&:%5%#1#!%&*3&'88*(!%-& &&;;<&
&

Opinion on the Authority financial statements

=#&/5<#&5(")%#"&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&3*+& %/#&7#5+&#!"#"&>?&05+8/&
@A?>&(!"#+& %/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&?BBCD&E/#& 3)!5!8)59& -%5%#1#!%-&8*1$+)-#& %/#&0*<#1#!%& )!&
.#-#+<#-&:%5%#1#!%F& %/#&4*1$+#/#!-)<#&  !8*1#&5!"&G;$#!")%(+#&:%5%#1#!%F& %/#&H595!8#&:/##%F&
%/#&45-/&I9*J&:%5%#1#!%F&%/#&K*(-)!6&.#<#!(#&'88*(!%& !8*1#&5!"&G;$#!")%(+#&:%5%#1#!%F&%/#&
0*<#1#!%& *!& %/#& K*(-)!6& .#<#!(#& '88*(!%& :%5%#1#!%F& %/#& 4*99#8%)*!& I(!"F& %/#& :%5%#1#!%& *3&
'88*(!%)!6&L*9)8)#-&5!"&%/#&+#95%#"&!*%#-D&&E/#&3)!5!8)59&+#$*+%)!6&3+51#J*+M&%/5%&/5-&2##!&5$$9)#"&
)!& %/#)+&$+#$5+5%)*!& )-&5$$9)8529#& 95J&5!"&%/#&4 LI'NO':''4&4*"#&*3&L+58%)8#&*!&O*859&'(%/*+)%7&
'88*(!%)!6&)!&%/#&P!)%#"&Q)!6"*1&@A?@N?>D&

E/)-&+#$*+%&)-&15"#&-*9#97&%*&%/#&1#12#+-&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9F&5-&5&2*"7F&)!&588*+"5!8#&J)%/&
L5+%&  &*3&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&?BBC&5!"&3*+&!*&*%/#+&$(+$*-#F&5-&-#%&*(%&)!&$5+56+5$/&RC&*3&%/#&
:%5%#1#!%&*3&.#-$*!-)2)9)%)#-&*3&'(")%*+-&5!"&'(")%#"&H*")#-&$(29)-/#"&27&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&)!&
05+8/&@A?AD&&E*&%/#&3(99#-%&#;%#!%&$#+1)%%#"&27& 95JF&J#&"*&!*%&588#$%&*+&5--(1#&+#-$*!-)2)9)%7& %*&
5!7*!#&*%/#+&%/5!&%/#&5(%/*+)%7&5!"&%/#&5(%/*+)%7,-&1#12#+-&5-&5&2*"7F&3*+&*(+&5(")%&J*+MF&3*+&%/)-&
+#$*+%F&*+&3*+&%/#&*$)!)*!-&J#&/5<#&3*+1#"D&

Respective Responsibilities of the Director of Resources and auditor

'-&#;$95)!#"&1*+#& 3(997& )!& %/#&:%5%#1#!%&*3& %/#&S)+#8%*+&*3&.#-*(+8#-,&.#-$*!-)2)9)%)#-&-#%&*(%&*!&
$56#&;<F&%/#&S)+#8%*+&*3&.#-*(+8#-&)-&+#-$*!-)29#&3*+&%/#&$+#$5+5%)*!&*3&%/#&:%5%#1#!%&*3&'88*(!%-F&
J/)8/& )!89("#-& %/#& 3)!5!8)59& -%5%#1#!%-F& )!& 588*+"5!8#& J)%/& $+*$#+& $+58%)8#-& 5-& -#%& *(%& )!& %/#&
4 LI'NO':''4& 4*"#& *3& L+58%)8#& *!& O*859& '(%/*+)%7& '88*(!%)!6& )!& %/#&P!)%#"& Q)!6"*1& @A?@N?>F&
5!"&3*+&2#)!6&-5%)-3)#"&%/5%&%/#7&6)<#&5&%+(#&5!"&35)+&<)#JD&T(+&+#-$*!-)2)9)%7&)-&%*&5(")%&5!"&#;$+#--&
5!& *$)!)*!& *!& %/#& 3)!5!8)59& -%5%#1#!%-& )!& 588*+"5!8#& J)%/& 5$$9)8529#& 95J& 5!"& !%#+!5%)*!59&
:%5!"5+"-& *!& '(")%)!6& UPQ& 5!"&  +#95!"VD&E/*-#& -%5!"5+"-& +#W()+#& (-& %*& 8*1$97& J)%/& %/#& '(")%)!6&
L+58%)8#-&H*5+",-&G%/)859&:%5!"5+"-&3*+&'(")%*+-D&

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

'!&5(")%&)!<*9<#-&*2%5)!)!6&#<)"#!8#&52*(%&%/#&51*(!%-&5!"&")-89*-(+#-&)!&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-&
-(33)8)#!%& %*& 6)<#& +#5-*!529#& 5--(+5!8#& %/5%& %/#& 3)!5!8)59& -%5%#1#!%-& 5+#& 3+##& 3+*1& 15%#+)59&
1)--%5%#1#!%F& J/#%/#+& 85(-#"& 27& 3+5("& *+& #++*+D& E/)-& )!89("#-& 5!&5- -#--1#!%& *3X& J/#%/#+& %/#&
588*(!%)!6& $*9)8)#-& 5+#& 5$$+*$+)5%#& %*& %/#& '(%/*+)%7,-& 8)+8(1-%5!8#-& 5!"& /5<#& 2##!& 8*!-)-%#!%97&
5$$9)#"&5!"&5"#W(5%#97&")-89*-#"Y&%/#&+#5-*!529#!#--&*3&-)6!)3)85!%&588*(!%)!6&#-%)15%#-&15"#&27&
%/#&S)+#8%*+&*3&.#-*(+8#-Y&5!"&%/#&*<#+599&$+#-#!%5%)*!&*3&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-D& !&5"")%)*!F&J#&
+#5"& 599& %/#& 3)!5!8)59& 5!"& !*!Z3)!5!8)59& )!3*+15%)*!& )!& %/#& '!!(59& .#$*+%& 5!"&  !%+*"(8%)*!& %*& %/#&
:%5%#1#!%&*3&'88*(!%-& %*& )"#!%)37&15%#+)59& )!8*!-)-%#!8)#-&J)%/& %/#&5(")%#"& 3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-D&  3&
J#& 2#8*1#& 5J5+#& *3& 5!7& 5$$5+#!%& 15%#+)59& 1)--%5%#1#!%-& *+& )!8*!-)-%#!8)#-& J#& 8*!-)"#+& %/#&
)1$9)85%)*!-&3*+&*(+&+#$*+%D&

Opinion on financial statements

 !&*(+&*$)!)*!&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-X&

 & 6)<#&5&%+(#&5!"&35)+&<)#J&*3&%/#&3)!5!8)59&$*-)%)*!&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&5-&5%&>?&05+8/&@A?>&
5!"&*3&)%-&#;$#!")%(+#&5!"&)!8*1#&3*+&%/#&7#5+&%/#!&#!"#"Y&5!"&

 & /5<#&2##!&$+#$5+#"&$+*$#+97&)!&588*+"5!8#&J)%/&%/#&4 LI'NO':''4&4*"#&*3&L+58%)8#&*!&O*859&
'(%/*+)%7&'88*(!%)!6&)!&%/#&P!)%#"&Q)!6"*1&@A?@N?>D&

&

Page 69



 !"#$#!"#!%&'(")%*+,-&.#$*+%&%*&%/#&
0#12#+-&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& ::;)& &&&&&&&'!!(59&.#$*+%&5!"&<%5%#1#!%&*3&'88*(!%-&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Opinion on other matters

 !& *(+& *$)!)*!=& %/#& )!3*+15%)*!& 6);#!& )!& %/#& '!!(59& +#$*+%& 5!"&  !%+*"(8%)*!& %*& %/#& <%5%#1#!%& *3&
'88*(!%-&3*+&%/#&3)!5!8)59&7#5+&3*+&>/)8/&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-&5+#&$+#$5+#"&)-&8*!-)-%#!%&>)%/&%/#&
3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-?&

Matters on which we report by exception

@#&+#$*+%&%*&7*(&)3A&

 & )!& *(+& *$)!)*!& %/#& 5!!(59& 6*;#+!5!8#& -%5%#1#!%& "*#-& !*%& +#39#8%& 8*1$9)5!8#& >)%/& BC#9);#+)!6&
D**"&D*;#+!5!8#& )!&E*859&D*;#+!1#!%A&5&F+51#>*+G,&$(29)-/#"&27&4 HF'I<JE'4K&)!&L(!#&
MNNOP&

 & >#&)--(#&5&+#$*+%&)!&%/#&$(29)8&)!%#+#-%&(!"#+&-#8%)*!&Q&*3&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&RSSQP&

 & >#&"#-)6!5%#&(!"#+&-#8%)*!&RR&*3&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&RSSQ&5!7&+#8*11#!"5%)*!&5-&*!#&
%/5%&+#T()+#-&%/#&'(%/*+)%7&%*&8*!-)"#+&)%&5%&5&$(29)8&1##%)!6&5!"&%*&"#8)"#&>/5%&58%)*!&%*&%5G#&)!&
+#-$*!-#P&*+&

 & >#&#:#+8)-#&5!7&*%/#+&-$#8)59&$*>#+-&*3&%/#&5(")%*+&(!"#+&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&RSSQ?&

@#&/5;#&!*%/)!6&%*&+#$*+%&)!&%/#-#&+#-$#8%-?&

Conclusion on Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Authority and the Auditor

U/#&'(%/*+)%7&)-&+#-$*!-)29#&3*+&$(%%)!6&)!&$958#&$+*$#+&5++5!6#1#!%-&%*&-#8(+#&#8*!*17=&#33)8)#!87&
5!"& #33#8%);#!#--& )!& )%-& (-#& *3& +#-*(+8#-=& %*& #!-(+#& $+*$#+& -%#>5+"-/)$& 5!"& 6*;#+!5!8#=& 5!"& %*&
+#;)#>&+#6(95+97&%/#&5"#T(587&5!"&#33#8%);#!#--&*3&%/#-#&5++5!6#1#!%-?&

@#&5+#& +#T()+#"&(!"#+&<#8%)*!&V&* 3& %/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%& RSSQ& %*& -5%)-37&*(+-#9;#-& %/5%& %/#&
'(%/*+)%7&/5-&15"#&$+*$#+&5++5!6#1#!%-&3*+&-#8(+)!6&#8*!*17=&#33)8)#!87&5!"&#3 3#8%);#!#--&)!& )%-&
(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-?&U/#&4*"#&*3&'(")%&H+58%)8#&)--(#"&27&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&+#T()+#-&(-&%*&+#$*+%&
%*&7*(&*(+&8*!89(-)*!&+#95%)!6&%*&$+*$#+&5++5!6#1#!%-=&/5;)!6&+#65+"&%*&+#9#;5!%&8+)%#+)5&-$#8)3)#"&27&
%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!?&

@#&+#$*+%& )3&-)6!)3)85!%&15%%#+-&/5;#&8*1#&%*&*(+&5%%#!%)*!&>/)8/&$+#;#!%&(-& 3+*1&8*!89(")!6& %/5%&
%/#& '(%/*+)%7& /5-& $(%& )!& $958#& $+*$#+& 5++5!6#1#!%-& 3*+& -#8(+)!6& #8*!*17=& #33)8)#!87& 5!"&
#33#8%);#!#--& )!& )%-& (-#& *3& +#-*(+8#-?& @#& 5+#& !*%& +#T()+#"& %*& 8*!-)"#+=& !*+& /5;#& >#& 8*!-)"#+#"=&
>/#%/#+& 599& 5-$#8%-& *3& %/#& '(%/*+)%7,-& 5++5!6#1#!%-& 3*+& -#8(+)!6& #8*!*17=& #33)8)#!87& 5!"&
#33#8%);#!#--&)!&)%-&(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-&5+#&*$#+5%)!6&#33#8%);#97?&

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in the use of resources

@#&/5;#&(!"#+%5G#!&*(+&5(")%&)!&588*+"5!8#&>)%/&%/#&4*"#&*3&'(")%&H+58%)8#=&/5;)!6&+#65+"&%*&%/#&
6()"5!8#& *!& %/#& -$#8)3)#"& 8+)%#+)5=& $(29)-/#"& 27& %/#& '(")%& 4*11)--)*!& )!& W*;#12#+& MNRM=& 5-& %*&
>/#%/#+&%/#&'(%/*+)%7&/5-&$+*$#+&5++5!6#1#!%-&3*+A&

 & -#8(+)!6&3)!5!8)59&+#-)9)#!8#P&5!"&

Page 70



 !"#$#!"#!%&'(")%*+,-&.#$*+%&%*&%/#&
0#12#+-&*3&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&

&
&

&
& '!!(59&.#$*+%&5!"&:%5%#1#!%&*3&'88*(!%-& &&;;<))&
&

 & 8/599#!6)!6&/*=&)%&-#8(+#-&#8*!*17>&#33)8)#!87&5!"&#33#8%)<#!#--?&

@/#& '(")%& 4*11)--)*!& /5-& "#%#+1)!#"& %/#-#& %=*& 8+)%#+)5& 5-& %/*-#& !#8#--5+7& 3*+& (-& %*& 8*!-)"#+&
(!"#+& %/#&4*"#&*3&'(")%&A+58%)8#& )!&-5%)-37)!6&*(+-#9<#-&=/#%/#+& %/#&'(%/*+)%7&$(%& )!&$958#&$+*$#+&
5++5!6#1#!%-&3*+&-#8(+)!6&#8*!*17>&#33)8)#!87&5!"&#33#8%)<#!#--&)!&)%-&(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-&3*+&%/#&7#5+&
#!"#"&BC&05+8/&DECB?&

F#& $95!!#"& *(+& =*+G& )!& 588*+"5!8#& =)%/& %/#& 4*"#& *3& '(")%& A+58%)8#?& & H5-#"& *!& *(+& +)-G&
5--#--1#!%>&=#&(!"#+%**G&-(8/&=*+G&5-&=#&8*!-)"#+#"&!#8#--5+7&%*&3*+1&5&<)#=&*!&=/#%/#+>&)!&599&
-)6!)3)85!%& +#-$#8%->& %/#& '(%/*+)%7& /5"&$(% & )!& $958#& $+*$#+& 5++5!6#1#!%-& %*& -#8(+#& #8*!*17>&
#33)8)#!87&5!"&#33#8%)<#!#--&)!&)%-&(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-?&

Conclusion

I!&%/#&25-)-&*3&*(+&=*+G>&/5<)!6&+#65+"&%*&%/#&6()"5!8#&*!&%/#&-$#8)3)#"&8+)%#+)5&$(29)-/#"&27&%/#&
'(")%&4*11)--)*!& )!&J*<#12#+&DECD>&=#&5+#&-5%)-3)#"& %/5%>& )!&599& -)6!)3)85!%& +#-$#8%->&4512+)"6#&
4)%7&4*(!8)9&$(%&)!&$958#&$+*$#+&5++5!6#1#!%-&%*&-#8(+#&#8*!*17>&#33)8)#!87&5!"&#33#8%)<#!#--&)!&)%-&
(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-&3*+&%/#&7#5+&#!"#"&BC&05+8/&DECB?&

Report by exception

@/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!,-&6()"5!8#&59-*&+#K()+#-&(-& %*&+#$*+%&27&#;8#$%)*!&*!&5!7&*%/#+&-)6!)3)85!%&
5"")%)*!59& 15%%#+-& %/5%& 8*1#& %*& *(+& 5%%#!%)*!& 5!"& =/)8/& =#& 8*!-)"#+& %*& 2#& +#9#<5!%& %*& $+*$#+&
5++5!6#1#!%-&%*&-#8(+#&#8*!*17>&#33)8)#!87&5!"&#33#8%)<#!#--&)!&%/#&(-#&*3&+#-*(+8#-?&

:(8/& 5&1 5%%#+& /5-& 8*1#& %*& *(+& 5%%#!%)*!& +#95%)!6& %*& 5&- )6!)3)85!%& =#5G!#--& )!& 4512+)"6#& 4)%7&
4*(!8)9,-&5++5!6#1#!%-&3*+&#!-(+)!6&5$$+*$+)5%#&)!%#+!59&8*!%+*9&*<#+&%/#&$+#$5+5%)*!&*3&%/#&DECBLCM&
2("6#%?&&@/#&4*(!8)9&/5-&-#%&*(%&%/)-&15%%#+&=)%/)!&)%-&'!!(59&N*<#+!5!8#&:%5%#1#!%&*!&$56#&;;))&
*3&%/#&3)!5!8)59&-%5%#1#!%-?&

I(+&8*!89(-)*!&52*<#>&%/5%&=#&5+#&-5%)-3)#"& %/5%& )!&599&-)6!)3)85!%&+#-$#8%-&4512+)"6#&4)%7&4*(!8)9&
$(%& )!& $958#& $+*$#+& 5++5!6#1#!%-& %*& -#8(+#& #8*!*17>& #33)8)#!87& 5!"& #33#8%)<#!#--& )!& )%-& (-#& *3&
+#-*(+8#-&3*+&%/#&7#5+&#!"#"&BC&05+8/&DECB>&)-&!*%&1*")3)#"&27&%/)-&3)!")!6?&

Certificate

F#& 8#+%)37& %/5%& =#& /5<#& 8*1$9#%#"& %/#& 5(")%& *3& %/#& 588*(!%-& *3& 4512+)"6#& 4)%7& 4*(!8)9& )!&
588*+"5!8#&=)%/&%/#&+#K()+#1#!%-&*3&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!&'8%&COOP&5!"&%/#&4*"#&*3&'(")%&A+58%)8#&
)--(#"&27&%/#&'(")%&4*11)--)*!?&

&
&
&
&

Mark Hodgson
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Appointed Auditor
Cambridge

Date: 

Page 71



Page 72



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

 )-.)42+-1+%)"$)(!"#$%&'+)"*+)6$&!'(271),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)/$#)8958:5;<))=*+)4#+'+%(!>)0!!&-2)
3+4$#")1+'"($!)$/)"*(1)%$'&.+!")%+1'#(?+1)"*+)%(@+#1+)#-!>+)$/)1+#@('+1)4#$@(%+%)?A)6-.?#(%>+)6("A)
6$&!'(2) "$) ("1) #+1(%+!"1B) 2$'-2) ?&1(!+11+1) -!%) @(1("$#1) -!%)4 #$@(%+1) %+"-(21) $/) 1$.+) $/) "*+) C+A)
-'"(@("(+1)-!%)-'*(+@+.+!"1)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#<)))

=*+),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1B)1+")$&")$!)4->+1)D)"$)DEB)'$!"-(!)-)1+#(+1)$/)1"-"+.+!"1B)1&..-#(1(!>)
"*+)/(!-!'(-2)-'"(@("A)$/)"*+)6$&!'(2)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#)(!)%+2(@+#(!>)"*+1+)1+#@('+1<)) !)-%%("($!B)%+"-(21)
$/) "*+)6$&!'(271)-11+"1)-!%) 2(-?(2("(+1)-") "*+)?+>(!!(!>)-!%)+!%)$ /) "*+)6$&!'(271) /(!-!'(-2) A+-#)-#+)
4#+1+!"+%<))=*+)/(!-!'(-2)A+-#)#-!)/#$.)5)04#(2)8958)"$);5)F-#'*)895;<)

=*+) -''$&!"1) *-@+) ?++!) 4#+4-#+%) (!) -''$#%-!'+) G("*) "*+) H6$%+) $/) I#-'"('+) $!) J$'-2) 0&"*$#("A)
0''$&!"(!>) (!) "*+) K!("+%) L(!>%$.7) M=*+) 6$%+N<) ) =*+) '$%+) (1) ?-1+%) $!)  !"+#!-"($!-2) O(!-!'(-2)
3+4$#"(!>),"-!%-#%1)M O3,N)-!%)1+"1)$&")"*+)/$#.-")-!%)'$!"+!")$/)"*+)C+A)/(!-!'(-2)1"-"+.+!"1)-!%)
-''$.4-!A(!>)!$"+1)(!)"*(1)4&?2('-"($!<)))

=*+)C+A)/(!-!'(-2)1"-"+.+!"1)-#+)-1)/$22$G1P)

 ) F$@+.+!")(!)3+1+#@+1),"-"+.+!")

 ) 6$.4#+*+!1(@+) !'$.+)-!%)QR4+!%("&#+),"-"+.+!")

 ) S-2-!'+),*++")

 ) 6-1*)O2$G),"-"+.+!")

 ) T$&1(!>)3+@+!&+)0''$&!")

 ) 6$22+'"($!)O&!%)

=*+1+)-''$&!"1)-#+)1&44$#"+%)?A)-)'$.4#+*+!1(@+)1+")$/)!$"+1) "$>+"*+#)G("*)-)1 "-"+.+!")$/) "*+)
-''$&!"(!>) 4$2('(+1) $/) "*+) 6$&!'(2) -!%) -) >2$11-#A) $/) "+#.1<) ) 0!) (!%+R) "$) "*+) .-(!) !$"+1) "$) "*+)
-''$&!"1)(1)4#$@(%+%)$!)4->+)5U<)

V!'+)->-(!B) "*+)-''$&!"1)*-@+)?++!)4#$%&'+%)4#$.4"2A)-!%)"$)"*+)*(>*)1"-!%-#%)+R4+'"+%)$/)"*+)
6$&!'(2<) ) =*(1) G$&2%) !$") *-@+) ?++!) 4$11(?2+) G("*$&") "*+) *-#%) G$#C) $/) .A) $G!) 1"-//) -!%) $"*+#)
/(!-!'+)1"-//)-'#$11) "*+)6$&!'(2B)-!%) )G$&2%) 2(C+) "$) "*-!C) "*+.B).A) /+22$G)W(#+'"$#1B)-!%)1+#@('+)
.-!->+#1)/$#)"*+(#)-11(1"-!'+)(!)"*+)4#+4-#-"($!)$/)"*+1+)-''$&!"1<)

Review of 2012/13

=*+) !-"($!-2) -!%) (!"+#!-"($!-2) +'$!$.(') '2(.-"+B) "$>+"*+#) G("*) 4#+11&#+1) "$) 1(>!(/('-!"2A) #+%&'+)
4&?2(') 1+'"$#) 14+!%(!>B) '$!"(!&+%) "$) 4#$@(%+) -) @+#A) '*-22+!>(!>) /(!-!'(-2) +!@(#$!.+!") /$#) "*+)
6$&!'(2)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#<))Q//+'"1)*-@+)?++!).$1").-#C+%)(!)#+2-"($!)"$)*(>*+#)2+@+21)$/)(!/2-"($!)"*-!)
$#(>(!-22A) /$#+'-1"B) '$!"(!&(!>) 2$G) (!"+#+1") #-"+1) -!%) "*+) #+2-"(@+2A) 12$G) #+'$@+#A) $/) "*+) *$&1(!>)
.-#C+"<) ) 01) (!) 4#+@($&1) A+-#1B) ?&%>+"1) G+#+) '2$1+2A) .$!("$#+%) -!%) #+@(1($!1) .-%+B) G*+#+)
!+'+11-#AB)"$)#+/2+'")'*-!>(!>)'(#'&.1"-!'+1<))=*+1+)#+@(1($!1)(!'2&%+%)'*-!>+1)"$)#+/2+'")6$&!'(271)
-44#$@-2) "$) '-##A) /$#G-#%) ?&%>+"1) /#$.) 8955:58) "$) .++") "*+) '$1"1) $/) #+X4*-1+%) +R4+!%("&#+B)
-%%("($!-2)1-@(!>1)(%+!"(/(+%)%&#(!>)"*+)A+-#)-!%)-21$)"$)4#$@(%+)/$#)&!-@$(%-?2+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1<)

01)4#+@($&12A)#+4$#"+%B)"*+)6("A)6$&!'(2)G-1)$!+)$/).-!A)2$'-2)-&"*$#("(+1)-//+'"+%)?A)"*+)'$22-41+)
$/)  '+2-!%(') ?-!C(!>) (!1"("&"($!1) (!) 899E:9D) G("*B) -") "*-") "(.+B) -) "$"-2) $/) YD) .(22($!) (!) 1*$#") "+#.)
%+4$1("1) G("*) "G$) $/) "*+) -//+'"+%) ?-!C1) MJ-!%1?-!C()  12-!%1) */) -!%) T+#("-?2+) S-!C) I2'N<) ) =*+)
4#$14+'"1)/$#)#+'$@+#A)M-2?+(")$@+#)-!)+R"+!%+%)4+#($%N)$/)"*+).-Z$#("A)$/)"*+1+)%+4$1("1)'$!"(!&+1)
"$)?+)4$1("(@+<)))

 !)%#-G(!>)&4)"*+1+)-''$&!"1B)"*+)6$&!'(2)*-1)/$22$G+%)"*+)%+"-(2+%)>&(%-!'+)(11&+%)?A)"*+)6 IO0)
J$'-2) 0&"*$#("A) 0''$&!"(!>) I-!+2) (!) #+2-"($!) "$) "*+) -!"('(4-"+%) #+'$@+#A) $/) "*+1+) %+4$1("1) -!%)( !)
"+#.1)$/)"*+)@-2&-"($!)1*$G!)(!)"*+)-''$&!"1<))O&#"*+#)(!/$#.-"($!)'-!)?+)/$&!%)(!)!$"+)8[<)

Page 73



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

6&1")-1) (!)"*+)5#(7-"+)1+'"$#8)'*-!9+1)(!)"*+)7-3&+1)$/):$&!'(3;$<!+%)5#$5+#"=)-#+)#+/3+'"+%)(!)"*+)
-''$&!"1)+-'*)=+-#>) )?&#"*+#) (!/$#.-"($!)-@$&") "*+)7-3&-"($!)$/)-11+"18)-!%)*$<)'*-!9+1) (!) "*+(#)
7-3&+).&1")@+)-''$&!"+%)/$#8)'-!)@+)/$&!%)(!)"*+),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"(!9)A$3('(+1)1+'"($!>)

B(7+!)"*+)5#+7-(3(!9)+'$!$.(')'3(.-"+8)#+%&'"($!1)(!)/&!%(!9)/#$.)'+!"#-3)9$7+#!.+!")-!%)#+1&3"(!9)
5#+11&#+1)$!)"*+):$&!'(3C1)/(!-!'+18)(")(1)53+-1(!9)"$)!$"+)"*-"D)

 ) 0) 5#$9#-..+) $/) 1+#7('+) #+7(+<1) '$!"(!&+1) "$) -'*(+7+) <$#"*<*(3+) $!;9$(!9) 1-7(!91) "*-") <(33)
1&55$#") "*+):$&!'(3C1) /(!-!'(-3)5$1("($!)9$(!9) /$#<-#%>) )01)5-#")$/) "*+) #+7(+<)5#$9#-..+8) "*+)
:$&!'(3) *-1) '$!"(!&+%) "$) +E53$#+) $55$#"&!("(+1) "$) 1*-#+) 1+#7('+1) <("*) $"*+#) 3$'-3) -&"*$#("(+1>))
,*-#+%)1+#7('+)-##-!9+.+!"1)-#+)-3#+-%=) (!)53-'+)/$#) "*+):*$('+)F-1+%)G+""(!91),+#7('+8) "*+)
.-!-9+.+!") $/) "*+)  !"+#!-3) 0&%(") 1+#7('+) -!%) "*+) 5#$7(1($!) $/) H$.+)  .5#$7+.+!") 09+!'=)
1+#7('+1) I"$) -11(1") 7&3!+#-@3+) 5+$53+) .-(!"-(!) "*+(#) (!%+5+!%+!'+) @=) *+35(!9) "*+.) "$) #+5-(#)
.-(!"-(!)$#)-%-5")"*+(#)*$.+1J>)

 ) K*+) :$&!'(3) (.53+.+!"+%) !+<) 1"#+-.3(!+%) -##-!9+.+!"1) /$#) ("1) -%.(!(1"#-"(7+) -!%)@&1 (!+11)
1&55$#")1+#7('+18)%+3(7+#(!9).$#+)'$1")+//+'"(7+)1+#7('+1)-!%)'$!"#(@&"(!9)'$!1(%+#-@3+)$!;9$(!9)
1-7(!91)"$<-#%1)"*+):$&!'(3C1)$7+#-33)1-7(!91)"-#9+"1>)

 ) L+).-%+)(.5#$7+.+!"1)"$)$&#)$5+!)15-'+18)15$#"18)#+'#+-"($!)-!%)5&@3(')-#")5#$7(1($!)"*#$&9*)
-)#-!9+)$/)5#$M+'"1)/&!%+%)@=)%+7+3$5+#1>)

 ) K*+) :$&!'(3) <$#N+%) '3$1+3=) <("*) $"*+#) 5&@3(') 1+'"$#) 5-#"!+#1) "$) 53-!) "*+) 5#$7(1($!) $/) !+<)
1+#7('+1) -!%) /-'(3("(+1) (!) "*+) O$#"*) L+1") -!%) ,$&"*+#!) /#(!9+1) $/) "*+) :("=) I<*+#+) .-M$#)
%+7+3$5.+!") (1) "-N(!9)53-'+J) (!'3&%(!9)-)!+<)5#(.-#=)1'*$$3)-")K#&.5(!9"$!)P+-%$<1)-!%)-)
!+<).&3"(;&1+)'$..&!("=)'+!"#+)-"):3-=)?-#.>)

 ) L+) <$#N+%) "$) +!1&#+) "*-") "*+) B$7+#!.+!"C1) <+3/-#+) #+/$#.1) <+#+) +//('(+!"3=) -!%) +//+'"(7+3=)
(.53+.+!"+%)3$'-33=)-!%)"$)%+7(1+)-)!+<)G$'-3):$&!'(3)K-E),&55$#")1'*+.+)<*('*)5#$"+'"1)"*+)
.$1")7&3!+#-@3+)(!)"*+):("=>)

 ) P-M$#) (!7+1".+!") '$!"(!&+%) "$) @+) .-%+) (!) "*+) :$&!'(3C1) *$&1(!9) 1"$'N>) )  !) -%%("($!) "$)
+E5+!%("&#+)$!)#+5-(#1)-!%)(.5#$7+.+!"1)"$)+E(1"(!9)%<+33(!91)<+)*-7+)1"-#"+%)"$)%+3(7+#)-)!+<)
'$&!'(3) *$&1+) @&(3%(!9) 5#$9#-..+) -!%) -#+) <$#N(!9) <("*) 53-!!+#18) %+7+3$5+#1) -!%)$ "*+#1) "$)
(!'#+-1+)"*+)1&553=)$/)-//$#%-@3+)*$&1(!9>)))

Revenue Spending and Income

General Fund Services

?$#)2QR2SRT8) "*+):$&!'(3)-9#++%)-)@&%9+") /$#)!+")15+!%(!9)$/)URV>Q).(33($!>) )K*(1)1&.)<-1) "$)@+)
/(!-!'+%)(!)5-#")@=)9$7+#!.+!")9#-!")"$9+"*+#)<("*)"*+):$&!'(3C1)1*-#+)$/)F&1(!+11)4-"+18)<("*)"*+)
#+.-(!%+#)@+(!9)#-(1+%)"*#$&9*):$&!'(3)K-E>))K*+):$&!'(3)K-E)/$#):("=):$&!'(3)1+#7('+1)<-1)1+")-")
URWW>XV)/$#)F-!%)Y)5#$5+#"(+18)&!'*-!9+%)/$#)"*+)1+'$!%)=+-#)#&!!(!9>)))

K*+) "-@3+) @+3$<) '$.5-#+1) "*+) /(!-3) $&""&#!) /(9&#+1) /$#) "*+) B+!+#-3) ?&!%) <("*) "*$1+) $#(9(!-33=)
53-!!+%8)<*+!)"*+)@&%9+")-!%):$&!'(3)K-E)/$#)"*+)=+-#)<-1)-9#++%)(!)?+@#&-#=)2QR2>)

) )

Page 74



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

(£000s) 
Original

Budget
Actual Difference

6+")3+7+!&+),4+!%(!8)$!),+#7('+1) 9:;9<=) >?;?5@) A==)

B-4("-2)0''$&!"(!8)0%C&1".+!"1) D5;:A?E) D@;<:>E) DF9>E)

B-4("-2)-!%)3+7+!&+)G#$C+'"1),4+!%(!8)H&!%+%)/#$.)3+7+!&+) 9;5A9) 9;=<@) 5=5)

B$!"#(I&"($!1)"$JD/#$.E)K-#.-#L+%)3+1+#7+1)M)I+/$#+)1"-"&"$#N)
-''$&!"(!8)-%C&1".+!"1)

9;?=:) 9;@>:) 5<?)

B$!"#(I&"($!1)"$JD/#$.E)O+!+#-2)H&!%)3+1+#7+) DF?9E) D9;@F5E) DAF>E)

Total 17,036 17,162 126

Financed by:

O$7+#!.+!")O#-!"1) 9;A<=) 9;:A5) 9>F)

,*-#+)$/)P&1(!+11)3-"+1) A;@5<) A;@5<) ?)

B$&!'(2)Q-R) F;=@@) F;=@@) ?)

Total 17,036 17,162 126

02"*$&8*)"*+)B$&!'(2S1)-'"&-2)!+")#+7+!&+)14+!%(!8)$!)"*+)4#$7(1($!)$/)1+#7('+1)T-1)UA==;???).$#+)
"*-!)"*+)$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")1+")/$#)"*+)N+-#;)-)7-#(+"N)$/)/-'"$#1)'$!"#(I&"+%)"$)"*(1)$7+#-22)4$1("($!V))Q*+)
.$1")1(8!(/('-!")$/) "*+1+)#+2-"+%)"$)%+4#+'(-"($!) "*-") "*+)B$&!'(2) (1) #+W&(#+%) "$)'*-#8+)"$)1+#7('+1;)
T*('*)T-1)UF9>;???)*(8*+#)"*-!)$#(8(!-22N)I&%8+"+%V))Q*(1)(!'#+-1+)#+/2+'"+%)"*+)7-2&-"($!)$/)-11+"1)
-")59)X-#'*)>?9>;)-/"+#) "*+)I&%8+")T-1)1+"V) )Q*+)-%%("($!-2)%+4#+'(-"($!)'*-#8+1)T+#+;)*$T+7+#;)
$//1+")IN)-)1"-"&"$#N)'-4("-2)-''$&!"(!8)-%C&1".+!")1$)%(%)!$")-//+'") "*+)$7+#-22)'$1")$/)1+#7('+1) "$)
B$&!'(2)"-R)4-N+#1V))Q(8*")I&%8+"-#N)'$!"#$2;)"*+)%+2(7+#N)$/)1-7(!81)/#$.)1+#7('+)#+7(+T1)-!%)$"*+#)
+//('(+!'N).+-1&#+1)'$.I(!+%)"$)2-#8+2N)$//1+")&!-7$(%-I2+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1V))))))))

Q*+) "$"-2) -.$&!") $/) '-4("-2) -!%)# +7+!&+) 4#$C+'") +R4+!%("&#+) /&!%+%) /#$.) #+7+!&+) T-1) -I$7+)
$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")IN)U5=5;???)2-#8+2N)#+/2+'"(!8)12(44-8+)$!)"*+)"(.(!8)$/)+R4+!%("&#+V))

O$7+#!.+!")8#-!") (!'$.+)T-1)U9>F;???)*(8*+#) "*-!) "*+)$#(8(!-2)I&%8+")-1)-) #+1&2")$/)!+T)8#-!")
-22$'-"($!1)-!!$&!'+%)-/"+#)"*+)I&%8+")*-%)I++!)1+"V))Q*+1+)!+T)8#-!"1)T+#+)-T-#%+%)"$)1&44$#")
"*+)B$&!'(2) (!)4#+4-#(!8)/$#)-!%).++"(!8)"*+)-%%("($!-2)'$1"1)-#(1(!8)/#$.)2+8(12-"(7+)'*-!8+1)1&'*)
-1)B$&!'(2)Q-R)#+/$#.)-!%)#+/$#.1)"$)"*+)!-"($!-2)T+2/-#+)1N1"+.V))

Q$8+"*+#;)"*+)$7+#-22)'*-!8+1)(!)14+!%(!8)-!%)8#-!").+-!")"*-") "*+)'$.I(!+%)&1+)$/)8+!+#-2)-!%)
+-#.-#L+%)#+1+#7+1)(!'#+-1+%)IN)U<9>;???)/#$.)"*-")$#(8(!-22N)42-!!+%V))))

0)!+")&1+)$/)"*+)O+!+#-2)H&!%)3+1+#7+)$/)U9;@F5;???)T-1).-%+)/$#)"*+)N+-#)-!%;)-")"*+)N+-#Y+!%;)
"*+) #+1+#7+) 1"$$%) -") UAV??) .(22($!V) ) Q*(1) #+1+#7+) 4#$7(%+1) /(!-!'(-2) /2+R(I(2("N) "$) "*+) B$&!'(2) /$#)
.++"(!8) +R'+4"($!-2) -!%J$#) &!-!"('(4-"+%) ("+.1) -!%)( 1) &1+%) "$) 1&44$#") "*+) B$&!'(2S1) '-4("-2)
(!7+1".+!")4#$8#-..+V)

Housing Revenue Account

Q*+)Z$&1(!8)3+7+!&+)0''$&!")DZ30E)I&%8+")/$#)>?9>J95)T-1)1+")"$)%+2(7+#)-)1&1"-(!-I2+)/(!-!'(-2)
4$1("($!)$7+#)"*+)5?YN+-#)4+#($%)$/)"*+)Z30),+2/YH(!-!'(!8)P&1(!+11)G2-!;)4#$7(%(!8)/$#)/&!%1)"$)I+)
1+"Y-1(%+)"$)-22$T)/$#)%+I")#+4-N.+!")-")2$-!).-"&#("N;)(/)"*+)-&"*$#("N)1$)'*$$1+1V))H$#)>?9>J95)"*+)
I&%8+")T-1)$#(8(!-22N)1+")T("*) "*+) (!"+!"($!)$/)&1(!8)U>VF?).(22($!)$/)#+1+#7+1;)T("*)-!)+R4+'"-"($!)
"*-")IN)"*+)+!%)$/)>?9>J95;)#+1+#7+1)T$&2%)I+)#+%&'+%)"$)!+-#)"*+).(!(.&.)2+7+2)$/)U>).(22($!V)Q*+)
1"#-"+8N) (!) #+'+!") N+-#1) *-1) I++!) "$) &1+) #+1+#7+1) "$) 4#$7(%+) -%%("($!-2) /&!%(!8) /$#) '-4("-2)

Page 75



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

+65+!%("&#+7) +!-83(!9) +6"#-) (!:+1".+!") (!) $&#) *$&1(!9) 1"$';7) -11(1"(!9) (!) .-(!"-(!(!9) "*+) %+'+!")
*$.+1)1"-!%-#%7)<*(31")-31$)-33$<(!9) /$#)%(1'#+"($!-#=) (!:+1".+!") (!)-#+-1)1&'*)-1) "*+)%+3(:+#=)$/)
!+<)-//$#%-83+)*$&1(!9>)

?*+) "-83+) 8+3$<) '$.5-#+1) "*+) /(!-3) $&""&#!) /(9&#+1) /$#) "*+) @$&1(!9) 4+:+!&+) 0''$&!") <("*) "*$1+)
$#(9(!-33=)53-!!+%7)<*+!)"*+)8&%9+")-!%)#+!")3+:+31)/$#)"*+)=+-#)<+#+)-9#++%)(!)A+8#&-#=)BCDB>)

(£000s) 
Original

Budget
Actual Difference

E+")4+:+!&+),5+!%(!9)$!),+#:('+1) DF7GHF) D27FCF) 2DC)

E+9-"(:+)@40),&81(%=) C) IDBJ) IDBJ)

K+8")L-!-9+.+!")M$1"1)-!%) !"+#+1") N72F2) N7GCO) FND)

P"*+#)Q65+!%("&#+) FDB) BGR) IBRJ)

M-5("-3)0''$&!"(!9)0%S&1".+!"1) N7FBC) N7FN2) O2)

K(#+'")4+:+!&+)A&!%(!9)$/)M-5("-3)-!%)4+:+!&+)T#$S+'"1)(!)
"*+)@$&1(!9)M-5("-3) !:+1".+!")T3-!)

H7FFF) N7FOF) ID7HGCJ)

@$&1(!9),+")01(%+) D7CHC) D7CHC) C)

Total 39,382 38,199 (1,183)

Financed by:

K<+33(!9)4+!"1)-!%),+#:('+)M*-#9+1) FO7DFN) FO7COO) IGBJ)

4+!")IU-#-9+17)V-!%)W)M$..+#'(-3)T#$5+#"=J) D7CBF) D7CD2) IHJ)

 !"+#+1") !'$.+) DDD) DCD) IDCJ)

P"*+#) !'$.+) OCH) OOC) 2D)

M$!"#(8&"($!1)I"$J)X)/#$.)4+1+#:+1) B7RCB) D72NH) ID7DBFJ)

Total 39,382 38,199 (1,183)

K&#(!9) "*+) /(!-!'(-3) =+-#7) (!) Y&!+) BCDB7) -55#$:-3) <-1) 9(:+!) "$) '-##=) /$#<-#%) #+1$&#'+1) $/) ZD>GO)
.(33($!) "$) /&!%) +65+!%("&#+) #+[5*-1+%) /#$.) BCDDXDB>) ) P/) "*(1) 1&.7) ZD>DO) .(33($!) <-1) "$<-#%1)
.++"(!9) "*+) '$1"1) $/) '-5("-3) (!:+1".+!") (!) "*+) *$&1(!9) 1"$';>) )? *+) 8-3-!'+7) ZC>NC) .(33($!7) <-1)
5#+%$.(!-!"3=) "$) .++") '$1"1) $/) '='3('-3) #+:+!&+) #+5-(#1) (!) "*+) *$&1(!9) 1"$';7) (!'3&%(!9) +6"+#!-3)
#+5-(#1)-!%)#+[%+'$#-"($!7)/(#+)1-/+"=)#(1;)-11+11.+!"17)3(/")(!15+'"($!1)-!%)+3+'"#('-3)"+1"(!97)<*+#+)
<$#;)(!)BCDDXDB)*-%)!$")5#$9#+11+%)-1)\&(';3=)-1)53-!!+%>)?*(1)-55#$:-3)(!'#+-1+%)"*+)-!"('(5-"+%)
&1+)$/)#+1+#:+1)(!)BCDBXDF)"$)Z2>2R).(33($!>)

A&#"*+#) '*-!9+1) (!) "*+)53-!!+%) &1+) $/) #+1+#:+1) /$#) BCDBXDF) <+#+) .-%+) -1) 5-#") $/) "*+) M$&!'(3]1)
L+%(&.)?+#.),"#-"+9=)-!%)#+:(1+%)8&%9+")5#$'+117)"-;(!9)"*+)53-!!+%)&1+)"$)Z2>RD).(33($!>))?*+1+)
'*-!9+1) #+/3+'"+%) (!'#+-1+%) (!"+#+1") '$1"1) -11$'(-"+%) <("*) "*+) /(!-3) @40) ,+3/[A(!-!'(!9) 3$-!)
5$#"/$3($7) 5-#"(-33=) $//1+") 8=) 1-:(!91) (!) 1"-//) -!%) $5+#-"($!-3) '$1"1) -1) -) #+1&3") $/) (!"+#!-3)
#+$#9-!(1-"($!)-!%)'*-!9+1).-%+)(!)#+15$!1+)"$)"*+)-!"('(5-"+%)3$11)$/),&55$#"(!9)T+$53+)/&!%(!9>)

?*+)-'"&-3)&1+)$/)@40)#+1+#:+1) (!)BCDBXDF7) #+5$#"+%) "$) "*+)@$&1(!9)L-!-9+.+!")^$-#%) (!)Y&!+)
BCDF7) <-1) ZD72NG7OOO>) ) 4+\&+1"1) *-:+) 8++!) .-%+) "$) '-##=) /$#<-#%) /&!%(!9) $/) ZF7DCG72GC) (!"$)
BCDFXD27) #+/3+'"(!9) #+[5*-1(!9) $/) -) !&.8+#) $/) 5#$S+'"17) 8&") 5-#"('&3-#3=) #+'$9!(1(!9) "*+) %+/+##+%)
!++%) "$) &1+) #+1+#:+1) "$) /&!%) '-5("-3) +65+!%("&#+) (!) 3(9*") $/) 13(55-9+) (!) "*+) @$&1(!9) M-5("-3)
 !:+1".+!")T#$9#-..+>)))

@$&1(!9)4+:+!&+)0''$&!")-:-(3-83+)#+1+#:+1)1"$$%)-")ZO>2HO).(33($!)-")"*+)=+-#[+!%>)

Page 76



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

)
) 0!!&-2)3+4$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1) ))5)
)

Capital Spending and Receipts

 !)678698:)"*+);$&!'(2)14+!")<8=>6).(22($!)$!)'-4("-2)4#$?+'"1>))@/)"*(1)+A4+!%("&#+)<B>B).(22($!)C-1)
$!).-?$#) #+4-(#1)-!%) (.4#$D+.+!"1) "$)'$&!'(2) %C+22(!E1F) <6>B).(22($!)$!)$"*+#) 2-!%)-!%)G&(2%(!E1)
H(!'2&%(!E)<8>I).(22($!)$!)(!/#-1"#&'"&#+)C$#J1)/$#) 2-!%)-");2-K)L-#.M)-!%)<8>5).(22($!)$!)-11+"1) (!)
"*+)'$&#1+)$/)'$!1"#&'"($!)H(!'2&%(!E)<8>7).(22($!)$!)"*+)#+%+D+2$4.+!")$/)*$&1(!E)1"$'JM>)))

;-4("-2) #+'+(4"1) '$!"(!&+) "$) G+) E+!+#-"+%) "*#$&E*) "*+) 1-2+) $/) 2-!%F) '$&!'(2) *$&1+1F) 1*-#+%)
$C!+#1*(4) %C+22(!E1) -!%) $"*+#) 4#$4+#"K>) )N*+);$&!'(2) #+'+(D+%) <O>O) .(22($!) (!) "*+) K+-#F) $/) C*('*)
<7>B).(22($!)*-%)"$)G+)4-(%)$D+#)"$)'+!"#-2)E$D+#!.+!">)

External Borrowing

N*+);$&!'(2)%(%)!$")!++%)"$)&!%+#"-J+)-!K)!+C)+A"+#!-2)G$##$C(!E)%&#(!E)"*+)K+-#>) )N*+)+A"+#!-2)
%+G") $/) <68:>I) .(22($!) 1*$C!) (!) "*+) P-2-!'+) ,*++") -") "*+) +!%)$ /) "*+) /(!-!'(-2) K+-#) #+2-"+1) "$)
G$##$C(!E)&!%+#"-J+!)(!)6788986)"$).++")-)$!+Q$//)%+G")1+""2+.+!")4-K.+!")"$);+!"#-2)R$D+#!.+!")
(!)#+2-"($!)"$)!+C),+2/QL(!-!'(!E)-##-!E+.+!"1)/$#)"*+)S$&1(!E)3+D+!&+)0''$&!">)

Pension Costs

N*+);$&!'(2T1)1*-#+)$/)"*+)-11+"1)-!%)2(-G(2("(+1)$/)"*+);$&!"K)U+!1($!)L&!%)1*$C)-!)+1"(.-"+%)!+")
2(-G(2("K)$/)<B:>7).(22($!)-"):8)V-#'*)678:>))N*(1)2(-G(2("K)*-1)!$)(.4-'")$!)"*+)2+D+2)$/)"*+);$&!'(2T1)
-D-(2-G2+)#+1+#D+1>)

L&#"*+#) (!/$#.-"($!) #+2-"(!E) "$) "*+) -11+"1F) 2(-G(2("(+1F) (!'$.+) -!%)+A 4+!%("&#+) $/) "*+) ;$&!'(2T1)
4+!1($!)1'*+.+)(1)4#+1+!"+%)(!)!$"+):B)1"-#"(!E)$!)4-E+)=6>)))

Looking ahead to 2013/14

;*-!E+1)"$)"*+)-##-!E+.+!"1)/$#)/&!%(!E)$/)2$'-2)E$D+#!.+!")1+#D('+1)'-.+)(!"$)+//+'")/#$.)8)04#(2)
678:)-!%)/&"&#+),"-"+.+!"1)$/)0''$&!")C(22)#+/2+'")"*+1+>))N*+)W$'-2)R$D+#!.+!")L(!-!'+)0'")6786)
*-1) (!"#$%&'+%) -) G&1(!+11) #-"+1) #+"+!"($!) 1'*+.+) "*-") +!-G2+1) 2$'-2) -&"*$#("(+1) "$) #+"-(!) -)
4#$4$#"($!) $/) "*+) G&1(!+11) #-"+1) E+!+#-"+%) (!) "*+(#) -#+->) ) X!%+#) 4#+D($&1) -##-!E+.+!"1) ;+!"#-2)
R$D+#!.+!"F)-1)4-#")$/)"*+)W$'-2)R$D+#!.+!"),+""2+.+!")-!!$&!'+.+!")+-'*)K+-#F)%+"+#.(!+%)"*+)
-.$&!")$/)"*+)Y-"($!-2)P&1(!+11)3-"+1)U$$2)"*-")+-'*)-&"*$#("K)C$&2%)#+'+(D+>)

02$!E1(%+) "*+)4$"+!"(-2) /$#) "*+);$&!'(2) "$)G+!+/(") /#$.)G&1(!+11) #-"+1)E#$C"*) (!) "*+);("KF) "*+)!+C)
/&!%(!E)-##-!E+.+!"1)G#(!E)-)%+E#++)$/)#(1J)"$)"*+);$&!'(2)(!)"*-")"*+);$&!'(2)C$&2%)*-D+)"$)G+-#)-)
4#$4$#"($!) $/) -!K) #+%&'"($!) (!) G&1(!+11) #-"+1F) /$#) +A-.42+) -1) -)' $!1+Z&+!'+) $/) %+.$2("($!) $/)
4#+.(1+1) $#) #+%&'"($!1) (!) "*+) #-"+-G2+) D-2&+) $/) +A(1"(!E) 4#$4+#"(+1) H(!'2&%(!E) #+"#$14+'"(D+)
#+%&'"($!1M>))

N*+);$&!'(2)C(22)!++%)"$)'-#+/&22K)-11+11)-!%)Z&-!"(/K)"*+)(!'$.+)(")+A4+'"1)"$)G+)-G2+)"$)#+"-(!)/#$.)
"*+)G&1(!+11)#-"+1)(")'$22+'"1)-!%).-J+)4#$D(1($!F)(/)'$!1(%+#+%)!+'+11-#KF)"$).++")"*+)'$1"1)$/)-!K)
#+/&!%1) "*-").(E*")G+'$.+)%&+)"$)G&1(!+11) #-"+4-K+#1)-1)-)'$!1+Z&+!'+)$/)1&''+11/&2)D-2&-"($!)
-44+-21>))

)
) )

Page 77



 !"#$%&'"($!)"$)"*+)
,"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)

)
)

))))))))))))) )
) 2) )))))))0!!&-3)4+5$#")-!%),"-"+.+!")$/)0''$&!"1)
)))))))))))))) )))))))))))))))))))))

Further Information

6&#"*+#)(!/$#.-"($!)-7$&")"*+)-''$&!"1)(1)-8-(3-73+)/#$.9)

:+-%)$/)0''$&!"(!;),+#8('+1)
<-.7#(%;+)<("=)<$&!'(3)4+1$&#'+1)>+5-#".+!")
?($!):$&1+)
?($!)@-#%)
<-.7#(%;+)<AB)CD0)

 !)-%%("($!E)(!"+#+1"+%).+.7+#1)$/)"*+)5&73(')*-8+)-)#(;*")"$)(!15+'")"*+)-''$&!"1)+-'*)=+-#)7+/$#+)
"*+) -&%(") (1) '$.53+"+%F) ) G*+) -8-(3-7(3("=) $/) "*+)-''$&!"1) /$#) 5&73(') (!15+'"($!) (1) -%8+#"(1+%) (!) "*+)
3$'-3)5#+11)-!%)$!)"*+)<$&!'(3H1)I+7)1("+F)

Opinion

 ) '+#"(/=) "*-") "*+) ,"-"+.+!") $/) 0''$&!"1) 5#+1+!") -) "#&+) -!%) /-(#) 8(+I) $/) "*+) /(!-!'(-3) 5$1("($!) $/)
<-.7#(%;+)<("=)<$&!'(3)-")CJ)K-#'*)BLJC)-!%)("1)(!'$.+)-!%)+M5+!%("&#+)/$#)"*+)=+-#)"*+!)+!%+%F)

)
)
)
)

)

David Horspool
Director of Resources
Date:  
)

 ) '$!/(#.) "*-") "*+)-&%("+%)-''$&!"1)I+#+)-55#$8+%)7=) "*+)<(8(')0//-(#1)<$..(""++)*+3%)$!) "*+)JN)
,+5"+.7+#)BLJCF)

)
)
)
)

)

Councillor C Rosenstiel 
Chair of Civic Affairs 
Date:  
)
)
)

Page 78



 
 

 

MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 79



Page 80



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 5$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Movement in Reserves Statement

67",$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,718,$ )7*$ +19*+*#)$ "#$ )7*$ :*!2$ 1#$ )7*$ 3"44*2*#)$ 2*,*29*,$ 7*'3$ ;:$ )7*$ <1.#&"'=$
!#!':,*3$ "#)1$ >.,!;'*$2*,*29*,?$ @"A*A$ )71,*$ )7!)$&!#$;*$!00'"*3$ )1$4.#3$*B0*#3").2*$12$ 2*3.&*$ '1&!'$
)!B!)"1#C$!#3$1)7*2$2*,*29*,A$$67*$@,.20'.,C$12$3*4"&")$1#$)7*$0219","1#$14$,*29"&*,$'"#*$,718,$)7*$)2.*$
*&1#1+"&$ &1,)$ 14$ 0219"3"#D$ )7*$ <1.#&"'?,$ ,*29"&*,=$ +12*$ 3*)!"',$ 14$ 87"&7$ !2*$ ,718#$ "#$ )7*$
<1+02*7*#,"9*$ E#&1+*$ !#3$F B0*#3").2*$ ()!)*+*#)A$ $ 67*,*$ !2*$ 3"44*2*#)$ 421+$ )7*$ ,)!).)12:$
!+1.#),$2*G."2*3$ )1$;*$&7!2D*3$)1$ )7*$H*#*2!'$%.#3$I!'!#&*$!#3$)7*$J1.,"#D$/*9*#.*$-&&1.#)$
412$ &1.#&"'$ )!B$ ,*))"#D$ !#3$ 38*''"#D,$ 2*#)$ ,*))"#D$ 0.201,*,A$ $ 67*$ #*)$ @"#&2*!,*CK3*&2*!,*$ ;*412*$
)2!#,4*2,$ )1$ *!2+!2L*3$ 2*,*29*,$ '"#*$ ,718,$ )7*$ ,)!).)12:$ H*#*2!'$ %.#3$ I!'!#&*$ !#3$ J1.,"#D$
/*9*#.*$-&&1.#)$I!'!#&*$;*412*$!#:$3",&2*)"1#!2:$)2!#,4*2,$)1$12$421+$*!2+!2L*3$2*,*29*,A$

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l

F
u

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Balance at 1 April 2012 (9,458) (19,706) (6,974) (2,472) (10,420) (1,171) (5,261) (55,462) (437,960) (493,422)

 19*+*#)$"#$2*,*29*,$
3.2"#D$MNOMKOP$

N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$

@(.20'.,C$K$3*4"&")$1#$)7*$
0219","1#$14$,*29"&*,$

Q=QON$ N$ M=RNS$ N$ N$ N$ N$ R=POS$ N$ R=POS$

T)7*2$&1+02*7*#,"9*$
"#&1+*$!#3$*B0*#3").2*$

N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ @RUC$ @RUC$

Total Comprehensive 
income and expenditure

5,510 0 2,806 0 0 0 0 8,316 (84) 8,232

-3V.,)+*#),$;*)8**#$
!&&1.#)"#D$;!,",$!#3$
4.#3"#D$;!,",$.#3*2$
2*D.'!)"1#,$@W1)*$UC$

@U=QXXC$ N$ @M=XORC$ N$ @M=X5NC$ @P=5UNC$ O=ONS$ @OM=5O5C$ OM=5O5$ N$

Net (increase) / decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves

933 0 88 0 (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 (4,603) 12,835 8,232

62!#,4*2,$)1$K$421+$
*!2+!2L*3$2*,*29*,$@W1)*$
QC$

QPN$ @QPNC$ O=P5O$ @O=P5OC$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$ N$

(Increase) / decrease in 
2012/13

1,463 (530) 1,479 (1,391) (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 (4,603) 12,835 8,232

Balance at 31 March 
2013

(7,995) (20,236) (5,495) (3,863) (13,210) (5,111) (4,155) (60,065) (425,125) (485,190) 

$
$
$
$ $

Page 81



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $
$ -.$ $$$$$$$/##0!'$1*234)$!#5$()!)*+*#)$36$/&&30#),$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Financial Year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 

F
u

n
d

 R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

E
a
rm

a
rk

e
d

 H
R

A
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
s

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 R

e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 U
n

a
p

p
li

e
d

T
o

ta
l 

U
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

U
n

u
s
a
b

le
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s

Balance at 1 April 2011 (9,850) (17,318) (5,688) (2,236) (12,765) (352) (6,076) (54,285) (652,229) (706,514)

 37*+*#)$"#$4*,*47*,$504"#8$
9.--:-9$

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

;(042'0,<$:$5*6"&")$3#$)=*$
2437","3#$36$,*47"&*,$

;-->?-?<$ .$ 9.@>@-@$ .$ .$ .$ .$ -AB>C.C$ .$ -AB>C.C$

D)=*4$&3+24*=*#,"7*$
"#&3+*$!#5$*E2*#5")04*$

.$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ -C>C@B$ -C>C@B$

Total Comprehensive 
income and expenditure

(11,313) 0 208,818 0 0 0 0 197,505 15,587 213,092

/5F0,)+*#),$G*)H**#$
!&&30#)"#8$G!,",$!#5$60#5"#8$
G!,",$0#5*4$4*80'!)"3#,$
;I3)*$J<$

A>?-B$ .$ ;9-.>?J.<$ .$ 9>?JC$ ;@-A<$ @-C$ ;-A@>K@9<$ -A@>K@9$ .$

Net (increase) / decrease 
before transfers to 
earmarked reserves

(1,996) 0 (1,522) 0 2,345 (819) 815 (1,177) 214,269 213,092

L4!#,6*4,$)3$:$643+$
*!4+!4M*5$4*,*47*,$;I3)*$C<$

9>?@@$ ;9>?@@<$ 9?K$ ;9?K<$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$ .$

(Increase) / decrease in 
2011/12

392 (2,388) (1,286) (236) 2,345 (819) 815 (1,177) 214,269 213,092

Balance at 31 March 2012 (9,458) (19,706) (6,974) (2,472) (10,420) (1,171) (5,261) (55,462) (437,960) (493,422)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Page 82



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 55$

$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

67",$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,718,$ )7*$!&&1.#)"#9$&1,),$ "#$ )7*$ :*!2;$ 14$ 021<"3"#9$ ,*2<"&*,;$ "#$!&&123!#&*$8")7$
9*#*2!'':$ !&&*0)*3$ !&&1.#)"#9$ 02!&)"&*,;$ 2!)7*2$ )7!#$ )7*$ !+1.#),$ )1$ =*$ 4.#3*3$ 421+$ )!>!)"1#?$$
-.)712")"*,$2!",*$)!>!)"1#$)1$&1<*2$*>0*#3").2*$"#$!&&123!#&*$8")7$2*9.'!)"1#,@$)7",$+!:$=*$3"44*2*#)$
421+$)7*$!&&1.#)"#9$&1,)?$$67*$)!>!)"1#$01,")"1#$",$,718#$"#$)7*$ 1<*+*#)$"#$/*,*2<*,$()!)*+*#)?$

(£000s) Notes

2012/13
2011/12 

(As restated see Note 43)

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n

c
o

m
e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

G
ro

s
s
 I
n

c
o

m
e

N
e
t 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

A*#)2!'$,*2<"&*,$)1$)7*$0.='"&$ $ B;CCD$ EF;G5DH$ 5;IBC$ D;JIJ$ EF;KL5H$ 5;GKI$

A.').2!'$!#3$2*'!)*3$,*2<"&*,$ $ 5L;JCF$ EG;L5KH$ B;KBI$ 5K;IDF$ EG;GBDH$ D;CDB$

M#<"21#+*#)!'$!#3$2*'!)*3$,*2<"&*,$ $ 5L;FGK$ EI;GLCH$ D;L5K$ 5L;LGB$ EG;BLIH$ D;G5G$

N'!##"#9$(*2<"&*,$ $ D;GB5$ EK;LCFH$ J;5DG$ F;LCC$ EK;KGIH$ I;CII$

O"978!:,$!#3$)2!#,012)$,*2<"&*,$ $ I;GCB$ ED;FJDH$ EL;LIBH$ I;DJJ$ ED;FCKH$ EK;DLJH$

P1&!'$!.)712"):$71.,"#9$Q$,*))'*+*#)$0!:+*#)$)1$91<*2#+*#)$
412$O1.,"#9$/*<*#.*$-&&1.#)$,*'4R4"#!#&"#9$

L$ C$ C$ C$ K5L;IFK$ C$ K5L;IFK$

P1&!'$!.)712"):$71.,"#9$EO1.,"#9$/*<*#.*$-&&1.#)H$Q$1)7*2$ L$ LL;KIB$ ELJ;JGKH$ EL;LDLH$ LC;FF5$ ELG;IBBH$ EL;DKDH$

S)7*2$71.,"#9$,*2<"&*,$ $ GK;GGD$ ELF;GJFH$ G;BD5$ G5;JDL$ ELJ;BKLH$ G;FJC$

A12012!)*$!#3$3*+1&2!)"&$&12*$ $ K;BKG$ C$ K;BKG$ K;JGI$ C$ K;JGI$

T1#$3",)2"=.)*3$&1,),$ L$ E5LCH$ C$ E5LCH$ KIK$ C$ KIK$

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Cost of Services 128,758 (102,344) 26,414 336,681 (99,133) 237,548

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

S)7*2$10*2!)"#9$*>0*#3").2*$ J$ BKI$ EIDBH$ LLJ$ 5;DBB$ ELFH$ 5;DJK$

%"#!#&"#9$!#3$"#<*,)+*#)$"#&1+*$!#3$*>0*#3").2*$ F$ 5B;CC5$ E5D;KGGH$ FIF$ 55;CCC$ ELL;CGDH$ EKK;CGDH$

6!>!)"1#$!#3$#1#R,0*&"4"&$92!#)$"#&1+*$ D$ C$ E5B;5B5H$ E5B;5B5H$ C$ E5B;DIFH$ E5B;DIFH$

(Surplus) / deficit on provision of services 9 148,684 (140,368) 8,316 349,580 (152,075) 197,505

E(.20'.,H$U$3*4"&")$1#$2*<!'.!)"1#$14$N210*2):;$N'!#)$!#3$
MV."0+*#)$!,,*),$

LI$ $ $ E55;KKKH$ $ $ EL;BJIH$

-&).!2"!'$E9!"#,H$U$'1,,*,$1#$0*#,"1#$!,,*),$U$'"!="'")"*,$ LB$ $ $ 55;5LD$ $ $ 5B;IIK$

Other comprehensive (income) / expenditure (84) 15,587

Total Comprehensive (Income) / Expenditure 8,232 213,092

$
$

Page 83



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $
$ -.$ $$$$$$$/##0!'$1*234)$!#5$()!)*+*#)$36$/&&30#),$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$ $$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Balance Sheet

78*$9!'!#&*$(8**)$,83:,$)8*$;!'0*$!)$)8*$,)!)*5$5!)*$36$)8*$!,,*),$!#5$'"!<"'")"*,$4*&3=#",*5$<>$)8*$
?30#&"'@$$78*$#*)$!,,*),$36$)8*$?30#&"'$A!,,*),$'*,,$'"!<"'")"*,B$!4*$+!)&8*5$<>$)8*$4*,*4;*,$8*'5$<>$
)8*$ ?30#&"'@$ $ 1*,*4;*,$ !4*$ 4*234)*5$ "#$ ):3$ &!)*=34"*,@$ $ 78*$ 6"4,)$ &!)*=34>$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ ",$ 0,!<'*$
4*,*4;*,C$ "@*@$ )83,*$4*,*4;*,$ )8!)$ )8*$?30#&"'$+!>$0,*$ )3$243;"5*$,*4;"&*,C$,0<D*&)$ )3$ )8*$#**5$ )3$
+!"#)!"#$ !$ 2405*#)$ '*;*'$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ !#5$ !#>$ ,)!)0)34>$ '"+")!)"3#,$ 3#$ )8*"4$ 0,*$ A634$ *E!+2'*$ )8*$
?!2")!'$1*&*"2),$1*,*4;*$ )8!)$+!>$3#'>$<*$0,*5$ )3$ 60#5$&!2")!'$*E2*#5")04*$34$ 4*2!>$5*<)B@$ $78*$
,*&3#5$&!)*=34>$36$4*,*4;*,$",$)83,*$)8!)$)8*$?30#&"'$ ",$#3)$!<'*$)3$0,*$)3$243;"5*$,*4;"&*,@$$78",$
&!)*=34>$ 36$ 4*,*4;*,$ "#&'05*,$ )83,*$ )8!)$ 83'5$ 0#4*!'",*5$ =!"#,$ !#5$ '3,,*,$ A634$ *E!+2'*$ )8*$
1*;!'0!)"3#$ 1*,*4;*BC$ :8*4*$ !+30#),$ :30'5$ 3#'>$ <*&3+*$ !;!"'!<'*$ )3$ 243;"5*$ ,*4;"&*,$ "6$ )8*$
!,,*),$:*4*$ ,3'5F$ !#5$ 4*,*4;*,$ )8!)$ 83'5$ )"+"#=$5"66*4*#&*,$ ,83:#$ "#$ )8*$ 3;*+*#)$ "#$1*,*4;*,$
()!)*+*#)$'"#*$G/5D0,)+*#),$<*):**#$!&&30#)"#=$<!,",$!#5$60#5"#=$<!,",$0#5*4$4*=0'!)"3#,H@$

(£000s) Notes 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011 

I432*4)>C$I'!#)$!#5$JK0"2+*#)$ -L$ L-MCNO.$ L-NCPQO$ L-.CORP$

S*4")!=*$/,,*),$ -R$ QMT$ QMT$ QMT$

U#;*,)+*#)$I432*4)>$ ..$ --QCQOL$ ---CMOM$ RLCNMQ$

U#)!#="<'*$/,,*),$ .M$ QO.$ PMN$ PTQ$

/,,*),$S*'5$634$(!'*$ .O$ MCMPQ$ T$ T$

V3#=$7*4+$U#;*,)+*#),$ .P$ -COMQ$ .C-RT$ MC.RQ$

V3#=$7*4+$W*<)34,$ .L$ -C-TN$ -C---$ -CTT-$

Long Term Assets 735,446 734,189 714,858

(834)$7*4+$U#;*,)+*#),$ .P$ PRCTRM$ POCLTL$ PTCPNO$

/,,*),$S*'5$634$(!'*$ .O$ NQ-$ T$ T$

U#;*#)34"*,$ $ .OQ$ .MR$ MTM$

(834)$7*4+$W*<)34,$ .N$ NCTOL$ NCTOR$ --C-OO$

?!,8$!#5$?!,8$JK0";!'*#),$ .R$ OCOMQ$ QCON-$ .CPPO$

Current Assets 76,018 70,705 64,624

(834)$7*4+$?4*5")34,$ MT$ A--CPQTB$ A-MCTPMB$ ANCOLOB$

1*&*"2),$"#$/5;!#&*$ M-$ AMCMP.B$ A.COORB$ AMCQ.QB$

I43;","3#,$ M.$ AMLQB$ AM-PB$ A.NQB$

Current Liabilities (15,256) (16,147) (12,475)

V3#=$7*4+$93443:"#=$ MO$ A.-MCLPQB$ A.-MCLPQB$ T$

X)8*4$V3#=$7*4+$V"!<"'")"*,$ MR$ AR.CRLOB$ AONCRQPB$ APOCNO-B$

?!2")!'$Y4!#),$1*&*"2),$"#$/5;!#&*$ MM$ AQCMROB$ A.CO.LB$ A.CL..B$

Long Term Liabilities (311,018) (295,325) (60,493)

Net Assets 485,190 493,422 706,514

Z,!<'*$1*,*4;*,$ MQ$ ALTCTLPB$ APPCQL.B$ APQC.NPB$

Z#0,!<'*$1*,*4;*,$ MP$ AQ.PC-.PB$ AQMOCRLTB$ ALP.C..RB$

Total Reserves (485,190) (493,422) (706,514)

$
78*,*$6"#!#&"!'$,)!)*+*#),$4*2'!&*$)8*$0#!05")*5$,)!)*+*#),$!0)834",*5$634$",,0*$3#$.-$[0#*$.T-M@$
$

David Horspool, Director of Resources

Page 84



 !"#$%"#!#&"!'$()!)*+*#),$
$
$

$
$$
$ -##.!'$/*012)$!#3$()!)*+*#)$14$-&&1.#),$ 56$
$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$$

Cash Flow Statement

78*$9!,8$%'1:$()!)*+*#)$,81:,$)8*$&8!#;*,$"#$&!,8$!#3$&!,8$*<."=!'*#),$14$)8*$91.#&"'$3.2"#;$
)8*$ 2*012)"#;$ 0*2"13>$ $78*$ ,)!)*+*#)$ ,81:,$81:$ )8*$91.#&"'$ ;*#*2!)*,$ !#3$.,*,$ &!,8$ !#3$ &!,8$
*<."=!'*#),$?@$&'!,,"4@"#;$&!,8$4'1:,$!,$10*2!)"#;A$"#=*,)"#;$!#3$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,>$$78*$!+1.#)$14$
#*)$ &!,8$ 4'1:,$ !2","#;$ 421+$ 10*2!)"#;$ !&)"=")"*,$ ",$ !$B *@$ "#3"&!)12$ 14$ )8*$ *C)*#)$ )1$ :8"&8$ )8*$
10*2!)"1#,$ 14$ )8*$ 91.#&"'$ !2*$ 4.#3*3$ ?@$ :!@$ 14$ )!C!)"1#A$ ;2!#)$ "#&1+*$ !#3$ ?@$ )8*$ 2*&"0"*#),$ 14$
,*2="&*,$021="3*3$?@$ )8*$91.#&"'>$ $ D#=*,)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 2*02*,*#)$ )8*$*C)*#)$ )1$:8"&8$&!,8$1.)4'1:,$
8!=*$ ?**#$+ !3*$ 412$ 2*,1.2&*,$ :8"&8$ !2*$ "#)*#3*3$ )1$ &1#)2"?.)*$ )1$ )8*$ 91.#&"'E,$ 4.).2*$ ,*2="&*$
3*'"=*2@>$$9!,8$4'1:,$!2","#;$421+$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,$,81:$&'!"+,$)8!)$:"''$?*$+!3*$1#$4.).2*$&!,8$
4'1:,$?@$021="3*2,$14$&!0")!'$F">*>$?1221:"#;G$)1$)8*$91.#&"'>$

(£000s) Notes 2012/13 2011/12 

9!,8$4'1:,$421+$10*2!)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ $ $

9!,8$2*&*"0),$ 5HIAIJK$ 55LAHII$

9!,8$0!@+*#),$ FK6AJ5IG$ F6MHA5KMG$

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$10*2!)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 40 15,161 (205,104)

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$"#=*,)"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 41 (8,991) (13,335)

$ $ $

N*)$&!,8$4'1:,$421+$4"#!#&"#;$!&)"=")"*,$ 42 (3,217) 220,663

$ $ $

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,953 2,224

$ $ $

9!,8$!#3$&!,8$*<."=!'*#),$!)$)8*$?*;"##"#;$14$)8*$@*!2$ 29 OAJI5$ MALLJ$

$ $ $

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29 7,734 4,781

$
$
$

Page 85



Page 86



 

 

NOTES TO THE MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



 
 

              
 !"        #$$%&' ()*+,- &$. /-&-)0)$- +1 #22+%$-3 
                                   

INDEX TO THE NOTES TO THE MAIN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
  

1 4,5-52&' 6%.7)0)$-3 5$ #**'85$7 #22+%$-5$7 9+'525)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !; 

2 #33%0*-5+$3 <&.) #=+%- ->) ?%-%,) &$. @->), <&A+, /+%,2)3 +1 B3-50&-5+$ C$2),-&5$-8 ::::::::::::::::::::: !; 

3 <&-),5&' D-)03 +1 D$2+0) &$. BE*)$.5-%,) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !F 

4 #.A%3-0)$-3 =)-G))$ #22+%$-5$7 H&353 &$. ?%$.5$7 H&353 %$.), ()7%'&-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: !I 

5 <+J)0)$- 5$ ()3),J)3 /-&-)0)$- K L,&$31),3 -+ M 1,+0 B&,0&,N). ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: OP 

6 @->), @*),&-5$7 BE*)$.5-%,) :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

7 ?5$&$25$7 &$. D$J)3-0)$- D$2+0) &$. BE*)$.5-%,) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

8 L&E&-5+$ &$. Q+$ /*)25152 R,&$- D$2+0)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O" 

9 #0+%$-3 ()*+,-). 1+, ()3+%,2) #''+2&-5+$ S)2535+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: O; 

10 L,&.5$7 @*),&-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: OI 

11 #7)$28 /),J52)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TU 

12 <)0=),3V #''+G&$2)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TU 

13 ()'&-). 9&,-8 L,&$3&2-5+$3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T! 

14 B0*'+8)) ()0%$),&-5+$ :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T! 

15 #%.5- 4+3-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TT 

16 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TY 

17 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- K ()J&'%&-5+$3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T" 

18 9,+*),-8W 9'&$- &$. BX%5*0)$- K S)*,)25&-5+$ ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T; 

19 Z),5-&7) #33)-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: T; 

20 4&*5-&' BE*)$.5-%,) &$. 4&*5-&' ?5$&$25$7 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TF 

21 4&*5-&' 4+005-0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: TI 

22 D$J)3-0)$- 9,+*),-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YU 

23 D$-&$75=') #33)-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y! 

24 [)&3)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YO 

25 />+,-\L),0 &$. [+$7\L),0 D$J)3-0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YT 

26 [+$7\L),0 S)=-+,3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y" 

27 #33)-3 Z)'. 1+, /&'):::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y" 

28 S)=-+,3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

29 4&3> &$. 4&3> BX%5J&')$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

30 />+,-\L),0 4,).5-+,3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: Y; 

31 ()2)5*-3 5$ #.J&$2) ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YF 

32 9,+J535+$3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YF 

33 R,&$- D$2+0) :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: YI 

34 C3&=') ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PU 

35 C$%3&=') ()3),J)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PU 

36 4+$-5$7)$- [5&=5'5-5)3 &$. #33)-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PY 

37 ?5$&$25&' D$3-,%0)$-3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: P" 

38 Q&-%,) &$. )E-)$- +1 ,53N3 &,535$7 1,+0 15$&$25&' 5$3-,%0)$-3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: PF 

39 S)15$). H)$)15- 9)$35+$ /2>)0)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "O 

40 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K @*),&-5$7 #2-5J5-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "" 

41 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K D$J)3-5$7 #2-5J5-5)3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "" 

42 4&3>1'+G /-&-)0)$- K ?5$&$25$7 #2-5J5-5)3 ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "; 

43 9,5+, 9),5+. #.A%3-0)$-3  ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "; 

44 D0*&2- +1 ->) &.+*-5+$ +1 $)G 3-&$.&,.3 :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "F 

45 S&-) ->) /-&-)0)$- +1 #22+%$-3 G),) &%->+,53). 1+, 533%)  ::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::: "F 

 

Page 88



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

1 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

9*%(33-:)*;%"&#%(,,!1*")*;%3!-),)#$%$#"%!1"%!*%3(;#$%<=%"!%><?%"&#%@!1*,)-%&($%&(5%"!%/(A#%,#4"()*%
B15;#/#*"$% (C!1"% ,!/3-#D% "4(*$(,")!*$% !4% "&!$#% )*E!-E)*;% 1*,#4"()*":% (C!1"% 61"14#% #E#*"$F% % G&#%
,4)"),(-%B15;#/#*"$%/(5#%)*%"&#%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$%(4#H%

 % G&#4#%)$%(%5#;4##%!6%1*,#4"()*":%(C!1"%61"14#%-#E#-$%!6%61*5)*;%6!4%-!,(-%;!E#4*/#*"F%%I!J#E#4?%
"&#%@!1*,)-%&($%5#"#4/)*#5%"&("%"&)$%1*,#4"()*":%)$%*!"%:#"%$166),)#*"%"!%34!E)5#%(*%)*5),(")!*%"&("%
"&#%($$#"$%!6%"&#%@!1*,)-%/);&"%C#%)/3()4#5%($%(%4#$1-"%!6%(%*##5%"!%,-!$#%6(,)-)")#$%(*5%4#51,#%
-#E#-$%!6%$#4E),#%34!E)$)!*F%

2 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty

G&#% 34#3(4(")!*% !6% 6)*(*,)(-% $"("#/#*"$% 4#K1)4#$% /(*(;#/#*"% "!% B15;#/#*"$?% #$")/("#$% (*5%
($$1/3")!*$%"&("%#66#,"%"&#%(/!1*"$%4#3!4"#5%6!4%($$#"$%(*5%-)(C)-)")#$%($%("%"&#%C(-(*,#%$&##"%5("#%
(*5% "&#% (/!1*"$% 4#3!4"#5% 6!4% 4#E#*1#% (*5%#D3#*5)"14#% 514)*;% "&#% :#(4F% %I!J#E#4?% "&#% *("14#%!6%
#$")/(")!*%/#(*$%"&("%"&#%(,"1(-%!1",!/#$%,!1-5%5)66#4%64!/%"&!$#%#$")/("#$F%
%
G&#% A#:% B15;#/#*"$% (*5% #$")/(")!*% 1*,#4"()*":% "&("% &(E#% (%$ );*)6),(*"% 4)$A% !6% ,(1$)*;% /("#4)(-%
(5B1$"/#*"% "!% "&#% ,(44:)*;% (/!1*"$% !6% ($$#"$% (*5% -)(C)-)")#$% J)"&)*% "&#% *#D"% 6)*(*,)(-% :#(4% (4#% ($%
6!--!J$H%

Pensions Liability

L$")/(")!*%!6%"&#%*#"%-)(C)-)":%"!%3(:%3#*$)!*$%5#3#*5$%!*%(%*1/C#4%!6%,!/3-#D%B15;#/#*"$%4#-(")*;%
"!%"&#%5)$,!1*"%4("#%1$#5?%"&#%4("#%("%J&),&%$(-(4)#$%(4#%34!B#,"#5%"!%)*,4#($#?%,&(*;#$%)*%4#")4#/#*"%
(;#$?%/!4"(-)":%4("#$%(*5%#D3#,"#5%4#"14*$%!*%3#*$)!*%61*5%($$#"$F%%0%6)4/%!6%,!*$1-")*;%(,"1(4)#$%)$%
#*;(;#5%"!%34!E)5#%"&#%@!1*,)-%J)"&%#D3#4"%(5E),#%(C!1"%"&#%($$1/3")!*$%"!%C#%(33-)#5F%%G&#%#66#,"$%
!*%"&#%*#"%3#*$)!*$%-)(C)-)":%!6%,&(*;#$%)*%)*5)E)51(-%($$1/3")!*$%,(*%C#%/#($14#5%($%6!--!J$F%%%
%

Change in assumptions at 31 March 2013
Approximate 

monetary amount 
(£000)

MFNO%5#,4#($#%)*%4#(-%5)$,!1*"%4("#% PN?MQM%

7%:#(4%)*,4#($#%)*%/#/C#4%-)6#%#D3#,"(*,:% 8?PQ7%

MFNO%)*,4#($#%)*%"&#%$(-(4:%)*,4#($#%4("#% R?RPR%

MFNO%)*,4#($#%)*%"&#%3#*$)!*%)*,4#($#%4("#% 7<?7MN%

%

I!J#E#4?%"&#%($$1/3")!*$%)*"#4(,"%)*%,!/3-#D%J(:$%$!%,(4#%$&!1-5%C#%"(A#*%)*%-!!A)*;%("%,&(*;#$%
)*%!*#%E(4)(C-#%)*%)$!-(")!*F%

Property, Plant and Equipment

0$$#"$% (4#% 5#34#,)("#5% !E#4% 1$#61-% -)E#$% "&("% (4#% 5#3#*5#*"% !*% ($$1/3")!*$% (C!1"% "&#% -#E#-% !6%
4#3()4$%(*5%/()*"#*(*,#%"&("%J)--%C#%)*,144#5%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)*5)E)51(-%($$#"$F%%96%"&#%@!1*,)-%5)5%*!"%
$1$"()*% )"$% ,144#*"% $3#*5)*;% !*% 4#3()4$% (*5% /()*"#*(*,#% "&#% 1$#61-% -)E#$% ,144#*"-:% ($$);*#5% "!%
($$#"$%/(:%C#%4#51,#5F%

Page 89



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

98% "&#%3$#83-% -)8#%!8%($$#"$% )$% 6#73,#7:%7#56#,)(")!*% )*,6#($#$%(*7% "&#%,(66;)*<%=(-3#%!8% "&#%($$#"$%
8(-->%%9"%)$%#$")/("#7%"&("%"&#%(**3(-%7#56#,)(")!*%,&(6<#%8!6%($$#"$%?!3-7%)*,6#($#%@;%(556!A)/("#-;%
BCDE:FFF%8!6%#=#6;%;#(6%"&("%3$#83-%-)=#$%&(7%"!%@#%6#73,#7>%
%
G&#% H!3*,)-% !?*$% (*% (6#(% !8% I>CE% (,6#$% ("% H-(;% +(6/% !*% "&#% $!3"&#6*% 86)*<#% !*% "&#% ,)";>% %G&# %
#-#/#*"%!8%"&)$%-(*7%"&("%?)--%@#%6#"()*#7%@;%"&#%H!3*,)-%8!6%"&#%7#=#-!5/#*"%!8%$!,)(-%&!3$)*<%)$%&#-7%
?)"&)*%"&#%($$#"%,("#<!6;%!8%56!5#6";:%5-(*"%(*7%#J3)5/#*">%%G&#%6#/()*7#6:%?&),&%)$%"!%@#%7)$5!$#7%
!8%8!6%/(6K#"%&!3$)*<:%)$%&#-7%)*%-!*<%"#6/%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#>%%G&#%"!"(-%(6#(%!8%-(*7%)$%($$#$$#7%
($%&(=)*<%(%=(-3#%!8%BI>LE%/)--)!*%($%("%D0%'(6,&%LF0D>%%9*%7#"#6/)*)*<%"&#%56!5!6")!*%!8%"&)$%=(-3#%
"!%@#%)*,-37#7%)*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#%(*7%56!5#6";:%5-(*"%(*7%#J3)5/#*"%"&#%H!3*,)-%&($%3$#7%"&#%
/!$"%35%"!%7("#%#$")/("#%(=()-(@-#%"!%)":%?&),&%)$%"&("%$!,)(-%&!3$)*<%?)--%(,,!3*"%8!6%(556!A)/("#-;%
EFM%!8%"&#%$)"#>%%N!?#=#6:%"&)$%56!5!6")!*%,!3-7%,&(*<#%($%7#"()-#7%5-(*$%8!6%"&#%$)"#%(6#%8)*(-)$#7%
(*7%(556!=#7>%%

3 Material Items of Income and Expenditure

G&#%8!--!?)*<%/("#6)(-%)"#/$%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%#A5#*7)"36#%(6#%)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%H!/56#&#*$)=#%9*,!/#%
(*7%OA5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*">%
%
2$%7)$,-!$#7%)*%"&#%,!/5(6(")=#%8)<36#$%8!6%LF00P0L%!*%"&#%8(,#%!8%"&#%H!/56#&#*$)=#%9*,!/#%(*7%
OA5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%"&#%H!3*,)-%/(7#%(%$#""-#/#*"%5(;/#*"%"!%,#*"6(-%<!=#6*/#*"%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%
$#-8Q8)*(*,)*<%!8%"&#%N!3$)*<%4#=#*3#%2,,!3*"%!8%BL0D>I%/)--)!*%)*%'(6,&%LF0L>%
%
9*%(77)")!*%"&#%8!--!?)*<%/("#6)(-%)"#/$%(6#%)*,-37#7%?)"&)*%"&#%6#-#=(*"%$#6=),#%-)*#$R%
%
2%*#"%7#@)"%8!6%6#=(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!8%B1>L%/)--)!*%&($%@##*%,&(6<#7%"!%#A5#*7)"36#%?)"&)*%"&#%S!,(-%
(3"&!6)";%TN42U%*#"%,!$"%!8%$#6=),#%-)*#>%%G&#%,!/5(6(")=#%#A5#*7)"36#%8)<36#%8!6%LF00P0L%)*,-37#$%(%
*#"%,6#7)"%8!6%6#=#6$(-%!8%56#=)!3$%6#=(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!8%BV>1%/)--)!*>%%'!6#%7#"()-%!*%"&#%/!=#/#*"$%
)*%"&#%=(-3#%!8%"&#%H!3*,)-W$%&!3$)*<%$"!,K%,(*%@#%8!3*7%)*%*!"#%0I%"!%"&#%/()*%8)*(*,)(-%$"("#/#*"$>%
%
G&#%,!/5(6(")=#%8)<36#%8!6%LF00P0L%8!6%"&#%+)*(*,)*<%(*7%)*=#$"/#*"%)*,!/#%)*,-37#7%)*,6#($#$%)*%
"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%!8%B0E>E%/)--)!*>%
%
G&#%.365-3$% !*% 6#=(-3(")!*% !8% X6!5#6";:% X-(*"% (*7%OJ3)5/#*"% )*,-37#$% (% *#"% B1>E%/)--)!*% <()*% )*%
6#$5#,"%!8%"&#%H!3*,)-W$%&!3$)*<%$"!,K>%

%

Page 90



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%

%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

4 Movement in Reserves Statement – Adjustments between Accounting Basis and 
Funding Basis under Regulations

9&#%"!"(-%,!/34#&#*$):#%)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%4#,!<*)$#5%=>%"&#%?!1*,)-%)*%"&#%>#(4@%)$%34#3(4#5%
)*%(,,!45(*,#%A)"&%34!3#4%(,,!1*")*<%34(,"),#B%%9&)$%*!"#%5#"()-$%"&#%(5C1$"/#*"$%"&("%(4#%/(5#%"!%
)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%"!%4#6-#,"%"&#%4#$!14,#$%"&("%(4#%$3#,)6)#5%=>%$"("1"#%($%=#)*<%(:()-(=-#%"!%
"&#%?!1*,)-%"!%/##"%61"14#%,(3)"(-%(*5%4#:#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#B%%

Financial year 2012/13 

%

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

?&(4<#$%6!4%5#34#,)(")!*%(*5%
)/3()4/#*"%!6%*!*D,144#*"%($$#"$%

EF@FGHI% J% J% J% J% F@FGH%

 #"%4#:(-1(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%34!3#4">@%
3-(*"%(*5%#K1)3/#*"%

778% EL@787I% J% J% J% L@JMN%

'!:#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(4O#"%:(-1#%!6%
)*:#$"/#*"%34!3#4")#$%

N@PJL% 7G% J% J% J% EN@PNPI%

Q/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-5%6!4%
$(-#%

J% E7MI% J% J% J% 7M%

0/!4")$(")!*%!6%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"$% E7FHI% J% J% J% J% 7FH%

2#:#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#%61*5#5%64!/%
,(3)"(-%1*5#4%$"("1"#%(*5%5#%/)*)/)$%
,(3)"(-%#;3#*5)"14#%

EN@NGNI% E77HI% J% J% J% N@PHL%

R20%.#-6D6)*(*,)*<%$#""-#/#*"%
3(>/#*"%61*5#5%64!/%,(3)"(-%1*5#4%
$"("1"#%

J% J% J% J% J% J%

0/!1*"$%!6%*!*D,144#*"%($$#"$%A4)""#*%
!66%!*%5)$3!$(-%!4%$(-#%($%3(4"%!6%"&#%
<()*S-!$$%!*%5)$3!$(-%

EN7FI% EP@H8FI% J% J% J% P@8JL%

T4):("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*<%-!(*$%
(5C1$"/#*"%

M% J% J% J% J% EMI%

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

T4):("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*<%-!(*%
4#3(>/#*"$%U%!4)<)*(-%-!(*%-#$$%"&(*%
V7J@JJJ%

ENHI% J% J% J% J% NH%

?(3)"(-%#;3#*5)"14#%,&(4<#5%(<()*$"%
W#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%R20%=(-(*,#$%

N@HLL% M@FFM% J% J% J% E7J@7PGI%

%
% %

Page 91



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

9(5)"(-%:6(*"$%(*7%,!*"6);3")!*$%
3*(55-)#7%,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%
9!/56#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%(*7%
>?5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

@A0B@% C@B% 1% 1% D@AEFFG% 1%

H6(*$8#6%!8%,(5)"(-%,!*"6);3")!*$%
3*(55-)#7%"!%"&#%I#*#6(-%+3*7%

D@00G% 1% 1% 1% @00% 1%

255-),(")!*%!8%:6(*"$%"!%,(5)"(-%
8)*(*,)*:%"6(*$8#66#7%"!%"&#%9(5)"(-%
27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"%

1% 1% 1% 1% 0AEB@% D0AEB@G%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Receipts Reserve:

H6(*$8#6%!8%,($&%$(-#%56!,##7$%
,6#7)"#7%($%5(6"%!8%"&#%:()*K-!$$%!*%
7)$5!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%
(*7%>?5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

1% LALCB% DLALCBG% 1% 1% 1%

M"&#6%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$% 1% @C% D@CG% 1% 1% 1%

N$#%!8%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#6<#%"!%
8)*(*,#%*#O%,(5)"(-%#?5#*7)"36#%

1% 1% FFP% 1% 1% DFFPG%

9!*"6);3")!*%86!/%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%
4#$#6<#%"!%8)*(*,#%"&#%5(Q/#*"$%"!%
"&#%I!<#6*/#*"%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%5!!-%

DP1RG% 1% P1R% 1% 1% 1%

H6(*$8#6%"!%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%6#$#6<#%!*%
6#,#)5"%!8%-!(*%5(Q/#*"%

1% 1% D@@G% 1% 1% @@%

H6(*$8#6%86!/%S#8#66#7%9(5)"(-%
4#,#)5"$%4#$#6<#%35!*%6#,#)5"%!8%,($&%

1% 1% D@FG% 1% 1% @F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Major Repairs Reserve:

T42%7#56#,)(")!*% 1% 1% 1% D@1AB0CG% 1% @1AB0C%

4#<#6$(-%!8%'(J!6%4#5()6$%2--!O(*,#%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%T42%

1% DCA0EPG% 1% CA0EP% 1% 1%

N$#%!8%"&#%'(J!6%4#5()6$%4#$#6<#%"!%
8)*(*,#%*#O%,(5)"(-%#?5#*7)"36#%

1% 1% 1% CAL0L% 1% DCAL0LG%

%
%
% %

Page 92



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%6)*(*,#%,!$"$%
,&(4<#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%(4#%
5)66#4#*"%64!/%6)*(*,#%,!$"$%,&(4<#(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%

88% CD8% D% D% D% EC87F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions Reserve:

2#>#4$(-%!6%)"#/$%4#-(")*<%"!%4#")4#/#*"%
9#*#6)"$%5#9)"#5%!4%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%
=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

EGHIJDF% EKGGF% D% D% D% KHK8G%

@/3-!:#4L$%3#*$)!*%,!*"4)91")!*$%(*5%
5)4#,"%3(:/#*"$%"!%3#*$)!*#4$%3(:(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(4%

MHDMJ% KNK% D% D% D% EMHNC7F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%,!1*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%
,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%5)66#4#*"%
64!/%,!1*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%,(-,1-("#5%6!4%
"&#%:#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%%

8% D% D% D% D% E8F%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated Absences Account:

0/!1*"%9:%;&),&%!66),#4%4#/1*#4(")!*%
,&(4<#5%"!%"&#%=!/34#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,41(-$%9($)$%)$%5)66#4#*"%64!/%
4#/1*#4(")!*%,&(4<#(9-#%)*%"&#%:#(4%)*%
(,,!45(*,#%;)"&%$"("1"!4:%
4#B1)4#/#*"$%

GK% D% D% D% D% EGKF%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Housing Revenue Account:

0/!1*"$%"4(*$6#44#5%64!/%"&#%O!1$)*<%
2#>#*1#%0,,!1*"%"!%"&#%P#*#4(-%61*5%
1*5#4%$"("1"!4:%4#<1-(")!*%

E8DF% 8D% D% D% D% D%

Total adjustments (4,577) (2,718) (2,790) (3,940) 1,106 12,919

%
%
% %

Page 93



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

8&(59#$%7!5%6#45#,)(")!*%(*6%
)/4()5/#*"%!7%*!*:,255#*"%($$#"$%

;<=<>>?% @% @% @% @% <=<>>%

 #"%5#A(-2(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%45!4#5"B=%
4-(*"%(*6%#C2)4/#*"%

DEE% <=F0@% @% @% @% ;<=GFE?%

'!A#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(5H#"%A(-2#%!7%
)*A#$"/#*"%45!4#5")#$%

DE=@0I% <<F% @% @% @% ;DE=<FJ?%

1/!5")$(")!*%!7%)*"(*9)K-#%($$#"$% ;D00?% @% @% @% @% D00%

3#A#*2#%#L4#*6)"25#%72*6#6%75!/%
,(4)"(-%2*6#5%$"("2"#%(*6%6#%/)*)/)$%
,(4)"(-%#L4#*6)"25#%

;0=GF<?% ;<J?% @% @% @% 0=I0@%

M31%.#-7:7)*(*,)*9%$#""-#/#*"%
4(B/#*"%72*6#6%75!/%,(4)"(-%2*6#5%
$"("2"#%

@% ;0D>=EF0?% @% @% @% 0D>=EF0%

1/!2*"$%!7%*!*:,255#*"%($$#"$%N5)""#*%
!77%!*%6)$4!$(-%!5%$(-#%($%4(5"%!7%"&#%
9()*O-!$$%!*%6)$4!$(-%

;0=@EE?% ;D=EI@?% @% @% @% >=J<E%

P5)A("#%$#,"!5%&!2$)*9%-!(*$%
(6Q2$"/#*"%

>F% @% @% @% @% ;>F?%

Insertion of items not debited or 
credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement

P5)A("#%$#,"!5%&!2$)*9%-!(*%
5#4(B/#*"$%R%!5)9)*(-%-!(*%-#$$%"&(*%
SD@=@@@%

;D0?% @% @% @% @% D0%

8(4)"(-%#L4#*6)"25#%,&(59#6%(9()*$"%
T#*#5(-%+2*6%(*6%M31%K(-(*,#$%

>=0JG% D=G<0% @% @% @% ;E=DD@?%

%
%
%
% %

Page 94



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account:

9(3)"(-%:4(*"$%(*5%,!*"4);1")!*$%
1*(33-)#5%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%
9!/34#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%(*5%
>?3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

@ABCD% E% E% E% F@ABCDG% E%

H4(*$6#4%!6%,(3)"(-%,!*"4);1")!*$%
1*(33-)#5%"!%"&#%I#*#4(-%+1*5%

F@7EG% E% E% E% @7E% E%

033-),(")!*%!6%:4(*"$%"!%,(3)"(-%
6)*(*,)*:%"4(*$6#44#5%"!%"&#%9(3)"(-%
05J1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%

@AE@E% K7% E% E% 7A@C7% F8A7LBG%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Capital Receipts Reserve:

H4(*$6#4%!6%,($&%$(-#%34!,##5$%
,4#5)"#5%($%3(4"%!6%"&#%:()*M-!$$%!*%
5)$3!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/34#&#*$)<#%=*,!/#%
(*5%>?3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

@AEDL% 7AE7E% F8AENLG% E% E% E%

O"&#4%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$% E% 8D% F8DG% E% E% E%

P$#%!6%"&#%9(3)"(-%2#,#)3"$%2#$#4<#%"!%
6)*(*,#%*#Q%,(3)"(-%#?3#*5)"14#%

E% E% BAELK% E% E% FBAELKG%

9!*"4);1")!*%64!/%"&#%9(3)"(-%2#,#)3"$%
2#$#4<#%"!%6)*(*,#%"&#%3(R/#*"$%"!%
"&#%I!<#4*/#*"%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%3!!-%

F@ABB@G% E% @ABB@% E% E% E%

H4(*$6#4%"!%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%4#$#4<#%!*%
4#,#)3"%!6%-!(*%3(R/#*"%

E% E% F@7G% E% E% @7%

H4(*$6#4%64!/%S#6#44#5%9(3)"(-%
2#,#)3"$%2#$#4<#%13!*%4#,#)3"%!6%,($&%

E% E% FCG% E% E% C%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Major Repairs Reserve:

T20%5#34#,)(")!*% E% E% E% FNACECG% E% NACEC%

2#<#4$(-%!6%'(J!4%2#3()4$%0--!Q(*,#%
,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%T20%

E% FBAKCNG% E% BAKCN% E% E%

P$#%!6%"&#%'(J!4%2#3()4$%2#$#4<#%"!%
6)*(*,#%*#Q%,(3)"(-%#?3#*5)"14#%

E% E% E% BA8EE% E% FBA8EEG%

%
%
%
% %

Page 95



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s)

Usable Reserves

Unusable 
Reserves

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
B

a
la

n
c
e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

R
e
c
e
ip

ts
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e

C
a
p

it
a
l 

G
ra

n
ts

 

U
n

a
p

p
li
e
d

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Financial Instruments Adjustment 
Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%8)*(*,#%,!$"$%
,&(6<#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%(6#%
7)88#6#*"%86!/%8)*(*,#%,!$"$%,&(6<#(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%

11% C1D% E% E% E% FCGEH%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Pensions Reserve:

4#>#6$(-%!8%)"#/$%6#-(")*<%"!%6#")6#/#*"%
9#*#8)"$%7#9)"#7%!6%,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%
=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%(*7%
@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

FIJDCKH% FLKMH% E% E% E% DJ11L%

@/5-!:#6N$%5#*$)!*%,!*"6)93")!*$%(*7%
7)6#,"%5(:/#*"$%"!%5#*$)!*#6$%5(:(9-#%
)*%"&#%:#(6%

1JEDK% LDI% E% E% E% F1JG0DH%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Collection Fund Adjustment 
Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%,!3*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%)$%7)88#6#*"%
86!/%,!3*,)-%"(A%)*,!/#%,(-,3-("#7%8!6%
"&#%:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%%

FMIH% E% E% E% E% MI%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Accumulated Absences Account:

2/!3*"%9:%;&),&%!88),#6%6#/3*#6(")!*%
,&(6<#7%"!%"&#%=!/56#&#*$)>#%?*,!/#%
(*7%@A5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,63(-$%9($)$%)$%7)88#6#*"%86!/%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(6<#(9-#%)*%"&#%:#(6%)*%
(,,!67(*,#%;)"&%$"("3"!6:%
6#B3)6#/#*"$%

FMMH% 0D% E% E% E% IK%

Adjustments primarily involving the 
Housing Revenue Account:

2/!3*"$%"6(*$8#66#7%86!/%"&#%O!3$)*<%
4#>#*3#%2,,!3*"%"!%"&#%P#*#6(-%83*7%
3*7#6%$"("3"!6:%6#<3-(")!*%

FGH% G% E% E% E% E%

Total adjustments 9,317 (210,340) 2,345 (819) 815 198,682

%
%
% %

Page 96



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

5 Movement in Reserves Statement – Transfers to / from Earmarked Reserves

9&)$%*!"#%$#"$%!1"%"&#%(/!1*"$%$#"%($)5#%64!/%"&#%:#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%;20%<(-(*,#$%)*%#(4/(4=#5%
4#$#4>#$%"!%34!>)5#%6)*(*,)*?%6!4%61"14#%#@3#*5)"14#%3-(*$%"!?#"&#4%A)"&%"&#%(/!1*"$%!6%#(4/(4=#5%
4#$#4>#$%1$#5%"!%/##"%:#*#4(-%+1*5%(*5%;20%#@3#*5)"14#%)*%7BC7DCEF%
%

(£000s)

2011/12 2012/13
Balance at 
31 March 

2013

Balance at 
1 April 
2011

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

Balance at 
31 March 

2012

Transfers 
In

Transfers 
Out

General Fund: % % % % % % %

0$$#"%2#3()4%(*5%2#*#A(-$%
2#$#4>#$%

GC7HII8J% GEH7EKJ% 7HEBL% GCEHI7MJ% GEHC77J% 7HKI8% GCNHC8EJ%

O*$14(*,#%+1*5% GMKLJ% GKMIJ% MIE% GKMEJ% GCHC88J% INE% GCHBL8J%

9#,&*!-!?P%O*>#$"/#*"%
+1*5%

G7NCJ% GC8J% NE% G7CEJ% GC8J% KL% GCNCJ%

Q#>#-!3/#*"%R-(*%2#$#4>#% G7L7J% GCKCJ% E8% GNCKJ% GC8BJ% CLE% GEI8J%

S!/31-$!4P%R14,&($#%
T45#4%S!/3#*$(")!*%
2#$#4>#%

G8KEJ% B% B% G8KEJ% B% B% G8KEJ%

'(U!4%R-(**)*?%033#(-$%
2#$#4>#%

GECJ% B% K% G7EJ% GKNJ% CBL% B%

2#>#*1#%S!*"4)<1")!*$%"!%
S(3)"(-%

G7NEJ% B% 7B% G77EJ% B% N8% GCLKJ%

T"&#4% G7H7MMJ% G7HB8MJ% KM8% GEHN8LJ% GCHEC8J% CHBMC% GEHLCCJ%

Total (17,318) (6,359) 3,971 (19,706) (5,841) 5,311 (20,236)

% % % % % % % %

Housing Revenue 
Account:

% % % % % % %

0$$#"%2#3()4%(*5%2#*#A(-%
2#$#4>#%

GCHK7MJ% G7M8J% CBE% GCHIKKJ% G7KMJ% C78% G7HCNIJ%

.&(4#5%TA*#4$&)3%2#$#4>#% GEBBJ% B% B% GEBBJ% B% B% GEBBJ%

T"&#4% GCCBJ% GI8J% 7C% GCKNJ% GCH78CJ% 7C% GCHNCNJ%

Total (2,236) (360) 124 (2,472) (1,537) 146 (3,863)

%
%
%
% %

Page 97



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

6 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Other Operating 
Expenditure

(£000s)
2012/13 2011/12

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

9(:/#*"$%"!%"&#%;!<#6*/#*"%=!3$)*>%?(5)"(-%
4#,#)5"$%9!!-%

@% A@B% @% CDEE@%

F/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% @% CG% @% @%

H;()*$I%J%-!$$#$%!*%"&#%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*K,366#*"%
($$#"$%

HLG1I% @% @% ELA%

M"&#6%)*,!/#% HCNI% @% HNGI% @%

% (589) 925 (37) 1,899

7 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure

(£000s)
2012/13

2011/12

(as restated see Note 43)

Income Expenditure Income Expenditure

F*"#6#$"%5(:(O-#%(*7%$)/)-(6%,&(6>#$% @% GDEA1% @% BE%

F/5()6/#*"%!8%)*<#$"/#*"$% @% 1E% @% HE1BI%

9#*$)!*$%)*"#6#$"%,!$"%(*7%#P5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%
5#*$)!*$%($$#"$%

HGD0NEI% ADAAC% HBDGABI% C@DENL%

;()*$%(*7%-!$$#$%!*%"6(7)*>%H*!"#%C@I% @% 0B% H00I% @%

F*"#6#$"%6#,#)<(O-#%(*7%$)/)-(6%)*,!/#% HB0CI% @% HBECI% @%

F*,!/#%(*7%#P5#*7)"36#%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%
)*<#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%(*7%,&(*>#$%)*%"&#)6%8()6%
<(-3#%

HC@DCBAI% CDE00% H0NDNBGI% AEA%

(18,244) 19,001 (33,048) 11,000

8 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement – Taxation and Non Specific 
Grant Incomes

(£000s) 2012/13% 2011/12

?!3*,)-%"(P%)*,!/#% H1DGELI% H1D1G@I%

 !*%7!/#$"),%6("#$% HBDENLI% HGD01BI%

 !*K6)*>8#*,#7%>!<#6*/#*"%>6(*"$% H0DENEI% HNDN1CI%

?(5)"(-%>6(*"$%(*7%,!*"6)O3")!*$% HCDLGGI% H0DLLBI%

(19,191) (19,857)

%
%
%
% %

Page 98



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9 Amounts Reported for Resource Allocation Decisions

9&#%(*(-:$)$%!6%)*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%<:%$#4=),#%!*%"&#%6(,#%!6%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@;3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"% )$% "&("% $3#,)6)#5% <:% "&#% .#4=),#% 2#3!4")*A% >!5#% !6% B4(,"),#% C.@2>DBEF%%
G!H#=#4I%5#,)$)!*$%(<!1"%4#$!14,#%(--!,(")!*%(4#%"(J#*%<:%"&#%>!1*,)-K$%@;#,1")=#%!*%"&#%<($)$%!6%
6)*(*,)(-% )*6!4/(")!*% (*(-:$#5% <:% 3!4"6!-)!F% % 2#3!4"$% 34#$#*"#5% "!% /#/<#4$% (4#% 34#3(4#5% !*% (%
5)66#4#*"%<($)$%64!/%"&#%(,,!1*")*A%3!-),)#$%1$#5%)*%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%$"("#/#*"$F%%?*%3(4"),1-(4L%
%

 %  !%,&(4A#$%(4#%/(5#% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% 4#=(-1(")!*% -!$$#$%(*5%4 #=#*1#%#;3#*5)"14#% 61*5#5% 64!/%
,(3)"(-%1*5#4%$"("1"#F%

 % 9&#% ,!$"% !6% 4#")4#/#*"% <#*#6)"$% )$% <($#5% !*% ,($&% 6-!H$% C3(:/#*"% !6% #/3-!:#4K$% 3#*$)!*%
,!*"4)<1")!*$E%4("&#4%"&(*%,144#*"%$#4=),#%,!$"%!6%<#*#6)"$%(,,41#5%)*%"&#%:#(4F%

 % 9&#%*#"%)*,!/#%A#*#4("#5%<:%"&#%>!1*,)-K$%,!//#4,)(-%34!3#4":%$#4=),#%)$%4#3!4"#5%<#-!H%*#"%
,!$"%!6%$#4=),#$F%

 % 2#3!4"$% )*,-15#% ,!*"4)<1")!*$% "!% 2#3()4$% (*5% 2#*#H(-$% +1*5$% 4("&#4% "&(*% "&#% (,"1(-%
#;3#*5)"14#%4#6-#,"#5%)*%"&#%(,,!1*"$F%
%

9&#% )*,!/#%(*5%#;3#*5)"14#%!6% "&#%>!1*,)-K$%$#4=),#%3!4"6!-)!$% 4#,!45#5% )*% "&#%<15A#"% 4#3!4"$% 6!4%
"&#% :#(4% (*5%&!H% )"% 4#,!*,)-#$% "!% "&("% )*,-15#5% )*% "&#% *#"% ,!$"% !6% $#4=),#$% )*% "&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%
?*,!/#%(*5%@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%($%6!--!H$L%
%

(£000s) 2012/13%
2011/12

(as 
restated)

Net Expenditure for the year as reported to management

General Fund

Community Services Scrutiny Committee

04"$I%.3!4"$%(*5%B1<-),%B-(,#$% MINOP% MIQPO%

>!//1*)":%R#=#-!3/#*"%S%G#(-"&% PIQNP% PIPOQ%

G!1$)*A% 7I8TM% 7IU78%

Environment Scrutiny Committee

B-(**)*A%S%>-)/("#%>&(*A#% OIMOQ% OI8UT%

@*=)4!*/#*"(-%S%V($"#%.#4=),#$% 8I8PM% UIQOT%

Strategy & Resources Scrutiny Committee

>1$"!/#4%.#4=),#$%(*5%2#$!14,#$% CWITW7E% CMI7TWE%

."4("#A:% PIPUN% 7IUMN%

Housing Revenue Account

G!1$)*A%'(*(A#/#*"%X!(45% CO7ITMTE% M8M%

% 7,571 19,266

0/!1*"$%)*%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%S%@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%*!"%4#3!4"#5%"!%/(*(A#/#*"% OTIQOW% 7O7I88O%

0/!1*"$%4#3!4"#5%"!%/(*(A#/#*"%*!"%)*,-15#5%)*%"&#%>!/34#&#*$)=#%?*,!/#%(*5%
@;3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

TIU7U% WIWOO%

Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 26,414 237,548

9&#% 7QOOYO7% ,!/3(4(")=#% 6)A14#$% &(=#% <##*% 4#$"("#5% "!% 4#6-#,"% "&#% 3!4"6!-)!$% )*% !3#4(")!*% 514)*A%
7QO7YOPF% %

Page 99



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&)$% 6#,!*,)-)(")!*% :(*(-;$#7% $3<=#,")>#-;?% $&!@$%&!@% "&#% 8)A36#$% 8!6% "&#% )*,!/#%(*7% #B5#*7)"36#%
)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%6#5!6"$%"!%/(*(A#/#*"%6#-("#%"!%"&#%.365-3$%!6%C#8),)"%!*%"&#%56!>)$)!*%!8%$#6>),#$%
)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%D!/56#&#*$)>#%E*,!/#%(*7%FB5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"G%

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)
Portfolio 
Analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
below 

portfolio 
analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
which do not 
form part of 

CIES

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making

Allocation of 
recharges

Total

+##$H%,&(6A#$%(*7%!"&#6%$#6>),#%
)*,!/#%

:IJHK0L?% J% J% J% M0HNOO% :OIH1IM?%

E*"#6#$"%(*7%)*>#$"/#*"%)*,!/#% :LPP?% :MJM?% J% :PHOIL?% :IH1L1?% :M1H0NN?%

E*,!/#%86!/%,!3*,)-%"(B% J% :LHINN?% J% :M?% J% :LHINO?%

Q()*%!*%7)$5!$(-%!8%($$#"$%(*7%
!"&#6%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$%

J% J% J% :O1P?% J% :O1P?%

Q!>#6*/#*"%A6(*"$H%7!*(")!*$%
(*7%,!*"6)<3")!*$%

:NOHJNI?% :MJHNM1?% M0K% :MHOII?% J% :OLHPMP?%

Total Income (116,072) (17,263) 123 (11,743) 4,587 (140,368)

% % % % % % %

F/5-!;##%#B5#*$#$% 0MHLK0% J% J% LM% MKHNNL% KOHMKP%

R"&#6%$#6>),#%#B5#*$#$% I0HPP1% J% :0HJKK?% NH00J% :KHNMK?% IMHII0%

4#,&(6A#$% MOHLJL% J% J% J% :MOHLJL?% J%

C#56#,)(")!*H%(/!6")$(")!*%(*7%
)/5()6/#*"%

MKHNJO% MJ% :MIL?% PHMOK% P00% 0KHKMN%

E*"#6#$"%5(;/#*"$% 0% IHNPN% J% PHPPM% LN% MIHOOM%

S(;/#*"$%"!%T!3$)*A%4#,#)5"$%
S!!-%

J% J% J% PJ1% J% PJ1%

Total Expenditure 123,643 7,504 (2,209) 24,333 (4,587) 148,684

(Surplus) / Deficit on the 
provision of services

7,571 (9,759) (2,086) 12,590 0 8,316

%
%
%
% %

Page 100



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)
Portfolio 
Analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
below 

portfolio 
analysis

Amounts 
reported to 

management 
which do not 
form part of 

CIES

Amounts not 
reported to 

management 
for decision 

making

Allocation of 
recharges

Total

+##$9%,&(4:#$%(*5%!"&#4%$#4;),#%
)*,!/#%

<=>9?@AB% ?% ?% ?% CC9CA=% <AA9D>8B%

E*"#4#$"%(*5%)*;#$"/#*"%)*,!/#% <>7>B% <=FB% ?% <7F9@?=B% <>9878B% <@@9?7=B%

E*,!/#%64!/%,!1*,)-%"(G% ?% <=9>FFB% ?% >A% ?% <=9==8B%

H()*%!*%5)$3!$(-%!6%($$#"$%(*5%
!"&#4%,(3)"(-%4#,#)3"$%

?% ?% ?% <@>B% ?% <@>B%

H!;#4*/#*"%:4(*"$9%5!*(")!*$%
(*5%,!*"4)I1")!*$%

<F@97>>B% <C?9=78B% ?% <79AADB% ?% <A=9F=FB%

Total Income (111,039) (17,437) 0 (26,826) 3,227 (152,075)

% % % % % % %

J/3-!K##%#G3#*$#$% 7C9?@C% ?% ?% <=@B% CA9FC@% @=9@DC%

L"&#4%$#4;),#%#G3#*$#$% D79CD?% ?% <C98F@B% @9?>D% <A9@8?B% >>987A%

2#,&(4:#$% CA9@F=% ?% ?% ?% <CA9@F=B% ?%

M#34#,)(")!*9%(/!4")$(")!*%(*5%
)/3()4/#*"%

CC9>F=% ?% <C=FB% <F9@F7B% 797F8% 89FD8%

N!$$%!*%5)$3!$(-%% ?% ?% ?% FD8% ?% FD8%

E*"#4#$"%3(K/#*"$% 7% ?% ?% C?9F@A% <CA@B% C?97DF%

O(K/#*"$%"!%P!1$)*:%2#,#)3"$%
O!!-%

?% ?% ?% C9FF?% ?% C9FF?%

P20%$#-6Q6)*(*,)*:%$#""-#/#*"%
3(K/#*"%

?% ?% ?% 7C@9A>7% ?% 7C@9A>7%

Total Expenditure 130,305 0 (2,107) 224,609 (3,227) 349,580

(Surplus) / Deficit on the 
provision of services

19,266 (17,437) (2,107) 197,783 0 197,505

10 Trading Operations

R&#%6)*(*,)(-%4#$1-"$%!6%"&#%S!1*,)-T$%$):*)6),(*"%"4(5)*:%(,");)")#$%6!4%"&#%K#(4%(4#%$#"%!1"%I#-!UV%

Included within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Ditchburn Place Extra Care Contract

E*,!/#% <=77B% <==DB%

JG3#*5)"14#% =A?% =F=%

Deficit/(Surplus) 28 (22)

R&#% S)"K% S!1*,)-% )$% ,!*"4(,"#5% IK% S(/I4)5:#$&)4#% S!1*"K% S!1*,)-% "!% 34!;)5#% ,(4#% (*5% $133!4"%
$#4;),#$%6!4%"&#%#G"4(%,(4#%&!1$)*:%("%M)",&I14*%O-(,#W%

Page 101



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Included within Planning services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement

General Markets%9%"&#%:!3*,)-%!5#6("#$%"&#%;#*#6(-%7()-<%/(6=#"%)*%"&#%,)"<%,#*"6#%"!;#"&#6%>)"&%(%
*3/?#6%!8%!"&#6%$/(--#6%$5#,)(-)$"%/(6=#"$@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

A*,!/#% BCDEF% BC1DF%

GH5#*7)"36#% D1I% 0JI%

Surplus (336) (339)

11 Agency Services

Agency Services provided on behalf of Cambridgeshire County Council were:

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Highways Functions and Services

K!"(-%,!$"$% EDD% ECL%

:!$"$%6#)/?36$#7%?<%"&#%:!3*"<%:!3*,)-% EDD% ECL%

On-Street Parking Services

 #"%$365-3$% 1% BEM0DNF%

.365-3$%6#)/?36$#7%"!%,!3*"<%,!3*,)-% 1% EM0DN%

%

Box Office Services
%

K&#%:!3*,)-% !5#6("#$%(%?!H%!88),#% 8!6% 56)O("#%56!/!"#6$% 8!6% 5#68!6/(*,#$%(*7%#O#*"$%&#-7%("% "&#%
:!6*%GH,&(*;#@% %P6!$$% )*,!/#%,!--#,"#7%(*7%5()7%!O#6% "!%56!/!"#6$%>($%Q0MEIJM111% )*%R1ERSE0%
BQ0MDDJM111%)*%R1EESER@F%

12 Members’ Allowances

K&#%"!"(-%(--!>(*,#$%5()7%"!%/#/?#6$%736)*;%"&#%8)*(*,)(-%<#(6%R1ERSE0%>#6#%QRDIMDLC%BQRDRMNE1%
)*%R1EESERF%($%(*(-<$#7%?#-!>@%%T#"()-$%!8%5(</#*"$%"!%)*7)O)73(-%/#/?#6$%(6#%53?-)$&#7%(**3(--<%
)*%(%-!,(-%*#>$5(5#6@%
%

(£) 2012/13 2011/12

U($),%(--!>(*,#%5(</#*"$% EEJMLDR% EEJMJE1%

.5#,)(-%6#$5!*$)?)-)"<%5(</#*"$% ERJMECI% ERDMICE%

:&)-7,(6#%(--!>(*,#% ENR% ENL%

K6(O#-%(*7%$3?$)$"#*,#%5(</#*"$% RMRCL% EMI0E%

% 245,487 242,910

%

277)")!*(-%,)O),%6#$5!*$)?)-)"<%5(</#*"$%>#6#%/(7#%"!%"&#%'(<!6%(*7%T#53"<%'(<!6%!3"$)7#%!8%"&#%
'#/?#6$%2--!>(*,#$%.,&#/#@%%K&#$#%"!"(--#7%QIMIC1%BQIMDD1%)*%R1EESERF@% %

Page 102



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

13 Related Party Transactions

9&#%:!1*,)-% )$% 4#;1)4#5% "!%5)$,-!$#%/("#4)(-% "4(*$(,")!*$%<)"&% 4#-("#5%3(4")#$=% %2#-("#5%3(4")#$%(4#%
>!5)#$%!4%)*5)?)51(-$%"&("%&(?#%"&#%3!"#*")(-%"!%,!*"4!-%!4%)*6-1#*,#%"&#%:!1*,)-%!4%"!%>#%,!*"4!--#5%!4%
)*6-1#*,#5%>@%"&#%:!1*,)-=%%A)$,-!$14#%!6%"&#$#%"4(*$(,")!*$%(--!<$%4#(5#4$%"!%($$#$$%"&#%#B"#*"%"!%
<&),&%"&#%:!1*,)-%/)C&"%&(?#%>##*%,!*$"4()*#5%)*%)"$%(>)-)"@%"!%!3#4("#%)*5#3#*5#*"-@%!4%/)C&"%&(?#%
$#,14#5%"&#%(>)-)"@%"!%-)/)"%(*!"&#4%3(4"@D$%(>)-)"@%"!%>(4C()*%64##-@%<)"&%"&#%:!1*,)-=%
%
:#*"4(-% C!?#4*/#*"% &($% #66#,")?#% ,!*"4!-% !?#4% "&#% C#*#4(-% !3#4(")!*$% !6% "&#% :!1*,)-% E% )"% )$%
4#$3!*$)>-#% 6!4% 34!?)5)*C% "&#% $"("1"!4@% 64(/#<!4F%<)"&)*%<&),&% "&#%:!1*,)-% !3#4("#$G% 34!?)5#$% "&#%
/(H!4)"@%!6%)"$%61*5)*C%)*%"&#%6!4/%!6%C4(*"$%(*5%34#$,4)>#$%"&#%"#4/$%!6%/(*@%"4(*$(,")!*$%"&("%"&#%
:!1*,)-% &($% <)"&% !"&#4% 3(4")#$% I6!4% #B(/3-#G% J!1$)*C% K#*#6)"$L=% % A#"()-$% !6% C!?#4*/#*"% C4(*"$%
4#,#)?#5%(4#%$#"%!1"%)*% !"#%77=%
%
'#/>#4$% !6% "&#% :!1*,)-% &(?#% 5)4#,"% ,!*"4!-% !?#4% "&#% :!1*,)-D$% 6)*(*,)(-% (*5%!3#4 (")*C% 3!-),)#$=%
A14)*C% MN8MO87% "&#% :!1*,)-% C(?#% C4(*"$% "!"(--)*C% PMQRGSQS% IP77SGRQT% )*% MN88O8ML% "!% ?!-1*"(4@%
!4C(*)$(")!*$% )*% <&),&% 88% IS% )*% MN88O8ML% /#/>#4$% &(5% (*% )*"#4#$"=% PN% IPN% )*% MN88O8ML% !6% "&#$#%
C4(*"$%<#4#%1*3()5%("%"&#%@#(4%#*5=%%%
%
9&#% 4#-#?(*"%/#/>#4$% 5)5% *!"% "(F#% 3(4"% )*% (*@% 5)$,1$$)!*% !4% 5#,)$)!*% 4#-(")*C% "!% "&#% C4(*"$=% % U*%
(55)")!*%!*#%!6%"&#$#%!4C(*)$(")!*$%&($%(%-!*C%"#4/%-!(*%64!/%"&#%:!1*,)-%($%5)$,-!$#5%)*% !"#%MT%"!%
"&#%(,,!1*"$=%
%
 !%!"&#4%/("#4)(-% "4(*$(,")!*$%&(?#%>##*%) 5#*")6)#5% 6!4% 5)$,-!$14#%<&),&%(4#%*!"% (-4#(5@% )*,-15#5%
#-$#<&#4#%)*%"&)$%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$=%

14 Employee Remuneration

9&#%*1/>#4% !6% #/3-!@##$%<&!$#% 4#/1*#4(")!*G% #B,-15)*C% #/3-!@#4D$% 3#*$)!*% ,!*"4)>1")!*$G%<($%
PRNGNNN%!4%/!4#%)*%>(*5$%!6%PRGNNN%<#4#V%
%

2012/13 2011/12

PRNGNNN%"!%PRQGSSS% 7% M%

PRRGNNN%"!%PRSGSSS% 8% 7%

PTNGNNN%"!%PTQGSSS% S% S%

PTRGNNN%"!%PTSGSSS% M% 7%

PWNGNNN%"!%PWQGSSS% Q% 7%

PWRGNNN%"!%PWSGSSS% N% 8%

PXNGNNN%"!%PXQGSSS% N% N%

PXRGNNN%"!%PXSGSSS% 8% 8%

PSNGNNN%"!%PSQGSSS% M% M%

P8NNGNNN%"!%P88QGSSS% N% N%

P88RGNNN%"!%P88SGSSS%% 8% 8%

%
%
%
% %

Page 103



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%6#/3*#6(")!*%!8%$#*)!6%!88),#6$:%;&!%(6#%)*,-37#7%)*%"&#%(<!=#%"(<-#:%)$%7)$,-!$#7%)*%/!6#%7#"()-:%
)*,-37)*>%#/5-!?#6@$%5#*$)!*%,!*"6)<3")!*$:%<#-!;A%
%
Financial year 2012/13 

(£)

Position / Name
Salary

Allowances & 
Benefits in Kind

Pension 
Contribution

Total

B&)#8%CD#,3")=#%

E2%F(,G$!*H%
IIJ:KLM% NL% 1I:M11% I0M:K1O%

P)6#,"!6%!8%4#$!36,#$%

EP%Q!6$5!!-H%
MI:KMI% R% IJ:RM1% IRK:MK0%

P)6#,"!6%!8%C*=)6!*/#*"%

E.%S(?*#H%
KK:ONO% I1% IO:NKK% IRL:INO%

P)6#,"!6%!8%B3$"!/#6%T%
B!//3*)"?%.#6=),#$%

EU%V)$$#"H%
MI:KMI% O1% IJ:RM1% IRM:RNL%

Q#(7%!8%B!65!6("#%
."6("#>?%

E2%U)/<H%

O0:JJK% R% II:KO0% JL:ONI%

%
%
%
%
%
%

Financial year 2011/12 

(£)

Position / Name
Salary

Allowances & 
Benefits in Kind

Pension 
Contribution

Total

B&)#8%CD#,3")=#%

E2%F(,G$!*H%
IIJ:KLM% NJ% 1I:M11% I0M:K1K%

P)6#,"!6%!8%4#$!36,#$%

EP%Q!6$5!!-H%
MI:KMI% NKL% IJ:RM1% IRM:NOK%

P)6#,"!6%!8%C*=)6!*/#*"%

E.%S(?*#H%
KK:ONO% R% IO:NKK% IRL:I0N%

P)6#,"!6%!8%B3$"!/#6%T%
B!//3*)"?%.#6=),#$%

EU%V)$$#"H%

MI:KMI% NJI% IJ:RM1% IRM:NLN%

Q#(7%!8%B!65!6("#%
."6("#>?%

E2%U)/<H%

O0:JJK% R% II:KO0% JL:ONI%

%
%
%
% %

Page 104



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 77%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

8&#%*1/9#4%!6%#:)"%3(,;(<#$=%(*(->$#5%9#"?##*%,!/31-$!4>% 4#51*5(*,)#$%(*5%!"&#4%5#3(4"14#$=%
(*5%"&#%"!"(-%,!$"%3#4%9(*5%(4#%$#"%!1"%)*%"&#%"(9-#%9#-!?@%
%

Exit Package cost 
band (including 

special 
payments)

Number of 
Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of other 
departures agreed

Total Number of exit 
packages by cost 

band

Total cost of exit 
packages in each 

band (£000)

2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12

AB%C%ADB=BBB% EB% EF% B% B% EB% EF% EBG% EB7%

ADB=BBE%C%AFB=BBB% F% H% E% B% I% H% EDF% DEI%

AFB=BBE%C%AJB=BBB% 7% B% B% B% 7% B% E7J% B%

AJB=BBE%C%AGB=BBB% B% B% B% B% B% B% B% B%

Total 17 21 1 0 18 21 368 318

%

8&#%,!$"%!6%#:)"%3(,;(<#$%)*,-15#$%"&#%,(3)"(-%,!$"$%!6%#(4->%4#")4#/#*"$%K?&),&%(4#%*!"%4#-#L(*"%)*%
#L#4>%,($#M%51#%"!%9#%3()5%"!%"&#%N!,(-%O!L#4*/#*"%P#*$)!*%.,&#/#%9>%"&#%Q!1*,)-R%%8&#$#%,!$"$%
(4#%5)$,-!$#5%($%3!$"%#/3-!>/#*"%9#*#6)"%,!$"$%?)"&)*%*!*C5)$"4)91"#5%,!$"$%!*%"&#%Q!/34#&#*$)L#%
S*,!/#%(*5%T:3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"R%
%
P4)!4% >#(4% 9(*5)*<$% (*5% "&#% "!"(-% ,!$"% !6% #:)"% 3(,;(<#$% &(L#% 9##*% 4#$"("#5% ?&#4#% "&#4#% ?#4#%
5)66#4#*,#$%9#"?##*%"&#%#$")/("#5%,!$"%!6%5#3(4"14#%($%1$#5%)*%"&#%*!"#%)*%-($"%>#(4U$%(,,!1*"$%(*5%
"&#%(,"1(-%,!$"R%%

15 Audit Costs

Q(/94)5<#%Q)">%Q!1*,)-%)*,144#5%"&#%6!--!?)*<%6##$%4#-(")*<%"!%#:"#4*(-%(15)"R%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Fees payable to the appointed external auditor in respect of:

T:"#4*(-%(15)"%$#4L),#$%% GJ% EBI%

Q#4")6),(")!*%!6%<4(*"%,-()/$%(*5%4#"14*$% E7% DD%

V"&#4%$#4L),#$% DE% 7%

% 120 130

%
T4*$"% W% X!1*<% ?#4#% (33!)*"#5% ($% T:"#4*(-% 015)"!4$% "!% "&#% Q!1*,)-% !*% E% V,"!9#4% DBEDR% 8&#>%
4#,#)L#5%3(>/#*"%6!4%*!*C(15)"%$#4L),#$%!6%A7=EIB%)*%DBEEYED%9#6!4#%"&#)4%(15)"%(33!)*"/#*"R%%
%
%
%
% %

Page 105



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial year 2012/13 

(£000s)

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

B
u

il
d

in
g

s

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

S
u

rp
lu

s
 A

s
s
e
ts

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2012 491,714 116,538 16,427 1,832 919 0 4,320 631,750

+3--9%7#56#,)("#7%($$#"$%
7#6#,!:*)$#7%

;% <=0;>% <=?@;;>% ;% ;% ;% ;% <=?A0;>%

277)")!*$% B?B;0% C?A@D% B@=% ==C% B0% ;% =?D=;% =D?1E1%

4#F(-3(")!*%
)*,6#($#$G<7#,6#($#$>%6#,!:*)$#7%
)*%"&#%6#F(-3(")!*%6#$#6F#%

<=?ACC>% =?;B@% ;% ;% ;% 0% ;% <@CC>%

4#F(-3(")!*%
)*,6#($#$G<7#,6#($#$>%6#,!:*)$#7%
)*%"&#%$365-3$%G%7#8),)"%!*%56!F)$)!*%
!8%$#6F),#$%

<A?=1A>% ==;% ;% ;% ;% <10>% ;% <A?;A=>%

H#6#,!:*)")!*%I%7)$5!$(-$% <0?C@E>% ;% ;% ;% ;% ;% ;% <0?C@E>%

H#6#,!:*)")!*%I%!"&#6% <1A;>% <=@C>% ;% ;% ;% ;% <CD>% <E@@>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%<"!>%G%86!/%
)*F#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%%

;% 0;% ;% ;% ;% ;% <=;B>% <@B>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%<"!>%G%86!/%&#-7%
8!6%$(-#%

;% <0?A1B>% <@00>% ;% ;% <0E1>% ;% <1?B1E>%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%<"!>%G%86!/%
!"&#6%,("#:!6)#$%!8%56!5#6"9?%5-(*"%
(*7%#J3)5/#*"%

<=?0AA>% <A=>% B1% BA% ED% 1?EC;% <0?1;A>% ;%

At 31 March 2013 486,503 116,418 15,059 2,042 1,077 4,216 2,288 627,603

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment

At 1 April 2012 0 (4,598) (8,331) (249) (25) 0 0 (13,203)

+3--9%7#56#,)("#7%($$#"$%
7#6#,!:*)$#7%

;% =0;% =?@;;% ;% ;% ;% ;% =?A0;%

H#56#,)(")!*%,&(6:#% <=;?1@A>% <C?BCC>% <=?E0;>% <D;>% ;% ;% ;% <=D?;A;>%

H#56#,)(")!*%K6)""#*%!3"%"!%"&#%
4#F(-3(")!*%4#$#6F#%

=;?00=% =?DBD% ;% ;% ;% =A% ;% ==?B11%

H#56#,)(")!*%K6)""#*%!3"%"!%"&#%
.365-3$%G%H#8),)"%!*%"&#%L6!F)$)!*%
!8%.#6F),#$%

EC% ==% ;% ;% ;% ;% ;% @0%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%"!%G%86!/%M#-7%
8!6%.(-#%

;% ;% @;D% ;% ;% ;% ;% @;D%

2$$#"$%6#,-($$)8)#7%"!%G%86!/%!"&#6%
,("#:!6)#$%!8%56!5#6"9?%5-(*"%(*7%
#J3)5/#*"%

AD% 1A% <C0>% <C1>% ;% <AE>% ;% ;%

At 31 March 2013 0 (5,736) (7,579) (323) (25) (68) 0 (13,731)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2013 486,503 110,682 7,480 1,719 1,052 4,148 2,288 613,872

At 31 March 2012 491,714 111,940 8,096 1,583 894 0 4,320 618,547

% %

Page 106



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Financial year 2011/12 (as restated)

(£000s)

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s

O
th

e
r 

L
a
n

d
 &

B
u

il
d

in
g

s

V
e
h

ic
le

s
, 
P

la
n

t,
 

F
u

rn
it

u
re

 &

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

A
s
s
e
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
s
s
e
ts

A
s
s
e
ts

 u
n

d
e
r 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 

P
la

n
t 

&
 

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2011 489,599 113,387 16,763 1,533 909 1,012 623,203

055)")!*$% 9:;7<% <:9<9% 979% <==% >?% 7:@=7% >7:;=9%

2#A(-1(")!*%
)*,4#($#$BC5#,4#($#$D%4#,!E*)F#5%
)*%"&#%4#A(-1(")!*%4#$#4A#%

C;:G@7D% >:9<7% ?% ?% ?% ?% C9:<<?D%

2#A(-1(")!*%)*,4#($#$%B%
C5#,4#($#$D%4#,!E*)$#5%)*%"&#%
$143-1$%B%5#6),)"%!*%34!A)$)!*%!6%
$#4A),#$%

@:;8@% 9>% ?% ?% ?% ?% @:G>8%

H#4#,!E*)")!*%I%5)$3!$(-$% C=89D% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% C=89D%

H#4#,!E*)")!*%I%!"&#4% C98>D% C>:<?=D% ?% ?% ?% C<;D% C>:GG;D%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%)*"(*E)J-#%
($$#"$%

?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%64!/%
)*A#$"/#*"%34!3#4")#$%%

>8@% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% >8@%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%C"!D%B%64!/%&#-5%
6!4%$(-#%

?% ?% C>:>88D% ?% ?% ?% C>:>88D%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%C"!D%B%64!/%
!"&#4%,("#E!4)#$%!6%34!3#4"K:%3-(*"%
(*5%#L1)3/#*"%

C;8D% 8?% >G7% ?% ?% C>8GD% ?%

At 31 March 2012 491,714 116,538 16,427 1,832 919 4,320 631,750

Accumulated Depreciation and 
Impairment

At 1 April 2011 (1) (2,738) (7,435) (209) (25) 0 (10,408)

H#34#,)(")!*%,&(4E#% C=:9;7D% C<:9<8D% C>:=?>D% C@?D% ?% ?% C>@:<7=D%

H#34#,)(")!*%M4)""#*%!1"%"!%"&#%
2#A(-1(")!*%2#$#4A#%

=:987% 87<% ?% ?% ?% ?% >?:>G8%

H#34#,)(")!*%M4)""#*%!1"%"!%"&#%
.143-1$%B%H#6),)"%!*%"&#%N4!A)$)!*%
!6%.#4A),#$%

>G% >8>% ?% ?% ?% ?% >9=%

O/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$%B%4#A#4$(-$%
4#,!E*)$#5%)*%"&#%.143-1$%B%H#6),)"%
!*%"&#%N4!A)$)!*%!6%.#4A),#$%

?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?% ?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%B%64!/%P#-5%
6!4%.(-#%

?% ?% >:?=?% ?% ?% ?% >:?=?%

0$$#"$%4#,-($$)6)#5%"!%B%64!/%!"&#4%
,("#E!4)#$%!6%34!3#4"K:%3-(*"%(*5%
#L1)3/#*"%

7% G<% CG8D% ?% ?% ?% ?%

At 31 March 2012 0 (4,598) (8,331) (249) (25) 0 (13,203)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2012 491,714 111,940 8,096 1,583 894 4,320 618,547

At 31 March 2011 489,598 110,649 9,328 1,324 884 1,012 612,795

%
% %

Page 107



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

17 Property Plant and Equipment - Revaluations

9&#%:!3*,)-% ,(66)#$% !3"% (% 6!--)*;% 56!;6(//#% "&("% #*$36#$% "&("% (--% <6!5#6"=>%<-(*"% (*7%?@3)5/#*"%
6#@3)6#7%"!%A#%/#($36#7%("%8()6%B(-3#%)$%6#B(-3#7%("%-#($"%#B#6=%8)B#%=#(6$C%
%
:366#*"%=#(6%6#B(-3(")!*$%D#6#%,(66)#7%!3"%#E"#6*(--=%A=F%
%
'6%.%G(=8)#-7%+4H:.%H44IJK!*$L%4?I%JM)-N$%K#(7%(*7%?B#L%
'$%2%O6);;$%O2%JK!*$L%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%
'$%2%P6!!/%'2%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%
'$%:%.(-#%O2%JK!*$L%'.,%'4H:.%JO)7D#--$%GG<L%
%
9&#%A($)$%8!6%B(-3(")!*%)$%$#"%!3"%)*%"&#%$"("#/#*"%!8%(,,!3*")*;%5!-),)#$%!*%5(;#%Q0C%
%
9&#%8!--!D)*;%$"("#/#*"%$&!3-7%A#%*!"#7%D)"&%6#;(67%"!%"&#%B(-3(")!*$%,(66)#7%!3"%A=%O)7D#--$%GG<F%
%
H*% 6#(,&)*;% "&#% 8)*(-% B(-3(")!*% 8);36#$>% O)7D#--$% &($% 7#5(6"#7% 86!/% "&#% 2556()$(-% (*7%I (-3(")!*%
."(*7(67$%56#5(6#7%A=%"&#%4!=(-%H*$")"3")!*%!8%:&(6"#6#7%.36B#=!6$C%%9&)$%)$%A#,(3$#%"&#%B(-3(")!*%
!8% "&#% 5!6"8!-)!% )$% $3,&% "&("% O)7D#--$% &($% *!"% A##*% )*$"63,"#7% "!% 6#R)*$5#,"% (*=% !8% "&#% 56!5#6")#$C%%
9&#=%&(B#%"&#6#8!6#%6#-)#7%!*% )*8!6/(")!*%#)"&#6%!A"()*#7%A=% "&#/%)*%SQQT>%SQQU>%VWW0>%VWWU%(*7%
VWS0>%!6%$3A$#@3#*"-=%56!B)7#7%A=%:(/A6)7;#%:)"=%:!3*,)-%)*%!67#6%"!%6#(,&%"&#)6%,!*,-3$)!*$C%
%
O)7D#--$%7)7%3*7#6"(N#%(*%#E"#6*(-%B)$3(-%)*$5#,")!*%!8%"&#%56!5#6")#$%B(-3#7C%%9&#%:!3*,)-%56!B)7#$%
357("#7% )*8!6/(")!*%!*%#(,&%56!5#6"=% "!%O)7D#--$% "!% $355-#/#*"% "&#%7#"()-% "&#=%(-6#(7=%&!-7%(*7%
/##")*;$% (6#% &#-7% "!% 5-(*% (*7%7) $,3$$% "&#% B(-3(")!*$C% % 9&#$#% D!3-7% &);&-);&"% (*=% $);*)8),(*"%
,&(*;#$C%
%
9&#%:!3*,)-%&($%,&!$#*% "!%7#5(6"% 86!/% "&#%2556()$(-%(*7%I(-3(")!*%."(*7(67$%!*% "&#%;6!3*7$%!8%
(,&)#B)*;%A#$"%B(-3#%8!6%/!*#=%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%56!5#6"=%B(-3(")!*%D!6NC%
%
9&#% 8!--!D)*;% "(A-#% $&!D$% "&#% ,366#*"% ,(66=)*;% B(-3#% !8% ($$#"$% A=% "&#% 7("#% !8% "&#% /!$"% 6#,#*"%
B(-3(")!*F%
%

(£000s) Council Dwellings
Other Land and 

Buildings
Surplus Assets Total

I(-3#7%("%8()6%B(-3#%
($%("F%

% % % %

0S%'(6,&%VWS0% XU1>TW0% VY>YVY% W% TSX>V0W%

0S%'(6,&%VWSV% W% SW>W0Y% X>SXU% SX>SUT%

0S%'(6,&%VWSS% W% 0U>UW0% W% 0U>UW0%

0S%'(6,&%VWSW% W% U>VVU% W% U>VVU%

0S%'(6,&%VWWQ% W% VT>UUY% W% VT>UUY%

Total Valuation 486,503 110,682 4,148 601,333

%

I#&),-#$>% <-(*"% (*7%? @3)5/#*"% ($% $&!6"% -)8#% !5#6(")!*(-% ($$#"$>% (6#% &#-7% ("% &)$"!6),(-% ,!$"% -#$$%
7#56#,)(")!*%($%(%56!E=%8!6%8()6%B(-3#C%
%
%
%
% %

Page 108



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

18 Property, Plant and Equipment - Depreciation

9&#% /(:!4)";% !6% "&#% <!1*,)-=$% >4!3#4";?% >-(*"% (*5% @A1)3/#*"% (4#% ,!1*,)-% 5B#--)*C$D% % 9&#$#% (4#%
3-(,#5%)*"!%"&4##%1$#61-E-)6#%F(*5)*C$D%%0$$#"$%F1)-"%F#6!4#%GHIJ%(4#%($$#$$#5%($%&(K)*C%(%4#/()*)*C%
1$#61-%-)6#%!6%LH%;#(4$?%"&!$#%F1)-"%F#"B##*%GHIJ%(*5%GH8I%&(K#%(%4#/()*)*C%1$#61-%-)6#%!6%7H%;#(4$?%
"&!$#%F1)-"%F#"B##*%GH8I%(*5%LMGM%&(K#%(% 4#/()*)*C%1$#61-% -)6#%!6%IH%;#(4$%(*5% "&!$#%F1)-"%(6"#4%
LMGM%&(K#%(%1$#61-%-)6#%!6%NM%;#(4$D%
%
9&#%1$#61-%-)K#$%!6%!"&#4%($$#"$%(4#%#$")/("#5%($O%
%

 % P*64($"41,"14#%0$$#"$%Q%IM%;#(4$%

 % R"&#4%F1)-5)*C$%Q%JM%"!%SM%;#(4$%

 % T#&),-#$?%>-(*"%(*5%@A1)3/#*"%Q%7%"!%LM%;#(4$%

19 Heritage Assets 

(£000s) Civic Regalia

<(44;)*C%K(-1#%("%G%034)-%LMGG?%7G%'(4,&%LMGL%(*5%7G%'(4,&%LMG7% I7M%

%

9&#% ,!--#,")!*% !6%<)K),%2#C(-)(%B($% K(-1#5% ("%/(4U#"% K(-1#% 6!4% )*$14(*,#% 3143!$#$% )*% !K#/F#4%
LMGG%F;%'4%>#"#4%V1,U-#%+P2TD%%%
%
9&#%<!1*,)-%&($%($$#$$#5%"&("%"&#%K(-1#%("%"&#%#*5%!6%#(,&%6)*(*,)(-%;#(4%64!/%LMMH%"!%LMG7%B!1-5%
*!"%F#%/("#4)(--;%5)66#4#*"%64!/%"&#%6)C14#%!F"()*#5%)*% !K#/F#4%LMGGD%
%
%
%
% %

Page 109



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

20 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

9&#% "!"(-%(/!3*"%!8%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#% )*,366#7% )*% "&#%;#(6% )$%$&!<*% )*% "&#% "(=-#%=#-!<>% "!?#"&#6%
<)"&%"&#%6#$!36,#$%"&("%&(@#%=##*%3$#7%"!%8)*(*,#%)"A%%B&#6#%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#%)$%"!%=#%8)*(*,#7%)*%
83"36#%;#(6$%=;%,&(6?#$%"!%6#@#*3#%($%($$#"$%(6#%3$#7%=;%"&#%C!3*,)->%"&#%#:5#*7)"36#%6#$3-"$%)*%(*%
)*,6#($#%)*%"&#%C(5)"(-%+)*(*,)*?%4#D3)6#/#*"%EC+4F>%(%/#($36#%!8%"&#%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#%)*,366#7%
&)$"!6),(--;%=;%"&#%C!3*,)-%"&("%&($%;#"%"!%=#%8)*(*,#7A%%%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 213,852 (3)

Capital Expenditure

G6!5#6";>%G-(*"%(*7%HD3)5/#*"% IJ>KLK% I0>MNL%

O*@#$"/#*"%G6!5#6")#$% MPI% LK%

O*"(*?)=-#%2$$#"$% 1P% IJL%

 !*Q,366#*"%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% P% P%

Capital Expenditure Charged to the Comprehensive Statement of 
Income and Expenditure

4#@#*3#%H:5#*7)"36#%+3*7#7%86!/%C(5)"(-% I>M11% R>MNM%

S42%$#-8Q8)*(*,)*?%$#""-#/#*"%5(;/#*"% P% RI0>JMR%

T#Q/)*)/3$%,(5)"(-%#:5#*7)"36#% J1P% IR0%

Loans Advanced

G6)@("#%.#,"!6%S!3$)*?%O/56!@#/#*"%U!(*$% 01% LM%

Sources of finance

C(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$% EMMNF% EK>PJLF%

V!@#6*/#*"%?6(*"$%(*7%!"&#6%,!*"6)=3")!*$% ER>JLIF% E0>RJKF%

4#@#*3#%(*7%6#$#6@#$% EI0>JJNF% EN>KIPF%

Closing capital financing requirement 215,604 213,852

%
%
%
% %

Page 110



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

21 Capital Commitments

0"%79%'(4,&%:;97<%"&#%=!1*,)-%>($%,!*"4(,"1(--?%,!//)""#5%"!%,(3)"(-%>!4@%A(-1#5%("%(334!B)/("#-?%
CDED%/)--)!*<% ($% $&!>*% )*% "&#% 6!--!>)*F% "(G-#E% % =(3)"(-% #B3#*5)"14#% 1*5#4% "&#$#% ,!*"4(,"$% >)--% G#%
)*,144#5%)*%:;97H9D<%(3(4"%64!/%C9ED%/)--)!*%>&),&%)"%)$%#$")/("#5%>)--%G#%$3#*"%)*%:;9DH9IE%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Property, Plant and Equipment

=-(?%+(4/%=!//1*)"?%=#*"4#% :8;% ;%

J#$1$%K4##*%"#**)$%,!14"$% ;% 8D%

=!//1*)"?%L-?/3),%M1G-),%04"%=!//)$$)!*% ;% 9;9%

')--%2!(5%=#/#"#4?%/#/!4)(-%(4">!4@% ;% I7%

066!45(G-#%&!/#$% ;% 87%

N#,#*"%O!/#$% ;% 9<7:7%

L"&#4%O20%$"!,@%$3#*5% ;% 8PD%

'#4,14?%(G("#/#*"% 79% PP%

Q#&),-#%($$#"%4#3-(,#/#*"$% :I% 99R%

K4(*5%04,(5#%=(4%M(4@%,!*"4!-%4!!/%% 9% ID%

N#A#-!3/#*"%-(*5%!*%S)*F$%O#5F#$%2!(5% 9TD% :87%

04G14?%=!//1*)"?%=#*"4#% R;% ;%

K4(*5%04,(5#%0**#B%=(4%M(4@%U%N4()*(F#%K1--#?$% I:% ;%

2#614G)$&/#*"%!6% #>/(4@#"%2!(5%=#/#"#4?%V1)-5)*F$% IT% ;%

2!/(*%=!14"% 9<:7T% ;%

V4(*5!*%=!14"% ;% D;;%

L"&#4%>!4@$%U%-#$$%"&(*%CI;<;;;%3#4%,!*"4(,"% ::;% :;D%

W*A#$"/#*"%M4!3#4")#$% % %

X)!*%Y(45%,!*"4)G1")!*%"!%>!4@$% 9:D% ;%

0$$#"$%O#-5%+!4%.(-#% % %

X(*5%("%=-(?%+(4/% 9<T77% ;%

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute

0$$#$$/#*"%=#*"4#% :D9% ;%

K4(*"$%6!4%M4)A("#%.#,"!4%#*#4F?%#66),)#*,?%)/34!A#/#*"$% 9R% ;%

=!//1*)"?%N#A#-!3/#*"%F4(*"$% ::I% 9PR%

4,396 3,962

%
%
%
% %

Page 111



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

22 Investment Properties

9&#%8!--!:)*;%)"#/$%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%#<5#*$#%&(=#%>##*%(,,!3*"#7%8!6%)*%"&#%?!/56#&#*$)=#%@*,!/#%
(*7%A<5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"B%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

4#*"(-%)*,!/#%86!/%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6"C% DEFGHHI% DEFJKKI%

L)6#,"%!5#6(")*;%#<5#*$#$%(6)$)*;%86!/%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6"C% E1M% H1N%

Net gain (7,163) (7,306)

%
9&#6#% (6#% *!% 6#$"6),")!*$% !*% "&#% ?!3*,)-O$% (>)-)"C% "!% 6#(-)$#% "&#% =(-3#% )*&#6#*"% )*% )"$% )*=#$"/#*"%
56!5#6"C%!6%!*%"&#%?!3*,)-O$%6);&"%"!%"&#%6#,#)5"%!8%)*,!/#%(*7%"&#%56!,##7$%!8%7)$5!$(-B%%%
%
9&#%8!--!:)*;%$3//(6)$#$%"&#%/!=#/#*"%)*%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%)*=#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%!=#6%"&#%C#(6B%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at start of the year 111,373 96,834

Additions: % %

.3>$#P3#*"%#<5#*7)"36#% E1K% H0%

 #"%;()*$%Q%D-!$$#$I%86!/%8()6%=(-3#%(7R3$"/#*"$% SFMSM% KNF0EH%

L)$5!$(-$% 1% DG0EI%

Transfers: % %

D9!I%Q%86!/%T6!5#6"CF%T-(*"%(*7%AP3)5/#*"% DM1I% DKN0I%

96(*$8#6$%86!/%($$#"$%)*%"&#%,!36$#%!8%,!*$"63,")!*% K1J% 1%

Balance at the end of the year 114,476 111,373

%
%
%
% %

Page 112



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

23 Intangible Assets

9&#% :!1*,)-% (,,!1*"$% 6!4% )"$% $!6";(4#% ($% )*"(*<)=-#% ($$#"$>% ;&#4#% "&#% $!6";(4#% )$% *!"% $1,&% (*%
)*"#<4(-% 3(4"% !6% (%3( 4"),1-(4% ?9% $@$"#/% "&("% )"% )$% (,,!1*"#5% 6!4% ($% 3(4"% !6% "&#% &(45;(4#% )"#/% !6%
34!3#4"@>%3-(*"%(*5%#A1)3/#*"B%%%
%
0--% $!6";(4#% )$% <)C#*% (% 6)*)"#% 1$#61-% -)6#>% =($#5% !*% ($$#$$/#*"$% !6% "&#% 3#4)!5% "&("% "&#% $!6";(4#% )$%
#D3#,"#5%"!%=#%!6%1$#%"!%"&#%:!1*,)-B%%%
%
9&#%,(44@)*<%(/!1*"%!6%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"$%)$%(/!4")$#5%!*%(%$"4()<&"E-)*#%=($)$B%%9&#%(/!4")$(")!*%!6%
F87G>HHH%,&(4<#5%"!%4#C#*1#%)*%IH8IJ8K%4#-("#$%"!%$3#,)(-)$"%$!6";(4#%(*5%;($%,&(4<#5%"!%4#-#C(*"%
$#4C),#$%)*%"&#%:!/34#&#*$)C#%?*,!/#%(*5%LD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"B%
%
9&#%/!C#/#*"%!*%)*"(*<)=-#%($$#"%=(-(*,#$%514)*<%"&#%@#(4%;($%($%6!--!;$M%
%

(£000s)

2012/13

Software 
licences

2011/12

Software 
licences

Gross Carrying Amount:

At 1 April 1,061 905

+1--@%(/!4")$#5%($$#"$%5#4#,!<*)$#5% NGHO% H%

P14,&($#$% QH% 8RG%

At 31 March 1,081 1,061

Accumulated Amortisation % %

At 1 April (523) (401)

+1--@%(/!4")$#5%($$#"$%5#4#,!<*)$#5 GH% H%

0/!4")$(")!*%6!4%"&#%3#4)!5% N87GO% N8IIO%

At 31 March (609) (523)

Net Book Value

At 31 March 472 538

%

.3#,)(-)$"%$!6";(4#%;($%314,&($#5%)*%IH8IJ8K%4#-(")*<%"!%"&#%-!,(-)$(")!*%!6%,!1*,)-%"(D%=#*#6)"$%(*5%
"&#%)*"4!51,")!*%!6%(%S1$)*#$$%?/34!C#/#*"%T)$"4),"%)*%:(/=4)5<#B%%9&#%,!$"$%;)--%=#%(/!4")$#5%!C#4%
"&#%#D3#,"#5%-)6#%!6%"&#%$!6";(4#B%
%
%
%
%
% %

Page 113



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

24 Leases

9!3*,)-%($%:#$$##%

Finance Leases

;&#%,(66<)*=%>(-3#%!8%)*>#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%&#-7%3*7#6%8)*(*,#%-#($#$%?($%@ABC0DBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%
1EAF%G@ABD0HBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%%.#,!*7(6<%-#($#%5(</#*"$%!8%@1B10H%)*%#(,&%!8%1EAAKA1%(*7%
1EA1KAF%?#6#%(,,!3*"#7%8!6%($%8)*(*,#%,!$"$J%%;&)$%(**3(-%,&(6=#%?)--%,!*")*3#%3*")-%1EFDJ%%%
%
;&#$#%L*73$"6)(-%3*)"$%(6#%-#($#7%!3"%3*7#6%!5#6(")*=%-#($#$%(*7%"&#%"!"(-%/)*)/3/%-#($#%5(</#*"$%
(6#%@H0BM10%("%FA%'(6,&%1EAF%G@FNBEEE%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%
%
;&#%9!3*,)-% -#($#$% )*% "&6##%,(6%5(6O$%3*7#6% -!*=P"#6/%5#55#6,!6*% -#($#$J% %;&#%,(66<)*=%>(-3#%!8%
"&#$#% ,(6% 5(6O$% )*,-37#7% )*% Q6!5#6"<B% Q-(*"% (*7% RS3)5/#*"% ?($% @ACBCANBHCH% ("% FA% '(6,&% 1EAF%
G@ACBNEHBH0E%("%FA%'(6,&%1EA1IJ%

Operating Leases

;&#% 9!3*,)-% -#($#$% )*% (% *3/T#6% !8% !5#6(")!*(-% 56!5#6")#$% (*7% $!/#% #S3)5/#*"% 3*7#6% !5#6(")*=%
-#($#$J%
%
;&#%83"36#%/)*)/3/%-#($#%5(</#*"$%73#%3*7#6%*!*P,(*,#--(T-#%-#($#$%)*%83"36#%<#(6$%(6#U%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

 !"%-("#6%"&(*%!*#%<#(6% 0HN% 1MH%

:("#6%"&(*%!*#%<#(6%(*7%*!"%-("#6%"&(*%8)>#%<#(6$% DCN% DNN%

:("#6%"&(*%8)>#%<#(6$% AAC% AM1%

1,164 1,068

%

;&#%#V5#*7)"36#%,&(6=#7%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)>#%L*,!/#%(*7%RV5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%736)*=%"&#%<#(6%
)*%6#-(")!*%"!%"&#$#%-#($#$%?($U%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Minimum lease payments 440 411

%

9!3*,)-%($%:#$$!6%

Operating Leases

;&#%9!3*,)-%-#($#$%!3"%,!//#6,)(-%56!5#6")#$%(,6!$$%"&#%9)"<%3*7#6%!5#6(")*=%-#($#$J%%;&#%5!6"8!-)!%
)*,-37#$%$&!5$B%)*73$"6)(-%3*)"$%(*7%$&!55)*=%,#*"6#$J%
%
%
%
% %

Page 114



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%61"14#%/)*)/1/%-#($#%3(:/#*"$%4#,#);(<-#=%1*5#4%-#($#$%>&),&%,(**!"%<#%,(*,#--#5=%(4#?%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

 !"%-("#4%"&(*%!*#%:#(4% 7=8@A% 8=88B%

C("#4%"&(*%!*#%:#(4%(*5%*!"%-("#4%"&(*%6);#%:#(4$% DB=8DD% D@=8D7%

C("#4%"&(*%6);#%:#(4$% D@B=@8E% EF=@BA%

118,655 110,671

%

9&#%/)*)/1/%-#($#%3(:/#*"$%4#,#);(<-#%5!%*!"% )*,-15#%,!*")*G#*"% 4#*"$%$1,&%($% "&!$#%<($#5%!*%
"14*!;#4H% % I*% B@DBJD8% KB=8@B=DLL% !6% ,!*")*G#*"% 4#*"$% >#4#% 4#,#);(<-#% <:% "&#% M!1*,)-% NB@DDJDB%
KB=B@F=OEEPH%

25 Short-Term and Long-Term Investments

(£000s)
2012/13 2011/12

Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term

I*;#$"/#*"$%)*%I,#-(*5),%<(*Q$%
(*5%"&#)4%RS%$1<$)5)(4)#$%

D=F87% FE7% B=DE@% D=A7A%

T"&#4%)*;#$"/#*"$% @% AL=BEE% @% AO=@OD%

1,734 59,093 2,190 57,606

%
I*;#$"/#*"$%)*%I,#-(*5),%U(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%RS%.1<$)5)(4)#$%
%
I*;#$"/#*"$%)*,-15#5%)*%,144#*"%($$#"$%(*5%-!*GV"#4/%($$#"$%)*%"&#%U(-(*,#%.&##"%("%8D%'(4,&%B@D8%
)*,-15#%"&#%6!--!>)*G%)*;#$"/#*"$=%"&#%;(-1#$%!6%>&),&%&(;#%<##*%)/3()4#5%<#,(1$#%!6%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%
5)66),1-")#$%#W3#4)#*,#5%<:%I,#-(*5),%<(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%$1<$)5)(4)#$H%%9&#%)/3()4/#*"$%4#6-#,"#5%)*%"&#%
(,,!1*"$%(4#%<($#5%!*%"&#%-("#$"%MIX+0%C!,(-%01"&!4)":%0,,!1*")*G%X(*#-%NC00XP%G1)5(*,#%)$$1#5%
)*%'(:%B@D8H%
%
I*%T,"!<#4%B@@L=%(%*1/<#4%!6%I,#-(*5),%U(*Q$%(*5%"&#)4%RS%$1<$)5)(4)#$%>#*"%)*"!%(5/)*)$"4(")!*H%
%
9&#%M!1*,)-% &(5% KE/% 5#3!$)"#5% <#">##*% C(*5$<(*Q)% I$-(*5$% &6% (*5% )"$%RS% $1<$)5)(4:=% Y#4)"(<-#%
U(*Q%X-,=%>)"&%;(4:)*G%/("14)":%5("#$%(*5%)*"#4#$"%4("#$%($%6!--!>$?%
%

(£000s)
Original 

Investment Date
Original 

Maturity Date
Amount 

Invested (£000)  
Interest Rate (%)

Y#4)"(<-#% @EJ@DJB@@L% @EJD@JB@@L% D=@@@% AHOA%

Y#4)"(<-#% D8J@OJB@@L% BBJDBJB@@L% D=@@@% OHBD%

C(*5$<(*Q)% 8@J@OJB@@L% @OJ@DJB@@E% B=@@@% OHBB%

Y#4)"(<-#% @AJ@EJB@@L% @AJ@8JB@@E% B=@@@% OH@@%

C(*5$<(*Q)% @DJ@FJB@@L% B7J@7JB@@E% D=@@@% OH8A%

C(*5$<(*Q)% @DJ@FJB@@L% BBJ@AJB@@E% B=@@@% OH7B%

9,000

%
Z14)*G%B@DBJD8%C(*5$<(*Q)%I$-(*5$%&6%>($%4#*(/#5%CUI%&6H% %

Page 115



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

1--% /!*)#$% 8)"&)*% "&#$#% )*$")"2")!*$% (5#% ,255#*"-9% $2:;#,"% "!% "&#)5% 5#$4#,")<#% (6/)*)$"5(")!*% (*6%
5#,#)<#5$&)4%45!,#$$#$=%%>&#%(/!2*"%(*6%")/)*?%!7%4(9/#*"$%"!%6#4!$)"!5$%$2,&%($%"&#%@!2*,)-% )$%
6#"#5/)*#6%:9%"&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%A%5#,#)<#5$=%
%
B($#6%!*% "&#% -("#$"% )*7!5/(")!*%(<()-(:-#C% "&#%@!2*,)-% ,!*$)6#5$% "&("% )"% )$% (445!45)("#% "!%/(D#%(*%
)/4()5/#*"%(6;2$"/#*"%7!5%"&#%6#4!$)"$%:($#6%!*%"&#% )*7!5/(")!*%!2"-)*#6%:#-!8=%%1$%"&#%(<()-(:-#%
)*7!5/(")!*% )$% *!"% 6#7)*)")<#% ($% "!% "&#% (/!2*"$% (*6% ")/)*?$% !7% 4(9/#*"$% "!% :#% /(6#% :9% "&#%
(6/)*)$"5("!5$A5#,#)<#5$C% )"% )$% -)D#-9% "&("% 725"&#5%(6;2$"/#*"$%8)--%:#%/(6#% "!% "&#%(,,!2*"$% )*% 72"25#%
9#(5$=%
%
>&#% )/4()5/#*"% -!$$#$%5#,!?*)$#6% )*% "&#% E*,!/#%(*6%FG4#*6)"25#%1,,!2*"% )*%HIJHAJK%!7%LMMCIII%
NHIJJAJH%*#"% 5#<#5$(-%!7% )/4()5/#*"% -!$$#$%!7%L0OJCIIIP%&(<#%:##*%,(-,2-("#6%:9%6)$,!2*")*?% "&#%
($$2/#6%,($&7-!8$%("% "&#%#77#,")<#% )*"#5#$"% 5("#%!7% "&#%!5)?)*(-% 6#4!$)"$% )*%!56#5% "!% 5#,!?*)$#% "&#%
(*"),)4("#6%-!$$%!7%)*"#5#$"%"!%"&#%@!2*,)-%2*")-%/!*)#$%(5#%5#,!<#5#6=%
%
>&#%!<#5(--%4!$)")!*%)$%$2//(5)$#6%($%7!--!8$Q%
%

(£000s)

2012/13 2011/12

Heritable Bank 
Plc

LBI hf
Heritable Bank 

Plc
LBI hf

B(-(*,#%$&##"%,(559)*?%<(-2#% % % % %

R!*?%"#5/%)*<#$"/#*"$% I% JCOK0% HHH% JCSMT%

.&!5"%"#5/%)*<#$"/#*"$% 0HJ% KOK% UMO% SOS%

E*,5#($#%A%N6#,5#($#P%)*%
)/4()5/#*"%5#,!?*)$#6%)*%"&#%
@!/45#&#*$)<#%E*,!/#%(*6%
FG4#*6)"25#%(,,!2*"%

JU% UJ% NSUP% NKOMP%

@($&%5#,#)<#6%% KTJ% S0J% OHU% JCUUM%

%

>&#% 6#4!$)"$% )*% V#5)"(:-#% 8#5#% !5)?)*(--9% )/4()5#6% :9% LJCH00CIII% (*6% )*% RBE% :9% LJCKSICIII% )*%
HIITAIS=% % E*% HIISAJI% "&#5#% 8($% (*%(66) ")!*(-% )/4()5/#*"% !7% L0ITCIII% )*% 5#$4#,"% !7% RBE% (*6% (%
5#<#5$(-% !7% "&#% V#5)"(:-#% )/4()5/#*"% !7% LHJHCIII=% % E*% HIJIAJJ% "&#5#% 8($% (% 725"&#5% )/4()5/#*"% !7%
L0HCIII%)*%5#$4#,"%!7%RBE=%

Heritable Bank Plc

V#5)"(:-#%B(*D%W-,%)$%(%XY%5#?)$"#5#6%:(*D%!4#5(")*?%2*6#5%.,!"")$&%-(8=%%>&#%,!/4(*9%8($%4-(,#6%
)*%(6/)*)$"5(")!*%!*%O%Z,"!:#5%HIIT=%%E*%5#-(")!*%"!%"&#%HIITAIS%$"("#/#*"%!7%(,,!2*"$%"&#%@!2*,)-%
6#,)6#6%"!%5#,!?*)$#%(*%)/4()5/#*"%:($#6%!*%5#,!<#5)*?%TI4%)*%"&#%L=%>&#%45!?5#$$%5#4!5"% )$$2#6%
"!% ,5#6)"!5$C% :9% "&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%F5*$"% (*6%[!2*?% )*%12?2$"% HIJJC%*!"#6%(%:($#%,($#% 5#"25*% "!%
,5#6)"!5$%!7%TM%"!%SI%4#*,#%)*%"&#%L=%%>&#%-("#$"%246("#$%75!/%"&#%(6/)*)$"5("!5$%&(<#%*!"%,&(*?#6%
"&)$% #$")/("#=% % >!"(-% 6)<)6#*6$% 4()6% "!% 6("#% (5#% OO=H\% !7% "&#% ,-()/=% % E*% ,(-,2-(")*?% "&#% ,255#*"%
#G4#,"#6% 5#,!<#5(:-#% (/!2*"% "&#%@!2*,)-% &($%/(6#% "&#% 7!--!8)*?% ($$2/4")!*$% )*% 5#$4#,"% !7% "&#%
")/)*?%!7%5#,!<#5)#$Q%
%
]2-9%HIJK% % % H=II\%
](*2(59%HIJ0% % % T=TI\%
%
>&)$%$,&#62-#%)$%:($#6%!*%#G4#,"#6%"!"(-%6)<)6#*6$%!7%TT\%!7%"&#%,-()/=%%3#,!<#5)#$%(5#%#G45#$$#6%
($%(%4#5,#*"(?#%!7%"&#%@!2*,)-^$%,-()/C%8&),&%)*,-26#$%)*"#5#$"%(,,52#6%24%"!%M%Z,"!:#5%HIIT=%

Page 116



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

LBI hf

+!--!9)*:% $"#3$% "(;#*% <=% "&#% >,#-(*5),%?!@#4*/#*"% )*% #(4-=%A,"!<#4% BCCD% "&#% "&#*% E(*5$<(*;)F$%
5!/#$"),% ($$#"$% (*5% -)(<)-)")#$% 9#4#% "4(*$6#44#5% "!% (%*#9 % <(*;% G*#9% E(*5$<(*;)H% 9)"&% "&#%
/(*(:#/#*"%!6% "&#%(66()4$%!6%A-5%E(*5$<(*;)% G*!9% 4#*(/#5%EI>H%<#)*:%3-(,#5% )*% "&#%&(*5$%!6%(%
4#$!-1")!*%,!//)""##J% %EI>F$%(66()4$%(4#%<#)*:%(5/)*)$"#4#5%1*5#4% >,#-(*5),% -(9J% % >*% 4#$3#,"%!6% "&#%
BCCDKCL%(,,!1*"$%"&#%M!1*,)-%5#,)5#5%"!%4#,!:*)$#%(*%)/3()4/#*"%<($#5%!*%)"%4#,!@#4)*:%DN3%)*%"&#%
OJ%
%
P&#% M!1*,)-F$% #$")/("#% !6% "&#% -);#-=% 4#,!@#4(<-#% (/!1*"% 9($% $1<$#Q1#*"-=% 135("#5% )*% -)*#% 9)"&%
M>R+0%:1)5(*,#%"!%L7JDS%3#*,#%)*%"&#%OJ%
%
P&)$% 4("#%!6% 4#,!@#4=%9($%<($#5%!*% "&#%($$1/3")!*% "&("% -!,(-% ,!1*,)-%5#3!$)"$%&(5%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%
(*5%9!1-5% "&#4#6!4#%<#% 4#3()5%(&#(5%!6% (*=%,4#5)"!4$% "&("% 5)5%*!"% &(@#%34)!4)"=% $"("1$J% % P&)$%9($%
<($#5%!*%"&#%2#=;T(@);%U)$"4),"%M!14"%@#45),"%!*%V%034)-%BCVV%,!*6)4/)*:%"&("%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$F%,-()/$%
Q1(-)6)#5%6!4%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%1*5#4%04"),-#%VVB%!6%"&#%>,#-(*5),%I(*;413",=%E#:)$-(")!*J%%W!9#@#4X%"&)$%
5#,)$)!*%9($%$1<T#,"%"!%(*%(33#(-%"!%"&#%>,#-(*5),%.134#/#%M!14"J%
%
P&#%.134#/#%M!14"%,!*6)4/#5%"&#%34)!4)"=%$"("1$%!6%-!,(-%,!1*,)-%5#3!$)"$%)*%A,"!<#4%BCVVJ%%Y*5#4%
"&#% "#4/$% !6% "&#% 5)$"4)<1")!*% 34!3!$(-X% 3(=/#*"% !6% #(,&% 5#3!$)"!4F$% ,-()/% G/#($14#5% )*% >,#-(*5),%
Z4!*#4% ($% ("% BB% 034)-% BCCLH% 9($% /(5#% )*% (% <($;#"% !6% ,144#*,)#$% 9)"&% ,!*@#4$)!*$% /(5#% 1$)*:%
M#*"4(-%I(*;%!6%>,#-(*5%$#--)*:%4("#$%($%("%BB%034)-%BCCLJ%%P&#%5)$"4)<1")!*%,144#*,)#$%9#4#%>,#-(*5),%
Z4!*#4X%[14!$X%Y.%5!--(4$%(*5%$"#4-)*:J%%0%"!"(-%!6%O\7C%/)--)!*X%]\VC%/)--)!*X%^\VC%/)--)!*%(*5%>.Z%VC%
<)--)!*%9($%5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%Q1(-)6=)*:%34)!4)"=%,4#5)"!4$J%%P&#%M!1*,)-%"&#4#6!4#%4#,#)@#5%(%5)$"4)<1")!*%)*%
+#<41(4=%BCVB%,-!$#%"!%!*#_"&)45%!6% )"$%34)!4)"=%,-()/J%%P&#%>,#-(*5),%5)$"4)<1")!*% )$%,144#*"-=%&#-5% )*%
#$,4!9J%
%
P&#%`)*5)*:%Y3%I!(45%(**!1*,#5%)*%'(4,&%BCVB%"&("% )"%(*"),)3("#5%"&("%4#,!@#4)#$%9!1-5%#a,##5%
"&#%<!!;%@(-1#%!6%34)!4)"=%,-()/$J%%>"% )$%"&#4#6!4#%*!9%,!*$)5#4#5%-);#-=%"&("%YZ%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%9)--%
4#,!@#4%VCCb%!6% "&#)4%5#3!$)"$X%$1<T#,"% "!%61"14#%#a,&(*:#%4("#%6-1,"1(")!*$J% %P&#% -("#$"%31<-)$&#5%
135("#%)*%U#,#/<#4%BCVB%,!*6)4/$%"&)$%@)#9J%
%
+!--!9)*:% "&#% $(-#% !6% >,#-(*5% +!!5$X% "&#%`)*5)*:% Y3% I!(45% (1"&!4)$#5% (% 614"&#4% 5)$"4)<1")!*% "!%
34)!4)"=%,4#5)"!4$% )*%'(=%BCVBJ% %P&#%5)$"4)<1")!*%9($%/(5#%9&!--=% )*%$"#4-)*:%(*5% "&#% "!"(-%(/!1*"%
5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%,4#5)"!4$%9($%OD8C%/)--)!*J%%0%614"&#4%5)$"4)<1")!*%!6%$"#4-)*:X%Y.%U!--(4$%(*5%[14!%9($%
/(5#% )*%A,"!<#4% BCVBJ% P(;#*% "!:#"&#4% 9)"&% "&#% #(4-)#4% 5)$"4)<1")!*$% "&)$% 4()$#5% "&#% "!"(-% (/!1*"%
5)$"4)<1"#5%"!%(334!a)/("#-=%7LJS8bJ%%%
%
P&#% 61"14#% 3(""#4*% !6% 5)$"4)<1")!*$% <=% "&#%`)*5)*:% Y3% I!(45% )$% *!"% ;*!9*X% <1"% "&#% M!1*,)-% &($%
6!--!9#5%M>R+0F$%4#,!//#*5(")!*%(*5%)*%#$")/(")*:%"&#%,144#*"%#a3#,"#5%4#,!@#4(<-#%(/!1*"%"&#%
M!1*,)-%&($%/(5#%"&#%6!--!9)*:%($$1/3")!*$%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%"&#%")/)*:%!6%4#,!@#4)#$c%
%
U#,#/<#4%BCVN% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV7% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV8% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVS% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCV\% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVD% \J8Cb%
U#,#/<#4%BCVL% 8JN8b%
%
% %

Page 117



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9*"#6#$"% ,6#7)"#7% "!% "&#% :!/56#&#*$);#% 9*,!/#% (*7%< =5#*7)"36#% ."("#/#*"% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8% "&#$#%
)*;#$"/#*"$%>?3"%*!"%(,"3(--@%6#,#);#7A%)$%($%8!--!B$C%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

D#6)"(?-#%E(*F%G-,% HI% 1H%

JE9%&8% KLH% HML%

%
N&#%:!3*,)-%"!!F%(7;(*"(O#%!8%"&#%:(5)"(-%+)*(*,#%4#O3-(")!*$%"!%7#8#6%"&#%)/5(,"%!8%)/5()6/#*"$%
6#,!O*)$#7%!*%"&#$#%)*;#$"/#*"$%)*%HPPQRPI%(*7%HPPIRKP%!*%"&#%S#*#6(-%+3*7%3$)*O%"&#%+)*(*,)(-%
9*$"63/#*"$% 27T3$"/#*"% 2,,!3*"U% % V*7#6% "&#% 6#O3-(")!*$% "&#% "!"(-% )/5()6/#*"$% 6#,!O*)$#7% )*% "&#%
:!/56#&#*$);#% 9*,!/#%(*7%<=5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"% )*%HPPQRPI%(*7%HPPIRKP%B#6#%,&(6O#7% "!% "&#%
S#*#6(-%+3*7% )*%HPKPRKKU% %+6!/%HPKPRKKW%(*@%,&(*O#$% "!% "&#% )/5()6/#*"$%56#;)!3$-@% 6#,!O*)$#7%
(6#%6#8-#,"#7%)*%"&#%S#*#6(-%+3*7%)*%"&#%6#-#;(*"%@#(6U%%
%
+36"&#6%7#"()-$%!*%"&#%:!3*,)-X$%(556!(,&%"!%/(*(O)*O%,6#7)"%6)$F$%(6#%,!*"()*#7%)*% !"#%MQU%

26 Long-Term Debtors

J!*OY"#6/%7#?"!6$%B&),&%8(--%73#%(8"#6%(%5#6)!7%!8%("%-#($"%!*#%@#(6C%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

'!6"O(O#$% M% Q% KZ%

S6(*7%26,(7#%6#;#6$#%-#($#%56#/)3/% HKZ% HHM% HHQ%

G6);("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*O%)/56!;#/#*"%-!(*$% QMH% QKH% 1ZL%

.(-#%!8%-(*7%("%[)*O$%D#7O#$% MP% MP% MP%

J!*O%"#6/%-!(*%\%[#-$#@%[#66)7O#%.5!6"$%:#*"6#% H1% MQ% LK%

1,108 1,111 1,001

27 Assets Held for Sale

(£000s)
Current Long Term

2012/13 2011/12 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 0 0 0 0

2$$#"$%*#B-@%,-($$)8)#7%($%&#-7%
8!6%$(-#C%

% % % %

G6!5#6"@W%5-(*"%]%#^3)5/#*"% Q1I% 1L% MWMZK% P%

2$$#"$%$!-7% >HQA% >1LA% P% P%

9/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$% P% P% >KZA% P%

Balance at 31 March 841 0 3,354 0

%

N&#%)/5()6/#*"%-!$$%6#,!O*)$#7%)*%HPKHRKM%6#-("#$%"!%-(*7%("%J(")/#6%:-!$#%B&#6#%"&#%#=5#,"#7%8()6%
;(-3#%!*%7)$5!$(-%)$%-!B#6%"&(*%"&#%56#;)!3$%;(-3(")!*%!*%(*%#=)$")*O%3$#%?($)$U%
%
% %

Page 118



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

28 Debtors

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9#*"4(-%:!;#4*/#*"%<!5)#$% =8>% ??@% 7ABCD%

E"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$% DA8CD% CABB7% DAFC>%

 G.%<!5)#$% D=% C?% DB%

H1<-),%,!43!4(")!*$%(*5%"4(5)*:%61*5$% B% C% F%

9!1*,)-%I(J%3(K#4$%L9)"K%$&(4#M% =CD% =CC% =?>%

9!1*,)-%I(J%3(K#4$%L34#,#3")*:%<!5)#$%$&(4#M% CAB?B% CABCB% CA=D@%

G!1$)*:%"#*(*"$%(*5%-#($#&!-5#4$% 7=@% 78B% =87%

I4(5#%(*5%!"&#4% CA7>7% CAB7?% DA?F=%

8,076 8,079 11,177

29 Cash and Cash Equivalents

I&#%<(-(*,#%!6%,($&%(*5%,($&%#N1);(-#*"$%)$%/(5#%13%!6%"&#%6!--!O)*:%#-#/#*"$P%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9($&%&#-5%<K%"&#%9!1*,)-% @% F% @%

Q(*R%,144#*"%(,,!1*"$% 78>% F>?% FBC%

Q(*R%5#3!$)"$%(,,!1*"% 8AC@B% 7AF?B% CAC@B%

% 7,734 4,781 2,557

30 Short-Term Creditors

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9#*"4(-%:!;#4*/#*"%<!5)#$% L788M% L7AF@DM% L>@=M%

E"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$% L@C8M% LDADDCM% LFADB8M%

 G.%<!5)#$% LD8M% B% LDM%

H1<-),%,!43!4(")!*$%(*5%"4(5)*:%61*5$% LCCM% LD>M% B%

G!1$)*:%"#*(*"$%(*5%-#($#&!-5#4$% L=7BM% L=D>M% L=DFM%

E"&#4%#*")")#$%(*5%)*5);)51(-$% L>A?@8M% L=A>@CM% L7AB>BM%

(11,540) (13,053) (8,767)

%
%
%
% %

Page 119



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

31 Receipts in Advance

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012 1 April 2011

9(/:6)7;#%9)"<%9!3*,)-%$&(6#%!8%9!3*,)-%=(>%
6#,#)5"$%

?@A1B% ?@CAB% ?@0DB%

9(5)"(-%;6(*"$%6#,#)5"$%)*%(7E(*,#% ?FGHDIB% ?CDDB% ?FG@DCB%

J"&#6% ?FGKIIB% ?FGD@DB% ?FGDHFB%

(3,352) (2,779) (3,424)

32 Provisions

=&#%)*$36(*,#%56!E)$)!*%&($%:##*%$#"%($)7#%"!%/##"%"&#%#$")/("#7%,!$"%"!%"&#%9!3*,)-%!8%!3"$"(*7)*;%
)*$36(*,#%,-()/$L%%M!N#E#6G%"&#%(,"3(-%,!$"%?)8%(*<B%!8%)*7)E)73(-%,-()/$%(*7%"&#%")/)*;%!8%5(</#*"$%
(6#%3*,#6"()*%(*7%/(<%:#%7#5#*7#*"%35!*%"&#%6#$3-"$%!8%*#;!")(")!*%(*7O!6%-#;(-%(,")!*L%
%
P*7#6%,366#*"%)*$36(*,#%(66(*;#/#*"$G%"&#%9!3*,)-%"(Q#$%6#$5!*$):)-)"<%8!6%/##")*;%"&#%8)6$"%RFHGHHH%
!8%(*<% -)(:)-)"<%!6%/!"!6%,-()/%35%"!%(%"!"(-%,!/:)*#7% -!$$% )*%(*<% )*$36(*,#%<#(6%!8%RIDAGHHHL%%+!6%
56!5#6"<% -!$$#$G% "&#% 9!3*,)-% )$% 6#$5!*$):-#% 8!6% /##")*;% 35% "!% RFAHGHHH% !8% ,-()/$% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8%
S#*#6(-%+3*7%56!5#6"<%86!/%"&#%56!E)$)!*%(*7%35%"!%RIAHGHHH%8!6%M42%56!5#6"<%86!/%"&#%M42L%%=&#%
9!3*,)-T$%#>"#6*(-%)*$36#6$%/##"%,-()/$%!6%-!$$#$%)*%#>,#$$%!8%"&#$#%(/!3*"$L%
%

(£000s)
Insurance 
Provision

Other
Provisions

Total 

Balance at 1 April 2012 (306) (9) (315)

277)")!*(-%56!E)$)!*$%/(7#%)*%IHFIOF@% ?ICHB% ?CB% ?ICCB%

2/!3*"$%3$#7%)*%IHFIOF@% FH0% H% FH0%

P*3$#7%(/!3*"$%6#E#6$#7%)*%IHFIOF@% FF@% H% FF@%

Balance as at 31 March 2013 (349) (15) (364)

%
%
% %

Page 120



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

33 Grant Income 

9&#% :!1*,)-% ,4#5)"#5% "&#% 6!--!;)*<% $)<*)6),(*"% <4(*"$% (*5% ,!*"4)=1")!*$% "!% "&#% :!/34#&#*$)>#%
?*,!/#%(*5%@A3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)*%BCDBEDFG%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

.&(4#%!6% (")!*(-% !*H5!/#$"),%2("#$% IJK7FLM% INKBOJM%

2#>#*1#%.133!4"%P4(*"% IDOFM% IBKB7NM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%+4##Q#%P4(*"% IDNDM% IDNCM%

 #;%R!/#$%S!*1$% IDKF88M% I8DCM%

 #;%S145#*$%P4(*"$% IDBOM% IF7M%

R!/#-#$$*#$$%P4(*"% ILNLM% C%

:(3)"(-%<4(*"$%(*5%,!*"4)=1")!*$% IDKLNNM% IBKLLJM%

(12,446) (13,187)

Credited to Services

R!/#-#$$*#$$%P4(*"% C% ILNLM%

T!,(-%.133!4"%U(4"*#4$&)3%P4(*"$% C% I7FM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%05/)*%.1=$)5V% IBD7M% IBFBM%

:!1*,)-%9(A%S#*#6)"$%.1=$)5V% IOK7D7M% IOKBONM%

2#*"%0--!;(*,#%(*5%2#*"%2#=("#$%05/)*%.1=$)5V% I7NNM% IOCNM%

2#*"%0--!;(*,#%.1=$)5V% IDNKDJCM% IDOKO77M%

2#*"%2#=("#$%.1=$)5V% IDJKF7LM% IDOKJBFM%

 !*%R20%2#*"%2#=("#$%.1=$)5V% IDC7M% IONM%

(42,734) (41,258)

%

9&#%:!1*,)-%&($% 4#,#)>#5%(%*1/=#4%!6%5#>#-!3#4%,!*"4)=1")!*$% "&("%&(>#%V#"% "!%=#% 4#,!<*)$#5%($%
)*,!/#%($%"&#V%&(>#%,!*5)")!*$%(""(,&#5%"!%"&#/%"&("%/(V%4#W1)4#%"&#%/!*)#$%"!%=#%4#"14*#5%"!%"&#%
<)>#4X%%9&#%=(-(*,#$%("%"&#%V#(4H#*5%(4#%($%6!--!;$G%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

Y1#%;)"&)*%DB%/!*"&$% IDKCNBM% IONNM%

Y1#%)*%/!4#%"&(*%DB%/!*"&$% I7KF8NM% IBKNBOM%

Total (5,469) (3,403)

%
%
%
% %

Page 121



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

34 Usable Reserves

'!9#/#*"$% )*%"&#%:!3*,)-;$%3$(<-#%6#$#69#$%(6#%7#"()-#7% )*%"&#%'!9#/#*"% )*%4#$#69#$%."("#/#*"%
(*7% !"#$%=%(*7%0>%

35 Unusable Reserves

(£000s) 31 March 2013
31 March 2012

(as restated see 
Note 43)

1 April 2011

?#8#66#7%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$% @A1B% @CCB% @DCB%

4#9(-3(")!*%4#$#69#% @0EFGD1B% @=GFHG0B% @IHFAG0B%

:(5)"(-%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% @=AAF0CGB% @=CAFGEEB% @ACEFCAGB%

+)*(*,)(-%K*$"63/#*"$%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% HG% IDI% CHI%

L#*$)!*$%4#$#69#% DEFDAC% CHFD=0% 0CFHCG%

:!--#,")!*%+3*7%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% G0C% G0H% HI%

2,,3/3-("#7%2<$#*,#$%2,,!3*"% =DG% 00H% 01C%

Total Unusable Reserves (425,125) (437,960) (652,229)

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

M&#%?#8#66#7%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#%&!-7$%"&#%N()*$%6#,!N*)$#7%!*%"&#%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*O,366#*"%
($$#"$% <3"% 8!6% P&),&% ,($&% $#""-#/#*"% &($% Q#"% "!% "(R#% 5-(,#>% % S*7#6% $"("3"!6Q% (66(*N#/#*"$F% "&#%
:!3*,)-% 7!#$% *!"% "6#("% "&#$#%N()*$% ($% 3$(<-#% 8!6% 8)*(*,)*N% *#P% ,(5)"(-% #T5#*7)"36#% 3*")-% "&#Q% (6#%
<(,R#7%<Q%,(5)"(-%6#,#)5"$>%%U&#*%"&#%7#8#66#7%,($&%$#""-#/#*"%(,"3(--Q%"(R#$%5-(,#F%(/!3*"$%(6#%
"6(*$8#66#7%"!%"&#%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#>%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April (77) (97)

M6(*$8#6%"!%"&#%:(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#69#%35!*%6#,#)5"%!8%,($&% GC% E1%

Balance at 31 March (60) (77)

Revaluation Reserve

M&#% 4#9(-3(")!*% 4#$#69#% ,!*"()*$% "&#% N()*$%/(7#% <Q% "&#% :!3*,)-% (6)$)*N% 86!/% )*,6#($#$% )*% "&#%
9(-3#%!8%)"$%L6!5#6"QF%L-(*"%(*7%VW3)5/#*">%%M&#%<(-(*,#%)$%6#73,#7%P&#*%($$#"$%P)"&%(,,3/3-("#7%
N()*$%(6#X%

 % 4#9(-3#7%7!P*P(67$%!6%)/5()6#7%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%-!$"%

 % S$#7%)*%"&#%56!9)$)!*%!8%$#69),#$%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%,!*$3/#7%"&6!3N&%7#56#,)(")!*F%!6%

 % ?)$5!$#7%!8%(*7%"&#%N()*$%(6#%6#(-)$#7%
%

M&#% 4#$#69#% ,!*"()*$% !*-Q% 6#9(-3(")!*% N()*$% (,,3/3-("#7% $)*,#% G% 256)-% E11CF% "&#% 7("#% "&("% "&#%
4#$#69#%P($%,6#("#7>%%2,,3/3-("#7%N()*$%(6)$)*N%<#8!6#%"&("%7("#%(6#%,!*$!-)7("#7%)*"!%"&#%<(-(*,#%
!*%"&#%:(5)"(-%27J3$"/#*"%2,,!3*">%
% %

Page 122



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13

2011/12

(as restated 
see Note 43)

Balance at 1 April (41,815) (38,615)

 #"%9:()*$;%<%-!$$#$%!*%4#=(-1(")!*$%514)*:%"&#%>#(4% 988?@@@;% 9A?BC7;%

Amounts written off to the Capital Adjustment Account

D)66#4#*,#%E#"F##*%6()4%=(-1#%5#34#,)(")!*%(*5%&)$"!4),(-%,!$"%
5#34#,)(")!*%

G8H% IC7%

0,,1/1-("#5%:()*$%!*%($$#"$%$!-5%!4%$,4(33#5% AI% H%

Balance at 31 March (52,190) (41,815)

Capital Adjustment Account

J&#% K(3)"(-% 05L1$"/#*"% 0,,!1*"% (E$!4E$% "&#% ")/)*:% 5)66#4#*,#$% (4)$)*:% 64!/% "&#% 5)66#4#*"%
(44(*:#/#*"$% 6!4% (,,!1*")*:% 6!4% "&#% ,!*$1/3")!*% !6% *!*M,144#*"% ($$#"$% (*5% 6!4% 6)*(*,)*:% "&#%
(,N1)$)")!*?%,!*$"41,")!*%!4%#*&(*,#/#*"%!6%"&!$#%($$#"$%1*5#4%$"("1"!4>%34!=)$)!*$O%%J&#%0,,!1*"%
)$% 5#E)"#5% F)"&% "&#% ,!$"% !6% (,N1)$)")!*?% ,!*$"41,")!*% !4% #*&(*,#/#*"% ($% 5#34#,)(")!*?% )/3()4/#*"%
-!$$#$% (*5% (/!4")$(")!*$% (4#% ,&(4:#5% "!% "&#%K!/34#&#*$)=#% P*,!/#% (*5%QR3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"%
9F)"&%4#,!*,)-)*:%3!$")*:$%64!/%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#%"!%,!*=#4"%6()4%=(-1#%6):14#$%"!%(%&)$"!4),(-%
,!$"%E($)$;O%%J&#%0,,!1*"% )$%,4#5)"#5%F)"&%"&#%(/!1*"$%$#"%($)5#%E>%"&#%K!1*,)-%($%6)*(*,#%6!4% "&#%
,!$"$%!6%(,N1)$)")!*?%,!*$"41,")!*%(*5%#*&(*,#/#*"O%
%

J&#%0,,!1*"%,!*"()*$%(,,1/1-("#5%:()*$%(*5%-!$$#$%!*%P*=#$"/#*"%S4!3#4")#$O%%
%

J&#%0,,!1*"%(-$!%,!*"()*$%4#=(-1(")!*%:()*$%(,,1/1-("#5%!*%S4!3#4">?%S-(*"%(*5%QN1)3/#*"%E#6!4#%
8%034)-%@HHI?%"&#%5("#%"&("%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#%F($%,4#("#5%"!%&!-5%$1,&%:()*$O%
%
 !"#% T%3 4!=)5#$% 5#"()-$% !6% "&#% $!14,#% !6% (--% "&#% "4(*$(,")!*$% 3!$"#5% "!% "&#% K(3)"(-% 05L1$"/#*"%
0,,!1*"?%(3(4"%64!/%"&!$#%)*=!-=)*:%"&#%2#=(-1(")!*%2#$#4=#O%
%
%
%
% %

Page 123



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13

2011/12

(as restated 
see Note 43)

Balance at 1 April (476,122) (672,761)

9&(6:#$%8!6%7#56#,)(")!*%(*7%)/5()6/#*"%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$% <0=>?>% <@=1@<%

4#A(-3(")!*%-!$$#$%!*%56!5#6"B=%5-(*"%(*7%#C3)5/#*"% ?=>D1% E@=?D0F%

G/5()6/#*"%-!$$#$%!*%($$#"$%&#-7%8!6%$(-#% <D% >%

2/!6")$(")!*%!8%)*"(*:)H-#%($$#"$% <@I% <11%

4#A#*3#%#J5#*7)"36#%83*7#7%86!/%,(5)"(-%3*7#6%$"("3"#%(*7%7#%
/)*)/3$%,(5)"(-%$5#*7%

1=KI?% 1=L1>%

2/!3*"$%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$%M6)""#*%!88%!*%7)$5!$(-%!6%$(-#%($%5(6"%!8%
"&#%:()*N-!$$%!*%7)$5!$(-%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)A#%G*,!/#%(*7%
OJ5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

K=?D<% K=I@0%

P#56#,)(")!*%)*%#J,#$$%!8%&)$"!6),%,!$"%"6(*$8#6%86!/%6#A(-3(")!*%6#$#6A#% E?<>F% EDI0F%

Q6(*$8#6%86!/%6#A(-3(")!*%6#$#6A#%!*%7)$5!$(-%!8%*!*;,366#*"%($$#"$%% >% >%

R$#%!8%"&#%9(5)"(-%4#,#)5"$%4#$#6A#%"!%8)*(*,#%*#M%,(5)"(-%#J5#*7)"36#% EDDLF% E@=>0IF%

R$#%!8%"&#%'(S!6%4#5()6$%4#$#6A#%"!%8)*(*,#%*#M%,(5)"(-%#J5#*7)"36#% EK=@1@F% E@=K>>F%

255-),(")!*%!8%:6(*"$%"!%,(5)"(-%8)*(*,)*:%86!/%"&#%9(5)"(-%T6(*"$%
R*(55-)#7%2,,!3*"%

E1=0I<F% EK=10@F%

4#5(B/#*"%!8%56)A("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%-!(*$% KI% <1%

U6)A("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%-!(*$%(7S3$"/#*"% EDF% EKDF%

9(5)"(-%#J5#*7)"36#%,&(6:#7%(:()*$"%"&#%T#*#6(-%+3*7%(*7%V!3$)*:%
4#A#*3#%2,,!3*"%H(-(*,#$%

E<>=<K0F% E0=<<>F%

.#-8;8)*(*,)*:%!8%"&#%V42%$#""-#/#*"%5(B/#*"% >% 1<K=0D1%

'!A#/#*"$%)*%"&#%/(6W#"%A(-3#%!8%)*A#$"/#*"%56!5#6")#$%7#H)"#7%!6%
,6#7)"#7%"!%"&#%9!/56#&#*$)A#%G*,!/#%(*7%OJ5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%

E1=K1KF% E<0=@DIF%

Balance at 31 March (466,571) (476,122)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Q&#%+)*(*,)(-%G*$"63/#*"$%27S3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"%(H$!6H$%"&#%")/)*:%7)88#6#*,#$%(6)$)*:%86!/%"&#%7)88#6#*"%
(66(*:#/#*"$%8!6%(,,!3*")*:%8!6%)*,!/#%(*7%#J5#*$#$%6#-(")*:%"!%,#6"()*%8)*(*,)(-%)*$"63/#*"$%(*7%8!6%H#(6)*:%
-!$$#$%!6%H#*#8)")*:%86!/%:()*$%)*%(,,!67(*,#%M)"&%$"("3"!6B%56!A)$)!*$X%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 393 783

2/!6")$(")!*%!8%7#H"%6#7#/5")!*%56#/)3/% EK><F% EK@IF%

'!A#/#*"%)*%8()6%A(-3#%!8%56)A("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*:%)/56!A#/#*"%-!(*$% E<<F% E@@F%

'!A#/#*"$%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%)*A#$"/#*"$%)*%G,#-(*7),%H(*W$% >% >%

Balance at 31 March 81 393

%
%
% %

Page 124



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Pensions Reserve

9&#%:#*$)!*$%2#$#4;#%(<$!4<$% "&#% ")/)*=%5)66#4#*,#$%(4)$)*=% 64!/% "&#%5)66#4#*"% (44(*=#/#*"$% 6!4%
(,,!1*")*=% 6!4% 3!$"% #/3-!>/#*"% <#*#6)"$% (*5% 6!4% 61*5)*=% <#*#6)"$% )*% (,,!45(*,#% ?)"&% $"("1"!4>%
34!;)$)!*$@%%9&#%A!1*,)-%(,,!1*"$%6!4%3!$"%#/3-!>/#*"%<#*#6)"$%)*%"&#%A!/34#&#*$);#%B*,!/#%(*5%
CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%($%"&#%<#*#6)"$%(4#%#(4*#5%<>%#/3-!>##$%(,,41)*=%>#(4$%!6%$#4;),#E%135(")*=%
"&#% -)(<)-)")#$% 4#,!=*)$#5% "!% 4#6-#,"% )*6-(")!*E%,&(*=)*=%($$1/3")!*$%(*5%) *;#$"/#*"% 4#"14*$%!*%(*>%
4#$!14,#$%$#"%($)5#%"!%/##"%"&#%,!$"$@%%F!?#;#4E%$"("1"!4>%(44(*=#/#*"$%4#G1)4#%<#*#6)"$%#(4*#5%"!%
<#% 6)*(*,#5% ($% "&#%A!1*,)-%/(H#$% #/3-!>#4I$% ,!*"4)<1")!*$% "!% 3#*$)!*$% 61*5$% !4% #;#*"1(-->% 3(>$%
(*>% 3#*$)!*$% 6!4% ?&),&% )$% )"% 5)4#,"->% 4#$3!*$)<-#@% % 9&#% 5#<)"% <(-(*,#% !*% "&#% :#*$)!*$% 2#$#4;#%
"&#4#6!4#%$&!?$%(%$1<$"(*")(-%$&!4"6(--%)*%"&#%<#*#6)"$%#(4*#5%<>%3($"%(*5%,144#*"%#/3-!>##$%(*5%"&#%
4#$!14,#$% "&#%A!1*,)-% &($% $#"% ($)5#% "!%/##"% "&#/@% % 9&#% $"("1"!4>% (44(*=#/#*"$%?)--% #*$14#% "&("%
61*5)*=% ?)--% &(;#% <##*%$ #"% ($)5#% <>% "&#% ")/#% "&#% <#*#6)"$% ,!/#% "!% <#% 3()5@% %+1 4"&#4% 5#"()-$% !*%
3#*$)!*%"4(*$(,")!*$%(4#%$&!?*%)*%*!"#%8J@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 78,945 57,871

0,"1(4)(-%=()*$%!4%-!$$#$%!*%3#*$)!*$%($$#"$%(*5%-)(<)-)")#$% KKEK8L% KJE77M%

2#;#4$(-%!6%)"#/$%4#-(")*=%"!%4#")4#/#*"%<#*#6)"$%5#<)"#5%!4%,4#5)"#5%"!%
"&#%.143-1$%!4%N#6),)"%!*%"&#%:4!;)$)!*%!6%.#4;),#$%)*%"&#%
A!/34#&#*$);#%B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%

OEOKP% PEQQL%

C/3-!>#4I$%3#*$)!*%,!*"4)<1")!*$%(*5%5)4#,"%3(>/#*"$%"!%3#*$)!*#4$%
3(>(<-#%)*%"&#%>#(4%

RQEL8MS% RQEJMPS%

Balance at 31 March 92,967 78,945

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

9&#%A!--#,")!*%+1*5%05T1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%/(*(=#$% "&#%5)66#4#*,#$%(4)$)*=% 64!/% "&#% 4#,!=*)")!*%!6%
,!1*,)-% "(D% )*,!/#% )*% "&#%A!/34#&#*$);#% B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%($% )"% 6(--$%51#% 64!/%
,!1*,)-% "(D% 3(>#4$% ,!/3(4#5% ?)"&% "&#% $"("1"!4>% (44(*=#/#*"$% 6!4% 3(>)*=% (,4!$$% (/!1*"$% "!% "&#%
U#*#4(-%+1*5%64!/%"&#%A!--#,")!*%+1*5@%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 158 83

0/!1*"%<>%?&),&%,!1*,)-%"(D%)*,!/#%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%A!/34#&#*$);#%
B*,!/#%(*5%CD3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%)$%5)66#4#*"%64!/%,!1*,)-%"(D%)*,!/#%
,(-,1-("#5%6!4%"&#%>#(4%)*%(,,!45(*,#%?)"&%$"("1"!4>%4#G1)4#/#*"$%

RKS% O7%

Balance at 31 March 157 158

Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account

9&#%0,,1/1-(")*=%A!/3#*$("#5%0<$#*,#$%05T1$"/#*"%0,,!1*"%(<$!4<$%"&#%5)66#4#*,#$%"&("%?!1-5%
!"&#4?)$#%(4)$#%!*%"&#%U#*#4(-%+1*5%V(-(*,#%64!/%(,,41)*=%6!4%,!/3#*$("#5%(<$#*,#$%#(4*#5%<1"%
*!"%"(H#*%)*%"&#%>#(4@%%9&#%(/!1*"$%(,,41#5%("%"&#%#*5%!6%#(,&%>#(4%4#6-#,"%1*"(H#*%-#(;#E%")/#W!66W
)*W-)#1%(*5%6-#D)")/#%<(-(*,#$@%%."("1"!4>%(44(*=#/#*"$%4#G1)4#%"&("%"&#%)/3(,"%!*%"&#%U#*#4(-%+1*5%
V(-(*,#%)$%*#1"4(-)$#5%<>%"4(*$6#4$%"!%!4%64!/%"&#%0,,!1*"@%
%
%
% %

Page 125



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Balance at 1 April 558 507

.#""-#/#*"%!8%!6%,(*,#--(")!*%!8%
(,,63(-%/(7#%("%"&#%#*7%!8%"&#%
56#,#7)*9%:#(6%

;00<=% % ;0>?=% %

2/!3*"$%(,,63#7%("%"&#%#*7%!8%
"&#%,366#*"%:#(6%

1@A% % 00<% %

2/!3*"%B:%C&),&%!88),#6%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(69#7%"!%"&#%
D!/56#&#*$)E#%F*,!/#%(*7%
GH5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%!*%(*%
(,,63(-$%B($)$%)$%7)88#6#*"%86!/%
6#/3*#6(")!*%,&(69#(B-#%)*%"&#%
:#(6%)*%(,,!67(*,#%C)"&%
$"("3"!6:%6#I3)6#/#*"$%

% ;J?=% % 0A%

Balance at 31 March 491 558

36 Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent Liabilities

Compulsory Purchase Orders

Residential dwellings:

K&#%D!3*,)-%&($%,!/53-$!6:%536,&($#7%"C!%&!3$#$L%"&#%8)6$"%)*%M>>NO>1%(*7%"&#%$#,!*7%)*%M>>JO>?P%
K&#% !B-)9(")!*% "!% ,!/5#*$("#% "&#% 56#E)!3$% !C*#6$% (6)$#$% C&#*% "&#% ,-()/(*"% (,"3(--:% ,-()/$%
,!/5#*$(")!*%(*7%$3,&%(/!3*"% )$%(96##7%!6%(C(67#7%B:%"&#%Q(*7$%K6)B3*(-P%K&#%,-()/(*"$%&(E#%
AM%:#(6$%86!/%"&#%7("#%!8%536,&($#%"!%/(R#%(%,-()/%8!6%,!/5#*$(")!*%(*7%(6#%#*")"-#7%"!%"&#%E(-3#%
!8% -(*7% (*7% 56!5#6":L% 5-3$% )*"#6#$"% (,,63#7% )*% (,,!67(*,#% C)"&% "&#% )*"#6#$"% 6("#% $#"% )*% "&#% Q(*7%
D!/5#*$(")!*%2,"%A@JAP%K&#%E(-3#$%5-3$%(,,3/3-("#7%)*"#6#$"%("%NA%'(6,&%M>AN%(6#%S0<NL11<P%
%

2%,!/5#*$(")!*%,-()/%&($%*!C%B##*%6#,#)E#7%)*%6#$5#,"%!8%!*#%!8%"&#%"C!%&!3$#$P%

Legal Cases

K&#6#% (6#% "C!% !*9!)*9% -#9(-% ,($#$% )*% 6#$5#,"% !8% 5-(**)*9% )$$3#$P% % 2% -#9(-% ,&(--#*9#% B:% C(:% !8%
T37),)(-%6#E)#C%&($%B##*%/(7#%)*%B!"&%,($#$%(*7%$&!3-7%-#9(-%56!,##7)*9$%8)*7%(9()*$"%"&#%D!3*,)-L%
)"%/(:%B#%-)(B-#%8!6%$!/#%!6%(--%!8%"&#%,-()/(*"$U%,!$"$P%

Property Search Fees

2%96!35%!8%V6!5#6":%.#(6,&%D!/5(*)#$% )$%$##R)*9% "!%,-()/%6#83*7$%!8% 8##$%5()7% "!% "&#%D!3*,)-% "!%
(,,#$$%-(*7%,&(69#$%7("(P%%V6!,##7)*9$%&(E#%*!"%:#"%B##*%)$$3#7P%%K&#%D!3*,)-%&($%B##*%)*8!6/#7%
"&("% "&#%E(-3#%!8% "&!$#%,-()/$% )$%("%56#$#*"%S@0LNA1%5-3$% )*"#6#$"%(*7%,!$"$P% %K&#%,-()/(*"$%&(E#%
(-$!%)*")/("#7%"&("%"&#:%/(:%B6)*9%(%,-()/%(9()*$"%(--%G*9-)$&%(*7%W#-$&%-!,(-%(3"&!6)")#$%8!6%(--#9#7%
(*")X,!/5#")")E#% B#&(E)!6P% % F"% )$% *!"% ,-#(6%C&("% "&#% E(-3#% !8% (*:% $3,&% ,-()/%C!3-7% B#% (9()*$"% "&#%
D!3*,)-P%%F"%)$%5!$$)B-#%"&("%(77)")!*(-%,-()/(*"$%/(:%,!/#%8!6C(67%"!%$3B/)"%,-()/$%8!6%6#83*7$L%B3"%
*!*#%&(E#%B##*%)*")/("#7%("%56#$#*"P%

Page 126



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 77%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Municipal Mutual Insurance

8*% 9::;<:=% "&#% >!1*,)-?$% "&#*% )*$14#4$@% '1*),)3(-% '1"1(-% 8*$14(*,#% A''8B@% ,#($#5% "(C)*D% *#E%
F1$)*#$$%(*5%(4#%*!E%F#)*D%/(*(D#5%1*5#4%(%G$,&#/#%!6%(44(*D#/#*"HI%%>)"J%>!1*,)-%,-()/$%1*5#4%
"&)$%(44(*D#/#*"%&(K#%"!"(--#5%L9@M=N@ON:I%%P&#%5)4#,"!4$%!6%''8%"4)DD#4#5%(*%)*$!-K#*,J%1*5#4%"&)$%
$,&#/#%)*% !K#/F#4%;M9;@%/#(*)*D%"&("%(%$!-K#*"%41*Q!66%E($%*!%-!*D#4%6!4#$##*I%

P&#%(33!)*"#5%(5/)*)$"4("!4% &($% )*5),("#5% "&("%F($#5%!*%,144#*"% 34!R#,")!*$%(% -#KJ%#S1(-% "!%97T%
A#U,-15)*D% "&#% 6)4$"% L7M@MMM% !6% ,-()/$B% )$% 4#S1)4#5I% % 0% ,4#5)"!4% 6!4% L9NV@MMM% &($% "&#4#6!4#% F##*%
4#,!D*)$#5%)*%"&#%;M9;<9=%$"("#/#*"%!6%(,,!1*"$I%%P&#%(5/)*)$"4("!4%)$%4#S1)4#5%"!%4#K)#E%"&#%-#KJ%
4("#%("%-#($"%!*,#%#K#4J%9;%/!*"&$I%%0-"&!1D&%"&#%(5/)*)$"4("!4%&($%)*5),("#5%"&("%1*-#$$%"&#4#%)$%(%
$)D*)6),(*"%,&(*D#%"!%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%3!$)")!*%!6%''8@%"&#%,144#*"%-#KJ%!6%97T%$&!1-5%F#%$166),)#*"@%"&#J%
&(K#%1*5#4"(C#*%/!5#-)*D% "&("% )*5),("#$%(%E!4$"%,($#%$,#*(4)!% "&("%(% -#KJ%!6%13%"!%;VT%,!1-5%F#%
4#S1)4#5I%

New arrangements for the retention of Business Rates

 #E%-!,(-%(1"&!4)"J%61*5)*D%(44(*D#/#*"$%,(/#%)*"!%#66#,"%!*%9%034)-%;M9=%E)"&%"&#%)*"4!51,")!*%!6%(%
$,&#/#%6!4%"&#%-!,(-%4#"#*")!*%!6%(%$&(4#%!6%F1$)*#$$%4("#$%4#3-(,)*D%"&#%!-5%+!4/1-(%W4(*"%$J$"#/I%%
X!,(-% (1"&!4)")#$% E)--% *!E% ($$1/#% (% -)(F)-)"J% 6!4% 4#61*5)*D% F1$)*#$$#$% E&!% &(K#% $1,,#$$61--J%
(33#(-#5% (D()*$"% "&#% 4("#(F-#% K(-1#% !6% "&#)4% 34!3#4")#$% "!% "&#% Y(-1(")!*%Z66),#% 0D#*,JI% % P&)$%E)--%
)*,-15#%(/!1*"$%"&("%E#4#%!4)D)*(--J%,!--#,"#5%(*5%3()5%!K#4%A"!%>#*"4(-%W!K#4*/#*"B%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%
;M9;<9=%(*5%34)!4%J#(4$I%%%

8*%(44)K)*D%("%"&#%#$")/("#5%)*,!/#%64!/%[1$)*#$$%2("#$%6!4%;M9=<9N@%"&#%>!1*,)-%)*,-15#5%(%3415#*"%
#$")/("#% !6% "&#% -)C#-J% 6)*(*,)(-% )/3(,"% !6% $1,,#$$61-% K(-1(")!*% (33#(-$@% )*,-15)*D% "&!$#% 4#-(")*D% "!%
34)!4%J#(4%3#4)!5$%!6%L=IV%/)--)!*%)*%"!"(-I%%Z6%"&)$%$1/@%"&#%>!1*,)-%E!1-5%F#(4%(%NMT%$&(4#%F1"%)"%)$%
*!"%3!$$)F-#%"!%(,,14("#-J%($$#$$%&!E%/1,&%!6%"&)$%E)--%4#-("#%"!%34)!4%J#(4%3#4)!5$I%%%%%

Contingent Assets

VAT

HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) v Isle of Wight and others

P&#% (F!K#% ,($#% &($% F##*% (33#(-#5% (D()*% 6!--!E)*D% (% R15D#/#*"% )*% Z,"!F#4% ;M9;I% %  !% 6)*(-%
5#"#4/)*(")!*%&($%J#"%F##*%/(5#%($% "!%E&#"&#4% "&#%Y0P% -)(F)-)"J% 6!4% "&#%34!K)$)!*%!6%!66Q$"4##"%,(4%
3(4C)*D%FJ%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%$&!1-5%F#%Y0P%$"(*5(45%4("#5%!4%,-($$#5%($%\*!*QF1$)*#$$?%A(*5%&#*,#%
!1"$)5#%"&#%$,!3#%!6%Y0PBI%P&#%>!1*,)-%&($%$1F/)""#5@%F($#5%!*%"&#%3!$$)F-#%6)*(-%!1",!/#%!6%"&#%
,($#@%,-()/$%6!4%"&#%4#3(J/#*"%!6%L;=I]%/)--)!*%!6%Y0P%A*#"%!6%6##$B%3()5%!K#4%"!%^'2>%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%
!66Q$"4##"%,(4%3(4C)*D%$)*,#%"&#%$"(4"%!6%Y0P%)*%034)-%9:]=I%0$%("%=9%'(4,&%;M9=%"&)$%,-()/%4#/()*#5%
!1"$"(*5)*D% 3#*5)*D% "&#% !1",!/#% !6% (% 614"&#4% Y0P% "4)F1*(-% AE)"&% "&#% 5("#% "!% F#% ,!*6)4/#5BI% P&#%
4#$1-"%!6%"&#%"4)F1*(-%E)--%*!"%F#%C*!E*%1*")-%"&#%E)*"#4%!6%;M9N%("%"&#%#(4-)#$"I%%P&)$%"4)F1*(-%E)--%F#%
-!!C)*D%("% "&#%S1#$")!*%!6%3!$$)F-#%5)$"!4")!*%!6%,!/3#")")!*% )6% "&#%34!K)$)!*%!6%!66Q$"4##"%3(4C)*D%FJ%
-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%E($%*!"%$1FR#,"%"!%Y0P%F1"%"&("%34!K)5#5%FJ%"&#%34)K("#%$#,"!4%E($I%

Compound Interest

P&#4#%&(K#%F##*%(%*1/F#4%!6% 4#,#*"%5#K#-!3/#*"$% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% "&#%(F)-)"J%!6% "(U3(J#4$% "!%,-()/%
\,!/3!1*5?@%($%!33!$#5%"!%\$)/3-#?@%)*"#4#$"%!*%/!*)#$%4#3()5%A!4%"!%F#%4#3()5B%"!%"&#/%FJ%^'2>I%
>!/3!1*5% )*"#4#$"% ,(*% 6(4% #U,##5% "&("%!6% $)/3-#% )*"#4#$"% (*5% "&#%>!1*,)-% &($%F##*%(5K)$#5% "&("%
,-()/$% 6!4%,!/3!1*5% )*"#4#$"%,(*@%3!"#*")(--J@%D!%F(,C% "!%9:]=I% 8*%K)#E%!6% "&#%$)D*)6),(*"%K(-1#%!6%
Y0P% 4#3(J/#*"% ,-()/$% (-4#(5J%/(5#% FJ% "&#%>!1*,)-@% F!"&% )*% 4#-(")!*% "!% "&("% $")--% !1"$"(*5)*D% A($%

Page 127



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(9!:#;% (*7% "&!$#% (-6#(7<% 6#5()7% 9<% ='4>% 3*7#6% ?+-#/)*@AB% "&#% >!3*,)-% &($% #*@(@#7% (% 8)6/% !8%
-(C<#6$% "!% $39/)"% (% ,-()/% 8!6% ,!/5!3*7% )*"#6#$"% "!% "&#%=)@&%>!36"D% % E"% )$% ,366#*"-<% 3*,-#(6%C&#*%
"&#$#%,-()/$%C)--%9#%7#"#6/)*#7D%%%

37 Financial Instruments

Categories of Financial Instrument

F&#%8!--!C)*@%,("#@!6)#$%!8%8)*(*,)(-%)*$"63/#*"%(6#%,(66)#7%)*%"&#%9(-(*,#%$&##"G%
%

(£000s)

Long Term Current

31 March 2013
31 March 2012
(as restated)

31 March 2013
31 March 2012 
(as restated)

Investments

H!(*$%(*7%6#,#):(9-#$% IBJKL% MBINO% 0NBONK% 0JB1O1%

Debtors

H!(*$%(*7%6#,#):(9-#$% IBION% IBIII% KBLJP% 0B0MO%

Creditors & Receipts in 
Advance

+)*(*,)(-%-)(9)-)")#$%("%(/!6")$#7%
,!$"%

QLBKNJ;% QMBJM1;% QILBMNL;% QIIBII0;%

H!*@%F#6/%R!66!C)*@% QMIKB10L;% QMIKB10L;% O% O%

(215,208) (213,079) 48,277 52,011

%

>!/5(6("):#%8)@36#$%8!6%KI%'(6,&%MOIM%&(:#%9##*%6#$"("#7%"!%)*,-37#%,(5)"(-%,!*"6)93")!*$%&#-7%($%
6#,#)5"$%)*%(7:(*,#%(*7%(%6#:#6$#%-#($#%56#/)3/%7#9"!6D%

Private Sector Housing Improvement Loans

F&#%>!3*,)-%/(S#$%/#(*$T"#$"#7% -!(*$% !8% 35% "!% UMOBOOO% "!% )*7):)73(-$B% $#,36#7% !*% "&#% :(-3#% !8%
"&#)6%56!5#6"<B%)*%!67#6%"!%83*7%/(V!6%)/56!:#/#*"$D%%F&#$#%-!(*$%(6#%*!6/(--<%6#5(<(9-#%!*%$(-#%!8%
"&#%56!5#6"<D%%F&#$#%-!(*$%(6#%)*"#6#$"%86##%(*7%(6#%"&#6#8!6#%7##/#7%"!%9#%$!8"%-!(*$D%%F&#%)*"#6#$"%
6("#%3$#7%8!6%"&#$#%-!(*$%)$%9($#7%!*%"&#%>!3*,)-A$%56#:()-)*@%,!$"%!8%9!66!C)*@%8!6%(%/("36)"<%-!(*%!8%
0%<#(6$%736(")!*D%% !%(--!C(*,#%)$%/(7#%8!6%"&#%6)$S%"&("%"&#%-!(*$%/)@&"%*!"%9#%6#5()7%($%"&#<%(6#%
$#,36#7D%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Carrying value as at 1 April 812 675

 !/)*(-%:(-3#%!8%*#C%-!(*$%6#,!@*)$#7%)*%"&#%<#(6% L0% IO1%

E*"#6#$"%W%)*,6#($#%)*%7)$,!3*"#7%(/!3*"% MO% KM%

H!(*$%6#5()7% QK1;% QIM;%

+()6%:(-3#%(7V3$"/#*"$% QN;% II%

Carrying value as at 31 March 832 812

Nominal value of loans at 31 March 913 904

Page 128



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

9&#% 6!--!:)*;% )"#/$% !6% )*,!/#<% #=3#*$#<% ;()*% !4% -!$$% (4#% 4#6-#,"#5% )*% "&#% ."("#/#*"% !6%
>!/34#&#*$)?#%@*,!/#%(*5%A=3#*5)"14#%)*%4#$3#,"%!6%6)*(*,)(-%)*$"41/#*"$B%
%

(£000s)

2012/13 2011/12

Financial 
Liabilities at 

amortised cost

Financial 
Assets – 

Loans and 
Receivables

Financial 
Liabilities at 

amortised cost

Financial 
Assets – 

Loans and 
Receivables

@*"#4#$"%#=3#*$#% 8<CDE% F% GC% F%

2#51,")!*$%)*%6()4%?(-1#% F% D% F% F%

2#?#4$(-%!6%-!$$#$%!*%)/3()4#5%
6)*(*,)(-%($$#"$%

F% F% F% HC8IJ%

@/3()4/#*"%-!$$#$% F% KKI% F% K7I%

LMNO%6##$%!*%(44(*;#/#*"%!6%
P20%$#-6Q6)*(*,)*;%-!(*$%

F% F% 87% F%

Total expense in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 
Services

7,496 230 159 (220)

@*,4#($#$%)*%6()4%?(-1#% F% F% F% HIIJ%

@*"#4#$"%@*,!/#% F% HECFJ% F% H7CCJ%

@*"#4#$"%)*,!/#%(,,41#5%!*%
)/3()4#5%6)*(*,)(-%($$#"$%

F% HIGIJ% F% HKD8J%

Total income in Surplus or 
Deficit on the Provision of 
Services

0 (821) 0 (852)

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

+)*(*,)(-% -)(R)-)")#$% (*5% 6)*(*,)(-% ($$#"$% 4#34#$#*"#5% RS% -!(*$% (*5% 4#,#)?(R-#$% (4#% ,(44)#5% )*% "&#%
R(-(*,#%$&##"%("%(/!4")$#5%,!$"T%%9&#)4%6()4%?(-1#%,(*%R#%($$#$$#5%RS%,(-,1-(")*;%"&#%34#$#*"%?(-1#%
!6%"&#%,($&%6-!:$%"&("%:)--%"(U#%3-(,#%!?#4%"&#%4#/()*)*;%"#4/%!6%"&#%)*$"41/#*"$<%1$)*;%"&#%6!--!:)*;%
($$1/3")!*$B%

 % 0*% #$")/("#5% )*"#4#$"% 4("#% ("% VI%'(4,&% KFIV% !6% ITG8W% HKTIGW% ("% VI%'(4,&% KFIKJ% &($% R##*%
1$#5%"!%,(-,1-("#%"&#%6()4%?(-1#%!6%34)?("#%$#,"!4%&!1$)*;%)/34!?#/#*"%-!(*$%

 % A$")/("#5%4(*;#$%!6%)*"#4#$"%4("#$%("%VI%'(4,&%KFIV%!6%KTDCW%"!%VTIVW%HVTKKW%"!%VTKGW%("%VI%
'(4,&%KFIKJ%6!4%-!(*$%64!/%"&#%LMNO%R($#5%!*%34#/("14#%4#3(S/#*"%4("#$%("%"&("%5("#%

 %  !%#(4-S%4#3(S/#*"%)$%4#,!;*)$#5%

 % M&#4#% (*% )*$"41/#*"%:)--%/("14#% )*% "&#% *#="% IK%/!*"&$<% "&#% ,(44S)*;% (/!1*"% )$% ($$1/#5% "!%
(334!=)/("#%"!%6()4%?(-1#%

 % 9&#%6()4%?(-1#%!6%"4(5#%(*5%!"&#4%4#,#)?(R-#$%)$%"(U#*%"!%R#%"&#%)*?!),#5%!4%R)--#5%(/!1*"%

Page 129



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

 % 9&#%8()6%:(-3#%!8%,(5)"(-%,!*"6);3")!*$%6#,#):#7%)*%(7:(*,#%)$%"(<#*%"!%;#%"&#%(/!3*"%6#,#):#7%

9&#%8()6%:(-3#$%(6#%,(-,3-("#7%($%8!--!=$>%
%

(£000s)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Carrying 
amount

Fair Value

Carrying 
amount

(as restated)

Fair Value

(as restated)

Financial Liabilities at 
amortised cost

?6#7)"!6$%(*7%6#,#)5"$%)*%
(7:(*,#%

@A1BCDAE% @A1BCDAE% @AFB1GAE% @AFB1GAE%

H!*I%"#6/%;!66!=)*I% @JAFBC0GE% @JFJBC0KE% @JAFBC0GE% @JJGB1DCE%

Loans and receivables:

H!*I%"#6/%7#;"!6$% ABAKD% ABAKD% ABAAA% ABAAA%

?366#*"%7#;"!6$% FBGL1% FBGL1% 0B0JK% 0B0JK%

H!*I%"#6/%)*:#$"/#*"$% ABLFG% ABLFG% JBADK% JBADK%

?366#*"%)*:#$"/#*"$% 0DBKDF% 0DBKDF% 0LBCKC% 0LBCKC%

%
?!/5(6("):#%8)I36#$%8!6%FA%'(6,&%JKAJ%&(:#%;##*%6#$"("#7%"!%)*,-37#%,(5)"(-%,!*"6);3")!*$%&#-7%($%
6#,#)5"$%)*%(7:(*,#%(*7%(%6#:#6$#%-#($#%56#/)3/%7#;"!6M%
%
9&#%8()6%:(-3#%!8%"&#%-)(;)-)")#$%)$%&)I&#6%"&(*%"&#%,(66N)*I%(/!3*"%;#,(3$#%"&#%?!3*,)-O$%5!6"8!-)!%!8%
-!(*$%)*,-37#$%8)P#7%6("#%-!(*$%=&#6#%"&#%)*"#6#$"%6("#%5(N(;-#%)$%&)I&#6%"&(*%"&#%56#:()-)*I%6("#$%("%
"&#%;(-(*,#%$&##"%7("#M%%%

38 Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

9&#%?!3*,)-O$%(,"):)")#$%#P5!$#%)"%"!%(%:(6)#"N%!8%8)*(*,)(-%6)$<$>%

 % ?6#7)"%6)$<%Q%"&#%5!$$);)-)"N%"&("%!"&#6%5(6")#$%/)I&"%8()-%"!%5(N%(/!3*"$%73#%"!%"&#%?!3*,)-%

 % H)R3)7)"N% 6)$<% Q% "&#% 5!$$);)-)"N% "&("% "&#% ?!3*,)-% /)I&"% *!"% &(:#% 83*7$% (:()-(;-#% "!% /##"% )"$%
,!//)"/#*"$%"!%/(<#%5(N/#*"$%

 % '(6<#"%6)$<%Q%"&#%5!$$);)-)"N%"&("%8)*(*,)(-%-!$$%/)I&"%(6)$#%8!6%"&#%?!3*,)-%($%(%6#$3-"%!8%,&(*I#$%
)*%$3,&%/#($36#$%($%)*"#6#$"%6("#$%(*7%$"!,<%/(6<#"%/!:#/#*"$M%

How the Council manages those risks

9&#%?!3*,)-%/()*"()*$%56)*,)5-#$%8!6%!:#6(--%6)$<%/(*(I#/#*"B%($%=#--%($%(556!:#7%5!-),)#$%,!:#6)*I%
$5#,)8),% (6#($B% $3,&% ($%96#($36N%'(*(I#/#*"M%9&#% 56)*,)5-#$% ;#&)*7%&!=% "&#%?!3*,)-% )*"#*7$% "!%
/(*(I#%!:#6(--%,6#7)"B% -)R3)7)"N%(*7%/(6<#"% 6)$<% )*% )"$% )*:#$"/#*"$%(6#%,!*"()*#7%=)"&)*% "&#%2**3(-%
96#($36N%'(*(I#/#*"%(*7%S*:#$"/#*"%."6("#IN%6#5!6"B%$3;/)""#7%"!%83--%?!3*,)-%;#8!6#%"&#%$"(6"%!8%
#(,&%8)*(*,)(-%N#(6M% %9&)$%$"6("#IN%,(*%;#%(/#*7#7B%;3"%!*-N%;N% 83--%?!3*,)-M% %T36)*I%JKAJUAF% "&#%
?!3*,)-%7)7%*!"%/(<#%(*N%(/#*7/#*"$%"!%)"$%)*:#$"/#*"%$"6("#INM%

%

Page 130



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Credit risk

94#5)"% 4)$:% (4)$#$% 64!/% )*;#$"/#*"$% <)"&% =(*:$% (*5% !"&#4% 6)*(*,)(-% )*$")"1")!*$>% ($% <#--% ($% ,4#5)"%
#?3!$14#$%"!%"&#%9!1*,)-@$%,1$"!/#4$A%
B*#%!6% "&#% "&)*C$% "&("% "&#%9!1*,)-%$##:$% "!%5!% "&4!1C&%"&#%!3#4(")!*%!6% )"$%D4#($14E%'(*(C#/#*"%
(*5%F*;#$"/#*"%."4("#CE%)$%"!%/)*)/)$#%)"$%#?3!$14#%"!%4)$:$%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)*;#$"/#*"$A%%%
%
D&#% 9!1*,)-% &($>% )*% C#*#4(->% ,!*")*1#5% <)"&% )"$% $1$3#*$)!*% !6% -#*5)*C% "!% !;#4$#($% 6)*(*,)(-%
)*$")"1")!*$% !4% "&#)4% GH% $1=$)5)(4)#$A% % D&#% 9!1*,)-@$% ,144#*"% 3!-),E% )$% "!% !*-E% -#*5% "!% GH% =(*:$>%
=1)-5)*C%$!,)#")#$%(*5%!"&#4%-!,(-%(1"&!4)")#$%6!4%13%"!%"<#-;#%/!*"&$%)*%514(")!*A%%D&)$%)$%)*%-)*#%<)"&%
C1)5(*,#% 64!/% !14% "4#($14E% /(*(C#/#*"% (5;)$#4$% (*5% )*% -)*#% <)"&% "&#% 9!1*,)-@$% #$"(=-)$&#5%
D4#($14E%'(*(C#/#*"%F*;#$"/#*"%."4("#CEA%
%
D&#%9!1*,)-%&($%(-$!%/()*"()*#5%(%-)/)"%!*%"&#%"!"(-%"&("%/(E%=#%)*;#$"#5%<)"&)*%"&#%$(/#%,!/3(*E%
C4!13A%%D&#%3!-),E%!6%&(;)*C%*!%-)/)"%!*%"&#%"!"(-%(/!1*"%<&),&%/(E%=#%)*;#$"#5%)*%"&#%I!;#4*/#*"@$%
J#="%'(*(C#/#*"%0,,!1*"%5#3!$)"%+(,)-)"E%KJ'0J+L%,!*")*1#5%)*%MNOMPOQA%
%
D&#% 9!1*,)-% 1$#$% "&#% R,4#5)"<!4"&)*#$$% $#4;),#@% 34!;)5#5% =E% .#,"!4A% % D&)$% $#4;),#% &($% =##*%
34!C4#$$);#-E%#*&(*,#5%(*5%1$#$%(%$!3&)$"),("#5%/!5#--)*C%(334!(,&%1$)*C%,4#5)"%4(")*C$%64!/%"&#%
6!--!<)*C%4(")*C%(C#*,)#$%S%+)",&>%'!!5E$%(*5%."(*5(45%(*5%T!!4$A%%U!<#;#4>%)"%5!#$%*!"%4#-E%$!-#-E%
!*%"&#%,144#*"%,4#5)"%4(")*C$%!6%,!1*"#43(4")#$%=1"%(-$!%1$#$%"&#%6!--!<)*C%($%!;#4-(E$V%

 % 94#5)"%<(",&#$%(*5%,4#5)"%!1"-!!:$%64!/%,4#5)"%4(")*C%(C#*,)#$%

 % 94#5)"%J#6(1-"%.<(3$%K9J.L%$34#(5$%"!%C);#%#(4-E%<(4*)*C%!6%-):#-E%,&(*C#$%)*%,4#5)"%4(")*C$%
%
D&)$%/!5#--)*C%(334!(,&%,!/=)*#$%,4#5)"%4(")*C$>%,4#5)"%<(",&#$%(*5%,4#5)"%!1"-!!:$%)*%(%<#)C&"#5%
$,!4)*C%$E$"#/%<&),&%)$%"&#*%,!/=)*#5%<)"&%(*%!;#4-(E%!6%9J.%$34#(5$%6!4%<&),&%"&#%#*5%34!51,"%)$%
(%$#4)#$%!6%,!-!14%,!5#%=(*5$%<&),&%)*5),("#%"&#%4#-(");#%,4#5)"<!4"&)*#$$%!6%,!1*"#43(4")#$A%%D&#$#%
,!-!14% ,!5#$% (4#% (-$!% 1$#5% =E% "&#%9!1*,)-% "!% 5#"#4/)*#% "&#% (334!34)("#% 514(")!*% 6!4% )*;#$"/#*"$%
(*5% (4#% "&#4#6!4#% 4#6#44#5% "!% ($% 514(")!*(-% =(*5$A% %D&#%9!1*,)-% )$% $(")$6)#5% "&("% "&)$% $#4;),#% *!<%
C);#$%(%/1,&%)/34!;#5%-#;#-%!6%$#,14)"E%6!4%)"$%)*;#$"/#*"$A%
%
W)"&%"&#%#?,#3")!*%!6%"&#%J'0J+>%-)/)"$%(4#%$#"%6!4%"&#%(/!1*"%"&("%/(E%=#%!*%5#3!$)"%<)"&%(*E%!*#%
)*$")"1")!*A% % 0"% QO%'(4,&% MNOQ% "&#$#% <#4#V% (%/(?)/1/% !6% XOY%/)--)!*% <)"&% U.Z9% Z(*:% T-,% K"&#%
9!1*,)-@$% =(*:L>% XON%/)--)!*%<)"&%!"&#4%(334!;#5%,!1*"#43(4")#$%(*5%(%/(?)/1/%!6% OA7% ")/#$% "&)$%
-)/)"% /(E% =#%) *;#$"#5>% )*% "!"(->% <)"&% ,!1*"#43(4")#$% =#-!*C)*C% "!% "&#% $(/#% ,!/3(*E% C4!13A% D&#%
9!1*,)-% (-$!% "!!:% (5;(*"(C#% !6% 1$)*C% "&#$#% -)/)"$% )*% 5#3!$)")*C% 61*5$% <)"&)*% =(*:% ,(--% (,,!1*"$A%%
D&)$%)*,4#($#5%E)#-5%-#;#-$%<)"&!1"%34#[15),)*C%"&#%9!1*,)-@$%4)$:%(;#4$#%*("14#A%
%
F*% -)C&"% !6% "&#% (=!;#% )*;#$"/#*"% $"4("#CE>% "&#% 9!1*,)-% ,!*$)5#4$% "&("% )"% &($% "(:#*% (--% 4#($!*(=-#%
$"#3$%"!%4#51,#%"!%(%/)*)/1/%(*E%#?3!$14#%"!%,4#5)"%4)$:$%)*%4#-(")!*%"!%)"$%)*;#$"/#*"$%("%QO%'(4,&%
MNOQ%(*5%"&("%(*E%4#$)51(-%4)$:%,(**!"%=#%\1(*")6)#5A%%%
%
D&#%6!--!<)*C%$&!<$%"&#%!4)C)*(-%34)*,)3(-%$1/$%!6%)*;#$"/#*"$%("%QO%'(4,&%(*(-E$#5%=E%"&#%*("14#%
!6%6)*(*,)(-%)*$")"1")!*>%,!1*"4E%)*%<&),&%"&#E%(4#%5!/),)-#5%(*5%4#/()*)*C%3#4)!5%"!%/("14)"EV%
%
%
%
% %

Page 131



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

(£000s)

Maturity Band

TotalLess than

3 months

3 months to

6 months

6 months

to 1 year

31 March 2013

United Kingdom

9(*:$% 1% ;<=111% >;=111% <?=111%

93)-7)*@%.!,)#")#$% A=111% <=111% 1% >1=111%

B!,(-%23"&!6)")#$% ><=;11% 1% 1% ><=;11%

Total 20,200 26,000 12,000 58,200

%

(£000s)

Maturity Band

TotalLess than

3 months

3 months to

6 months

6 months

to 1 year

31 March 2012

United Kingdom

9(*:$% ;0=<C1% ><=111% 1% <D=<C1%

93)-7)*@%.!,)#")#$% >1=111% 1% 1% >1=111%

B!,(-%23"&!6)")#$% >>=111% 1% 1% >>=111%

Total 47,380 13,000 0 60,380

%

E&#$#%"(F-#$%#G,-37#%"&#%)*H#$"/#*"$%)*%I#6)"(F-#%9(*:%(*7%B9J%($%7#"()-#7%)*% !"#%;?K%
%

E&#%8!--!L)*@%(*(-M$)$%$3//(6)$#$%"&#%N!3*,)-O$%($$#$$/#*"%!8%)"$%5!"#*")(-%/(G)/3/%#G5!$36#%"!%
,6#7)"%6)$:%P)/5()6/#*"%(--!L(*,#Q%)*%6#-(")!*%"!%7#F"!6$R%
%

(£000s)

31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Gross Debt
Impairment 
Allowance

Gross Debt
Impairment 
Allowance

B!*@%"#6/%7#F"!6$% >=>1D% 1% >=>>>% 1%

N366#*"%(*7%8!6/#6%"#*(*"$% >=?;<% >=;1?% >=?;1% >=;A1%

S"&#6%7#F"!6$% <=T0?% <10% T=111% D;0%

6,097 1,511 6,631 2,196

%

B!*@U"#6/%7#F"!6$%)*,-37#%56)H("#%$#,"!6%&!3$)*@%)/56!H#/#*"%-!(*$%(*7%,!3*,)-%&!3$#%/!6"@(@#$K%%
E&#$#%7#F"$%(6#%$#,36#7%!*%56!5#6")#$K%
%

% %

Page 132



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%/!:#/#*"%)*%"&#%)/3()4/#*"%(--!;(*,#%514)*<%"&#%=#(4%,(*%>#%$1//(4)$#5%($%6!--!;$?%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Balance at 1 April 2,196 1,970

@*,4#($#%)*%(--!;(*,#%6!4%)/3()4/#*"% 8AA% BCA%

D(-(*,#$%;4)""#*%!66%514)*<%"&#%=#(4% EFGHI% E8CI%

Balance at 31 March 1,511 2,196

%
9&#%J!1*,)-%5!#$%*!"%<#*#4(--=%#K"#*5%,4#5)"%"!%)"$%,1$"!/#4$%>#=!*5%B8%5(=$L%%0"%M8%'(4,&%BA8MN%
!6%"&#%"!"(-%5#>"!4%(*5%5#6#44#5%5#>"!4%>(-(*,#$%!6%OHLP%/)--)!*%EO7LC%/)--)!*%("%M8%'(4,&%BA8BIN%"&#%
3($"%51#%(/!1*"%;($%OBLM%/)--)!*%EOBLG%/)--)!*%("%M8%'(4,&%BA8BI%(*5%,(*%>#%(*(-=$#5%>=%(<#%($%
6!--!;$?%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

Customer Debts

Q#$$%"&(*%"&4##%/!*"&$% M7G% 788%

9&4##%"!%$)K%/!*"&$% CC7% FM%

.)K%/!*"&$%"!%!*#%=#(4% BAB% 8PH%

'!4#%"&(*%!*#%=#(4% 8NBG7% 8NP8C%

Balance at 31 March 2,302 2,793

Liquidity risk

9&#%J!1*,)-%&($%(%,!/34#&#*$):#%,($&%6-!;%/(*(<#/#*"%$=$"#/%"&("%$##R$%"!%#*$14#%"&("%,($&%)$%
(:()-(>-#% ($% *##5#5L% % @6% 1*#K3#,"#5% /!:#/#*"$% &(33#*N% "&#% J!1*,)-% &($% 4#(5=% (,,#$$% "!%
>!44!;)*<$% 64!/% "&#%S1>-),%T!4R$% Q!(*%D!(45% ESTQDIL%9&#4#% )$% *!% $)<*)6),(*"% 4)$R% "&("% )"%;)--% >#%
1*(>-#%"!%4()$#%6)*(*,#%"!%/##"%)"$%,!//)"/#*"$%1*5#4%6)*(*,)(-%)*$"41/#*"$L%
%

U*%BG%'(4,&%BA8B%" &#%J!1*,)-% "!!R%!1"% (%*1/>#4%!6% 6)K#5% 4("#%/("14)"=% -!(*$%;)"&% "&#%STQD% "!%
/##"% "&#% ,!$"% !6% "&#%V20%$#-6W6)*(*,)*<% $#""-#/#*"%51#% "!% ,#*"4(-%<!:#4*/#*"L% %9&#$#% -!(*$%&(5%
"#4/$%!6% >#";##*%B7%(*5%CH% =#(4$L% %9&#%V20%>1$)*#$$%3-(*%,!*6)4/$% "&#%(66!45(>)-)"=% !6% )*"#4#$"%
3(=/#*"$% (*5% "&#% 4#3(=/#*"% !6% "&#$#% -!(*$% !*% /("14)"=% (*5% "&("% "&#% J!1*,)-% /(=% >#% (>-#% "!%
,!*$)5#4%#(4-)#4%4#5#/3")!*%)6%(5:(*"(<#!1$L%%V!;#:#4N%"&)$%;)--%*!"%>#%,!*$)5#4#5%)*%"&#%$&!4"W"#4/N%
51#%"!%,144#*"%/(4R#"%,!*5)")!*$L%
%

9&#%/("14)"=%(*(-=$)$%!6%"&#%-!(*$%)$%($%6!--!;$?%
%

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

D#";##*%BA%(*5%BH%=#(4$% 8AN7GM% A%

D#";##*%BH%(*5%MA%=#(4$% HMNC8M% HMNC8M%

D#";##*%MA%(*5%MH%=#(4$% HMNC8M% HMNC8M%

D#";##*%MH%(*5%CA%=#(4$% HMNC8C% HMNC8C%

D#";##*%CH%(*5%HA%=#(4$% CBNFM8% HMNC8C%

213,654 213,654

%

Page 133



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Market risk

Interest rate risk

9&#%:!3*,)-%)$%#;5!$#7%"!%/)*)/(-%6)$<%)*%"#6/$%!8%)"$%#;5!$36#%"!%/!=#/#*"$%)*%)*"#6#$"%6("#$>%%9&)$%
)$%?#,(3$#% "&#%/(@!6)"A%!8% )"$% )*=#$"/#*"$%(6#%("% 8);#7% 6("#$>% %9&#$#% )*=#$"/#*"$%(6#%(-$!%!8% -#$$%
"&(*%!*#%A#(6%)*%736(")!*%(*7%$!%,&(*B#$%"!%8()6%=(-3#%C)--%?#%/)*)/(->%%9&#%:!3*,)-%7!#$D%&!C#=#6D%
3")-)$#%?(*<%7#5!$)"%(,,!3*"$%8!6%=#6A%$&!6"%"#6/%,($&%7#5!$)"$%(*7%"&#%)*"#6#$"%6("#%!*%"&)$%(,,!3*"%
/!=#$%)*%-)*#%C)"&%/!=#/#*"$%)*%"&#%?(*<%6("#>%
%
E*%B#*#6(-%"#6/$D%(%6)$#%)*%)*"#6#$"%6("#$%C!3-7%&(=#%"&#%8!--!C)*B%#88#,"$F%

 % E*=#$"/#*"$% ("% =(6)(?-#% 6("#$% G% "&#% )*"#6#$"% )*,!/#% ,6#7)"#7% "!% "&#% E*,!/#% (*7% H;5#*7)"36#%
2,,!3*"%C)--%6)$#%

 % E*=#$"/#*"$%("%8);#7%6("#$%G%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%"&#%($$#"$%C)--%8(--%

 % I!(*$%("%8);#7%6("#$%G%"&#%8()6%=(-3#%!8%-)(?)-)")#$%C)--%8(-->%

J!66!C)*B$%(6#%*!"%,(66)#7%("%8()6%=(-3#D%$!%*!/)*(-%B()*$%(*7%-!$$#$%!*%8);#7%6("#%?!66!C)*B$%C!3-7%
*!"% )/5(,"%!*%"&#%$365-3$%!6%7#8),)"%!*%"&#%56!=)$)!*%!8%$#6=),#$>% %9&#%"6#($36A%/(*(B#/#*"%"#(/%
&($%(*%(,")=#%$"6("#BA%8!6%($$#$$)*B%)*"#6#$"%6("#%#;5!$36#%"&("%8##7$%)*"!%"&#%$#"")*B%!8%"&#%(**3(-%
?37B#"% (*7%C&),&% )$% 3$#7% "!% 357("#% "&#% ?37B#"% 736)*B% "&#% A#(6>% %K!C#=#6D% -!!<)*B% ?(,<% !*%- ($"%
A#(6D% )8% )*"#6#$"%6("#$%!*%"&#%?(*<%7#5!$)"%(,,!3*"$%&(7%?##*%!*#%5#6,#*"(B#%5!)*"%&)B&#6D%C)"&%(--%
!"&#6%=(6)(?-#$%&#-7%,!*$"(*"D%"&#%8)*(*,)(-%#88#,"%C!3-7%&(=#%?##*%(*%(77)")!*(-%)*,!/#%!8%LMNODPPP%
QL0RDPPP%)*%1PMMSM1T>%%%
%
Price risk%
%
9&#%:!3*,)-%7!#$%*!"%)*=#$"%)*%#U3)"A%$&(6#$%(*7%$!%)$%*!"%#;5!$#7%"!%"&)$%6)$<>%

Foreign exchange risk

9&#%:!3*,)-% &($% *!% 8)*(*,)(-% ($$#"$% !6% -)(?)-)")#$% 7#*!/)*("#7% )*% 8!6#)B*% ,366#*,)#$% !"&#6% "&(*% )"$%
#;5!$36#%($%7#"()-#7%)*% !"#%1R>%

39 Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Participation in pension schemes

2$%5(6"%!8% "&#%"#6/$%(*7%,!*7)")!*$%!8%#/5-!A/#*"%!8% )"$%!88),#6$D% "&#%:!3*,)-%/(<#$%,!*"6)?3")!*$%
"!C(67$%"&#%,!$"%!8%5!$"%#/5-!A/#*"%?#*#8)"$>%%2-"&!3B&%"&#$#%?#*#8)"$%C)--%*!"%(,"3(--A%?#%5(A(?-#%
3*")-%#/5-!A##$%6#")6#D% "&#%:!3*,)-%&($%(%,!//)"/#*"%"!%/(<#%"&#%5(A/#*"$%(*7%"&)$%*##7$%"!%?#%
7)$,-!$#7%("%"&#%")/#%"&("%#/5-!A##$%#(6*%"&#)6%83"36#%#*")"-#/#*">%
%
9&#% :!3*,)-% 5(6"),)5("#$% )*% "&#% I!,(-% V!=#6*/#*"% W#*$)!*% .,&#/#D% (7/)*)$"#6#7% -!,(--A% ?A%
:(/?6)7B#$&)6#%:!3*"A%:!3*,)->%%9&)$%)$%(%83*7#7%7#8)*#7%?#*#8)"%8)*(-%$(-(6A%$,&#/#D%/#(*)*B%"&("%
"&#%:!3*,)-%(*7%#/5-!A##$%5(A%,!*"6)?3")!*$%)*"!%(%83*7D%,(-,3-("#7%("%(%-#=#-%)*"#*7#7%"!%?(-(*,#%
"&#%5#*$)!*$%-)(?)-)")#$%C)"&%)*=#$"/#*"%($$#"$>%

%

Page 134



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Transactions relating to post employment benefits

9&#% :!1*,)-% 4#,!;*)$#$% "&#% ,!$"% !6% 4#")4#/#*"% <#*#6)"$% )*% "&#% 4#3!4"#5% ,!$"% !6% $#4=),#$% >&#*%
#/3-!?##$%#(4*%"&#/@%4("&#4%"&(*%>&#*%"&#%<#*#6)"$%(4#%#=#*"1(--?%3()5%($%3#*$)!*$A%%B!>#=#4@%"&#%
,&(4;#%"&#%:!1*,)-% )$%4#C1)4#5%"!%/(D#%(;()*$"%,!1*,)-% "(E% )$%<($#5%!*%"&#%#/3-!?#4%,!*"4)<1")!*$%
3(?(<-#% )*%"&#%?#(4@%$!%"&#%4#(-%,!$"%!6%3!$"%#/3-!?/#*"F4#")4#/#*"%<#*#6)"$% )$%4#=#4$#5%!1"%!6%"&#%
G#*#4(-% +1*5% =)(% "&#%'!=#/#*"% )*% 2#$#4=#$% ."("#/#*"A% % 9&#% 6!--!>)*;% "4(*$(,")!*$% &(=#% <##*%
/(5#%)*%"&#%:!/34#&#*$)=#%H*,!/#%(*5%IE3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%(*5%"&#%G#*#4(-%+1*5%J(-(*,#%=)(%
"&#%'!=#/#*"%)*%2#$#4=#$%."("#/#*"%514)*;%"&#%?#(4K%
%

(£000s)

Local Government

Pension Scheme

2012/13 2011/12

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement % %

Cost of Services: % %

:144#*"%$#4=),#%,!$"% L@7MM% L@7NO%

P($"%$#4=),#%,!$"$% O% O%

.#""-#/#*"$%(*5%,14"()-/#*"$% Q7O% R7R%

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

H*"#4#$"%,!$"% M@MMR% RO@L8N%

IE3#,"#5%4#"14*%!*%$,&#/#%($$#"$% ST@Q8LU% SV@TMVU%

9!"(-%3!$"%#/3-!?/#*"%<#*#6)"%,&(4;#5%"!%"&#%$143-1$%!4%5#6),)"%!*%"&#%
34!=)$)!*%!6%$#4=),#$%

7,716 6,448

Other post employment benefit charged to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement

0,"1(4)(-%S;()*$U%F%-!$$#$% RR@R8V% RM@NNQ%

9!"(-%3!$"%#/3-!?/#*"%<#*#6)"%,&(4;#5%"!%"&#%,!/34#&#*$)=#%)*,!/#%
(*5%#E3#*5)"14#%$"("#/#*"%

18,854 26,000

Movement in reserves statement

2#=#4$(-%!6%*#"%,&(4;#$%/(5#%"!%"&#%$143-1$%!4%5#6),)"%6!4%"&#%34!=)$)!*%
!6%$#4=),#$%6!4%3!$"%#/3-!?/#*"%<#*#6)"$%)*%(,,!45(*,#%>)"&%"&#%,!5#%

SRL@OQQU% SQR@OTLU%

Employers’ contributions payable to the scheme 4,832 4,926

%

9&#% ,1/1-(")=#% (/!1*"% !6% (,"1(4)(-% -!$$#$% 4#,!;*)$#5% )*% "&#% :!/34#&#*$)=#% H*,!/#% (*5%
IE3#*5)"14#%."("#/#*"%"!% "&#%8R%'(4,&%QOR8% )$%(% -!$$%!6%WVLAL%/)--)!*%SWT8A8%/)--)!*%("%8R%'(4,&%
QORQUA%

%

Page 135



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

Assets and liabilities in relation to post employment benefits

4#,!*,)-)(")!*%!8%56#$#*"%9(-3#%!8%"&#%$,&#/#%-)(:)-)")#$%;7#8)*#7%:#*#8)"%!:-)<(")!*=>%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening balance at 1 April (208,232) (190,481)

?366#*"%.#69),#%?!$"% ;1@0AA=% ;1@0BC=%

D*"#6#$"%?!$"% ;A@AAE=% ;EC@1FB=%

?!*"6):3")!*$%:G%$,&#/#%5(6"),)5(*"$% ;E@BCE=% ;E@B0H=%

2,"3(6)(-%<()*$%I%;-!$$#$=% ;JF@J0H=% ;K@HHB=%

L($"%.#69),#%M()*$% C% C%

N#*#8)"$%5()7% 0@JFB% H@BE1%

O$")/("#7%3*83*7#7%:#*#8)"$%5()7% FJF% FJF%

?36"()-/#*"$% ;J0C=% ;E0E=%

Closing balance at 31 March (241,392) (208,232)

%

4#,!*,)-)(")!*%!8%8()6%9(-3#%!8%"&#%$,&#/#%;5-(*=%($$#"$>%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

Opening balance at 1 April 129,287 132,610

OP5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%($$#"$% H@JF1% K@HAK%

2,"3(6)(-%<()*$%I%;-!$$#$=% EJ@EJA% ;EC@HHH=%

O/5-!G#6%?!*"6):3")!*$% 1@KFJ% 1@AJ0%

?!*"6):3")!*$%:G%$,&#/#%5(6"),)5(*"$% E@BCE% E@B0H%

Q*83*7#7%:#*#8)"$%5()7% ;FJF=% ;FJF=%

N#*#8)"$%5()7% ;0@JFB=% ;H@BE1=%

Closing balance at 31 March 148,425 129,287

%

R&#%#P5#,"#7%6#"36*%!*%$,&#/#%($$#"$%)$%7#"#6/)*#7%:G%,!*$)7#6)*<%"&#%#P5#,"#7%6#"36*$%(9()-(:-#%
!*%"&#%($$#"$%3*7#6-G)*<%"&#%,366#*"%)*9#$"/#*"%5!-),GS%%OP5#,"#7%G)#-7%!*%8)P#7%)*"#6#$"%)*9#$"/#*"$%
(6#%:($#7%!*%<6!$$%6#7#/5")!*%G)#-7$%($%("% "&#%N(-(*,#%.&##"%7("#S% %OP5#,"#7% 6#"36*$%!*%#T3)"G%
)*9#$"/#*"$%6#8-#,"%-!*<U"#6/%6#(-%6("#$%!8%6#"36*%#P5#6)#*,#7%)*%"&#%6#$5#,")9#%/(6V#"$S%
%

R&#%(,"3(-%6#"36*%!*%"&#%+3*7%)*%/(6V#"%9(-3#%"#6/$%8!6%"&#%G#(6%"!%FE%'(6,&%JCEF%)$%#$")/("#7%($%
EBWS%%%

Scheme History

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09

L6#$#*"%9(-3#%!8%-)(:)-)")#$% ;J1E@FAJ=% ;JCK@JFJ=% ;EAC@1KE=% ;JJH@ABB=% ;EFF@AHK=%

+()6%9(-3#%!8%($$#"$%)*%"&#%X!,(-%
M!9#6*/#*"%L#*$)!*%.,&#/#%

E1K@1JB% EJA@JKH% EFJ@0EC% EJE@H0J% AC@1CB%

Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme (92,967) (78,945) (57,871) (106,193) (43,573)

%

Page 136



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#% -)(:)-)")#$% $&!;% "&#%1*5#4-<)*=% ,!//)"/#*"$% "&("% "&#% >!1*,)-% &($% )*% "&#% -!*=% 41*% "!% 3(<% 3!$"%
#/3-!</#*"%?4#")4#/#*"@%:#*#6)"$A%%9&#%"!"(-%-)(:)-)"<%!6%BCDAE%/)--)!*%&($%(%$1:$"(*")(-%)/3(,"%!*%"&#%
*#"%;!4"&%!6% "&#%>!1*,)-%($% 4#,!45#5% )*% "&#%F(-(*,#%.&##"A% %G!;#H#4I%$"("1"!4<%(44(*=#/#*"$% 6!4%
61*5)*=%"&#%5#6),)"%/#(*%"&("%"&#%6)*(*,)(-%3!$)")!*%!6%"&#%>!1*,)-%4#/()*$%&#(-"&<J%

 % 9&#%5#6),)"%!*%"&#%-!,(-%=!H#4*/#*"%$,&#/#%;)--%:#%/(5#%=!!5%:<%)*,4#($#5%,!*"4):1")!*$%!H#4%
"&#% 4#/()*)*=% ;!4K)*=% -)6#% !6% #/3-!<##$% ?)A#A% :#6!4#% 3(</#*"$% 6(--% 51#@I% ($% ($$#$$#5% :<% "&#%
$,&#/#%(,"1(4<%

 % +)*(*,#% )$% !*-<% 4#L1)4#5% "!% :#% 4()$#5% "!% ,!H#4% 5)$,4#")!*(4<% :#*#6)"$% ;&#*% "&#% 3#*$)!*$% (4#%
(,"1(--<%3()5A%

%

9&#% "!"(-% ,!*"4):1")!*$% #M3#,"#5% "!% :#% /(5#% "!% "&#% N!,(-% O!H#4*/#*"% P#*$)!*% .,&#/#% :<% "&#%
>!1*,)-%)*%"&#%<#(4%"!%DQ%'(4,&%REQS%(4#%BSARTU%/)--)!*A%%%

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

N)(:)-)")#$% &(H#% :##*% ($$#$$#5% !*% (*% (,"1(4)(-% :($)$% 1$)*=% "&#% 34!V#,"#5% 1*)"% ,4#5)"% /#"&!5I% (*%
#$")/("#% !6% "&#% 3#*$)!*$% "&("% ;)--% :#%3(< (:-#% )*% 61"14#% <#(4$% 5#3#*5#*"% !*% ($$1/3")!*$% (:!1"%
/!4"(-)"<% 4("#$I% $(-(4<% -#H#-$% #",A% % 9&#% N!,(-% O!H#4*/#*"% P#*$)!*% .,&#/#% -)(:)-)")#$% &(H#% :##*%
($$#$$#5% 6!4% "&#% >!1*"<% >!1*,)-% +1*5%:< % G</(*$% 2!:#4"$!*I% (*%) *5#3#*5#*"% 6)4/% !6% (,"1(4)#$I%
:($#5%!*%"&#%-("#$"%61--%H(-1(")!*%!6%"&#%$,&#/#%($%("%DQ%'(4,&%REQEA%
%

9&#%34)*,)3(-%($$1/3")!*$%1$#5%:<%"&#%(,"1(4<%&(H#%:##*J%
%

Local Government Pension Scheme

2012/13 2011/12

N!*=W"#4/%#M3#,"#5%4("#%!6%4#"14*%!*%($$#"$%)*%"&#%$,&#/#J% % %

XL1)"<%)*H#$"/#*"$% SA8Y% 7ADY%

F!*5$% SA8Y% DADY%

P4!3#4"<% SA8Y% SASY%

>($&% SA8Y% DA8Y%

'!4"(-)"<%0$$1/3")!*$J%

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners % %

'#*% RQAE% RQAE%

Z!/#*% RDAT% RDAT%

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners % %

'#*% RRAC% RRAC%

Z!/#*% R8AU% R8AU%

% % %

2("#%!6%)*6-(")!*% RATY% RA8Y%

.&!4"%"#4/%4("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%$(-(4)#$% QAEY% QAEY%

N!*=%"#4/%4("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%$(-(4)#$% 8AQY% SATY%

2("#%!6%)*,4#($#%)*%3#*$)!*$% RATY% RA8Y%

2("#%6!4%5)$,!1*")*=%$,&#/#%-)(:)-)")#$% SA8Y% SATY%

9(K#%13%!6%!3")!*%"!%,!*H#4"%(**1(-%3#*$)!*%)*"!%4#")4#/#*"%-1/3%
$1/%?)*%4#$3#,"%!6%3!$"%034)-%REET%$#4H),#@%

7DAEY% 7DAEY%

Page 137



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 00% %%%%%%%1**2(-%3#4!5"%(*6%."("#/#*"%!7%1,,!2*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

8&#%9!,(-%:!;#5*/#*"%<#*$)!*%.,&#/#=$%($$#"$%,!*$)$"%!7%"&#%7!--!>)*?%,("#?!5)#$@%AB%45!4!5")!*%
!7%"&#%"!"(-%($$#"$%&#-6C%
%

31 March 2013

%

31 March 2012

%

DE2)"B%)*;#$"/#*"$% F0% FG%

H!*6$% IJ% IJ%

<5!4#5"B% F% K%

L($&% M% N%

Total 100 100

History of experience gains and losses

8&#%(,"2(5)(-%?()*$%)6#*")7)#6%($%/!;#/#*"$%!*%"&#%<#*$)!*$%3#$#5;#%)*%GOIGPIM%,(*%A#%(*(-B$#6%
)*"!%"&#%7!--!>)*?%,("#?!5)#$@%/#($25#6%($%(%4#5,#*"(?#%!7%($$#"$%!5%-)(A)-)")#$%("%MI%'(5,&%GOIMQ%
%

% 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09

R)77#5#*,#%A#">##*%"&#%
#S4#,"#6%(*6%(,"2(-%5#"25*%!*%
($$#"$%

TQG% U0QJV% UOQ0V% IKQ0% UMIQTV%

DS4#5)#*,#%?()*$%(*6%-!$$#$%!*%
-)(A)-)")#$%

OQO% UIQMV% OQI% UOQIV% OQM%

40 Cashflow Statement – Operating Activities

8&#%,($&%7-!>$%7!5%!4#5(")*?%(,");)")#$%)*,-26#%"&#%7!--!>)*?%)"#/$C%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

W!2$)*?%5#*"$% IF@OMJ% I0@OTT%

3#;#*2#%.244!5"%:5(*"% I0J% G@GJF%

L!2*,)-%$&(5#%!7%*(")!*(-%*!*X6!/#$"),%5("#$%75!/%*(")!*(-%4!!-% T@JMN% F@G0T%

W!2$)*?%H#*#7)"%$2A$)6)#$% MN@TMJ% MM@MTN%

L!2*,)-%$&(5#%!7%L!2*,)-%8(S%5#,#)4"$% 0@TFG% 0@TJ0%

L($&%4()6%"!%(*6%!*%A#&(-7%!7%#/4-!B##$% UMM@OGNV% UMM@OIMV%

<(B/#*"$%"!%"&#%,(4)"(-%5#,#)4"$%4!!-% UI@OM0V% UI@MIOV%

W!2$)*?%H#*#7)"%4()6% UIF@0INV% UI0@TTGV%

Y*"#5#$"%5#,#);#6% NTJ% 0IK%

Y*"#5#$"%4()6% UF@JK0V% UGV%

W31%.#-7X7)*(*,)*?%$#""-#/#*"%4(B/#*"% O% UGIM@NFGV%

Z"&#5%!4#5(")*?%,($&%7-!>$% N@JIO% U0@FFTV%

15,161 (205,104)

Page 138



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%
% 0**1(-%2#3!4"%(*5%."("#/#*"%!6%0,,!1*"$% 78%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

41 Cashflow Statement – Investing Activities

9&#%,($&%6-!:$%6!4%)*;#$")*<%(,");)")#$%(4#%($%6!--!:$=%
%

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

>14,&($#%!6%34!3#4"?@%3-(*"%(*5%#A1)3/#*"@%)*;#$"/#*"%34!3#4"?%(*5%
)*"(*<)B-#%($$#"$%

CD7@EF7G% CDE@HIJG%

>14,&($#%!6%$&!4"K"#4/%(*5%-!*<K"#4/%)*;#$"/#*"$% CDFD@FJLG% CEL7@J8MG%

>4!,##5$%64!/%"&#%$(-#%!6%34!3#4"?@%3-(*"%(*5%#A1)3/#*"@%)*;#$"/#*"%
34!3#4"?%(*5%)*"(*<)B-#%($$#"$%

F@M8H% I@ELJ%

>4!,##5$%64!/%$&!4"K"#4/%(*5%-!*<K"#4/%)*;#$"/#*"$%% DFL@7DE% ELD@8DJ%

N"&#4%4#,#)3"$%64!/%)*;#$")*<%(,");)")#$% I@MMM% D@MMD%

(8,991) (13,335)

42 Cashflow Statement – Financing Activities

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

O($&%4#,#)3"$%64!/%-!*<K"#4/%B!44!:)*<% L% EDI@FJ8%

N"&#4%4#,#)3"$%64!/%6)*(*,)*<%(,");)")#$% CI@ED8G% 8@D77%

Net cash flows from financing activities (3,217) 220,663

%

N"&#4% 4#,#)3"$% 64!/% 6)*(*,)*<%(,");)")#$% 4#6-#,"%/!;#/#*"$% )*% "&#% ,($&%,!--#,"#5% 6!4% (")!*(-% !*K
P!/#$"),%2("#$%(*5%O!1*,)-%9(Q%,!--#,"#5%B?%"&#%O!1*,)-%($%(*%(<#*"%6!4%!"&#4$R%

43 Prior Period Adjustments 

9&#% (,,!1*")*<% #*"4)#$% )*% 4#$3#,"% !6% "&#% 4#;#4$(-% !6% 4#;(-1(")!*% -!$$#$% 34#;)!1$-?% ,&(4<#5% "!% "&#%
O!/34#&#*$);#%S*,!/#%(*5%TQ3#*5)"14#%0,,!1*"%&(;#%B##*%4#;)#:#5%6!4%ELDDUDER%%0$%(%4#$1-"%!6%
"&)$% 4#;)#:% (*%(55) ")!*(-% *#"% ,4#5)"% !6% VMLE@LLL% )$% 4#A1)4#5% "!% !"&#4% W20% <4!$$% #Q3#*5)"14#% ($%
4#3!4"#5% )*% "&#% O!/34#&#*$);#% S*,!/#% (*5% TQ3#*5)"14#% ."("#/#*"% )*% 4#$3#,"% !6% "&#% 4#;#4$(-% !6%
4#;(-1(")!*%<()*$%34#;)!1$-?%,4#5)"#5%"!%"&#%2#;(-1(")!*%2#$#4;#%)*%#44!4R%
%

% %

Page 139



 !"#$%"!%"&#%'()*%+)*(*,)(-%."("#/#*"$%
%
%

%%%%%%%%%%%%% %
% 01% %%%%%%%2**3(-%4#5!6"%(*7%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$%
%%%%%%%%%%%%%% %%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

9&#%#88#,"%!8%"&#%(7:3$"/#*"%,(*%;#%$3//(6)$#7%($%8!--!<$=%
%

(£000s)
As previously 

stated
Restated

Effect on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

>6!$$%?@5#*7)"36#%!*%A42%.#6B),#$% CDEFGC% CHEGGD%

.365-3$%!*%6#B(-3(")!*%!8%I6!5#6"JE%I-(*"%(*7%?K3)5/#*"%2$$#"$% LMEM0GN% LCEO0PN%

Movement in Reserves Statement

Q#8),)"%!*%"&#%I6!B)$)!*%!8%A42%.#6B),#$% FHOECFH% FH1E1D1%

R"&#6%S!/56#&#*$)B#%T*,!/#%(*7%?@5#*7)"36#% DPEH1P% DPEP1G%

27:3$"/#*"$%;#"<##*%(,,!3*")*U%;($)$%(*7%83*7)*U%;($)$%8!6%"&#%A42% LFDHE1MFN% LFDHECMHN%

Unusable Reserves (Note 35)

4#B(-3(")!*%4#$#6B#% LMFECDGN% LMDE1DPN%

S(5)"(-%27:3$"/#*"%2,,!3*"% LMGPE0FHN% LMG0EDFFN%

%

9&#% ,!/5(6(")B#% 8)U36#$% )*% !"&#6% *!"#$% "!% "&#% (,,!3*"$E% )*,-37)*U% *!"#$% ME% O% (*7% D0% &(B#% ;##*%
(7:3$"#7%($%*#,#$$(6JE%"!U#"&#6%<)"&%"&#%A42%$"("#/#*"% )"$#-8V% %9&)$%6#$"("#/#*"%&($%*!%#88#,"%!*%
"&#%;(-(*,#%!*%"&#%A42%($%("%CD%'(6,&%FHDF%($%56#B)!3$-J%6#5!6"#7V%

44 Impact of the adoption of new accounting standards on the financial statements 
– effective for the 2013/14 financial year

9&#%2013/14 Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice% )*,-37#$% ,&(*U#$% "!% "&#% ,-($$)8),(")!*E%
6#,!U*)")!*E%/#($36#/#*"%(*7%7)$,-!$36#%6#K3)6#/#*"$%6#-(")*U%"!%#/5-!J##%;#*#8)"$E%)*"6!73,#7%;J%
(/#*7/#*"$%"!%T2.DOV%%2%,&(*U#%)*%(,,!3*")*U%5!-),J%<)--%"&#6#8!6#%;#%6#K3)6#7%($%("%D%256)-%FHDCV%%
9&#%(/#*7/#*"$% )*,-37#%*#<%,-($$#$%!8%,!/5!*#*"$%!8%7#8)*#7%;#*#8)"%,!$"%(*7%*#<%6#,!U*)")!*%
,6)"#6)(%8!6%$#6B),#%,!$"$%(*7%"#6/)*(")!*%;#*#8)"$V%%9&#%S!3*,)-W$%(,"3(6J%#$")/("#$%"&("%"&#%#88#,"%!8%
"&#%,&(*U#%"!%T2.DO%!*%"&#%S!/56#&#*$)B#%T*,!/#%(*7%?@5#*7)"36#%."("#/#*"%8!6%FHDFXDC%<!3-7%
&(B#%;##*%(*%(77)")!*(-%*!")!*(-%,&(6U#%!8%YDVHCC%/)--)!*V%%%
%

."("3"!6J%56!B)$)!*$%6#K3)6#% "&#%>#*#6(-%+3*7%;(-(*,#%"!%;#%,&(6U#7%<)"&% "&#%(/!3*"%5(J(;-#%;J%
"&#% S!3*,)-% "!% "&#% 5#*$)!*% 83*7% !6% 7)6#,"-J% "!% 5#*$)!*#6$% )*% "&#% J#(6E% *!"% "&#% (/!3*"% ,(-,3-("#7%
(,,!67)*U%"!%(,,!3*")*U%$"(*7(67$V%%T*%"&#%'!B#/#*"%)*%4#$#6B#$%."("#/#*"E%"&)$%/#(*$%"&("%"&#6#%
(6#%(556!56)(")!*$%"!%(*7%86!/%"&#%I#*$)!*$%4#$#6B#%"!%6#/!B#%"&#%*!")!*(-%7#;)"$%(*7%,6#7)"$%8!6%
6#")6#/#*"% ;#*#8)"$% (*7% 6#5-(,#% "&#/% <)"&% 7#;)"$% 8!6% "&#% (,"3(-% ,($&% 5()7V% %+!6 % "&)$% 6#($!*% "&#%
(/#*7/#*"$%"!%T2.DO%<)--%*!"% )/5(,"%!*%"&#%(/!3*"$%,&(6U#7%"!%3$(;-#%6#$#6B#$E%;3"%<)--% -#(7%"!%
!88$#"")*U%(7:3$"/#*"$%"!%"&#%I#*$)!*$%4#$#6B#%(*7%I#*$)!*%Z)(;)-)"JV%
%

9&#%FHDCXDM%Z!,(-%23"&!6)"J%2,,!3*")*U%S!7#%!8%I6(,"),#%<)--%(-$!%)*"6!73,#%,&(*U#$%6#$3-")*U%86!/%
IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements – R"&#6% S!/56#&#*$)B#% T*,!/#% L[3*#% FHDD%
2/#*7/#*"$N% (*7% IFRS7 Financial Instruments Disclosures – R88$#"")*U% 2$$#"$% (*7% Z)(;)-)")#$%
LQ#,#/;#6% FHDD%2 /#*7/#*"$NV% % 9&#$#% (/#*7/#*"$% (6#% *!"% #@5#,"#7% "!% -#(7% "!% $)U*)8),(*"%
,&(*U#$%"!%"&#%."("#/#*"%!8%2,,!3*"$V%

45 Date the Statement of Accounts were authorised for issue

9&#% (37)"#7% (,,!3*"$% <#6#% (3"&!6)$#7% 8!6% )$$3#% ;J% "&#% Q)6#,"!6% !8% 4#$!36,#$% !*% DO% .#5"#/;#6%
FHDCV%%9&)$%)$%"&#%7("#%35%"!%<&),&%#B#*"$%(8"#6%"&#%;(-(*,#%$&##"%7("#%&(B#%;##*%,!*$)7#6#7V%

Page 140



 
 
 
 

 

Additional Financial Statements and Information

Page 141



Page 142



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Account

78".(.#&#,-,%#(.,#.($2#(!,#&"'.($0(#8,("%*$-,(&%!(,94,%!"#21,("%(1,'&#"$%(#$(#8,(41$:"."$%($0(;$2%*"'(
!<,''"%=.>(

(£000s) Note 2012/13

2011/12

(as restated 
see Note 13)

Income

?<,''"%=(1,%#.( @( AB@CD65E( ABFCBDGE(

H$%I!<,''"%=(1,%#.( ( AJKKE( A5KLE(

;8&1=,.(0$1(.,1:"*,.(&%!(0&*"'"#",.( ( A@CJ5@E( A@C5@5E(

;$%#1"M2#"$%.(#$<&1!.(,94,%!"#21,( ( AG55E( A5FDE(

3,"-M21.,-,%#($0(*$.#.( ( A@6E( A@6E(

Total (36,642) (34,599)

Expenditure

3,4&"1.(N(O&"%#,%&%*,( ( 5CJDF( KCL@L(

+24,1:"."$%(N(O&%&=,-,%#( ( JCBJL( JCBB6(

3,%#.C(1&#,.C(#&9,.(N($#8,1(*8&1=,.( ( @K6( @K@(

?,41,*"&#"$%(N("-4&"1-,%#( ( 6DCDLD( KCFGB(

H,=&#":,(P3 (+2M."!Q( B( A6@E( 6@CLFB(

/%*1,&.,!(41$:"."$%(0$1(M&!(!,M#.( ( 5B( @BD(

?,M#(O&%&=,-,%#(;$.#.( ( F( 5K(

P3 (.,'0I0"%&%*"%=(.,##',-,%#(4&Q-,%#(#$(=$:,1%-,%#( 6@( F( @6BCK5@(

Total 33,259 244,343

Net expenditure / (income) on HRA Services as 
included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

(3,383) 209,744

P3 (.,1:"*,.(.8&1,($0(;$14$1&#,(&%!(?,-$*1&#"*(;$1,( ( 6DF( @L6(

P3 (.,1:"*,.(.8&1,($0(H$%(?".#1"M2#,!(;$.#.( ( GB( L6(

Net expenditure / (income) on HRA Services (3,160) 210,126

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure 
included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement

A+214'2.E($1(!,0"*"#($%(.&',($0(P3 (%$%I*211,%#(&..,#.(( ( A5G@E( AG@LE(

R#8,1("%*$-,( ( A6BE( AB5E(

/-4&"1-,%#('$..,.($%(&..,#.(8,'!(0$1(.&',( ( 65( F(

/%#,1,.#(4&Q&M',($%(STUV('$&%.( ( 5CGLG( D@(

/%#,1,.#(&%!(/%:,.#-,%#(/%*$-,( ( AG5GE( ADJ@E(

;&4"#&'(W1&%#.(&%!(;$%#1"M2#"$%.(3,*,":&M',( ( AB6JE( AJ@E(

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on HRA services 2,806 208,818

(

Page 143



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

Statement of Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Balance

(£000s) Note 2012/13

2011/12

(as restated 
see Note 13)

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year on the HRA Income and 
Expenditure Account

2,806 208,818

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 
basis under statute

7&"%($1('$..($%(.&',(%$%8*411,%#(&..,#.( ( 293( 9:;(

<#=,1(*&6"#&'(1,*,"6#.( ( >:( :2(

/-6&"1-,%#('$..($%(&..,#.(=,'!(0$1(.&',( ( ?>2@( ;(

A,#(1,B&'4&#"$%('$..,.($%(61$6,1#CD(6'&%#(&%!(,E4"6-,%#( ( ?FD>G>@( 9D23;(

5,B,%4,(,H6,%!"#41,(04%!,!(01$-(*&6"#&'(4%!,1(.#&#4#,(&%!(
!,8-"%"-4.(*&6"#&'(,H6,%!"#41,(

( ?>>I@( ?9I@(

+,'0(0"%&%*"%J(.,##',-,%#(6&C-,%#(04%!,!(01$-(*&6"#&'(4%!,1(
.#&#4#,(

( ;( ?3>:DK23@(

L&6"#&'(L$%#1"M4#"$%.(4%&66'",!(*1,!"#,!(#$(#=,(
L$-61,=,%."B,(/%*$-,(&%!(NH6,%!"#41,(+#&#,-,%#(

( :>I( I3(

O$B,-,%#("%("%B,.#-,%#(61$6,1#C(B&'4,( ( >K( 992(

O$B,-,%#("%(.=$1#(#,1-(&**4-4'&#"%J(&M.,%*,.( ( ;( 3I(

A,#(*=&1J,.(-&!,(0$1(1,#"1,-,%#(M,%,0"#.(-&!,("%(
&**$1!&%*,(P"#=(/ +>G(

( ?2II@( ?F>2@(

N-6'$C,1.(L$%#1"M4#"$%.(6&C&M',(#$(#=,(L&-M1"!J,.="1,(
L$4%#C(L$4%*"'(Q,%."$%()4%!(

( 2F2( FIK(

R"00,1,%*,(M,#P,,%(&-$1#".&#"$%($0(!,M#(1,!,-6#"$%(
61,-"4-(!,#,1-"%,!("%(&**$1!&%*,(P"#=(#=,(L$!,(&%!(
#=$.,(!,#,1-"%,!("%(&**$1!&%*,(P"#=(.#&#4#,(

K( :;>( :9I(

+4-.(#$(M,(!,M"#,!($1(*1,!"#,!(#$(#=,(S5 (#=&#(&1,(%$#(
"%*$-,($1(,H6,%!"#41,("%(&**$1!&%*,(P"#=(7  Q(

( >;( G(

L&6"#&'(NH6,%!"#41,(04%!,!(MC(#=,(S$4."%J(5,B,%4,(
 **$4%#(

F( 2D992( >DF93(

T1&%.0,1(01$-(#=,(O&U$1(5,6&"1.(5,.,1B,( >;( ?:D3KG@( ?9DIFG@(

Net (increase) / decrease before transfers to or from 
reserves

88 (1,522)

T1&%.0,1.(#$(1,.,1B,.( ( >D:G>( 3:I(

Total movement on Housing Revenue Account for the 
year

1,479 (1,286)

Housing Revenue Account balance brought forward (6,974) (5,688)

Housing Revenue Account balanced carried forward (5,495) (6,974)

(
(
(

Page 144



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account

1 Introduction

78,(9$*&'(:$;,1%-,%#(&%!(<$2."%=( *#(>?@?(.,#( #8,( 01&-,A$1B(A"#8"%(A8"*8( #8,(<3 ($4,1&#,.C((
78,(&**$2%#(".(D1"%=0,%*,!EF(-,&%"%=(#8&#(&2#8$1"#",.(!$(%$#(8&;,(!".*1,#"$%(#$(02%!(&%G(<3 (!,0"*"#.(
01$-(#8,(:,%,1&'()2%!C((71&%.0,1.(01$-(#8,(:,%,1&'()2%!(*&%($%'G(H,(-&!,(&#(#8,(!"1,*#"$%($0(#8,(
+,*1,#&1G($0(+#&#,C(

2 Gross Rent

78".(1,41,.,%#.("%*$-,(1,*,";&H',("%(1,.4,*#($0(&''(!A,''"%=.(A"#8"%(#8,(<3 F(=1$..($0(1,%#(1,H&#,.(
&%!(%,#($0(1,%#.(%$#(4&G&H',(A8,%(41$4,1#",.(&1,(,-4#GC(( .(&#(6>(I&1*8(JK>6F(JC>L($0(41$4,1#",.(
A,1,(;&*&%#(M>C5NL(&#(6>(I&1*8(JK>JOC(
(

78,( &;,1&=,( 1,%#( 4&G&H',( "%( JK>JP>6( A&.( Q?RCN?( 4,1( A,,B( H&.,!( $%( R@( 4&G&H',( 1,%#( A,,B.(
MQ@5CR>(4,1(A,,B($%(&(SJ(A,,B(H&.".OC((78,(&;,1&=,(1,%#(4&G&H',("%(JK>>P>J(A&.(Q@5C5@(4,1(A,,B(
H&.,!($%(R@(4&G&H',(1,%#(A,,B.(MQ@>CKJ(4,1(A,,B($%(&(SJ(A,,B(H&.".OC(

3 Housing Revenue Account Subsidy Payable

)$''$A"%=(#8,("%#1$!2*#"$%($0(+,'0T)"%&%*"%=(0$1(#8,(<$2."%=(3,;,%2,( **$2%#(01$-( 41"'(JK>JF(#8,(
U$2%*"'( ".(%$('$%=,1(1,V2"1,!(#$(4&G(<$2."%=(3,;,%2,( **$2%#(+2H."!G(#$(U,%#1&'(:$;,1%-,%#(#$(
-&#*8(#8,(.214'2.($%(#8,(%$#"$%&'(<3 C(
(

71&%.&*#"$%.( "%( JK>JP>6( 1,'&#,!( .$','G( #$( &%G( 1,#1$.4,*#";,( &!W2.#-,%#.( "%( 1,.4,*#( $0( .2H."!G(
4&G&H',(0$1(JK>>P>J(&.(0$''$A.X(
(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

I&%&=,-,%#(&%!(-&"%#,%&%*,( K( >JFKN>(

U&4"#&'(*8&1=,.( K( R?S(

( 0 12,556

Y$#"$%&'(1,%#( K( M6KFNSKO(

/%#,1,.#($%(1,*,"4#.( K( M>O(

( 0 (18,095)

I&W$1(3,4&"1.( ''$A&%*,( K( SF>>?(

Subsidy Paid in Year 0 (12,976)

 !W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(1,V2"1,!("%(02#21,(G,&1.( K( M>SO(

Z.#"-&#,!(&!W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(0$1(41"$1(G,&1( K( J(

 *#2&'(&!W2.#-,%#(#$(.2H."!G(0$1(41"$1(G,&1( >J( >K(

 !W2.#-,%#(0$1(<3 (.,'0T0"%&%*"%=("%#,1,.#( K( 5N(

Negative subsidy included in HRA Summary 12 (12,903)

(
(
( (

Page 145



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

4 Asset Values within the HRA 

(£000s)

Asset Values Depreciation

31 March 2013 1 April 2012 2012/13
2011/12

(as restated)

78,''"%9.( 3:;<=>?( 3@A<2A3( A><32:( @<;2B(

C#D,1(E&%!(&%!(F4"'!"%9.( @<?;2( @<3=:( AA:( AA3(

/%01&.#14*#41,( A<>>=( @=B( ?;( ?A(

/%G,.#-,%#(H1$6,1#",.( 3<3?B( 3<:>:( >( >(

 ..,#.(D,'!(0$1(.&',(I('$%9(#,1-(( ?B>( >( >( >(

 ..,#.(D,'!(0$1(.&',(J(*411,%#( :3A( >( >( >(

+416'4.( ..,#.( 3<A3:( >( >( >(

 ..,#.("%(#D,(*$41.,($0(
*$%.#14*#"$%(

A<@?=( B<@:2( >( >(

508,341 510,920 10,622 9,808

(

KD,( G&'4,( $0( *$4%*"'( !8,''"%9.( &#( A(  61"'( ?>A?<( L&.,!( $%(G&*&%#( 6$..,.."$%<(8&.( MA<?;A(-"''"$%(
N?>AAOA?P(MA<?==(-"''"$%QR((S&*&%#(6$..,.."$%(G&'4,(".(#D,(,.#"-&#,($0(#D,(#$#&'(.4-(#D&#(8$4'!(L,(
1,*,"G,!("0(&''(#D,(!8,''"%9.(8,1,(.$'!($%(#D,($6,%(-&1T,#R((KD,(L&'&%*,(.D,,#(G&'4,(".(*&'*4'&#,!($%(
#D,( L&.".( $0( 1,%#.( 1,*,"G&L',( $%(,U ".#"%9( #,%&%*",.R( ( KD,.,( &1,( ',..( #D&%( #D,( 1,%#( #D&#( 8$4'!( L,(
$L#&"%&L',( $%( #D,( $6,%(-&1T,#<( &%!( #D,( L&'&%*,( .D,,#( G&'4,( ".( #D,1,0$1,( '$8,1( #D&%( #D,( G&*&%#(
6$..,.."$%(G&'4&#"$%R((KD,(!"00,1,%*,(L,#8,,%(#D,(#8$(G&'4,.(.D$8.(#D,(,*$%$-"*(*$.#($0(61$G"!"%9(
D$4."%9(&#(',..(#D&%(-&1T,#(G&'4,R(
(

V,#(1,G&'4&#"$%('$..,.($%(H1$6,1#W<(H'&%#(&%!(XY4"6-,%#($0(M:R?(-"''"$%(D&G,(L,,%(*D&19,!(#$(#D,(
Z$-61,D,%."G,(/%*$-,(&%!(XU6,%!"#41,(+#&#,-,%#("%(?>A?OAB(N%,#(1,G&'4&#"$%(9&"%.($0(M3R;(-"''"$%(
"%(?>AAOA?QR( (5,-&"%"%9(G&'4&#"$%(-$G,-,%#.( "%( #D,(G&'4,($0(61$6,1#W<(6'&%#(&%!(,Y4"6-,%#(D&G,(
L,,%(*D&19,!(#$(#D,(1,G&'4&#"$%(1,.,1G,R(
(

 %("-6&"1-,%#('$..($0(MA2<>>>(D&.(L,,%(1,*$9%".,!("%(1,.6,*#($0('&%!(&#(E&#"-,1(Z'$.,(8D,1,(#D,(
,U6,*#,!(0&"1(G&'4,($%(!".6$.&'(".('$8,1(#D&%(#D,(61,G"$4.(G&'4&#"$%($%(&%(,U".#"%9(4.,(L&.".R(
(

7,J-"%"-".(*&6"#&'(,U6,%!"#41,($0(MAA;<>>>(N?>AAOA?(M3;<>>>Q(D&.(L,,%(81"##,%($00(!41"%9(?>A?OABR(

5 Loan Interest Charges

741"%9( ?>AAOA?( &4#D$1"#",.(-&%&9,!( #D,"1( !,L#( &.( &( 8D$',( &%!( %$( .,6&1&#,( 1,*$1!( 8&.( T,6#( $0(
'$&%.( #&T,%($4#( 0$1([5 (6416$.,.R( ([$8,G,1(%$#"$%&'([5 (!,L#(8&.(,.#"-&#,!(LW( 1,0,1,%*,( #$(&(
*&'*4'&#"$%(*&'',!(#D,([5 (*&6"#&'(0"%&%*"%9(1,Y4"1,-,%#R((KD,([5 (*&6"#&'(0"%&%*"%9(1,Y4"1,-,%#(".(
&(-,&.41,( $0( %,#([5 ( "%!,L#,!%,..(8D"*D( #&T,.( &**$4%#( $0( &%W( %,8( L$11$8"%9( #&T,%( $4#( ,&*D(
W,&1<(&..4-,!( #$(L,( 0$1([5 (6416$.,.<(&%!( #D,(&..4-,!(1,6&W-,%#($0(,U".#"%9([5 (!,L#R( (KD,(
'$&%("%#,1,.#(*D&19,.(-,#(LW(#D,([5 (&1,(*&'*4'&#,!(LW(-4'#"6'W"%9(#D,(-"!JW,&1(*1,!"#(*,"'"%9(LW(#D,(
Z$4%*"'\.(&G,1&9,(1&#,($0("%#,1,.#(0$1('$%9J#,1-(L$11$8"%9R(
(

 .( %$#,!( ,'.,8D,1,( "%( #D,( +#&#,-,%#( $0(  **$4%#.( #D,( Z$4%*"'( -&!,( &%( [5 ( .,'0I0"%&%*"%9(
.,##',-,%#(6&W-,%#($0(M?ABR;(-"''"$%($%(?:(]&1*D(?>A?R((K$(-,,#(#D".(6&W-,%#(#D,(Z$4%*"'(#$$T($4#(
&(%4-L,1($0('$%9J#,1-(-&#41"#W('$&%.(8"#D(#D,(H4L'"*(^$1T.(E$&%(F$&1!(NH^EFQR(
( (

Page 146



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

7%!,1(83 (.,'090"%&%*"%:(#;,(<$2%*"'(;&.(&!$4#,!(&(=#>$94$$'?(&441$&*;(.$(#;&#(83 (.,'090"%&%*"%:(
'$&%.(&%!(#;,(1,.2'#&%#("%#,1,.#(&1,(!"1,*#'@(&##1"A2#&A',(#$(#;,(83 B((C;".(;&.(',!(#$(,D#,1%&'("%#,1,.#(
*;&1:,.($0(E5FGHGFIII(A,"%:(*;&1:,!(#$(#;,(83 ("%(JIKJLKMB(

6 Housing Stock

C;,(<$2%*"'(>&.(1,.4$%."A',(0$1(&%(&N,1&:,(.#$*O($0(5FJ6J(!>,''"%:.(!21"%:(#;,(@,&1B((C;,(.#$*O(&.(
&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(>&.(&.(0$''$>.Q9(
(

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

8$2.,.(R(A2%:&'$>.( MFS6T( MFSH5(

)'&#.( JFHSS( MFI6T(

+;,'#,1,!(;$2."%:(2%"#.( 6JI( 6J6(

+;&1,!($>%,1.;"4(41$4,1#",.( MH( GI(

Total 7,183 7,320

( ( (

C;,(*;&%:,("%(.#$*O(!21"%:(#;,(@,&1(*&%(A,(.2--&1".,!(&.(0$''$>.Q( ( (

Stock at 1 April 7,320 7,330

3":;#(#$(A2@(.&',.( UGKV( UKJV(

W,#(.;&1,!($>%,1.;"4(*;&%:,.( UKV( I(

W,>(41$4,1#",.( J( J(

X#;,1(*;&%:,.( USV( I(

Y&*&%#(&>&"#"%:(1,9!,N,'$4-,%#L!".4$.&'( UHKV( I(

Stock at 31 March 7,183 7,320

(

C;$.,(41$4,1#",.(>;"*;(&1,(N&*&%#(&>&"#"%:(!,-$'"#"$%($1(.":%"0"*&%#( 1,!,N,'$4-,%#(&1,(%$( '$%:,1(
#1,&#,!(&.( ',##&A',(83 (!>,''"%:.(&%!(&1,( #;,1,0$1,( "%*'2!,!( "%(Z1$4,1#@F(Z'&%#(&%!([\2"4-,%#(&.(
X#;,1(]&%!(&%!(^2"'!"%:.F($1(&.( ..,#.(;,'!(0$1(+&',(&.(&441$41"&#,B(

7 Rent Arrears

3,%#(&11,&1.(&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(>,1,(EKF6JMFJT5(UEKF6KTFT6G(&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKJV(&%!(&.(&(41$4$1#"$%(
$0(:1$..(1,%#("%*$-,(;&N,(!,*1,&.,!(01$-(GB6H_("%(JIKKLKJ(#$(GBMI_("%(JIKJLKMB(
(

 #(MK(P&1*;(JIKM(&(41$N"."$%(0$1(A&!(!,A#($0(EKFJIGF6KT(>&.(;,'!("%(#;,(A&'&%*,(.;,,#(UEKFJMJFMKT(
&#(MK(P&1*;(JIKJVB(
(
(
(
( (

Page 147



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

8 Financing of Capital Expenditure

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

7&6"#&'(1,*,"6#.( 839( 8:338(

;&<$1(1,6&"1.(1,.,1=,( 8:>9>( >:8??(

5,=,%4,(0"%&%*"%@($0(*&6"#&'( 2:>>2( A:B>9(

7&6"#&'(*$%#1"C4#"$%.(&%!(@1&%#.( 8?3( 9DB(

11,539 10,063

(

7&6"#&'( ,E6,%!"#41,( "%( #F,( G,&1(H&.(&''( "%( 1,'&#"$%( #$(I5 (.#$*J(&6&1#( 01$-(K2L:???( MK9?L:???( "%(
9?AANA9O( HF"*F( H&.( .6,%#( $%( I5 ( "%01&.#14*#41,( &..,#.:( K92?:???( $%( $#F,1( '&%!( &%!( C4"'!"%@.(
MKL>:???( "%( 9?AANA9O( :( K?( $%( "%=,.#-,%#( 61$6,1#",.( MK8D:???( "%( 9?AANA9O:( &%!(K A:A29:???(
MK8:99L:???("%(9?AANA9O($%(&..,#.("%(#F,(*$41.,($0(*$%.#14*#"$%P(

9 Capital Income within the HRA 

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

QH,''"%@.( >:>>A( 9:?92(

R&%!( A8( 82(

4,454 2,064

10 Major Repairs Reserve (MRR)

(£000s) 2012/13
2011/12

(as restated)

Balance at 1 April (1,171) (352)

S1&%.0,1(#$(;55(!41"%@(#F,(G,&1( MA?:398O( ML:B?BO(

 -$4%#(#1&%.0,11,!(01$-(;55(#$(I5 ( 8:9DL( >:3BL(

I5 (*&6"#&'(,E6,%!"#41,($%(F$4."%@(*F&1@,!(#$(;55( 8:>9>( >:8??(

Balance at 31 March (5,111) (1,171)

11 Contributions from the Pensions Reserve

SF,(I$4."%@(5,=,%4,( **$4%#(".(*F&1@,!(H"#F(&%(&##1"C4#&C',(.F&1,($0(*411,%#(.,1="*,(*$.#.("%('"%,(
H"#F( / +ALP( ( SF,( !"00,1,%*,( C,#H,,%( #F".( *$.#( &%!(, -6'$G,1( *$%#1"C4#"$%.( 6&G&C',( ".( #F,%(
&661$61"&#,!( 01$-( #F,( 6,%."$%.( 1,.,1=,( .$( #F&#( #F,( $=,1&''( &-$4%#( #$( C,( -,#( 01$-( 1,%#( &%!(
@$=,1%-,%#(.4C."!G(1,0',*#.(,-6'$G,1(*$%#1"C4#"$%.(6&G&C',(CG(#F,(7$4%*"'P(

12 HRA self-financing settlement payment

SF,(7$4%*"'(-&!,(&(.,##',-,%#(6&G-,%#( #$(*,%#1&'(@$=,1%-,%#( "%( 1,.6,*#($0( .,'0T0"%&%*"%@($0( #F,(
I5 ("%(;&1*F(9?A9P(

(

Page 148



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 55(
(((((((((((((((((((

13 Prior Period Adjustments

67,(41"$1(8,&1(*$-4&1&#"9,(0":21,(0$1(!,41,*"&#"$%(&%!("-4&"1-,%#(7&.(;,,%(1,.#&#,!(&.(!,#&"',!("%(
<$#,(=>(#$(#7,(-&"%(.#&#,-,%#($0(&**$2%#.?((67".(1,.#&#,-,%#(7&.(%$("-4&*#($%(#7,(;&'&%*,($%(@3 (
1,9,1.,.(&.(41,9"$2.'8(.#&#,!?(
(
(
(
( (

Page 149



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

Collection Fund

78".(.8$9.(#8,(#1&%.&*#"$%.("%(1,'&#"$%(#$(#8,(*$'',*#"$%($0(:$4%*"'(7&;(&%!(<&#"$%&'(<$%=>$-,.#"*(
5&#,.( ?<<>5@A( ( 78,( &**$4%#( .8$9.( 8$9( #8,( &-$4%#.( *$'',*#,!( 8&B,( C,,%(!" .#1"C4#,!( #$(
:&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'F(G$'"*,(&%!()"1,( 4#8$1"#",.(&%!(#$(#8,(:"#E(:$4%*"'H.(I,%,1&'()4%!(
&.(9,''(&.(#$(#8,(<<>5(G$$'A(

(£000s) Note 2012/13 2011/12

Income and Expenditure Account 1

( ( ( (

Income

:$4%*"'(7&;( J( ?KLFJM3@( ?N3FO3M@(

<&#"$%&'(<$%=>$-,.#"*(1&#,.( M( ?3PF2J2@( ?33FLKJ@(

:$%#1"C4#"$%.(#$9&1!.(61,B"$4.(E,&1H.(,.#"-&#,!(:$'',*#"$%(
)4%!(!,0"*"#(

( ( (

( :&-C1"!D,(:"#E(:$4%*"'( ( ?32@( ?QJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'( ( ?NQ3@( ?JKJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$'"*,( 4#8$1"#E( ( ?3P@( ?QJ@(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#E( ( ?ML@( ?OQ@(

( ( ?ONLF2OP@( ?OQKFKLN@(

Expenditure

G1,*,6#.(&%!(!,-&%!.R( ( ( (

( :&-C1"!D,(:"#E(:$4%*"'( ( KF3MO( KF23K(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(:$4%#E(:$4%*"'( ( QQFJM3( QJFK3N(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$'"*,( 4#8$1"#E( ( 2FON2( KFPL3(

( :&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#E( ( JFQMJ( JFMN3(

 ''$9&C',(*$.#.($0(<<>5(*$'',*#"$%( ( JMO( JMM(

G&E-,%#(#$(<<>5(G$$'( M( 3PFQPK( 32F3JP(

G1$B"."$%(0$1(%$%=6&E-,%#($0(:$4%*"'(7&;( Q( MMO( QKP(

150,716 147,268

(Surplus) / Deficit for the year 5 (3) 663

(Surplus) / Deficit as at 1 April 1,384 721

Deficit as at 31 March 5 1,381 1,384

(
(
(

Page 150



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

(
(  %%2&'(3,4$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$2%#.( 56(
(((((((((((((((((((

Notes to the Collection Fund

1 General

78".(.#&#,-,%#(.8$9.( #8,( #1&%.&*#"$%.($0( #8,(:$'',*#"$%()2%!;(&(. #&#2#$1<( 02%!(.,4&1&#,( 01$-( #8,(
=,%,1&'()2%!($0(#8,(:$2%*"'>((78,(:$'',*#"$%()2%!(&**$2%#.(0$1("%*$-,(1,'&#"%?(#$(:$2%*"'(7&@(&%!(
AAB3($%(C,8&'0($0(#8$.,(C$!",.(D"%*'2!"%?(#8,(:$2%*"'E.($9%(=,%,1&'()2%!F(0$1(98$-(#8,("%*$-,(
8&.(C,,%(1&".,!>((78,(*$.#.($0(*$'',*#"$%(&1,(&**$2%#,!(0$1("%(#8,(=,%,1&'()2%!>(

2 Council Tax

G%!,1( #8,( &11&%?,-,%#.( 0$1( :$2%*"'( 7&@;( ,&*8( !$-,.#"*( 41$4,1#<( 9"#8"%( #8,( :$2%*"'E.( &1,&( ".(
&.."?%,!( #$( $%,( $0( ,"?8#( HI&'2&#"$%( C&%!.E( D ( #$( JF( C&.,!( $%( #8,( ,.#"-&#,!( 41"*,( "#( 9$2'!( 8&I,(
&*8",I,!("0("#(8&!(C,,%(.$'!(&#(K( 41"'(K66K>((78,(:$2%*"'(7&@(".(.,#(0$1(C&%!(B(41$4,1#",.(&%!(#8,(
#&@(0$1($#8,1(C&%!.(".(*&'*2'&#,!(&.(&(41$4$1#"$%($0(#8,(C&%!(B(#&@>((78,(C&%!(B(:$2%*"'(7&@(0$1(#8,(
<,&1(,%!,!(LK(M&1*8(NOKL(9&.(.,#(&#(PK;Q56>OQ;(-&!,(24(&.(0$''$9.R(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

:&-C1"!?,(:"#<(:$2%*"'( KSS>T5( KSS>T5(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,(:$2%#<(:$2%*"'( K;O5U>ST( K;OQ5>5U(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,(V$'"*,( 2#8$1"#<( K5Q>TK( KS6>TS(

:&-C1"!?,.8"1,()"1,( 2#8$1"#<( T6>LK( T5>U5(

Total 1,479.04 1,441.78

78,(0$''$9"%?(#&C',(.8$9.(#8,(*&'*2'&#"$%($0(#8,(:$2%*"'(7&@(W&.,(0$1(NOKNXKL(D2.,!(#$(!,#,1-"%,(
#8,(#&@(%,,!,!(&#(W&%!(B(#$(0"%&%*,(.4,%!"%?F>(

Council Tax Base 2012/13 

Valuation Band
Total number of 
dwellings on the 

Valuation List

Total Equivalent 
Dwellings (after 

discounts, 
exemptions etc)

Ratio to Band D
Band D 

Equivalents

 ( N;UQN( N;O6Q( SX6( K;L6S(

W( 6;QUQ( 5;TTN( 5X6( T;U5Q(

:( K5;TTQ( KT;OTT( UX6( KL;LUN(

B( U;TQL( 5;NTT( 6X6( 5;NTT(

Y( Q;UST( Q;KU6( KKX6( T;KK6(

)( L;O5O( N;SLS( KLX6( L;UOU(

=( N;ULQ( NLQ( KTX6( L;UU6(

J( QQU( NTT( KUX6( TKO(

Total 49,640 39,270 41,233

(
( (

Page 151



 !!"#"$%&'()"%&%*"&'(+#&#,-,%#.(&%!(/%0$1-&#"$%(
(
(

((((((((((((( (
( 23( ((((((( %%4&'(5,6$1#(&%!(+#&#,-,%#($0( **$4%#.(
(((((((((((((( (((((((((((((((((((((

78,("%*$-,($0(9:3;<=(-"''"$%("%(<3><?>@(A&.(1,*,"B&C',(01$-(#8,(0$''$A"%D(.$41*,.E(

(£000s) 2012/13 2011/12

F"'',!(#$(G$4%*"'(7&H(6&I,1.( J@K2LJ( J>KMLL(

71&%.0,1(01$-(N,%,1&'()4%!(O(G$4%*"'(7&H(C,%,0"#.( :K@@L( :K>23(

P"%".#1I($0(Q,0,%*,(G$%#1"C4#"$%.("%(R",4( <:( <:(

Total 60,238 58,183

3 National Non-Domestic Rates Income

S%!,1( #8,( &11&%D,-,%#.( 0$1( C4."%,..( 1&#,.K( #8,( *$4%*"'( *$'',*#.( %$%T!$-,.#"*( 1&#,.( 0$1( "#.( &1,&K(
C&.,!( $%(' $*&'( 1&#,&C',( B&'4,.( -4'#"6'",!( CI( &( %&#"$%&''I( .,#( C4."%,..( 1&#,;( ( 78".( &-$4%#K( ',..(
*,1#&"%(&''$A&%*,.(&%!($#8,1(!,!4*#"$%.K(".(6&"!("%#$(#8,(UUQ5(V$$'K(A8"*8(6&I.(C&*W(#$(&4#8$1"#",.(
&(.8&1,($0(#8,(6$$'(C&.,!($%(&(.#&%!&1!(&-$4%#(6,1(8,&!($0(6$64'&#"$%;(

78,('$*&'(1&#,&C',(B&'4,(&.(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3>@(A&.(9<JJK2L=K3>>(X9<JLK=:<K<:>(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3><Y(
&%!(#8,(S%"0$1-(F4."%,..(5&#,("%(<3><?>@(A&.(.,#(CI(#8,(D$B,1%-,%#(&#(=J;26(X<3>>?><K(=@;@6Y;(

4 Provision for Non-Payment of Council Tax

 (*$%#1"C4#"$%($0(9@@>K=JL(X9=:MK@>J( "%(<3>>?><Y(A&.(-&!,(#$(&(61$B"."$%(0$1(C&!(!,C#.;( (Q41"%D(
<3><?>@K(9>K2=@($0("11,*$B,1&C',(!,C#.(A,1,(A1"##,%($00(X<3>>?><(9<2@K:@LY;(

5 Collection Fund Surpluses and Deficits

78,(!,0"*"#($0(9>K@2>K<22(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3>@(X9>K@2@KL2L(!,0"*"#(&#(@>(P&1*8(<3><YK(A8"*8(1,'&#,!(#$(
G$4%*"'(7&HK(A"''(C,(1,*$B,1,!("%(.4C.,Z4,%#(0"%&%*"&'(I,&1.(01$-(G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$4%#I(G$4%*"'K(
G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(V$'"*,(&%!()"1,( 4#8$1"#",.(&%!(#8,(G$4%*"'("%(61$6$1#"$%(#$(#8,"1(.8&1,.($0(#8,(#$#&'(
G$4%*"'(7&H(1&".,!;(

78,(#$#&'(G$'',*#"$%()4%!(!,0"*"#(".(#8,1,0$1,(.8&1,!(&.(0$''$A.E(

(£000s) 31 March 2013 31 March 2012

G&-C1"!D,(G"#I(G$4%*"'( >JL( >J2(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(G$4%#I(G$4%*"'( >K33J( >K33L(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,(V$'"*,( 4#8$1"#I( >:@( >:@(

G&-C1"!D,.8"1,()"1,( 4#8$1"#I( J:( J:(

1,381 1,384

(
(
(

Page 152



 
 
 
 

 

Statement of Accounting Policies and Glossary of Financial 
Terms and Abbreviations

Page 153



Page 154



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Statement of Accounting Policies

1 General Principles

6>#& !"!#$#%!& '(&)**'+%!0& 0+$$"3,0#0& !>#&?'+%*,/@0& !3"%0"*!,'%0& ('3& !>#& ABCADC=& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3&
"%7& ,!0& ;'0,!,'%&"!& !>#& 4#"3E#%7&'(& =C&F"3*>&ABC=G&6>#&?'+%*,/& ,0& 3#H+,3#7& !'&;3#;"3#&"%&"%%+"/&
 !"!#$#%!& '(& )**'+%!0& 84& !>#& )**'+%!0& "%7& )+7,!& :#-+/"!,'%0& ABCCI& J>,*>& !>'0#& 3#-+/"!,'%0&
3#H+,3#& !'&8#&;3#;"3#7& ,%&"**'37"%*#&J,!>&;3';#3&"**'+%!,%-&;3"*!,*#0G&6>#0#&;3"*!,*#0&;3,$"3,/4&
*'$;3,0#&!>#&?'7#&'(&.3"*!,*#&'%&K'*"/&)+!>'3,!4&)**'+%!,%-& ,%& !>#&L%,!#7&M,%-7'$&ABCADC=&"%7&
!>#&  #39,*#& :#;'3!,%-& ?'7#& '(& .3"*!,*#& ABCADC=I& 0+;;'3!#7& 84& N%!#3%"!,'%"/& 5,%"%*,"/& :#;'3!,%-&
 !"%7"370&ON5: PG&

6>#& "**'+%!,%-& *'%9#%!,'%& "7';!#7& ,%& !>#&  !"!#$#%!& '(& )**'+%!0& ,0& ;3,%*,;"//4& >,0!'3,*"/& *'0!I&
$'7,(,#7&84&!>#&3#9"/+"!,'%&'(&*#3!",%&*"!#-'3,#0&'(&%'%E*+33#%!&"00#!0&"%7&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!0G&

2 Accruals of Income and Expenditure

)*!,9,!4&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&,%&!>#&4#"3&!>"!&,!&!"Q#0&;/"*#I&%'!&0,$;/4&J>#%&*"0>&;"4$#%!0&"3#&$"7#&'3&
3#*#,9#7G&N%&;"3!,*+/"3R&&

 & :#9#%+#&(3'$&!>#&0"/#&'(&-''70&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&J>#%&!>#&?'+%*,/& !3"%0(#30&!>#&0,-%,(,*"%!&3,0Q0&
"%7&3#J"370&'(&'J%#30>,;&!'&!>#&;+3*>"0#3&"%7&,!&,0&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&
;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&J,!>&!>#&!3"%0"*!,'%&J,//&(/'J&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/G&&

 & :#9#%+#& (3'$& !>#&;3'9,0,'%&'(&0#39,*#0& ,0& 3#*'-%,0#7&J>#%& !>#&?'+%*,/&*"%&$#"0+3#&3#/,"8/4&
!>#& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& *'$;/#!,'%& '(& !>#& !3"%0"*!,'%& "%7&, !& ,0& ;3'8"8/#& !>"!& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3&
0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&J,!>&!>#&!3"%0"*!,'%&J,//&(/'J&!'&!>#&?'+%*,/G&&

 &  +;;/,#0&"3#&3#*'37#7&"0&#S;#%7,!+3#&J>#%&!>#4&"3#&*'%0+$#7&E&J>#3#&!>#3#&,0&"&-";&8#!J##%&
!>#&7"!#& 0+;;/,#0&"3#& 3#*#,9#7&"%7& !>#,3& *'%0+$;!,'%I& !>#4&"3#&*"33,#7&"0& ,%9#%!'3,#0&'%& !>#&
T"/"%*#& >##!G&&

 & US;#%0#0& ,%& 3#/"!,'%& !'&0#39,*#0& 3#*#,9#7& O,%*/+7,%-& !>'0#& 3#%7#3#7&84& !>#&?'+%*,/@0& '((,*#30P&
"3#&3#*'37#7&"0&#S;#%7,!+3#&J>#%& !>#&0#39,*#0&"3#&3#*#,9#7I& 3"!>#3& !>"%&J>#%&;"4$#%!0&"3#&
$"7#G&&

 & N%!#3#0!&;"4"8/#&'%&8'33'J,%-0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#&'%&,%9#0!$#%!0&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&'%&!>#&8"0,0&'(&
!>#&#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#&('3&!>#&3#/#9"%!&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&3"!>#3&!>"%&!>#&*"0>&(/'J0&(,S#7&'3&
7#!#3$,%#7&84&!>#&*'%!3"*!G&

 & V>#3#&3#9#%+#&"%7&#S;#%7,!+3#&>"9#&8##%&3#*'-%,0#7&8+!&*"0>&>"0&%'!&8##%&3#*#,9#7&'3&;",7I&
"&7#8!'3&'3&*3#7,!'3& ('3& !>#&3#/#9"%!&"$'+%!& ,0& 3#*'37#7& ,%& !>#&T"/"%*#& >##!G&V>#3#& !>#3#& ,0&
#9,7#%*#& !>"!& 7#8!0& "3#& +%/,Q#/4& !'& 8#&0 #!!/#7I& !>#& 8"/"%*#& '(& 7#8!'30& ,0&J3,!!#%& 7'J%& "%7& "&
*>"3-#&$"7#&!'&3#9#%+#&('3&!>#&,%*'$#&!>"!&$,->!&%'!&8#&*'//#*!#7G&

V>#3#& !>#& ?'+%*,/& ,0& "*!,%-& "0& "%&" -#%!& ('3& "%'!>#3& ;"3!4& O#G-G& ,%& !>#& *'//#*!,'%& '(& WWX:& "%7&
*'+%*,/& !"SPI& ,%*'$#& "%7& #S;#%7,!+3#& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& '%/4& !'& !>#& #S!#%!& !>"!& *'$$,00,'%& ,0&
3#*#,9"8/#&84&!>#&?'+%*,/&('3&!>#&"-#%*4&0#39,*#0&3#%7#3#7&'3&!>#&?'+%*,/&,%*+30&#S;#%0#0&7,3#*!/4&
'%&,!0&'J%&8#>"/(&,%&3#%7#3,%-&!>#&0#39,*#0G&

& &

Page 155



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

3 Cash and Cash Equivalents

>"0?& ,0& 3#=3#0#%!#7& 84& *"0?& ,%& ?"%7& "%7&7#= '0,!0& @,!?& (,%"%*,"/& ,%0!,!+!,'%0& 3#="4"8/#& @,!?'+!&
=#%"/!4&'%&%'!,*#&'(&%'!&$'3#&!?"%&A;&?'+30B&&>"0?&#C+,9"/#%!0&"3#&,%9#0!$#%!0&!?"!&"3#&*'%9#3!,8/#&
!'&D%'@%&"$'+%!0&'(&*"0?&@,!?&"%& ,%0,-%,(,*"%!& 3,0D&'(&*?"%-#& ,%&9"/+#& E%'& /'00&'(& ,%!#3#0!FB& &6?#&
>'+%*,/& !?#3#('3#& !3#"!0& "//& (,G#7& !#3$& 7#='0,!0H& @?,*?& ?"9#& %'& *'%!3"*!+"/& =3'9,0,'%& ('3& #"3/4&
3#7#$=!,'%H&"%7&,(&!?#4&@#3#&3#7##$#7&#"3/4&@'+/7&0+((#3&"&=#%"/!4&'(&"!&/#"0!&"&/'00&'(&,%!#3#0!H&"0&
,%9#0!$#%!0B&

I%&!?#&>"0?&5/'@& !"!#$#%!H&*"0?&"%7&*"0?&#C+,9"/#%!0&"3#&0?'@%&%#!&'(&8"%D&'9#373"(!0&!?"!&"3#&
3#="4"8/#&'%&7#$"%7&"%7&('3$&"%&,%!#-3"/&="3!&'(&!?#&>'+%*,/J0&*"0?&$"%"-#$#%!B&

4 Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

>?"%-#0&,%&"**'+%!,%-&='/,*,#0&"3#&'%/4&$"7#&@?#%&3#C+,3#7&84&=3'=#3&"**'+%!,%-&=3"*!,*#0&'3&!?#&
*?"%-#&=3'9,7#0&$'3#&3#/,"8/#&'3&3#/#9"%!&,%('3$"!,'%&"8'+!&!?#&#((#*!&'(&!3"%0"*!,'%0H&'!?#3&#9#%!0&
"%7& *'%7,!,'%0& '%& !?#& >'+%*,/K0& (,%"%*,"/& ='0,!,'%& '3& (,%"%*,"/& =#3('3$"%*#B& L?#3#& "& *?"%-#& ,0&
$"7#H&,!&,0&"==/,#7&3#!3'0=#*!,9#/4&84&"7M+0!,%-&'=#%,%-&8"/"%*#0&"%7&*'$="3"!,9#&"$'+%!0&('3&!?#&
=3,'3&=#3,'7&"0&,(&!?#&%#@&='/,*4&?"7&"/@"40&8##%&"==/,#7B&

>?"%-#0&,%&"**'+%!,%-&#0!,$"!#0&"3#&"**'+%!#7&('3&=3'0=#*!,9#/4H&,#H&,%&!?#&*+33#%!&"%7&(+!+3#&4#"30&
"((#*!#7&84&!?#&*?"%-#B&

N"!#3,"/&#33'30&7,0*'9#3#7&,%&=3,'3&=#3,'7&(,-+3#0&"3#&*'33#*!#7&3#!3'0=#*!,9#/4&84&"$#%7,%-&'=#%,%-&
8"/"%*#0&"%7&*'$="3"!,9#&"$'+%!0&('3&!?#&=3,'3&=#3,'7B&&

5 Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

 #39,*#0H&0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"%7& !3"7,%-&"**'+%!0&"3#&7#8,!#7&@,!?& !?#& ('//'@,%-&"$'+%!0& !'& 3#*'37&
!?#&*'0!&'(&?'/7,%-&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0&7+3,%-&!?#&4#"3P&

 & 7#=3#*,"!,'%&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&"00#!0&+0#7&84&!?#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&&

 & 3#9"/+"!,'%& "%7& ,$=",3$#%!& /'00#0& '%& "00#!0& +0#7& 84& !?#& 0#39,*#& @?#3#& !?#3#& "3#& %'&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0&,%&!?#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#&"-",%0!&@?,*?&!?#&/'00#0&*"%&8#&@3,!!#%&'((&&

 & "$'3!,0"!,'%&'(&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&0#39,*#&

6?#&>'+%*,/& ,0&%'!& 3#C+,3#7& !'& 3",0#&*'+%*,/& !"G& !'&*'9#3&7#=3#*,"!,'%H& 3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$=",3$#%!&
/'00#0& '3& "$'3!,0"!,'%0B& Q'@#9#3H& ,!& ,0& 3#C+,3#7& !'& $"D#& "%& "%%+"/& =3'9,0,'%& (3'$& 3#9#%+#& !'&
*'%!3,8+!#& !'@"370& !?#& 3#7+*!,'%& ,%& ,!0& '9#3"//& 8'33'@,%-& 3#C+,3#$#%!B& & 6?,0& =3'9,0,'%H& D%'@%& "0&
N,%,$+$& <#9#%+#& .3'9,0,'%& EN<.FH& ,0& #C+"/& !'& "%&" $'+%!& *"/*+/"!#7& '%&"&= 3+7#%!& 8"0,0&
7#!#3$,%#7& 84& !?#&>'+%*,/& ,%& "**'37"%*#&@,!?& 0!"!+!'34& -+,7"%*#B& &R#=3#*,"!,'%H& 3#9"/+"!,'%& "%7&
,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"%7&"$'3!,0"!,'%0&"3#&!?#3#('3#&3#=/"*#7&84&!?#&*'%!3,8+!,'%&,%&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&
S"/"%*#H&84&@"4&'(&"%&"7M+0!,%-&!3"%0"*!,'%&@,!?&!?#&>"=,!"/&)7M+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&
<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&('3&!?#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!@##%&!?#&!@'B&&T'&N<.&,0&*+33#%!/4&*?"3-#7&"0&!?#&7#8!&
"*C+,3#7&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&Q<)&0#/(O(,%"%*,%-&,0&'+!0,7#&!?#&0*'=#&'(&!?,0&3#-,$#B&

6?#&=3'9,0,'%0&('3&*?"3-#0&!'&3#9#%+#&('3&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0&,%&!?#&Q<)&@#3#&"$#%7#7&'%&U&)=3,/&
AVUA&('//'@,%-&!?#&,%!3'7+*!,'%&'(&Q<)&0#/(O(,%"%*,%-B&&6?#&N"M'3&<#=",30&<#0#39#&,0&*3#7,!#7&"%7&
!?#&Q<)&8"/"%*#&,0&7#8,!#7&@,!?&"&0+$&#C+"/&!'&7#=3#*,"!,'%&'%&"//&Q<)&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!0B&&6?#&

Page 156



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&

&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

>:)&8"/"%*#&,0&*3#7,!#7&"%7&!?#&@";,!"/&)7A+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&7#8,!#7&B,!?&!?#&7#;3#*,"!,'%&*?"3-#7&
'%&7B#//,%-&"00#!0&0'&!?"!&!?#&7#;3#*,"!,'%&'%&%'%C7B#//,%-&"00#!0&,0&%'B&"&*?"3-#&!'&!?#&>:)D&&&

6 Employee Benefits

E#%#(,!0&."4"8/#&F+3,%-&G$;/'4$#%!&

 ?'3!C!#3$&#$;/'4##&8#%#(,!0&H!?'0#&!?"!&("//&7+#&B?'//4&B,!?,%&IJ&$'%!?0&'(&!?#&4#"3C#%7KL&0+*?&"0&
B"-#0&"%7&0"/"3,#0L&;",7&"%%+"/&/#"9#&"%7&;",7&0,*M&/#"9#L&(/#N,C/#"9#&"%7&!,$#&'((&,%&/,#+&('3&*+33#%!&
#$;/'4##0L& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& "%&#N;#%0#& ,%& !?#& 4#"3& ,%&B?,*?& #$;/'4##0& 3#%7#3& 0#39,*#& !'& !?#&
@'+%*,/D&&)%&"**3+"/&,0&$"7#&"-",%0!&0#39,*#0&,%&!?#& +3;/+0&'3&F#(,*,!&'%&!?#&.3'9,0,'%&'(& #39,*#0&
('3& !?#& *'0!& '(& ?'/,7"4&#%!,!/#$#%!0&"%7&' !?#3& ('3$0&'(& /#"9#&#"3%#7&84&#$;/'4##0&8+!& %'!& !"M#%&
8#('3#& !?#& 4#"3C#%7& "%7& B?,*?& #$;/'4##0& *"%& *"334& ('3B"37& ,%!'& !?#& %#N!& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3D& &6 ?#&
"**3+"/& ,0&$"7#&"!& !?#& 3#$+%#3"!,'%& 3"!#0&";;/,*"8/#& ,%& !?#& ('//'B,%-& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3D& &)%4&"**3+"/&
$"7#&,0&3#O+,3#7&+%7#3&0!"!+!#&!'&8#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&E"/"%*#&84&"&*3#7,!& !'&!?#&
)**+$+/"!,%-& @'$;#%0"!#7& )80#%*#0& )7A+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& ,%& !?#& P'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&
 !"!#$#%!D&

6#3$,%"!,'%&E#%#(,!0&

6#3$,%"!,'%&8#%#(,!0&"3#&"$'+%!0&;"4"8/#&"0&"&3#0+/!&'(&"&7#*,0,'%&84&!?#&@'+%*,/&!'&!#3$,%"!#&"%&
'((,*#3Q0&#$;/'4$#%!&8#('3#&!?#&%'3$"/&3#!,3#$#%!&7"!#&'3&"%&'((,*#3Q0&7#*,0,'%&!'&"**#;!&9'/+%!"34&
3#7+%7"%*4&"%7&"3#&*?"3-#7&'%&"%&"**3+"/0&8"0,0&!'&!?#&@'$;3#?#%0,9#&R%*'$#&"%7&GN;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&B?#%&!?#&@'+%*,/&,0&7#$'%0!3"8/4&*'$$,!!#7&!'&#,!?#3&!#3$,%"!,%-&!?#&#$;/'4$#%!&'(&"%&
'((,*#3&'3&-3'+;&'(&'((,*#30&'3&$"M,%-&"%&'((#3&!'&#%*'+3"-#&9'/+%!"34&3#7+%7"%*4D&

S?#3#& !#3$,%"!,'%&8#%#(,!0& ,%9'/9#& !?#&#%?"%*#$#%!&'(&;#%0,'%0L&0!"!+!'34&;3'9,0,'%0& 3#O+,3#& !?#&
2#%#3"/&5+%7&8"/"%*#&!'&8#&*?"3-#7&B,!?&!?#&"$'+%!&;"4"8/#&84&!?#&@'+%*,/&!'&!?#&;#%0,'%&(+%7&'3&
;#%0,'%#3&,%&!?#&4#"3L&%'!&!?#&"$'+%!&*"/*+/"!#7&"**'37,%-&!'&!?#&3#/#9"%!&"**'+%!,%-&0!"%7"370D&&R%&
!?#& P'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!L& ";;3';3,"!,'%0& "3#& 3#O+,3#7& !'& "%7& (3'$& !?#& .#%0,'%0&
:#0#39#& !'& 3#$'9#& !?#& %'!,'%"/& 7#8,!0& "%7& *3#7,!0& ('3& !#3$,%"!,'%& 8#%#(,!0& 3#/"!#7& !'& ;#%0,'%0&
#%?"%*#$#%!0&"%7&3#;/"*#&!?#$&B,!?&7#8,!0&('3&!?#&*"0?&;",7&!'&!?#&;#%0,'%&(+%7&"%7&;#%0,'%#30D&

.'0!&G$;/'4$#%!&E#%#(,!0&

G$;/'4##0&'(&!?#&@'+%*,/&"3#&$#$8#30&'(&!?#&T'*"/&2'9#3%$#%!&.#%0,'%& *?#$#L&"7$,%,0!#3#7&84&
@"$83,7-#0?,3#&@'+%!4&@'+%*,/D&

6?#&0*?#$#&;3'9,7#0&7#(,%#7&8#%#(,!0&!'&$#$8#30&H3#!,3#$#%!&/+$;&0+$0&"%7&;#%0,'%0KL&#"3%#7&"0&
#$;/'4##0&B'3M#7&('3&!?#&@'+%*,/D&

The Local Government Pension Scheme

6?#&T'*"/&2'9#3%$#%!&.#%0,'%& *?#$#&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&"0&"&7#(,%#7&8#%#(,!0&0*?#$#U&
&

 & 6?#&/,"8,/,!,#0&'(&!?#&@"$83,7-#0?,3#&@'+%!4&@'+%*,/&;#%0,'%&(+%7&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&@'+%*,/&"3#&
,%*/+7#7& ,%& !?#&E"/"%*#& ?##!&'%&"%&"*!+"3,"/&8"0,0&+0,%-& !?#&;3'A#*!#7&+%,!&$#!?'7&V& ,D#D&"%&
"00#00$#%!&'(&!?#&(+!+3#&;"4$#%!0&!?"!&B,//&8#&$"7#&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&#"3%#7&!'&
7"!#&84&#$;/'4##0L&8"0#7&'%&"00+$;!,'%0&"8'+!&$'3!"/,!4&3"!#0L&#$;/'4##&!+3%'9#3&3"!#0L&#!*L&
"%7&;3'A#*!,'%0&'(&;3'A#*!#7&#"3%,%-0&('3&*+33#%!&#$;/'4##0D&

Page 157



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

 & >,"8,/,!,#0&"3#&7,0*'+%!#7&!'&!?#,3&9"/+#&"!&*+33#%!&=3,*#0@&+0,%-&"&7,0*'+%!&3"!#&'(&ABCD&E8"0#7&
'%& !?#& -,/!& 4,#/7& "==/,#7& !'& !?#& *"0?& (/'F0& '(& "& !4=,*"/& >'*"/& 2'9#3%$#%!& .#%0,'%&  *?#$#&
#$=/'4#3&"%7&!?#&$#"%&*3#7,!&0=3#"7&"==/4,%-&!'&))&*'3='3"!#&8'%70&F,!?,%&!?#&GH'II&'9#3&JC&
4#"30&,%7#IKB&

 & 6?#&"00#!0&'(&!?#&L"$83,7-#0?,3#&L'+%!4&L'+%*,/&=#%0,'%&(+%7&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&L'+%*,/&"3#&
,%*/+7#7&,%&!?#&H"/"%*#& ?##!&"!&!?#,3&(",3&9"/+#M&

o& N+'!#7&0#*+3,!,#0&O&*+33#%!&8,7&=3,*#&

o& P%Q+'!#7&0#*+3,!,#0&O&=3'(#00,'%"/&#0!,$"!#&

o& P%,!,0#7&0#*+3,!,#0&O&*+33#%!&8,7&=3,*#&

o& .3'=#3!4&O&$"3R#!&9"/+#&

 & 6?#&*?"%-#&,%&!?#&%#!&=#%0,'%0&/,"8,/,!4&,0&"%"/40#7&,%!'&0#9#%&*'$='%#%!0M&

o& L+33#%!&0#39,*#&*'0!&O&!?#&,%*3#"0#&,%&/,"8,/,!,#0&"0&"&3#0+/!&'(&4#"30&'(&0#39,*#&#"3%#7&!?,0&
4#"3&O&"//'*"!#7&,%&!?#&L'$=3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&SI=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&!'&!?#&0#39,*#0&
('3&F?,*?&!?#&#$=/'4##0&F'3R#7&

o& ."0!& 0#39,*#& *'0!& O& !?#& ,%*3#"0#& ,%& /,"8,/,!,#0& "3,0,%-& (3'$& *+33#%!& 4#"3& 7#*,0,'%0&F?'0#&
#((#*!&3#/"!#0&!'&4#"30&'(&0#39,*#&#"3%#7&,%&#"3/,#3&4#"30&O&7#8,!#7&!'&!?#& +3=/+0TU#(,*,!&'%&
!?#&.3'9,0,'%& '(&  #39,*#0& ,%& !?#&L'$=3#?#%0,9#& G%*'$#& "%7&SI=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& "0&
="3!&'(&V'%&U,0!3,8+!#7&L'0!0&

o& G%!#3#0!&*'0!&O&!?#&#I=#*!#7&,%*3#"0#&,%&!?#&=3#0#%!&9"/+#&'(&/,"8,/,!,#0&7+3,%-&!?#&4#"3&"0&
!?#4& $'9#& '%#& 4#"3& */'0#3& !'& 8#,%-& =",7& O& 7#8,!#7& !'& !?#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7& G%9#0!$#%!&
G%*'$#&"%7&SI=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&L'$=3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&SI=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

o& SI=#*!#7&3#!+3%&'%&"00#!0&O&!?#&"%%+"/&,%9#0!$#%!&3#!+3%&'%&!?#&(+%7&"00#!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&
!'& !?#&L'+%*,/@& 8"0#7&'%&"%&"9#3"-#&'(& !?#&#I=#*!#7& /'%-W!#3$& 3#!+3%&O& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#&
5,%"%*,%-&"%7&G%9#0!$#%!&G%*'$#&"%7&SI=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&L'$=3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&
SI=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&&

o& 2",%0T/'00#0&'%&0#!!/#$#%!0&"%7&*+3!",/$#%!0&O&!?#&3#0+/!&'(&"*!,'%0&!'&3#/,#9#&!?#&L'+%*,/&
'(& /,"8,/,!,#0& '3& #9#%!0& !?"!& 3#7+*#& !?#& #I=#*!#7& (+!+3#& 0#39,*#& '3& "**3+"/& '(& 8#%#(,!0& '(&
#$=/'4##0& O& 7#8,!#7T*3#7,!#7& !'& !?#&  +3=/+0TU#(,*,!& '%& !?#& .3'9,0,'%& '(&  #39,*#0& ,%& !?#&
L'$=3#?#%0,9#&G%*'$#&"%7&SI=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"0&="3!&'(&V'%&U,0!3,8+!#7&L'0!0&

o& )*!+"3,"/& -",%0& "%7&/ '00#0& O& *?"%-#0& ,%& !?#& %#!& =#%0,'%0& /,"8,/,!4& !?"!& "3,0#& 8#*"+0#&
#9#%!0& ?"9#& %'!& *',%*,7#7& F,!?& "00+$=!,'%0& $"7#& "!& !?#& /"0!& "*!+"3,"/& 9"/+"!,'%& '3&
8#*"+0#&!?#&"*!+"3,#0&?"9#&+=7"!#7&!?#,3&"00+$=!,'%0&O&7#8,!#7&!'&!?#&.#%0,'%0&<#0#39#&

o& L'%!3,8+!,'%0&=",7&!'&!?#&L"$83,7-#&L,!4&L'+%*,/&=#%0,'%&(+%7&O&*"0?&=",7&"0&#$=/'4#3X0&
*'%!3,8+!,'%0& !'& !?#& =#%0,'%& (+%7& ,%& 0#!!/#$#%!& '(& /,"8,/,!,#0Y& %'!& "**'+%!#7& ('3& "0& "%&
#I=#%0#&

G%& 3#/"!,'%& !'& 3#!,3#$#%!& 8#%#(,!0@& 0!"!+!'34& =3'9,0,'%0& 3#Q+,3#& !?#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& 8"/"%*#& !'& 8#&
*?"3-#7&F,!?&!?#&"$'+%!&="4"8/#&84&!?#&L'+%*,/&!'&!?#&=#%0,'%&(+%7&'3&7,3#*!/4&!'&=#%0,'%#30&,%&!?#&
4#"3@&%'!&!?#&"$'+%!&*"/*+/"!#7&"**'37,%-&!'&!?#&3#/#9"%!&"**'+%!,%-&0!"%7"370B&&G%&!?#&Z'9#$#%!&
,%&<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!@&!?,0&$#"%0&!?"!&!?#3#&"3#&"==3'=3,"!,'%0&!'&"%7&(3'$&!?#&.#%0,'%0&<#0#39#&
!'&3#$'9#&!?#&%'!,'%"/&7#8,!0&"%7&*3#7,!0&('3&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&"%7&3#=/"*#&!?#$&F,!?&7#8,!0&('3&!?#&
*"0?& =",7& !'& !?#& =#%0,'%& (+%7& "%7&=#%0 ,'%#30&"%7& "%4& 0+*?& "$'+%!0&="4"8/#& 8+!& +%=",7& "!& !?#&
4#"3W#%7B& & 6?#& 8"/"%*#& !?"!& "3,0#0& '%& !?#& .#%0,'%0& <#0#39#& !?#3#84& $#"0+3#0& !?#& 8#%#(,*,"/&
,$="*!&'%&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&'(&8#,%-&3#Q+,3#7&!'&"**'+%!&('3&3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&'%&!?#&8"0,0&'(&*"0?&
(/'F0&!?"%&"0&8#%#(,!0&"3#&#"3%#7&84&#$=/'4##0B&

Page 158



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

7 Events after the Reporting Period

>9#%!0& "(!#3& !?#& 3#;'3!,%-& ;#3,'7& "3#& !?'0#& #9#%!0@& 8'!?& ("9'+3"8/#& "%7& +%("9'+3"8/#@& !?"!& '**+3&
8#!A##%&!?#&#%7&'(&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&"%7&!?#&7"!#&A?#%&!?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&,0&"+!?'3,0#7&
('3&,00+#B&&6A'&!4;#0&'(&#9#%!0&*"%&8#&,7#%!,(,#7C&

 & 6?'0#&!?"!&;3'9,7#&#9,7#%*#&'(&*'%7,!,'%0&!?"!&#D,0!#7&"!&!?#&#%7&'(&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&E&!?#&
 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&,0&"7F+0!#7&!'&3#(/#*!&0+*?&#9#%!0&

 & 6?'0#&!?"!&"3#&,%7,*"!,9#&'(&*'%7,!,'%0&!?"!&"3'0#&"(!#3&!?#&3#;'3!,%-&;#3,'7&E&!?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&
)**'+%!0& ,0&%'!&"7F+0!#7&!'&3#(/#*!&0+*?&#9#%!0@&8+!&A?#3#&"&*"!#-'34&'(&#9#%!0&A'+/7&?"9#&"&
$"!#3,"/&#((#*!&7,0*/'0+3#& ,0&$"7#&,%&!?#&%'!#0&'(&!?#&%"!+3#&'(&!?#&#9#%!0&"%7&!?#,3&#0!,$"!#7&
(,%"%*,"/&#((#*!&

>9#%!0& !"G,%-&;/"*#&"(!#3& !?#&7"!#&'(& "+!?'3,0"!,'%& ('3& ,00+#&"3#&%'!& 3#(/#*!#7& ,%& !?#& !"!#$#%!&'(&
)**'+%!B&

8 Exceptional Items

H?#%&,!#$0&'(&,%*'$#&"%7&#D;#%0#&"3#&$"!#3,"/@&!?#,3&%"!+3#&"%7&"$'+%!&,0&7,0*/'0#7&0#;"3"!#/4@&
#,!?#3&'%&!?#&("*#&'(&!?#&I'$;3#?#%0,9#&J%*'$#&"%7&>D;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&'3&,%&!?#&%'!#0&!'&!?#&
"**'+%!B&

9 Financial Liabilities

5,%"%*,"/& /,"8,/,!,#0&"3#&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!?#&K"/"%*#& ?##!&A?#%&!?#&I'+%*,/&8#*'$#0&"&;"3!4&!'&!?#&
*'%!3"*!+"/& ;3'9,0,'%0& '(& "& (,%"%*,"/& ,%0!3+$#%!& "%7& ,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7& "!& (",3& 9"/+#& "%7&*"33,#7& "!&
!?#,3&"$'3!,0#7&*'0!B&&)%%+"/&*?"3-#0&!'&!?#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&J%9#0!$#%!&J%*'$#&"%7&>D;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&
,%& !?#&I'$;3#?#%0,9#& J%*'$#& "%7&>D;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ('3& ,%!#3#0!& ;"4"8/#& "3#& 8"0#7& '%&! ?#&
*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(& !?#& /,"8,/,!4@&$+/!,;/,#7&84& !?#&#((#*!,9#& 3"!#&'(& ,%!#3#0!& ('3& !?#& ,%0!3+$#%!B& &6?#&
#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#&,0&!?#&3"!#&!?"!&#D"*!/4&7,0*'+%!0&#0!,$"!#7&(+!+3#&*"0?&;"4$#%!0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&
'(&!?#&,%0!3+$#%!&!'&!?#&"$'+%!&"!&A?,*?&,!&A"0&'3,-,%"//4&3#*'-%,0#7B&

6?,0&$#"%0&!?"!&!?#&"$'+%!&;3#0#%!#7&,%&!?#&K"/"%*#& ?##!&,0&!?#&'+!0!"%7,%-&;3,%*,;"/&3#;"4"8/#&
L;/+0& "**3+#7& ,%!#3#0!M& "%7& ,%!#3#0!& *?"3-#7& !'& !?#& I'$;3#?#%0,9#& J%*'$#& "%7& >D;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&,0&!?#&"$'+%!&;"4"8/#&('3&!?#&4#"3&"**'37,%-&!'&!?#&/'"%&"-3##$#%!B&

2",%0&"%7&/'00#0&'%&!?#&3#;+3*?"0#&'3&#"3/4&0#!!/#$#%!&'(&8'33'A,%-&"3#&*3#7,!#7&"%7&7#8,!#7&!'&!?#&
5,%"%*,%-& "%7& J%9#0!$#%!& J%*'$#& "%7& >D;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !?#& I'$;3#?#%0,9#& J%*'$#& "%7&
>D;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&,%&!?#&4#"3&'(&3#;+3*?"0#N0#!!/#$#%!B&&&

H?#3#&;3#$,+$0&"%7&7,0*'+%!0&?"9#&8##%&*?"3-#7&!'&!?#&I'$;3#?#%0,9#&J%*'$#&"%7&>D;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!@& 3#-+/"!,'%0& "//'A& !?#& ,$;"*!& '%& !?#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& K"/"%*#& !'& 8#& 0;3#"7& '9#3& (+!+3#&
4#"30B&&6?#&I'+%*,/&?"0&"&;'/,*4&'(&0;3#"7,%-&!?#&-",%N/'00&'9#3&!?#&!#3$&!?"!&A"0&3#$",%,%-&'%&!?#&
/'"%& "-",%0!& A?,*?& !?#& ;3#$,+$& A"0& ;"4"8/#& '3& 7,0*'+%!& 3#*#,9"8/#& A?#%& ,!& A"0& 3#;",7B& & 6?#&
3#*'%*,/,"!,'%&'(&"$'+%!0&*?"3-#7&!'&!?#&I'$;3#?#%0,9#&J%*'$#&"%7&>D;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&!'&!?#&
%#!& *?"3-#& 3#O+,3#7& "-",%0!& !?#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7&K"/"%*#& ,0&$"%"-#7& 84& "&! 3"%0(#3& !'& '3& (3'$& !?#&
5,%"%*,"/&J%0!3+$#%!0&)7F+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!?#&P'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!B&

& &

Page 159



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& ::& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&;#<'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

10 Financial Assets

5,%"%*,"/&"00#!0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&,%!'&!='&!4<#0>&

 & ?'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0&@&"00#!0&!A"!&A"9#&(,B#7&'3&7#!#3$,%"8/#&<"4$#%!0&8+!&"3#&%'!&C+'!#7&,%&
"%&"*!,9#&$"3D#!&

 & )9",/"8/#E('3E0"/#&"00#!0&@&"00#!0&!A"!&A"9#&"&C+'!#7&$"3D#!&<3,*#&"%7F'3&7'&%'!&A"9#&(,B#7&'3&
7#!#3$,%"8/#&<"4$#%!0&

6A#&G'+%*,/&*+33#%!/4&'%/4&A"0&"00#!0&*/"00,(,#7&"0&H/'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0IJ&

?'"%0&"%7&3#*#,9"8/#0&"3#&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!A#&K"/"%*#& A##!&=A#%&!A#&G'+%*,/&8#*'$#0&"&<"3!4&!'&
!A#&*'%!3"*!+"/&<3'9,0,'%0&'(&"&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&"%7&"3#&,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7&"!&(",3&9"/+#I&&6A#4&"3#&
!A#%&$#"0+3#7&"!&!A#,3&"$'3!,0#7&*'0!I&&)%%+"/&*3#7,!0&!'&!A#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&L%9#0!$#%!&L%*'$#&"%7&
MB<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !A#&G'$<3#A#%0,9#& L%*'$#&"%7&MB<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!& ('3& ,%!#3#0!& 3#*#,9"8/#&
"3#& 8"0#7& '%& !A#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !A#& "00#!&$+/!,</,#7& 84& !A#& #((#*!,9#& 3"!#& '(& ,%!#3#0!& ('3& !A#&
,%0!3+$#%!I&&5'3&$'0!&'(&!A#&/'"%0&!A"!&!A#&G'+%*,/&A"0&$"7#N&!A,0&$#"%0&!A"!&!A#&"$'+%!&<3#0#%!#7&
,%& !A#& K"/"%*#&  A##!& ,0& !A#& '+!0!"%7,%-& <3,%*,<"/& 3#*#,9"8/#& O</+0& "**3+#7& ,%!#3#0!P& "%7& ,%!#3#0!&
*3#7,!#7&!'&!A#&G'$<3#A#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&MB<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&,0&!A#&"$'+%!&3#*#,9"8/#&('3&!A#&
4#"3&,%&!A#&/'"%&"-3##$#%!I&

6A#& G'+%*,/& A"0& $"7#& ,%!#3#0!E(3##& /'"%0& ('3& <3,9"!#& 0#*!'3& A'+0,%-& ,$<3'9#$#%!0& O0'(!& /'"%0PI&&
QA#%& 0'(!& /'"%0& "3#& $"7#N& "&/ '00& ,0& 3#*'37#7& ,%& !A#& G'$<3#A#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7&M B<#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!& O7#8,!#7& !'& !A#& "<<3'<3,"!#& 0#39,*#P& ('3& !A#& <3#0#%!& 9"/+#& '(& !A#& ,%!#3#0!& !A"!& =,//& 8#&
('3#-'%#& '9#3& !A#& /,(#& '(& !A#& ,%0!3+$#%!N& 3#0+/!,%-& ,%& "& /'=#3& "$'3!,0#7& *'0!& !A"%& !A#& '+!0!"%7,%-&
<3,%*,<"/I& &L%!#3#0!& ,0&*3#7,!#7&!'&!A#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&L%9#0!$#%!&L%*'$#&"%7&MB<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%&!A#&
G'$<3#A#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&MB<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"!&"&$"3-,%"//4&A,-A#3&#((#*!,9#&3"!#&'(&,%!#3#0!&
!A"%&!A#&3"!#&3#*#,9"8/#&(3'$&!A#&9'/+%!"34&'3-"%,0"!,'%0N&=,!A&!A#&7,((#3#%*#&0#39,%-&!'&,%*3#"0#&!A#&
"$'3!,0#7&*'0!&'(&!A#&/'"%&,%&!A#&K"/"%*#& A##!I&& !"!+!'34&<3'9,0,'%0&3#C+,3#&!A"!&!A#&,$<"*!&'(&0'(!&
/'"%0& '%& !A#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7& K"/"%*#& ,0& !A#& ,%!#3#0!& 3#*#,9"8/#& ('3& !A#& (,%"%*,"/& 4#"3& @& !A#&
3#*'%*,/,"!,'%& '(& "$'+%!0& 7#8,!#7& "%7& *3#7,!#7& !'& !A#& G'$<3#A#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7& MB<#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!&!'&!A#&%#!&-",%&3#C+,3#7&"-",%0!&!A#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&K"/"%*#&,0&$"%"-#7&84&"&!3"%0(#3&!'&'3&
(3'$&!A#&5,%"%*,"/&L%0!3+$#%!0&)7R+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!A#&S'9#$#%!&,%&;#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!I&

QA#3#& "00#!0& "3#& ,7#%!,(,#7& "0& ,$<",3#7& 8#*"+0#& '(& "&/ ,D#/,A''7& "3,0,%-& (3'$& "&<"0 !& #9#%!& !A"!&
<"4$#%!0&7+#&+%7#3&!A#&*'%!3"*!&=,//&%'!&8#&$"7#N&!A#&"00#!&,0&=3,!!#%&7'=%&"%7&"&*A"%-#&$"7#&!'&
!A#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7& L%9#0!$#%!& L%*'$#& "%7& MB<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !A#& G'$<3#A#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7&
MB<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!I& &6A#& ,$<",3$#%!& /'00& ,0&$#"0+3#7&"0& !A#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!=##%&!A#&*"334,%-&
"$'+%!& "%7& !A#& <3#0#%!& 9"/+#& '(& !A#& 3#9,0#7& (+!+3#& *"0A& (/'=0& 7,0*'+%!#7& "!& !A#& "00#!J0& '3,-,%"/&
#((#*!,9#&,%!#3#0!&3"!#I&

)%4& -",%0& "%7& /'00#0& !A"!& "3,0#& '%& !A#& 7#3#*'-%,!,'%& '(& "%& "00#!& "3#& *3#7,!#7F7#8,!#7& !'& !A#&
5,%"%*,%-& "%7& L%9#0!$#%!& L%*'$#& "%7& MB<#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !A#& G'$<3#A#%0,9#& L%*'$#& "%7&
MB<#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!I&

&

Page 160



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

11 Government Grants and Contributions

>?#!?#3& ;",7& '%&"* *'+%!@& 84& ,%0!"/$#%!0& '3& ,%& "33#"30@& -'9#3%$#%!& -3"%!0& "%7& !?,37& ;"3!4&
*'%!3,8+!,'%0& "%7& 7'%"!,'%0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& 7+#& !'& !?#& A'+%*,/& B?#%& !?#3#& ,0& 3#"0'%"8/#&
"00+3"%*#&!?"!C&

 & 6?#&A'+%*,/&B,//&*'$;/4&B,!?&!?#&*'%7,!,'%0&"!!"*?#7&!'&!?#&;"4$#%!0@&"%7&

 & 6?#&-3"%!0&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%0&B,//&8#&3#*#,9#7&

)$'+%!0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& 7+#& !'& !?#& A'+%*,/& "3#& %'!& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& A'$;3#?#%0,9#& D%*'$#& "%7&
EF;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& +%!,/& *'%7,!,'%0& "!!"*?,%-& !'& !?#& -3"%!& '3& *'%!3,8+!,'%& ?"9#& 8##%& 0"!,0(,#7G&&
A'%7,!,'%0& "3#& 0!,;+/"!,'%0& !?"!& 0;#*,(4& !?"!& !?#& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/&
#$8'7,#7&,%&!?#&"00#!&"*H+,3#7&+0,%-&!?#&-3"%!&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&"3#&3#H+,3#7&!'&8#&*'%0+$#7&84&!?#&
3#*,;,#%!& "0& 0;#*,(,#7& '3& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/& $+0!& 8#& 3#!+3%#7& !'& !?#&
!3"%0(#3'3G&

I'%,#0& "79"%*#7& "0& -3"%!0& "%7& *'%!3,8+!,'%0& ('3& B?,*?& *'%7,!,'%0& ?"9#& %'!& 8##%& 0"!,0(,#7& "3#&
*"33,#7&,%&!?#&J"/"%*#& ?##!&"0&*3#7,!'30G&&>?#%&*'%7,!,'%0&"3#&0"!,0(,#7@&!?#&-3"%!&'3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&,0&
*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&/,%#&K"!!3,8+!"8/#&3#9#%+#&-3"%!0L*'%!3,8+!,'%0M&'3&6"F"!,'%&"%7&N'%O
 ;#*,(,*&23"%!&D%*'$#&K%'%O3,%-O(#%*#7&3#9#%+#&-3"%!0&"%7&"//&*";,!"/&-3"%!0M&,%&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&
D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!G&

>?#3#&*";,!"/&-3"%!0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!@& !?#4&
"3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&!?#&I'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!G&&>?#3#&!?#&
-3"%!&?"0&4#!&!'&8#&+0#7&!'&(,%"%*#&*";,!"/&#F;#%7,!+3#@&,!&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&A";,!"/&23"%!0&P%";;/,#7&
)**'+%!G&&>?#3#&,!&?"0&8##%&";;/,#7@&,!&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&A";,!"/&)7Q+0!$#%!&)**'+%!G&&)$'+%!0&,%&!?#&
A";,!"/& 23"%!0& P%";;/,#7& )**'+%!& "3#& !3"%0(#33#7& !'& !?#& A";,!"/& )7Q+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& '%*#& !?#4&
?"9#&8##%&";;/,#7G&

12 Intangible Assets

EF;#%7,!+3#&'%&%'%O$'%#!"34&"00#!0&!?"!&7'&%'!&?"9#&;?40,*"/&0+80!"%*#&8+!&"3#&*'%!3'//#7&84&!?#&
A'+%*,/& "0& "& 3#0+/!& '(& ;"0!& #9#%!0& K#G-G& 0'(!B"3#& /,*#%*#M& ,0& *";,!"/,0#7& B?#%& ,!& ,0& #F;#*!#7& !?"!&
(+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&B,//&(/'B&(3'$&!?#&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!&!'&!?#&A'+%*,/G&

D%!#3%"//4&-#%#3"!#7&"00#!0&"3#&*";,!"/,0#7&B?#3#& ,!& ,0&7#$'%0!3"8/#& !?"!& !?#&;3'Q#*!& ,0& !#*?%,*"//4&
(#"0,8/#&"%7&,0&,%!#%7#7&!'&8#&*'$;/#!#7&KB,!?&"7#H+"!#&3#0'+3*#0&8#,%-&"9",/"8/#M&"%7&!?#&A'+%*,/&
B,//&8#&"8/#&!'&-#%#3"!#&(+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&7#/,9#3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&84&8#,%-&"8/#&!'&0#//&'3&
+0#& !?#&"00#!G& &EF;#%7,!+3#& ,0&*";,!"/,0#7&B?#3#& ,!&*"%&8#&$#"0+3#7&3#/,"8/4&"0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&!?#&
"00#!& "%7& 3#0!3,*!#7& !'& !?"!& ,%*+33#7& 7+3,%-& !?#& 7#9#/';$#%!& ;?"0#& K3#0#"3*?& #F;#%7,!+3#& ,0& %'!&
*";,!"/,0#7M@&

EF;#%7,!+3#&'%& !?#&7#9#/';$#%!&'(&B#80,!#0& ,0&%'!&*";,!"/,0#7& ,(& !?#&B#80,!#& ,0&0'/#/4&'3&;3,$"3,/4&
,%!#%7#7&!'&;3'$'!#&'3&"79#3!,0#&!?#&A'+%*,/R0&-''70&'3&0#39,*#0G&

D%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0&"3#&$#"0+3#7&,%,!,"//4&"!&*'0!G&&)$'+%!0&"3#&'%/4&3#9"/+#7&B?#3#&!?#&(",3&9"/+#&'(&
!?#& "00#!0& ?#/7& 84& !?#& A'+%*,/& *"%& 8#&7#! #3$,%#7& 84& 3#(#3#%*#& !'& "%&"* !,9#& $"3S#!G& & 6?#&
7#;3#*,"8/#& "$'+%!& '(& "%& ,%!"%-,8/#& "00#!& ,0& "$'3!,0#7& '9#3& ,!0& +0#(+/& /,(#& !'& !?#& 3#/#9"%!& 0#39,*#&
/,%#K0M&,%&!?#&A'$;3#?#%0,9#&D%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!G&&)%&"00#!&,0&!#0!#7&('3&,$;",3$#%!&
B?#%#9#3& !?#3#& ,0& "%&, %7,*"!,'%& !?"!& !?#& "00#!& $,-?!& 8#&, $;",3#7& T& "%4& /'00#0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "3#&

Page 161



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

='0!#7& !'& !>#& 3#/#9"%!& 0#39,*#& /,%#?0@& ,%& !>#& A'$=3#>#%0,9#& B%*'$#& "%7& CD=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E&&
)%4& -",%& '3& /'00& "3,0,%-& '%& !>#& 7,0='0"/& '3& "8"%7'%$#%!& '(& "%&, %!"%-,8/#& "00#!& ,0& ='0!#7& !'& !>#&
F!>#3&F=#3"!,%-&CD=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&A'$=3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&

G>#3#& #D=#%7,!+3#& '%& ,%!"%-,8/#& "00#!0& H+"/,(,#0& "0& *"=,!"/& #D=#%7,!+3#& ('3& 0!"!+!'34& =+3='0#0I&
"$'3!,0"!,'%I&,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"%7&7,0='0"/&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&"3#&%'!&=#3$,!!#7&!'&>"9#&"%&,$="*!&
'%& !>#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7&J"/"%*#E& & 6>#& -",%0& "%7& /'00#0& "3#& !>#3#('3#& 3#9#30#7& '+!& '(& !>#&2#%#3"/&
5+%7& J"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& K'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& "%7& ='0!#7& !'& !>#& A"=,!"/& )7L+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!&"%7&?('3&"%4&0"/#&=3'*##70&-3#"!#3&!>"%&MN;I;;;@&!>#&A"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#E&

13 Inventories

B%9#%!'3,#0&"3#& ,%*/+7#7& ,%& !>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&"!& !>#& /'O#3&'(& *'0!&"%7&%#!& 3#"/,0"8/#&9"/+#E& &6>#&
*'0!&'(&,%9#%!'3,#0&,0&"00,-%#7&+0,%-&!>#&(,30!P,%&(,30!P'+!&?5B5F@&*'0!,%-&('3$+/"E&

14 Investment Properties

B%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&!>'0#&!>"!&"3#&+0#7&0'/#/4&!'&#"3%&3#%!"/0&"%7Q'3&('3&*"=,!"/&"==3#*,"!,'%E&&
6>#&7#(,%,!,'%& ,0&%'!&$#!& ,(& !>#&=3'=#3!4& ,0&+0#7& ,%&"%4&O"4& !'& ("*,/,!"!#& !>#&7#/,9#34&'(&0#39,*#0&'3&
=3'7+*!,'%&'(&-''70&'3&,0&>#/7&('3&0"/#E&

B%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&$#"0+3#7&,%,!,"//4&"!&"&*'0!&"%7&0+80#H+#%!/4&"!&(",3&9"/+#I&8"0#7&'%&!>#&
"$'+%!& "!& O>,*>& !>#& "00#!& *'+/7& 8#&#D*>"%-#7& 8#!O##%& R%'O/#7-#"8/#& ="3!,#0& "!& "3$S0& /#%-!>E&&
.3'=#3!,#0&"3#&%'!&7#=3#*,"!#7I&8+!&"00#!0&,%*/+7#7&,%&!>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&"!&(",3&9"/+#&"3#&3#9"/+#7&
0+((,*,#%!/4& 3#-+/"3/4& !'& #%0+3#& !>"!& !>#,3& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& ,0& %'!&$"!#3,"//4& 7,((#3#%!& (3'$& !>#,3& (",3&
9"/+#& "!& !>#& 4#"3P#%7I& 8+!& "0& "&$,%,$+$&#9#34& (,9#& 4#"30E& &2",%0& "%7&/ '00#0& '%& 3#9"/+"!,'%& "3#&
='0!#7&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&B%*'$#&"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&A'$=3#>#%0,9#&B%*'$#&
"%7&CD=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&&6>#&0"$#&!3#"!$#%!&,0&"==/,#7&!'&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&'%&7,0='0"/E&

<#%!"/0&3#*#,9#7& ,%&3#/"!,'%& !'& ,%9#0!$#%!&=3'=#3!,#0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'& !>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&B%9#0!$#%!&
B%*'$#&/,%#&"%7&3#0+/!&,%&"&-",%&('3&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#E&

T'O#9#3I&3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&7,0='0"/&-",%0&"%7&/'00#0&"3#&%'!&=#3$,!!#7&84&0!"!+!'34&"33"%-#$#%!0&!'&
>"9#&"%& ,$="*!&'%& !>#&J"/"%*#E& &6>#&-",%0&"%7& /'00#0&"3#& !>#3#('3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&'(& !>#&2#%#3"/&
5+%7& J"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& K'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& "%7& ='0!#7& !'& !>#& A"=,!"/& )7L+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!&"%7&?('3&"%4&0"/#&=3'*##70&-3#"!#3&!>"%&MN;I;;;@&!>#&A"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#E&

15 Leases

U#"0#0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0& (,%"%*#& /#"0#0&O>#3#& !>#& !#3$0&'(& !>#& /#"0#& !3"%0(#3&0+80!"%!,"//4&"//& !>#&
3,0R0&"%7&3#O"370&,%*,7#%!"/&!'&'O%#30>,=&'(&!>#&=3'=#3!4I&=/"%!&'3&#H+,=$#%!&(3'$&!>#&/#00'3&!'&!>#&
/#00##& "%7& !>#& (",3& 9"/+#& '(& !>#& =3'=#3!4I& =/"%!& '3& #H+,=$#%!& "!& /#"0#& ,%*#=!,'%& ,0& "8'9#& !>#&
A'+%*,/S0&7#P$,%,$,0&/#9#/0&'(&MVI;;;&('3&9#>,*/#0&"%7&MNWI;;;&('3&'!>#3&,!#$0E&&)//&'!>#3&/#"0#0&"3#&
*/"00,(,#7&"0&'=#3"!,%-&/#"0#0E&

G>#3#& "& /#"0#& *'9#30& 8'!>& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0I& !>#& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0& #/#$#%!0& "3#& *'%0,7#3#7&
0#="3"!#/4&('3&*/"00,(,*"!,'%E&

& &

Page 162



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

)33"%-#$#%!0& !>"!& 7'&%'!& >"9#& !>#& /#-"/& 0!"!+0& '(& "& /#"0#& 8+!& *'%9#4& "&3 ,->!& !'& +0#& "%& "00#!& ,%&
3#!+3%& ('3& ;"4$#%!& "3#& "**'+%!#7& ('3& +%7#3& !>,0& ;'/,*4& ?>#3#& (+/(,/$#%!& '(& !>#& "33"%-#$#%!& ,0&
7#;#%7#%!&'%&!>#&+0#&'(&0;#*,(,*&"00#!0@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&"0&B#00##&

Finance Leases

.3';#3!4C&;/"%!&"%7&#D+,;$#%!&>#/7&+%7#3&(,%"%*#&/#"0#0&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&'%&!>#&E"/"%*#& >##!&"!&!>#&
*'$$#%*#$#%!&'(&!>#&/#"0#&"!&,!0&(",3&9"/+#&$#"0+3#7&"!&!>#&/#"0#F0&,%*#;!,'%&G'3&!>#&;3#0#%!&9"/+#&
'(& !>#&$,%,$+$& /#"0#&;"4$#%!0C& ,(& /'?#3H@& &6>#&"00#!& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,0&$"!*>#7&84&"&/ ,"8,/,!4& ('3& !>#&
'8/,-"!,'%&!'&;"4&!>#&/#00'3@&&I%,!,"/&7,3#*!&*'0!0&'(&!>#&A'+%*,/&"3#&"77#7&!'&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&
!>#& "00#!@& & .3#$,+$0& ;",7& '%&#%! 34& ,%!'& "&/ #"0#& "3#& ";;/,#7& !'& ?3,!,%-& 7'?%& !>#& /#"0#& /,"8,/,!4@&&
A'%!,%-#%!&3#%!0&"3#&*>"3-#7&"0&#J;#%0#0&,%&!>#&4#"30&,%&?>,*>&!>#4&"3#&,%*+33#7@&

B#"0#&;"4$#%!0&"3#&";;'3!,'%#7&8#!?##%K&

 & )&*>"3-#&('3&!>#&"*D+,0,!,'%&'(&!>#&,%!#3#0!&,%&!>#&;3';#3!4C&;/"%!&'3&#D+,;$#%!&L&";;/,#7&!'&?3,!#&
7'?%&!>#&/#"0#&/,"8,/,!4C&"%7&

 & )&(,%"%*#&*>"3-#&G7#8,!#7&!'&!>#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&I%9#0!$#%!&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!H&

.3';#3!4C&./"%!&"%7&MD+,;$#%!&3#*'-%,0#7&+%7#3&(,%"%*#&/#"0#0&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&+0,%-&!>#&;'/,*,#0&
";;/,#7&-#%#3"//4&!'&0+*>&"00#!0C&0+8N#*!&!'&7#;3#*,"!,'%&8#,%-&*>"3-#7&'9#3&!>#&/#"0#&!#3$&,(&!>,0&,0&
0>'3!#3&!>"%&!>#&"00#!F0&#0!,$"!#7&+0#(+/&/,(#@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&,0&%'!&3#D+,3#7&!'&3",0#&*'+%*,/&!"J&!'&*'9#3&7#;3#*,"!,'%&'3&3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$;",3$#%!&
/'00#0&"3,0,%-&'%&/#"0#7&"00#!0@&&I%0!#"7C&"&;3+7#%!&"%%+"/&;3'9,0,'%&,0&$"7#&(3'$&3#9#%+#&!'?"370&
!>#& 7##$#7& *";,!"/& ,%9#0!$#%!& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!>& 0!"!+!'34& 3#D+,3#$#%!0@& & O#;3#*,"!,'%& "%7&
3#9"/+"!,'%&"%7&,$;",3$#%!&/'00#0&"3#&!>#3#('3#&3#;/"*#7&84&3#9#%+#&;3'9,0,'%&,%&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&
E"/"%*#C&84&?"4&'(&"%&"7N+0!,%-&!3"%0"*!,'%&?,!>&!>#&A";,!"/&)7N+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&,%&!>#&P'9#$#%!&,%&
:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&('3&!>#&7,((#3#%*#&8#!?##%&!>#&!?'@&

Operating Leases

:#%!"/0&;",7&+%7#3&';#3"!,%-& /#"0#0&"3#&*>"3-#7& !'& !>#&A'$;3#>#%0,9#& I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#&
 !"!#$#%!& "0& "%& #J;#%0#& '(& !>#& 0#39,*#0& 8#%#(,!,%-& (3'$& +0#& '(& !>#& /#"0#7& ;3';#3!4C& ;/"%!& '3&
#D+,;$#%!@&&A>"3-#0&"3#&$"7#&'%&"&0!3",->!Q/,%#&8"0,0&'9#3&!>#& /,(#&'(&!>#& /#"0#C&#9#%&,(&!>,0&7'#0&
%'!&$"!*>& !>#& ;"!!#3%& '(& ;"4$#%!0& G#@-@& !>#3#& ,0& "& 3#%!Q(3##& ;#3,'7& "!& !>#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !>#&
/#"0#H@&

6>#&A'+%*,/&"0&B#00'3&

Finance Leases

R>#3#& !>#&A'+%*,/& -3"%!0& "& (,%"%*#& /#"0#& '9#3& "&;3 ';#3!4& '3& "%&, !#$& '(& ;/"%!& '3& #D+,;$#%!C& !>#&
3#/#9"%!& "00#!& ,0& ?3,!!#%& '+!& '(& !>#& E"/"%*#&  >##!& "0& "& 7,0;'0"/@& & )!& !>#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !>#&
/#"0#C& !>#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#& E"/"%*#&  >##!& G?>#!>#3& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7&
MD+,;$#%!& '3& )00#!0& S#/7& ('3&  "/#H& ,0& ?3,!!#%& '((& !'& !>#&T!>#3&T;#3"!,%-& MJ;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%& !>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#&I%*'$#&"%7&MJ;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"0&;"3!&'(&!>#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/@&&)&-",%C&
3#;3#0#%!,%-& !>#& A'+%*,/F0& %#!& ,%9#0!$#%!& ,%& !>#& /#"0#C& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#& 0"$#& /,%#& ,%& !>#&

Page 163



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&="3!&'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0='0"/&C,D#D&
%#!!#7&'((&"-",%0!&!?#&*"334,%-&9"/+#&'(&!?#&"00#!&"!&!?#&!,$#&'(&7,0='0"/EF&$"!*?#7&84&"&/#"0#&"00#!&
,%&!?#&G"/"%*#& ?##!D&

H#"0#&3#%!"/0&3#*#,9"8/#&"3#&"=='3!,'%#7&8#!I##%J&

 & )& *?"3-#& ('3& !?#& "*K+,0,!,'%& '(& !?#& ,%!#3#0!& ,%& !?#& =3'=#3!4& L& "==/,#7& !'&I3,!#& 7'I%& !?#& /#"0#&
/,"8,/,!4&C!'-#!?#3&I,!?&"%4&=3#$,+$0&3#*#,9#7EF&"%7&

 & 5,%"%*#&,%*'$#&C*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&5,%"%*,%-&"%7&@%9#0!$#%!&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&
>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&

6?#& -",%& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& >'$=3#?#%0,9#& @%*'$#& "%7& AB=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& '%& 7,0='0"/& ,0& %'!&
=#3$,!!#7&84&0!"!+!#&!'&,%*3#"0#&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&"%7&I,//&8#&3#K+,3#7&!'&8#&!3#"!#7&"0&"&
*"=,!"/& 3#*#,=!D& & M?#3#& "& =3#$,+$& ?"0& 8##%& 3#*#,9#7F& !?,0& ,0& ='0!#7& '+!& '(& !?#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7&
G"/"%*#& !'& !?#& >"=,!"/& <#*#,=!0& <#0#39#& ,%& !?#& N'9#$#%!& ,%& <#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!D& & M?#3#& !?#&
"$'+%!&7+#&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&!?#&/#"0#&"00#!&,0&!'&8#&0#!!/#7&84&!?#&="4$#%!&'(&3#%!"/0&,%&(+!+3#&(,%"%*,"/&
4#"30F&!?,0&,0&='0!#7&'+!&'(&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&!'&!?#&O#(#33#7&>"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#&,%&
!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!D&&M?#%&!?#&(+!+3#&3#%!"/0&"3#&=",7F&!?#&#/#$#%!&('3&!?#&*?"3-#&
('3&!?#&"*K+,0,!,'%&'(&!?#&,%!#3#0!&,%&!?#&=3'=#3!4&,0&+0#7&!'&I3,!#&7'I%&!?#&/#"0#&"00#!D&&)!&!?,0&=',%!F&
!?#&7#(#33#7&*"=,!"/&3#*#,=!0&"3#&!3"%0(#33#7&!'&!?#&>"=,!"/&<#*#,=!0&<#0#39#D&

6?#&I3,!!#%P'((& 9"/+#& '(& 7,0='0"/0& ,0& %'!& "&* ?"3-#& "-",%0!& *'+%*,/& !"BF& "0& !?#& *'0!& '(& %'%P*+33#%!&
"00#!0& ,0& (+//4& =3'9,7#7& ('3& +%7#3& 0#="3"!#& "33"%-#$#%!0& ('3& *"=,!"/& (,%"%*,%-D& &) $'+%!0& "3#&
"==3'=3,"!#7&!'&!?#&>"=,!"/&)7Q+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&G"/"%*#&,%&!?#&N'9#$#%!&,%&
<#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!D&

Operating Leases

M?#3#&!?#&>'+%*,/&-3"%!0&"%&'=#3"!,%-&/#"0#&'9#3&"&=3'=#3!4&'3&"%&,!#$&'(&=/"%!&'3&#K+,=$#%!F&!?#&
"00#!& ,0& 3#!",%#7& ,%& !?#& G"/"%*#&  ?##!D& & <#%!"/& ,%*'$#& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !?#& R!?#3& R=#3"!,%-&
AB=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&>'$=3#?#%0,9#&@%*'$#&"%7&AB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!D&&>3#7,!0&"3#&$"7#&'%&"&
0!3",-?!P/,%#&8"0,0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&'(&!?#&/#"0#F&#9#%&,(&!?,0&7'#0&%'!&$"!*?&!?#&="!!#3%&'(&="4$#%!0&C#D-D&
!?#3#& ,0& "& =3#$,+$& =",7& "!& !?#& *'$$#%*#$#%!& '(& !?#& /#"0#ED& & @%,!,"/& 7,3#*!& *'0!0& ,%*+33#7& ,%&
%#-'!,"!,%-& "%7& "33"%-,%-& !?#& /#"0#& "3#& "77#7& !'& !?#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !?#& 3#/#9"%!& "00#!& "%7&
*?"3-#7&"0&"%&#B=#%0#&'9#3&!?#&/#"0#&!#3$&'%&!?#&0"$#&8"0,0&"0&3#%!"/&,%*'$#D&

16 Overheads and Support Services

6?#&*'0!0&'(&'9#3?#"70&"%7&0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"3#&*?"3-#7&!'&!?'0#&!?"!&8#%#(,!&(3'$&!?#&0+==/4&'3&
0#39,*#&,%&"**'37"%*#&I,!?&!?#&*'0!,%-&=3,%*,=/#0&'(&!?#&>@.5)&Service Reporting Code of Practice 
2012/13 C A<>R.ED&&6?#&!'!"/&"80'3=!,'%&*'0!,%-&=3,%*,=/#&,0&+0#7&L&!?#&(+//&*'0!&'(&'9#3?#"70&"%7&
0+=='3!&0#39,*#0&"3#&0?"3#7&8#!I##%&+0#30&,%&=3'='3!,'%&!'&!?#&8#%#(,!0&3#*#,9#7F&I,!?&!?#&#B*#=!,'%&
'(J&

 & >'3='3"!#&"%7&O#$'*3"!,*&>'3#&L& *'0!0& 3#/"!,%-& !'& !?#&>'+%*,/S0& 0!"!+0&"0&"&$+/!,P(+%*!,'%"/F&
7#$'*3"!,*&'3-"%,0"!,'%D&

 & T'%&O,0!3,8+!#7&>'0!0&L&!?#&*'0!&'(&7,0*3#!,'%"34&8#%#(,!0&"I"37#7&!'&#$=/'4##0&3#!,3,%-&#"3/4&
"%7&"%4&7#=3#*,"!,'%&"%7& ,$=",3$#%!& /'00#0& *?"3-#"8/#&'%& 0+3=/+0&"00#!0& ,%&.3'=#3!4F&./"%!&
"%7&AK+,=$#%!D&

Page 164



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

6>#0#&!?'&*'0!&*"!#-'3,#0&"3#&7#(,%#7&,%& @:AB.&"%7&"**'+%!#7&('3&"0&0#;"3"!#&>#"7,%-0&,%&!>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#& C%*'$#& "%7& @D;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& "0& ;"3!& '(& F#!& @D;#%7,!+3#& '%& A'%!,%+,%-&
 #39,*#0G&

17 Property, Plant and Equipment

)00#!0&!>"!&>"9#&;>40,*"/&0+80!"%*#&"%7&"3#&>#/7& ('3&+0#& ,%& !>#&;3'7+*!,'%&'3&0+;;/4&'(&-''70&'3&
0#39,*#0E&('3&3#%!"/&!'&'!>#30&'3&('3&"7$,%,0!3"!,9#&;+3;'0#0&"%7&!>"!&"3#&#D;#*!#7&!'&8#&+0#7&7+3,%-&
$'3#&!>"%&'%#&(,%"%*,"/&4#"3&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&.3';#3!4E&./"%!&"%7&@H+,;$#%!G&

:#*'-%,!,'%&

@D;#%7,!+3#& '%& !>#& "*H+,0,!,'%E& *3#"!,'%& '3& #%>"%*#$#%!& '(& .3';#3!4E& ./"%!& "%7& @H+,;$#%!& ,0&
*";,!"/,0#7&'%&"% &"**3+"/0&8"0,0E& ;3'9,7#7& !>"!& ,!& ,0& ;3'8"8/#& !>"!& !>#& (+!+3#&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&
0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/&"00'*,"!#7&?,!>& !>#& ,!#$&?,//& (/'?& !'& !>#&A'+%*,/&"%7& !>#&*'0!&'(& !>#& ,!#$&*"%&8#&
$#"0+3#7& 3#/,"8/4G& &@D;#%7,!+3#& !>"!&$",%!",%0&8+!&7'#0&%'!&"77& !'&"%&"00#!I0&;'!#%!,"/& !'&7#/,9#3&
(+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& '3& 0#39,*#& ;'!#%!,"/& J,G#G& 3#;",30& "%7& $",%!#%"%*#K& ,0& *>"3-#7& "0& "%&
#D;#%0#&?>#%&,!&,0&,%*+33#7G&

)&7#L$,%,$,0&/#9#/&'(&MNEOOO&>"0&8##%&"7';!#7&('3&9#>,*/#0&"%7&MPQEOOO&('3&"//&'!>#3&,!#$0G&&)00#!0&
!>"!&*'0!&/#00&!>"%&!>#0#&/,$,!0&"3#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&3#9#%+#E&3"!>#3&!>"%&*";,!"/&#D;#%7,!+3#G&

R#"0+3#$#%!&

)00#!0&"3#&,%,!,"//4&$#"0+3#7&"!&*'0!E&*'$;3,0,%-S&

 & 6>#&;+3*>"0#&;3,*#&

 & )%4&*'0!0&"!!3,8+!"8/#&!'&83,%-,%-&!>#&"00#!&!'&!>#&/'*"!,'%&"%7&*'%7,!,'%&%#*#00"34&('3&,!&!'&8#&
*";"8/#&'(&';#3"!,%-&,%&!>#&$"%%#3&,%!#%7#7&84&$"%"-#$#%!&

 & 6>#&,%,!,"/&#0!,$"!#&'(&!>#&*'0!0&'(&7,0$"%!/,%-&"%7&3#$'9,%-&!>#&,!#$&"%7&3#0!'3,%-&!>#&0,!#&'%&
?>,*>&,!&,0&/'*"!#7&

6>#& *'0!& '(& "00#!0& "*H+,3#7& '!>#3& !>"%& 84& ;+3*>"0#& ,0& 7##$#7& !'& 8#& ,!0& (",3& 9"/+#E& +%/#00& !>#&
"*H+,0,!,'%& ?,//& %'!& ,%*3#"0#& !>#& *"0>& (/'?0& '(& !>#& A'+%*,/G& & C%& !>#& /"!!#3& *"0#E& !>#& *'0!& '(& !>#&
"*H+,0,!,'%&,0&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!&-,9#%&+;&84&!>#&A'+%*,/G&

T'%"!#7& "00#!0& "3#& $#"0+3#7& ,%,!,"//4& "!& (",3& 9"/+#G& & 6>#& 7,((#3#%*#& 8#!?##%& (",3& 9"/+#& "%7& "%4&
*'%0,7#3"!,'%& ;",7& ,0& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#& 6"D"!,'%& "%7& F'%L ;#*,(,*& 23"%!& C%*'$#& /,%#& '(& !>#&
A'$;3#>#%0,9#& C%*'$#& "%7& @D;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& +%/#00& !>#& 7'%"!,'%& >"0& 8##%& $"7#&
*'%7,!,'%"//4G&&U%!,/&*'%7,!,'%0&"3#&0"!,0(,#7E&!>#&-",%&,0&>#/7&,%&!>#&T'%"!#7&)00#!0&)**'+%!G&&V>#3#&
-",%0&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&A'$;3#>#%0,9#&C%*'$#&"%7&@D;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!E&!>#4&"3#&3#9#30#7&'+!&
'(& !>#& 2#%#3"/& 5+%7&W "/"%*#& !'& !>#& A";,!"/& )7X+0!$#%!& )**'+%!& ,%& !>#& R'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&
 !"!#$#%!G&

)00#!0&"3#&!>#%&*"33,#7&,%&!>#&W"/"%*#& >##!&+0,%-&!>#&('//'?,%-&$#"0+3#$#%!&8"0#0S&

 & C%(3"0!3+*!+3#E&*'$$+%,!4&"00#!0&"%7&"00#!0&+%7#3&*'%0!3+*!,'%&Y&7#;3#*,"!#7&>,0!'3,*"/&*'0!&

 & T?#//,%-0& Y& (",3& 9"/+#E& 7#!#3$,%#7& +0,%-& !>#& 8"0,0& '(& #D,0!,%-& +0#& 9"/+#& ('3& 0'*,"/& >'+0,%-&
J@UZL [K&

Page 165



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

 & )//& '!>#3& "00#!0& ?& (",3& 9"/+#@& 7#!#3$,%#7& !>#& "$'+%!& !>"!& A'+/7& 8#& =",7& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& ,!0&
#B,0!,%-&+0#&C#B,0!,%-&+0#&?&DEFG&

H>#3#&!>#3#&,0&%'&$"3I#!J8"0#7&#9,7#%*#&'(&(",3&9"/+#&8#*"+0#&'(&!>#&0=#*,"/,0!&%"!+3#&'(&"%&"00#!@&
7#=3#*,"!#7&3#=/"*#$#%!&*'0!&,0&+0#7&"0&"%&#0!,$"!#&'(&(",3&9"/+#K&

)00#!0&,%*/+7#7&,%&!>#&L"/"%*#& >##!&"!&(",3&9"/+#&"3#&3#9"/+#7&0+((,*,#%!/4&3#-+/"3/4&!'&#%0+3#&!>"!&
!>#,3& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& ,0& %'!& $"!#3,"//4& 7,((#3#%!& (3'$& !>#,3& (",3& 9"/+#& "!& !>#& 4#"3J#%7@& 8+!& "0& "&
$,%,$+$& #9#34& (,9#& 4#"30K& & M%*3#"0#0& ,%& 9"/+"!,'%0& "3#& $"!*>#7& 84& *3#7,!0& !'& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%&
<#0#39#& !'& 3#*'-%,0#& +%3#"/,0#7& -",%0K& &D B*#=!,'%"//4@& -",%0& $,->!& 8#& *3#7,!#7& !'& !>#&
N'$=3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7& DB=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& A>#3#& !>#4& "3,0#& (3'$& !>#& 3#9#30"/& '(& "&
3#9"/+"!,'%&'3&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&=3#9,'+0/4&*>"3-#7&!'&"&0#39,*#K&

H>#3#&7#*3#"0#0&,%&9"/+#&"3#&,7#%!,(,#7@&!>#&3#9"/+"!,'%&/'00&,0&"**'+%!#7&('3&84O&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& "& 8"/"%*#& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#@& !>#&
*"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,0& A3,!!#%& 7'A%& "-",%0!& !>"!& 8"/"%*#& C+=& !'& !>#& "$'+%!& '(& !>#&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0G&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& %'& 8"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& '3& ,%0+((,*,#%!& 8"/"%*#@& !>#& *"334,%-&
"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!& ,0&A3,!!#%&7'A%&"-",%0!&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#& /,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&
M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

6>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#&*'%!",%0&3#9"/+"!,'%&-",%0&3#*'-%,0#7&0,%*#&P&)=3,/&QRRS&'%/4@&!>#&7"!#&'(&
,!0& ('3$"/& ,$=/#$#%!"!,'%K& &2",%0&"3,0,%-&8#('3#&!>"!&7"!#&>"9#&8##%&*'%0'/,7"!#7& ,%!'& !>#&N"=,!"/&
)7T+0!$#%!&)**'+%!K&

M$=",3$#%!&

)00#!0& "3#& "00#00#7& #"*>& 4#"3J#%7& "0& !'& A>#!>#3& !>#3#& ,0& "%4& ,%7,*"!,'%& !>"!& "%& "00#!&$"4& 8#&
,$=",3#7K& &H>#3#& ,%7,*"!,'%0&#B,0!& "%7&"%4&='00,8/#&7,((#3#%*#0&"3#&#0!,$"!#7& !'&8#&$"!#3,"/@& !>#&
3#*'9#3"8/#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!&,0&#0!,$"!#7&"%7@&A>#3#&!>,0&,0&/#00&!>"%&!>#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&
"00#!@&"%&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&,0&3#*'-%,0#7&('3&!>#&0>'3!("//K&

H>#3#&,$=",3$#%!&/'00#0&"3#&,7#%!,(,#7@&!>#4&"3#&"**'+%!#7&('3&84O&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& "& 8"/"%*#& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& ('3& !>#& "00#!& ,%& !>#&<#9"/+"!,'%&<#0#39#@& !>#&
*"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& !>#& "00#!& ,0& A3,!!#%& 7'A%& "-",%0!& !>"!& 8"/"%*#& C+=& !'& !>#& "$'+%!& '(& !>#&
"**+$+/"!#7&-",%0G&

 & H>#3#& !>#3#& ,0& %'& 8"/"%*#& ,%& !>#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& '3& ,%0+((,*,#%!& 8"/"%*#@& !>#& *"334,%-&
"$'+%!&'(&!>#&"00#!& ,0&A3,!!#%&7'A%&"-",%0!&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#& /,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&
M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&

H>#3#&"%&,$=",3$#%!&/'00&,0&3#9#30#7&0+80#U+#%!/4@&!>#&3#9#30"/&,0&*3#7,!#7&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&
/,%#C0G& ,%&!>#&N'$=3#>#%0,9#&M%*'$#&"%7&DB=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!@&+=&!'&!>#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&'3,-,%"/&
/'00@&"7T+0!#7&('3&7#=3#*,"!,'%&!>"!&A'+/7&>"9#&8##%&*>"3-#7&,(&!>#&/'00&>"7&%'!&8##%&3#*'-%,0#7K&

V,0='0"/0&

H>#%& ,!& 8#*'$#0& =3'8"8/#& !>"!& !>#& *"334,%-& "$'+%!& '(& "%& "00#!& A,//& 8#& 3#*'9#3#7& =3,%*,="//4&
!>3'+->&"&0"/#&!3"%0"*!,'%&3"!>#3&!>"%&!>3'+->&,!0&*'%!,%+,%-&+0#@&,!&,0&3#*/"00,(,#7&"0&"%&)00#!&W#/7&

Page 166



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

('3& "/#>&&6?#&"00#!&,0&3#9"/+#7&,$$#7,"!#/4&8#('3#&3#*/"00,(,*"!,'%&"%7&!?#%&*"33,#7&"!&!?#&/'@#3&#%7&
'(&!?,0&"$'+%!&"%7&(",3&9"/+#&/#00&*'0!0&!'&0#//>&&A?#3#&!?#3#&,0&"&0+80#B+#%!&7#*3#"0#&!'&(",3&9"/+#&
/#00&*'0!0&!'&0#//C&!?#&/'00&,0&;'0!#7&!'&!?#&D!?#3&D;#3"!,%-&EF;#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&G'$;3#?#%0,9#&
H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!>& &2",%0& ,%& (",3& 9"/+#&"3#& 3#*'-%,0#7&'%/4&+;&!'& !?#&"$'+%!&'(&
"%4&;3#9,'+0/4&3#*'-%,0#7&/'00#0>&&I#;3#*,"!,'%&,0&%'!&*?"3-#7&'%&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#>&

)00#!0&!?"!&"3#&!'&8#&"8"%7'%#7&'3&0*3";;#7&"3#&%'!&3#*/"00,(,#7&"0&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#>&&J'+0,%-&
0'/7& +%7#3& !?#&:,-?!& !'&K+4& /#-,0/"!,'%& ,0& %'!& 3#*/"00,(,#7& "0&)00#!0&J#/7& ('3&  "/#& "0& ,!0& ;3,$"34&
;+3;'0#&3#$",%0&"0&"&7@#//,%-&+%!,/&!?#&;',%!&'(&7,0;'0"/&"%7&,!&,0&'%/4&*'%0,7#3#7&0,-%,(,*"%!/4&$'3#&
/,L#/4&!?"%&;3'8"8/#&!?"!&"&7,0;'0"/&@,//&"*!+"//4&'**+3&'%&!?#&7"4&'(&7,0;'0"/&,!0#/(>&

A?#%&"%&"00#!&,0&7,0;'0#7&'(&'3&7#*'$$,00,'%#7C&!?#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!&'(&!?#&"00#!&,%&!?#&K"/"%*#&
 ?##!& M@?#!?#3&.3';#3!4C&./"%!&"%7&EB+,;$#%!&'3&)00#!0&J#/7&('3& "/#N& ,0&@3,!!#%&'((& !'& !?#&D!?#3&
D;#3"!,%-&EF;#%7,!+3#& /,%#& ,%&!?#&G'$;3#?#%0,9#&H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&;"3!&
'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/>&&:#*#,;!0&(3'$&7,0;'0"/0&M,(&"%4N&"3#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&0"$#&/,%#&,%&!?#&
G'$;3#?#%0,9#&H%*'$#&"%7&EF;#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!&"/0'&"0&;"3!&'(&!?#&-",%&'3&/'00&'%&7,0;'0"/&M,>#>&
%#!!#7&'((&"-",%0!& !?#& *"334,%-& 9"/+#&'(& !?#&"00#!& "!& !?#& !,$#&'(& 7,0;'0"/N>& &)%4& 3#9"/+"!,'%&-",%0&
"**+$+/"!#7& ('3& !?#& "00#!& ,%& !?#& :#9"/+"!,'%& :#0#39#& "3#& !3"%0(#33#7& !'& !?#& G";,!"/& )7O+0!$#%!&
)**'+%!>&

)$'+%!0& 3#*#,9#7& ('3& "& 7,0;'0"/& ,%& #F*#00& '(& PQRCRRR& "3#& *"!#-'3,0#7& "0& *";,!"/& 3#*#,;!0>& & )&
;3';'3!,'%&'(&3#*#,;!0&3#/"!,%-&!'&?'+0,%-&7,0;'0"/0&,0&;"4"8/#&!'&!?#&2'9#3%$#%!>&&6?#&8"/"%*#&'(&
3#*#,;!0& ,0&3#B+,3#7&!'&8#&*3#7,!#7&!'&!?#&G";,!"/&:#*#,;!0&:#0#39#C&"%7&*"%&!?#%&'%/4&8#&+0#7&('3&
%#@&*";,!"/& ,%9#0!$#%!&'3&0#!&"0,7#&!'&3#7+*#&!?#&G'+%*,/S0&+%7#3/4,%-&%##7&!'&8'33'@&M!?#&*";,!"/&
(,%"%*,%-&3#B+,3#$#%!N>&&:#*#,;!0&"3#&";;3';3,"!#7&!'&!?#&:#0#39#&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&K"/"%*#&
,%&!?#&T'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!>&

6?#&@3,!!#%U'((& 9"/+#& '(& 7,0;'0"/0& ,0& %'!& "&* ?"3-#& "-",%0!& *'+%*,/& !"FC& "0& !?#& *'0!& '(& %'%U*+33#%!&
"00#!0& ,0& (+//4& ;3'9,7#7& ('3& +%7#3& 0#;"3"!#& "33"%-#$#%!0& ('3& *";,!"/& (,%"%*,%->& &) $'+%!0& "3#&
";;3';3,"!#7&!'&!?#&G";,!"/&)7O+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&(3'$&!?#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&K"/"%*#&,%&!?#&T'9#$#%!&,%&
:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!>&

I#;3#*,"!,'%&

I#;3#*,"!,'%& ,0& ;3'9,7#7& ('3& '%& "//& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7& EB+,;$#%!& "00#!0& 84& !?#& 040!#$"!,*&
"//'*"!,'%& '(& !?#,3& 7#;3#*,"8/#& "$'+%!0& '9#3& !?#,3& +0#(+/& /,9#0>& &) %& #F*#;!,'%& ,0&$"7#& ('3& "00#!0&
@,!?'+!&"&7#!#3$,%"8/#&(,%,!#&+0#(+/&/,(#&M,>#>&(3##?'/7&/"%7&"%7&*#3!",%&G'$$+%,!4&)00#!0N&"%7&"00#!0&
!?"!&"3#&%'!&4#!&"9",/"8/#&('3&+0#&M,>#>&"00#!0&+%7#3&*'%0!3+*!,'%N>&

I#;3#*,"!,'%&,0&*"/*+/"!#7&'%&!?#&('//'@,%-&8"0#0V&

 & I@#//,%-0& "%7&' !?#3& 8+,/7,%-0& W& 0!3",-?!U/,%#& "//'*"!,'%& '9#3& !?#& +0#(+/& /,(#& '(& !?#& ;3';#3!4& "0&
#0!,$"!#7&84&!?#&9"/+#3&

 & X#?,*/#0C& ;/"%!& "%7& #B+,;$#%!& W& "& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& !?#& 9"/+#& '(& #"*?& */"00& '(& "00#!0& ,%& !?#&
K"/"%*#& ?##!C&"0&"79,0#7&84&"&0+,!"8/4&B+"/,(,#7&'((,*#3&&

 & H%(3"0!3+*!+3#& W& "& ;#3*#%!"-#& '(& !?#& 9"/+#& '(& #"*?& */"00& '(& "00#!0& ,%& !?#& K"/"%*#&  ?##!C& "0&
"79,0#7&84&"&0+,!"8/4&B+"/,(,#7&'((,*#3&

A?#3#& "%& ,!#$& '(& .3';#3!4C& ./"%!& "%7& EB+,;$#%!& "00#!& ?"0& $"O'3& *'$;'%#%!0& @?'0#& *'0!& ,0&
0,-%,(,*"%!&,%&3#/"!,'%&!'&!?#&!'!"/&*'0!&'(&!?#&,!#$C&!?#&*'$;'%#%!0&"3#&7#;3#*,"!#7&0#;"3"!#/4>&

Page 167



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

<#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& "3#& "/0'& 7#=3#*,"!#7>&?,!@& "%&"$'+%!& #A+"/& !'& !@#& 7,((#3#%*#& 8#!?##%& *+33#%!&
9"/+#&7#=3#*,"!,'%&*@"3-#7&'%&"00#!0&"%7&!@#&7#=3#*,"!,'%&!@"!&?'+/7&@"9#&8##%&*@"3-#"8/#&8"0#7&
'%& !@#,3& @,0!'3,*"/& *'0!& 8#,%-& !3"%0(#33#7& #"*@& 4#"3& (3'$& !@#& <#9"/+"!,'%& <#0#39#& !'& !@#& B"=,!"/&
)7C+0!$#%!&)**'+%!D&

18 Heritage Assets

E#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "3#& "00#!0& ?,!@& @,0!'3,*"/>& "3!,0!,*>& 0*,#%!,(,*>& !#*@%'/'-,*"/>& -#'=@40,*"/& '3&
#%9,3'%$#%!"/&A+"/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&@#/7&"%7&$",%!",%#7&=3,%*,="//4&('3&!@#,3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&!'&F%'?/#7-#&
"%7&*+/!+3#D&&&

E#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& "%7&$#"0+3#7& G,%*/+7,%-& !@#& !3#"!$#%!& '(& 3#9"/+"!,'%& -",%0& "%7&
/'00#0H& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!@& !@#& B'+%*,/I0& "**'+%!,%-& ='/,*,#0& '%&= 3'=#3!4>& =/"%!& "%7& #A+,=$#%!D&&
E'?#9#3>& 0'$#& '(& !@#&$#"0+3#$#%!& 3+/#0& "3#& 3#/"J#7& ,%& 3#/"!,'%& !'& @#3,!"-#& "00#!0& "0& 7#!",/#7&
8#/'?D&

B,9,*&<#-"/,"&

6@#& *'//#*!,'%& '(& *,9,*& 3#-"/,"& ,%*/+7#0& *#3#$'%,"/&$"*#0>& *@",%0& '(& '((,*#& "%7&' !@#3& *,9,*& ,!#$0D&&
6@#0#& ,!#$0& "3#& 3#='3!#7& ,%& !@#& 8"/"%*#& 0@##!& "!& ,%0+3"%*#& 9"/+"!,'%&?@,*@& ,0& 8"0#7& '%&$"3F#!&
9"/+#0D  6@#0#&9"/+"!,'%0&"3#&3#9,#?#7&3#-+/"3/4&!'&#%0+3#&!@"!&!@#4&"3#&*+33#%!D&&6@#0#&,!#$0&"3#&
7##$#7& !'&@"9#& ,%7#!#3$,%"!#& /,9#0&"%7&@,-@& 3#0,7+"/& 9"/+#0& 0'& !@#&B'+%*,/& 7'#0&%'!& *'%0,7#3& ,!&
"==3'=3,"!#&!'&*@"3-#&7#=3#*,"!,'%D&

6@#&*"334,%-&"$'+%!0&'(&@#3,!"-#&"00#!0&"3#& 3#9,#?#7&?@#3#& !@#3#& ,0&#9,7#%*#&'(& ,$=",3$#%!>& ('3&
#J"$=/#& ?@#3#& !@#3#& ,0& =@40,*"/& 7#!#3,'3"!,'%>& 83#"F"-#& '3& 7'+8!0& "0& !'& "+!@#%!,*,!4D& & )%4&
,$=",3$#%!& ,0& 3#*'-%,0#7& "%7& $#"0+3#7& ,%& "**'37"%*#& ?,!@& !@#& B'+%*,/I0& -#%#3"/& ='/,*4& '%&
,$=",3$#%!&'(&%'%K*+33#%!&"00#!0D&

6@#& B'+%*,/& 7'#0& %'!& %'3$"//4& $"F#& "%4& =+3*@"0#0& '3& 7,0='0"/0& '(& !@#0#& ,!#$0D& & 5+3!@#3&
,%('3$"!,'%&'%&!@#&$'0!&0,-%,(,*"%!&,!#$0&,%&!@#&*'//#*!,'%&*"%&8#&('+%7&'%&!@#&B'+%*,/I0&?#80,!#D&

19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

.3'9,0,'%0&

.3'9,0,'%0&"3#&$"7#&?@#3#&"%&#9#%!&@"0&!"F#%&=/"*#&!@"!&-,9#0&!@#&B'+%*,/&"&/#-"/&'3&*'%0!3+*!,9#&
'8/,-"!,'%&!@"!&=3'8"8/4&3#A+,3#0&0#!!/#$#%!&84&"&!3"%0(#3&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&='!#%!,"/>&
"%7&"&3#/,"8/#&#0!,$"!#&*"%&8#&$"7#&'(&!@#&"$'+%!&'(&!@#&'8/,-"!,'%D&&5'3&,%0!"%*#>&!@#&B'+%*,/&$"4&
8#&,%9'/9#7&,%&"&*'+3!&*"0#&!@"!&*'+/7&#9#%!+"//4&3#0+/!&,%&!@#&$"F,%-&'(&"&0#!!/#$#%!&'3&!@#&="4$#%!&
'(&*'$=#%0"!,'%D&

.3'9,0,'%0&"3#&*@"3-#7&"0&"%&#J=#%0#&!'&!@#&"==3'=3,"!#&0#39,*#&/,%#&,%&!@#&B'$=3#@#%0,9#&L%*'$#&
"%7& MJ=#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ,%& !@#& 4#"3& !@"!& !@#& B'+%*,/& 8#*'$#0& "?"3#& '(& !@#& '8/,-"!,'%>& "%7&
$#"0+3#7&"!& !@#&8#0!&#0!,$"!#&"!& !@#&8"/"%*#&0@##!&7"!#&'(& !@#&#J=#%7,!+3#& 3#A+,3#7& !'&0#!!/#& !@#&
'8/,-"!,'%>&!"F,%-&,%!'&"**'+%!&3#/#9"%!&3,0F0&"%7&+%*#3!",%!,#0D&

N@#%& ="4$#%!0& "3#& #9#%!+"//4& $"7#>& !@#4& "3#& *@"3-#7& !'& !@#& =3'9,0,'%& *"33,#7& ,%& !@#& O"/"%*#&
 @##!D& &M0!,$"!#7&0#!!/#$#%!0&"3#&3#9,#?#7&"!& !@#&#%7&'(&#"*@&(,%"%*,"/&4#"3&P&?@#3#& ,!&8#*'$#0&

Page 168



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

/#00&!>"%&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&"&!3"%0(#3&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&?,//&%'?&8#&3#@+,3#7&A'3&"&/'?#3&0#!!/#$#%!&
!>"%&"%!,*,;"!#7&,0&$"7#BC&!>#&;3'9,0,'%&,0&3#9#30#7&"%7&*3#7,!#7&8"*D&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#E&

F>#3#&0'$#&'3&"//&'(& !>#&;"4$#%!&3#@+,3#7& !'&0#!!/#&"&;3'9,0,'%& ,0&#G;#*!#7& !'&8#&3#*'9#3#7&(3'$&
"%'!>#3& ;"3!4& A#E-E& (3'$& "%& ,%0+3"%*#& */",$BC& !>,0& ,0& '%/4& 3#*'-%,0#7& "0& ,%*'$#& ('3& !>#& 3#/#9"%!&
0#39,*#& ,(& ,!& ,0& 9,3!+"//4& *#3!",%& !>"!& 3#,$8+30#$#%!& ?,//& 8#&3 #*#,9#7& ,(& !>#& H'+%*,/& 0#!!/#0& !>#&
'8/,-"!,'%E&

H'%!,%-#%!&I,"8,/,!,#0&

)& *'%!,%-#%!& /,"8,/,!4& "3,0#0& ?>#3#& "%&#9 #%!& >"0& !"D#%& ;/"*#& !>"!& -,9#0& !>#& H'+%*,/& "&;'0 0,8/#&
'8/,-"!,'%&?>'0#&#G,0!#%*#&?,//&'%/4&8#&*'%(,3$#7&84&!>#&'**+33#%*#&'3&'!>#3?,0#&'(&+%*#3!",%&(+!+3#&
#9#%!0&%'!&?>'//4&?,!>,%&!>#&*'%!3'/&'(&!>#&H'+%*,/E&&H'%!,%-#%!&/,"8,/,!,#0&"/0'&"3,0#&,%&*,3*+$0!"%*#0&
?>#3#&"&;3'9,0,'%&?'+/7&'!>#3?,0#&8#&$"7#&8+!&#,!>#3&,!&,0&%'!&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&"%&'+!(/'?&'(&3#0'+3*#0&
?,//&8#&3#@+,3#7&'3&!>#&"$'+%!&'(&!>#&'8/,-"!,'%&*"%%'!&8#&$#"0+3#7&3#/,"8/4E&

H'%!,%-#%!& /,"8,/,!,#0& "3#& %'!& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,%& !>#& J"/"%*#&  >##!& 8+!& 7,0*/'0#7& ,%& "&%'! #& !'& !>#&
"**'+%!0E&

H'%!,%-#%!&)00#!0&

)&*'%!,%-#%!&"00#!&"3,0#0&?>#3#&"%&#9#%!&>"0&!"D#%&;/"*#&!>"!&-,9#0&!>#&H'+%*,/&"&;'00,8/#&"00#!&
?>'0#&#G,0!#%*#&?,//&'%/4&8#&*'%(,3$#7&84& !>#&'**+33#%*#&'3&'!>#3?,0#&'(&+%*#3!",%& (+!+3#&#9#%!0&
%'!&?>'//4&?,!>,%&!>#&*'%!3'/&'(&!>#&H'+%*,/E&

H'%!,%-#%!&"00#!0&"3#&%'!&3#*'-%,0#7&,%&!>#&J"/"%*#& >##!&8+!&7,0*/'0#7&,%&"&%'!#&!'&!>#&"**'+%!0&
?>#3#&,!&,0&;3'8"8/#&!>"!&!>#3#&?,//&8#&"%&,%(/'?&'(&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&'3&0#39,*#&;'!#%!,"/E&

20 Reserves

6>#& H'+%*,/& 0#!0& "0,7#& 0;#*,(,*& "$'+%!0& "0& 3#0#39#0& ('3& (+!+3#& ;'/,*4& ;+3;'0#0& '3& !'& *'9#3&
*'%!,%-#%*,#0. :#0#39#0&"3#&*3#"!#7&84&";;3';3,"!,%-&"$'+%!0&'+!&'(&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&
!>#&K'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!E&&F>#%&#G;#%7,!+3#&!'&8#&(,%"%*#7&(3'$&"&3#0#39#&,0&,%*+33#7C&
,!& ,0& *>"3-#7& !'& !>#& ";;3';3,"!#& 0#39,*#& ,%& !>"!& 4#"3& !'& 0*'3#& "-",%0!& !>#& 0+3;/+0L7#(,*,!& '%& !>#&
;3'9,0,'%& '(& 0#39,*#0& ,%& !>#& H'$;3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7& NG;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!E& & 6>#& 3#0#39#& ,0&
!>#%&";;3';3,"!#7&8"*D&,%!'&!>#&2#%#3"/&5+%7&J"/"%*#&,%&!>#&K'9#$#%!&,%&:#0#39#0& !"!#$#%!&0'&
!>"!&!>#3#&,0&%'&%#!&*>"3-#&"-",%0!&*'+%*,/&!"G&('3&!>#&#G;#%7,!+3#E&

H#3!",%& 3#0#39#0& "3#& D#;!& !'&$"%"-#& !>#& "**'+%!,%-& ;3'*#00#0& ('3& %'%O*+33#%!& "00#!0C& (,%"%*,"/&
,%0!3+$#%!0&"%7& 3#!,3#$#%!&8#%#(,!0&"%7& !>"!&7'&%'!& 3#;3#0#%!&+0"8/#& 3#0'+3*#0& ('3& !>#&H'+%*,/& P&
!>#0#&3#0#39#0&"3#&#G;/",%#7&,%&!>#&3#/#9"%!&;'/,*,#0E&

21 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

NG;#%7,!+3#&,%*+33#7&7+3,%-&!>#&4#"3&!>"!&$"4&8#&*";,!"/,0#7&+%7#3&0!"!+!'34&;3'9,0,'%0&8+!&7'#0&%'!&
3#0+/!&,%&!>#&*3#"!,'%&'(&"&%'%O*+33#%!&"00#!&>"0&8##%&*>"3-#7&"0&#G;#%7,!+3#&!'&!>#&3#/#9"%!&0#39,*#&
,%& !>#& H'$;3#>#%0,9#& M%*'$#& "%7&N G;#%7,!+3#&  !"!#$#%!& ,%& !>#& 4#"3E& &F>#3#& !>#& H'+%*,/& >"0&
7#!#3$,%#7&!'&$##!&!>#&*'0!&'(&!>,0&#G;#%7,!+3#&(3'$&#G,0!,%-&*";,!"/&3#0'+3*#0&'3&84&8'33'?,%-C&"&
!3"%0(#3& ,%& !>#&K'9#$#%!& ,%& :#0#39#0&  !"!#$#%!& (3'$& !>#&2#%#3"/& 5+%7& J"/"%*#& !'& !>#& H";,!"/&

Page 169



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

)7>+0!$#%!&)**'+%!&!?#%&3#9#30#0&'+!&!?#&"$'+%!0&*?"3-#7&0'&!?"!&!?#3#&,0&%'&,$="*!&'%&!?#&/#9#/&
'(&*'+%*,/&!"@A&

22 Value Added Tax (VAT)

B)6& ="4"8/#& ,0& ,%*/+7#7& "0& "%& #@=#%0#& '%/4& !'& !?#& #@!#%!& !?"!& ,!& ,0& %'!& 3#*'9#3"8/#& (3'$& C#3&
D">#0!4E0&<#9#%+#&"%7&F+0!'$0A&&B)6&3#*#,9"8/#&,0&#@*/+7#7&(3'$&,%*'$#A&&

23 Foreign Exchange Translation

G?#3#&!?#&F'+%*,/&?"0&#%!#3#7&,%!'&"&!3"%0"*!,'%&7#%'$,%"!#7&,%&"&('3#,-%&*+33#%*4H&!?#&!3"%0"*!,'%&
,0&*'%9#3!#7&,%!'&0!#3/,%-&"!&!?#&#@*?"%-#&3"!#&'%&!?#&7"!#&!?"!&!?#&!3"%0"*!,'%&I"0&#((#*!,9#A&&G?#3#&
"$'+%!0& ,%& ('3#,-%& *+33#%*4& "3#& '+!0!"%7,%-& "!& !?#& 4#"3& #%7& !?#4& "3#& *'%9#3!#7& "!& !?#& 0='!&
#@*?"%-#& 3"!#& "!& JK& D"3*?A& &< #0+/!,%-& -",%0& '3& /'00#0& "3#& 3#*'-%,0#7& ,%& !?#& 5,%"%*,%-& "%7&
L%9#0!$#%!&L%*'$#&"%7&M@=#%7,!+3#&/,%#&,%&!?#&F'$=3#?#%0,9#&L%*'$#&"%7&M@=#%7,!+3#& !"!#$#%!A&
&
&
&
&
&

Page 170



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <<&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Glossary of Financial Terms and Abbreviations

Accounting Period

6=#&;#3,'7&'(& !,$#&*'9#3#7&84& !=#&"**'+%!0>&%'3$"//4&?@&$'%!=0&*'$$#%*,%-&'%&?&);3,/& ('3& /'*"/&
"+!='3,!,#0A&

Accruals

 +$0& ,%*/+7#7& ,%& !=#& (,%"/&"**'+%!0& !'&*'9#3& ,%*'$#&'3&#B;#%7,!+3#&"!!3,8+!"8/#& !'& !=#&"**'+%!,%-&
;#3,'7&8+!&('3&C=,*=&;"4$#%!&="0&%'!&8##%&$"7#D3#*#,9#7&"!&!=#&8"/"%*#&0=##!&7"!#A&

Amortisation

)&$#"0+3#&'(&!=#&*'%0+$;!,'%&'(&!=#&9"/+#&'(&,%!"%-,8/#&"00#!0>&8"0#7&'%&!=#&3#$",%,%-&#*'%'$,*&
/,(#A&

Capital Expenditure

EB;#%7,!+3#& '%& %#C& "00#!0& 0+*=& "0& /"%7& "%7& 8+,/7,%-0>& '3& '%& #%="%*#$#%!0& !'& #B,0!,%-& "00#!0&
C=,*=&0,-%,(,*"%!/4&;3'/'%-&!=#,3&+0#(+/&/,(#&'3&,%*3#"0#&!=#,3&9"/+#A&

Capital Receipt

F%*'$#&(3'$&!=#&0"/#&'(&*";,!"/&"00#!0&0+*=&"0&*'+%*,/&='+0#0>&/"%7&'3&'!=#3&8+,/7,%-0A&

Cash Equivalents

G"0=&#H+,9"/#%!0&"3#& ,%9#0!$#%!0& !="!&$"!+3#& ,%&IJ&7"40&'3& /#00& (3'$&!=#&7"!#&'(&"*H+,0,!,'%&"%7&
!="!&"3#&3#"7,/4&*'%9#3!,8/#&!'&K%'C%&"$'+%!0&'(&*"0=&C,!=&,%0,-%,(,*"%!&3,0K&'(&*="%-#&,%&9"/+#A&

Contingent Liabilities

.'!#%!,"/&/,"8,/,!,#0&C=,*=&"3#&#,!=#3&7#;#%7#%!&'%&"&(+!+3#&#9#%!&'3&*"%%'!&8#&3#/,"8/4&#0!,$"!#7A&

Creditors

)$'+%!0&'C#7&84&!=#&G'+%*,/&"!&I?&L"3*=&('3&-''70&3#*#,9#7&'3&0#39,*#0&3#%7#3#7&8+!&%'!&4#!&;",7&
('3A&

Current Assets

)00#!0&C=,*=&*"%&8#&#B;#*!#7&!'&8#&*'%0+$#7&'3&3#"/,0#7&7+3,%-&!=#&%#B!&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7A&

Current Liabilities

)$'+%!0&C=,*=&C,//&8#*'$#&7+#&'3&*'+/7&8#&*"//#7&+;'%&7+3,%-&!=#&%#B!&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7A&

&

Page 171



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;;& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&<#='3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Debtors

)$'+%!0&'>#7&!'&!?#&@'+%*,/&>?,*?&"3#&*'//#*!"8/#&'3&'+!0!"%7,%-&"!&A:&B"3*?C&

Depreciation

)&$#"0+3#&'(&!?#&*'%0+$=!,'%&'(&!?#&9"/+#&'(&%'%D*+33#%!&"00#!0E&8"0#7&'%&!?#&3#$",%,%-&#*'%'$,*&
/,(#C&

Effective rate of interest

6?#&3"!#&'(&,%!#3#0!&!?"!&>,//&7,0*'+%!&!?#&#0!,$"!#7&*"0?&(/'>0&'9#3&!?#&/,(#&'(&"&(,%"%*,"/&,%0!3+$#%!&
!'&!?#&"$'+%!&,%&!?#&8"/"%*#&0?##!&"!&,%,!,"/&$#"0+3#$#%!C&

Equity instrument

)& *'%!3"*!& !?"!& #9,7#%*#0& "& 3#0,7+"/& ,%!#3#0!& ,%& !?#& "00#!0& '(& "%& #%!,!4& "(!#3& 7#7+*!,%-& "//& '(& ,!0&
/,"8,/,!,#0&F#C-C&"%&#G+,!4&0?"3#&,%&"&*'$="%4CH&

Fair Value

6?#&"$'+%!&('3&>?,*?&"%&"00#!&*'+/7&8#&#I*?"%-#7E&'3&"&/,"8,/,!4&0#!!/#7E&8#!>##%&J%'>/#7-#"8/#E&
>,//,%-&="3!,#0&,%&"%&"3$K0&/#%-!?&!3"%0"*!,'%C&

Finance Lease

)&/#"0#&!?"!&!3"%0(#30&0+80!"%!,"//4&"//&'(&!?#&3,0J0&"%7&3#>"370&'(&'>%#30?,=&'(&"&%'%D*+33#%!&"00#!&
!'&!?#&/#00##C&

Financial Asset

)& 3,-?!& !'& (+!+3#& #*'%'$,*& 8#%#(,!0& *'%!3'//#7& 84& !?#& @'+%*,/C& & LI"$=/#0& ,%*/+7#& 8"%J& 7#='0,!0E&
,%9#0!$#%!0E&!3"7#&3#*#,9"8/#0&"%7&/'"%0&3#*#,9"8/#C&

Financial Liability

)%&'8/,-"!,'%&!'&!3"%0(#3&#*'%'$,*&8#%#(,!0&*'%!3'//#7&84&!?#&@'+%*,/C&&LI"$=/#0&,%*/+7#&8'33'>,%-0E&
(,%"%*,"/&-+"3"%!##0&"%7&"$'+%!0&'>#7&!'&!3"7#&*3#7,!'30C&

Financial Instrument

)%4& *'%!3"*!& !?"!& -,9#0& 3,0#& !'& "& (,%"%*,"/& "00#!& '(& '%#& #%!,!4& "%7&"& (,%"%*,"/& /,"8,/,!4& '3& #G+,!4&
,%0!3+$#%!&'(&"%'!?#3C&

Government Grants

."4$#%!0& 84& *#%!3"/& -'9#3%$#%!& !'>"370& /'*"/& *'+%*,/& #I=#%7,!+3#C& & 6?#4& $"4& 8#&0 =#*,(,*E& ('3&
#I"$=/#&M'+0,%-&N#%#(,!&0+80,74E&'3&-#%#3"/&0+*?&"0&<#9#%+#& +=='3!&23"%!C&

&

Page 172



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=<&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Heritage Assets

>#3,!"-#& )00#!0& "3#& "00#!0& ?,!@& @,0!'3,*"/A& "3!,0!,*A& 0*,#%!,(,*A& !#*@%'/'-,*"/A& -#';@40,*"/& '3&
#%9,3'%$#%!"/&B+"/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&@#/7&"%7&$",%!",%#7&;3,%*,;"//4&('3&!@#,3&*'%!3,8+!,'%&!'&C%'?/#7-#&
"%7&*+/!+3#D&

Impairment

6@#&!#3$&+0#7&?@#3#& !@#&#0!,$"!#7&3#*'9#3"8/#&"$'+%!&(3'$&"%&"00#!& ,0& /#00& !@"%&!@#&"$'3!,0#7&
*'0!&"!&?@,*@&!@#&"00#!&,0&8#,%-&*"33,#7&'%&!@#&8"/"%*#&0@##!D&

Non-current assets

)00#!0&?@,*@&*"%&8#&#E;#*!#7&!'&8#&'(&+0#&'3&8#%#(,!& !@#&F'+%*,/& ,%&;3'9,7,%-&,!0&0#39,*#&('3&$'3#&
!@"%&'%#&"**'+%!,%-&;#3,'7D&

Operating Lease

)&/#"0#&+%7#3&?@,*@&!@#&'?%#30@,;&'(&!@#&"00#!&3#$",%0&?,!@&!@#&/#00'3G&('3&;3"*!,*"/&;+3;'0#0&,!&,0&
#B+,9"/#%!&!'&*'%!3"*!&@,3,%-D&

Outturn

:#(#30&!'&"*!+"/&,%*'$#&"%7&#E;#%7,!+3#&'3&8"/"%*#0&"0&';;'0#7&!'&8+7-#!#7&"$'+%!0D&

Precepts

6@#&"$'+%!&?@,*@&"&/'*"/&*'+%*,/&?@,*@&*"%%'!&/#94&"&*'+%*,/&!"E&7,3#*!/4&'%&!@#&;+8/,*&H('3&#E"$;/#&
"&F'+%!4&F'+%*,/&'3&.'/,*#&)+!@'3,!4I&3#B+,3#0&!'&8#&*'//#*!#7&'%&,!0&8#@"/(D&

Provisions

J'%,#0&0#!&"0,7#&('3&/,"8,/,!,#0&?@,*@&"3#&/,C#/4&!'&8#&,%*+33#7&8+!&?@#3#&#E"*!&"$'+%!0&'3&7"!#0&"3#&
+%*#3!",%D&

Reserves

)$'+%!0& 0#!& "0,7#& ,%& !@#& "**'+%!0& ('3& !@#& ;+3;'0#& '(& $##!,%-& ;"3!,*+/"3& (+!+3#& #E;#%7,!+3#D& & )&
7,0!,%*!,'%&,0&73"?%&8#!?##%&3#0#39#0&"%7&;3'9,0,'%0&?@,*@&"3#&0#!&+;&!'&$##!&C%'?%&/,"8,/,!,#0D&

Revenue Expenditure

 ;#%7,%-&'%&7"4&!'&7"4&,!#$0&,%*/+7,%-&#$;/'4##0K&;"4A&;3#$,0#0&*'0!0&"%7&0+;;/,#0&"%7&0#39,*#0D&

Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute

LE;#%7,!+3#&?@,*@& /#-,0/"!,'%&"//'?0& !'&8#&*/"00,(,#7&"0&*";,!"/& ('3& (+%7,%-&;+3;'0#0&?@#%& ,!&7'#0&
%'!& 3#0+/!& ,%& !@#& #E;#%7,!+3#& 8#,%-& *"33,#7& '%& !@#& M"/"%*#&  @##!& "0& "& %'%N*+33#%!& "00#!D& &6 @#&
;+3;'0#&'(& !@,0& ,0& !'&#%"8/#& ,!& !'&8#& (+%7#7& (3'$&*";,!"/& 3#0'+3*#0& 3"!@#3& !@"%&8#&*@"3-#7& !'& !@#&
2#%#3"/&5+%7&"%7&,$;"*!&'%&!@"!&4#"3K0&*'+%*,/&!"ED& &

Page 173



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&&&&&&&&&&&&& &
& :;<& &&&&&&&)%%+"/&=#>'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0&
&&&&&&&&&&&&&& &&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Revenue Support Grant

23"%!&>",7&84&*#%!3"/&-'9#3%$#%!&!'&"&/'*"/&*'+%*,/&!'?"370&!@#&*'0!0&'(&,!0&0#39,*#0A&

The Code

6@#&B'7#&'(&.3"*!,*#&'%&C'*"/&)+!@'3,!4&)**'+%!,%-&,%&!@#&D%,!#7&E,%-7'$&<;:<F:GA&&6@,0&0>#*,(,#0&
!@#& >3,%*,>"/0& "%7& >3"*!,*#0& '(& "**'+%!,%-& 3#H+,3#7& !'& -,9#& "& I!3+#& "%7& (",3J& 9,#?& '(& !@#& (,%"%*,"/&
>'0,!,'%&"%7&!3"%0"*!,'%0&'(&"&/'*"/&"+!@'3,!4A&

&
&
&

Page 174



 !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!,%-&.'/,*,#0&1&&
2/'00"34&'(&5,%"%*,"/&6#3$0&"%7&)883#9,"!,'%0&

&
&

&
& )%%+"/&:#;'3!&"%7& !"!#$#%!&'(&)**'+%!0& <=>&

&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&&

Abbreviations used in the accounts

&

CIPFA  Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

GAAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

HRA  Housing Revenue Account

IAS  International Accounting Standard

IFRS  International Financial Reporting Standard

LAAP  Local Authority Accounting Panel

LGPS  Local Government Pension Scheme

MRP  Minimum Revenue Provision

NNDR  National Non-Domestic Rates

SERCOP Service Reporting Code of Practice

SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers

&

&

&

&

&

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL REPORT AND
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF 

ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDING
31 MARCH 2013

DRAFT

APPENDIX E

Page 177



This document is available on our website at www.cambridge.gov.uk

Page 178



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 1

                                 

Annual Report 2012/13

Cambridge City Council provides a wide range of services to people that live in, work in and
visit Cambridge. 

The services provided by the City Council include: 

 Keeping the streets and public open spaces clean. 

 Emptying refuse and recycling bins. 

 Providing a range of leisure facilities, including swimming pools and community centres, 
and providing entertainment in the City’s parks and at the Corn Exchange. 

 Awarding a wide range of grants to support local organisations and community groups.

 Providing a wide range of play activities for children and young people. 

 Developing a new local plan for Cambridge to guide development to 2031, offering 
planning advice, progressing planning applications and making sure that new buildings 
and alterations are safe. 

 Providing housing advice and support, and working with partners to meet peoples’ 
housing needs. 

 Acting as landlord to over 7,100 council-owned properties. 

 Processing housing benefit and council tax support applications. 

 Monitoring and enforcing food and drink hygiene standards, together with the control of 
pests and disease, noise and air pollution. 

 Licensing food premises, street traders and entertainment venues. 

 Addressing anti-social behaviour, in partnership with the Police and other agencies. 

 Managing council run car parks. 

 Organising and managing elections and the electoral register.

The City Council serves a population of about 123,900 residents in an almost entirely urban 
area in an otherwise mainly rural county. Cambridge is a sub-regional centre with high levels 
of inward travel to work and for shopping and leisure activities, which adds significantly to 
the day-time population. The Council provides many services that are used by people who 
live outside of the city as well as residents, which places additional pressure on our 
resources. 

The city is at the centre of a housing growth region, with many new homes planned for sites 
on the southern and north-west fringes of Cambridge. The provision of good quality 
affordable and sustainable housing is a priority for the Council and it has set a target for 
developers of 40% affordable housing to be provided on the larger growth sites.

Page 179



Annual Report

             
2 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

What we want to achieve

Cambridge City Council has a clear vision for the future of the city, a vision which is shared 
with Cambridge citizens and with partner organisations. 

Vision Statement

Cambridge - where people matter

 A city which celebrates its diversity, unites in its priority for the disadvantaged and 
strives for shared community wellbeing

 A city whose citizens feel they can influence public decision making and are equally 
keen to pursue individual and community initiatives

 A city where people behave with consideration for others and where harm and nuisance 
are confronted wherever possible without constraining the lives of all

Cambridge - a good place to live, learn and work

 A city which recognises and meets needs for housing of all kinds – close to jobs and 
neighbourhood facilities

 A city which draws inspiration from its iconic historic centre and achieves a sense of 
place in all of its parts with generous urban open spaces and well-designed buildings

 A city with a thriving local economy that benefits the whole community and builds on its 
global pre-eminence in learning and discovery

 A city where getting around is primarily by public transport, bike and on foot

Cambridge - caring for the planet

 A city in the forefront of low carbon living and minimising its impact on the environment 
from waste and pollution.

Priorities

The national economic situation and the government’s plans to tackle the national debt will 
be a challenge for the City Council because over the next few years we will have less money 
to spend. As we plan for the future our aim will be to: 

 protect services for vulnerable individuals and communities

 protect the basic services that keep our city looking good and working well

 make sure that we get right the things we only have one chance to get right – such as 
planning new communities. 

Page 180



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 3

                                 

How we will achieve our vision for Cambridge

Portfolio Plans 

The Executive is made up of the Leader of the Council and six Executive Councillors. Each 
Executive Councillor is responsible for a specific group of services, known as a portfolio, and 
they can make decisions about the services they are responsible for.  During 2012/13 the 
seven portfolios were: 

 Arts, Sports & Public Places

 Community Development and Health

 Customer Services and Resources

 Environmental and Waste Services

 Housing

 Planning and Climate Change, and 

 Strategy. 

Each Executive Councillor has a plan that sets out how the services they are responsible for 
will contribute to the achievement of the council’s vision for Cambridge. 

The following pages outline what we achieved over the past year as a result of the 2012/13 
portfolio plans, and what our plans are for 2013/14. 

Arts, Sports & Public Places Portfolio Plan 

During 2012/13 we: 

! Improved access to arts, sports and public places for all city residents through the 
leisure grants programme and by engaging with groups of people that do not currently 
use these services. 

! Celebrated the London 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games. This included the staging 
of an Olympic Torch Relay at Parkers Piece during the Big Weekend event, which 
attracted over 80,000 people, in July and the arrival of the Paralympic flame during 
August. 

! Improved the quantity and quality of provision of recycling, litter and dog waste bins on 
our open spaces. 

! Made improvements to our open spaces, sports, recreation and public art provision 
through a range of projects funded by developers. 

! Identified ways for the Council to promote public access to public open space not 
directly maintained by the City Council.

! Established a plan and priorities to enhance local environmental quality, biodiversity and 
sustainability. 

Page 181



Annual Report

             
4 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

Our plans for 2013/14 in the Arts, Sports & Public Places portfolio include: 

 Carrying out essential improvements to the Corn Exchange and Guildhall Halls and 
improve their marketing as part of the first year of a three year business plan to increase 
the number and type of events held.

 Awarding a new seven year leisure management contract.

 Supporting and encouraging more local groups to apply for grants from the Council’s 
Area Committees for sports and arts related projects.

 Organising activities with partners to celebrate the 150th Anniversary of the Football 
Association and the 400th Anniversary of Parkers Piece.

 Developing the role of the Cambridge Arts Network to better coordinate and promote the 
city’s arts and culture offer and improve networking and support amongst arts providers 
and practitioners.

 Producing a new five-year plan for Sports Development, Open Space and Play.

 Delivering developer contribution-funded Public Arts projects that are prioritised by the 
Council’s Area and Scrutiny Committees.

 Increasing participation by under-represented groups and people with protected 
characteristics in arts, sports and activities in public places.

 Increasing the number of allotment plots and community orchards in Cambridge.

 Planning and coordinating multi-agency arrangements for the Tour de France: Grand 
Depart third leg start from Cambridge to London.

 Introducing a revised Tree Management Protocol that aligns with the Council’s Area 
Committee decision-making cycle.  

Planning and Climate Change Portfolio Plan 

During 2012/13 we: 

 Consulted on a range of issues and options that needed to be considered as part of the 
development of the new Cambridge Local Plan, which were important for the future 
planning and development of the city. 

 Worked with the County Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council on the 
review of the Local Plan, and other planning matters, to ensure a co-operative and 
coordinated approach to planning for the Cambridge sub-region. 

 Improved our planning application performance on major planning applications.

 Granted planning permission for the University of Cambridge North-West Cambridge 
development.

Page 182



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 5

                                 

 Commenced work on the 20mph project with consultation on the first phase of that 
project starting in the north area of the city. 

 Consulted extensively about local priorities for the use of developer contributions 
channelled through our Area Committees and identified 16 initial priority projects, 
amounting to over £550,000, to meet local needs.  

Our plans for 2013/14 in the Planning and Climate Change portfolio include: 

 Consulting on the submission stages of the new local plan and the key stages of our 
approach to the Community Infrastructure Levy and submitting the new local plan for 
examination by the Secretary of State.

 Taking a lead role under the duty to co-operate in the delivery of the emerging strategic 
planning function at the sub-regional level and in the on-going working arrangements of 
the Local Enterprise Partnership.

 Working jointly with South Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridgeshire County 
Council on the review of local plans and County Transport Strategy.

 Delivering our on-going statutory planning function and growth commitments in 
accordance with the present local plan (2006) to agreed time and quality of outcomes.

 Implementing principles of the Localism agenda relating to community engagement in 
the development plan process and neighbourhood planning responsibilities.

 Further improving the performance and efficiency of our planning service, especially in 
the area of planning application processing.

 Working closely with developers and other stakeholders to ensure that new 
developments are of a high design quality and environmentally sustainable and 
contribute positively to the character of the built and green space of the city.

 Continuing to secure funding for a range of public art projects across the city.

 Adopting a tree strategy, in consultation with key stakeholders, that sets out the 
council’s overarching policy for the trees within the city and how they will be preserved 
for future generations.

 Making our planning enforcement function more responsive and visible in the city.

 Delivering a reduction in carbon emissions from our estate and operations.

 Taking forward a joint programme with partner local authorities to deliver a Green Deal 
model for Cambridgeshire.

 Exploring with partners in the Cambridge Retrofit project a long-term approach for 
financing and delivering energy efficiency improvements to existing properties in 
Cambridge.

 Working with partners organisations, including the universities in Cambridge and the 
private sector to develop options for a commercially viable district heating scheme.

Page 183



Annual Report

             
6 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

 Delivering new transport measures and actions to improve facilities for pedestrians, 
cyclists and public transport users, including in the new developments in the city.

 Contributing to the review of area transport plans and proposed projects for investment, 
supporting the local process for bidding for new and implementing relevant funding 
sources.

 Putting in place with our partners, subject to the outcome of consultations, additional 
new 20 mph zones across the city.

 Carry out a public consultation exercise on the preferred options for the redevelopment 
of the Park Street car park site and an action plan.

 Delivering additional cycle parking places in accordance with our cycle parking project.     

Community Development and Health Portfolio Plan

During 2012/13 we: 

 Provided local residents with more opportunities to influence decisions about their local 
area by using the learning from the North Area Committee pilot to support area working 
across the city’s other three areas. 

 Reviewed how the City Council’s community facilities were managed, taking account of 
proposed facilities in the growth sites and the opportunities presented in the Localism
Bill. 

 Worked with the YMCA and young people to explore different options for providing a 
new facility for young people in the centre of Cambridge. 

 Continued to support the integration of new communities with existing residents through 
the provision of community activities. 

 Worked with partners to make significant progress towards delivering new community 
infrastructure in the North West and Southern fringes of Cambridge, including the 
Trumpington Meadows Primary School and the new multi-use community facility at Clay 
Farm. 

 Set up and supported a Local Health Partnership to improve public health in Cambridge. 

 Developed a model of Restorative Justice focusing on the needs of victims, encouraging 
offenders to take responsibility for their actions and to repair the harm they’ve done, in 
order to reduce re-offending, anti-social behaviour and low-level crime in Cambridge. 

 Worked with our partners to reduce the presence of street drinkers and the associated 
anti-social behaviour. 

 Continued to support events and programmes to celebrate diversity, such as Black 
History Month, Cambridge Celebrates Age, Disability History Month, Inter-Faith Week, 
Refugee Week, LGBT History Month, Holocaust Memorial Day and International 
Women’s Day. 

Page 184



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 7

                                 

 Continued to promote and manage grant funding so that voluntary groups are able to 
access grant aid and other support to help them build their knowledge, skills and 
confidence as partners with the City Council and sustain vibrant localities and 
neighbourhoods.

 Worked with the City’s two Credit Unions to help them find additional volunteers and to 
promote their services to Cambridge residents in order to deter the use of high interest 
pay day loans and loans from loan sharks. 

 Produced a Business Plan to deliver the findings from our review of our Children and 
Young People’s Participation Service (ChYpPS) so that the service focuses on open 
access play for 9-13 year olds, takes a more entrepreneurial approach, makes the best 
use of the skills of the staff, uses volunteers to increase capacity and generates income. 

Our plans for 2013/14 include: 

 Delivering the first year of our plan for our Children and Young People’s Participation 
Service (ChYpPS), achieving our income target of £30k and carrying out a review of 
how the first year went.

 Delivering our plan for the future management of the Council’s community facilities that 
will deliver savings of £35k in 2013/14 whilst protecting them in the long-term for 
Cambridge residents and take into account the localism agenda and future pressures on 
public spending.

 Continuing to promote and manage a comprehensive grants programme that supports 
the city’s community and voluntary sector.

 Developing our commemorations service to extend choices to the bereaved and making 
the service operate more efficiently.

 Strengthening our community engagement work across the southern fringe growth sites 
and establishing new community engagement structures across the north-west 
Cambridge growth sites.

 Involving stakeholders and residents in the design and future management 
arrangements for new community facilities at Clay Farm, the University site and NIAB1 
and participating actively with partners to open new facilities at Trumpington Meadows.

 Ensuring that the Cambridge Local Health Partnership sets priorities for local public 
health work that align to local need and the Cambridgeshire Health and Well-being 
Strategy.

 Implementing plans for ultra-fast broadband coverage within the city area, as a part of 
the “Connecting Cambridgeshire” initiative, subject to successful bids for government 
funding. 

Page 185



Annual Report

             
8 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

Customer Services and Resources Portfolio Plan 

During 2012/13 we: 

 Worked with partner organisations to agree a common approach to the management of 
public sector owned property assets, to deliver the maximum possible benefit to the 
citizens of Cambridge.

 Strove to make optimum use of the Council’s accommodation, providing support to 
enable our staff to work smarter and more flexibly. 

 Obtained greater value for money from the Council’s spending on procurement. 

 Ensured that the government’s welfare reforms were efficiently and effectively 
implemented locally, including consultation about and implementation of a new Local 
Council Tax Scheme that protected the most vulnerable in the city, with action being 
taken to mitigate hardship where possible. 

 Prepared for the retention of local business rates as part of the Local Government 
Resource Review. 

 Continued to explore how we as an organisation, and with our partners, can provide 
more joined-up customer services. 

 Developed and consulted on a business plan to support the development of a bid for a 
Business Improvement District within Cambridge, in order to enable the involvement 
and appropriate financial input from the city’s business community to the future 
development of the city.

Our plans for 2013/14 include: 

 Integrating the Council’s information systems effectively and simplifying our internal 
processes and delegations to improve our efficiency.

 Obtaining greater value for money from the Council’s spending on procurement.

 Identifying further opportunities to work in collaboration, or share services with other 
public sector organisations, in order to create efficiencies or improve our resilience.

 Developing a more commercial approach for our tourism service and identifying a 
sustainable model of tourism that is less reliant on the Council.

 Agreeing a strategy for the optimum use of the Council’s accommodation for the period 
2013 to 2017 that also supports our CO2 reduction targets.

 Developing a planned maintenance programme for the Council’s administrative 
buildings that reduces the Council’s running costs and level of CO2 emissions.

 Enabling more staff to work more effectively and flexibly, and therefore more efficiently, 
by providing appropriate support in terms of buildings, technology and working 
practices.

Page 186



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 9

                                 

 Maximising the commercial return from the development of growth sites on the southern 
and north-eastern fringes of the city, subject to the Council’s other objectives for these 
developments.

 Undertaking focused work to improve electoral registration rates in the Cambridge City 
electoral area and make preparations for the implementation of Individual Electoral 
Registration.

 Supporting the new Business Improvement District to deliver the projects set out in its 
Business Proposal.

 Implementing our Local Council Tax scheme as part of the government’s welfare 
reforms, ensuring that the most vulnerable in the city are supported.

 Preparing the Council’s own systems and liaising with partners, such as the Department 
of Work and Pensions, for the future implementation of welfare reforms. 

Environment and Waste Portfolio Plan 

During 2012/13 we: 

 Took steps to increase recycling in Cambridge, by providing customers with more new 
facilities for ‘recycling on the go’, encouraging the recycling of particular materials that 
aren’t consistently recycled by residents across the city and by targeting particular 
groups.

 Increased the range of materials it is possible to recycle in the blue bin by adding plastic 
pots, tubs and trays to the mix.

 Introduced small Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment banks to 5 bring banks 
sites across the city located in supermarket car parks.

 Now have 135 Recycling Champions across the city.  Champions attend local events to 
provide information and communicate with residents about any barriers they may have 
to recycling.

 Increased the number of commercial customers with recycling services and this is 
demonstrated by results that show an increase from 21% to 29% recycling.

 Explored how we could better work with partners to improve the efficiency of our waste 
services. 

 Addressed the impact that excessive noise has on residents, by mapping noise 
complaints across Cambridge, educating communities and enforcing change when 
necessary. Attendance at student events to raise awareness of noise nuisance and 
impact to their neighbours in the City.

 Contributed to improvements in the health of Cambridge residents by working with our 
partners to implement new public health arrangements, and by working to reduce the 
health impact of alcohol and the night-time economy. The partnership provided GPs 
with a clear and simple single point of contact to which they can report health issues 
caused by housing without having to identify the nature of tenure.

Page 187



Annual Report

             
10 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

 Planned for the introduction of new licensing legislation and working with the Business 
Improvement District will result in cleaner, safer streets in the city centre. 

 Made it easier for people to report litter, graffiti and fly tipping online and by text. 

 Worked with the County Council to improve air quality and reduce emissions, by 
obtaining emission improvements from public transport vehicles and by promoting 
alternatives to the private car. New Quality Bus Partnership produced with stronger
powers to exclude non-compliant vehicles from the core area.

 Set a standard for emissions in taxis and moved towards ensuring the taxi fleet will meet 
Euro 4/5 standard by 2014.

 Implemented the National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme.

 Were awarded a grant of £60,000 from DEFRA for a project to hire equipment and its 
operators to monitor real-time tail-pipe emissions.

Our plans for 2013/14 include: 

 Putting in place a programme of activities to increase the proportion of waste that is 
recycled in the city.

 Offering businesses incentives to use our recycling services to increase the proportion 
of commercial waste recycled.

 Successfully negotiating a specification for a joint Materials Recycling Facility contract.

 Delivering a programme of joint projects with partners in the RECAP Advanced Waste 
Partnership.

 Agreeing a cross-border refuse and recycling collection arrangement with South 
Cambridgeshire District Council to meet the needs of our new developments that 
straddle boundaries.

 Increasing the number of street and recycling bins and dog litter bins in the city.

 Working with the Police and PCSOs to take enforcement action against dog fouling 
following the introduction of dog control orders.

 Introducing a rapid response team to respond to environmental emergencies outside of 
the city centre.

 Continuing refurbishment of our public toilets and looking at opportunities for providing 
community toilets.

 Completing the “Cambridge Real Emissions” project with our partners to provide 
detailed evidence of air quality impacts of city centre transport options.

 Installing in-cab technology to our refuse trucks to improve services to our customers.

Page 188



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 11

                                 

Housing Portfolio Plan

During 2012/13 we: 

 Invested in our existing housing stock and started to deliver a new council house 
building programme. 

 Worked with developers, Registered Providers (housing associations) and planners to 
ensure that the city’s social and market housing stock (including private rented housing) 
continues to grow, including 40% Affordable Housing in most new developments and 
the delivery of the Council’s own new build programme.

 Increased the energy efficiency of existing homes; promoting sustainable design and 
construction methods and promoting high standards of environmental sustainability of 
new homes and communities, including water management. 

 Reviewed our approach to ensure new specialist housing is provided, including an 
assessment of potential Gypsy and Traveller sites, as part of the local plan 
development. 

 Completed a review of the Council’s Letting Policy to ensure that priority for re-housing 
continues to be given to those who have least opportunity to access market housing. 

 Maintained and promoted services to take action effectively against private sector 
landlords that do not comply with housing health and safety matters as well as landlord 
and tenant issues. 

 Undertook a review of our empty homes policy in the light of national policy change so 
that effective action is taken to get vacant homes back into use.

 Improved the support provided to rough sleepers, including the completion of the 
Jimmy’s Assessment Centre project, to help reduce the incidence of rough sleeping and 
use of temporary accommodation as households move more effectively to secure 
permanent housing. 

Our plans for 2013/14 include: 

 Working with developers, Registered Providers and planners to ensure the city’s social 
and market housing stock continues to grow as the first new housing begins to emerge 
on the southern fringes of the city.

 Completing the redevelopment of Seymour Court to include the provision of 20 new 
homes for older people.

 Ensuring that the current standard of building by registered providers is maintained in 
terms of size, construction and layout to at least level four of the Code for Sustainable 
homes.

 Ensuring that new specialist housing is prioritised for revenue funding by partner 
agencies and partnerships.

Page 189



Annual Report

             
12 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

 Assessing the potential for the provision of additional Gypsy and Traveller sites as part 
of the development of the Local Plan, in discussion with South Cambridgeshire District 
Council and Cambridgeshire County Council.

 Increasing the number of staff in City Homes to help mitigate the most adverse impacts 
of welfare reforms and settling people moving onto alternative housing from existing 
housing that is about to be redeveloped.

 Completing our annual planned maintenance programme of works that ensure City 
Homes are maintained to the best possible standard.

 Continuing to take action against private sector landlords that do not comply with health 
and safety requirements or good tenant management.

 Providing housing advice to keep homelessness to a minimum and help prevent 
homelessness by offering early advice on alternative housing options.

 Increasing the range of temporary housing available to minimise the impact on 
households that become homeless or threatened with homelessness.

Strategy Portfolio Plan 

During 2012/13 we: 

 Consulted local residents, partnerships and experts on, and adopted, a refreshed 
Climate Change Strategy, setting out our strategic approach to climate change over the 
next five years.

 Started to implement our Carbon Management Plan to reduce the City Council’s carbon 
footprint and energy bills, for instance through the implementation of voltage 
optimisation technology in more of our buildings and the use of solar thermal heat in 
Abbey pools.

 Further developed proposals with Cambridge University for a potential district heating 
scheme. 

 Started to implement our Single Equalities Scheme to ensure that we better understand 
and meet the diverse needs of the city’s communities, for instance providing training for 
our staff on mental health issues and supporting a range of local groups through grants 
and other activities.

 Continued to engage and consult local communities on key issues affecting them using 
our Code of Best Practice on Consultation and Community Engagement to ensure our 
approaches were appropriate and effective (for instance adopting a more sophisticated 
approach to budget consultation than in previous years). 

 Redesigned and re-launched our website so that our customers can conduct even more 
of their business online more easily; and continued to make effective uses of social 
media, with our Twitter account achieving over 3,000 followers. 

Page 190



Annual Report

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 13

                                 

 Ensured greater transparency and openness about how we conduct our business, by 
making more information and data about the Council’s services and performance 
available in more accessible ways. 

 Continued to work with our partners to drive forward the economic development of the 
city and its surrounding area through the Local Enterprise Partnership.

 Ensured the City Council is equipped to deliver the Council’s vision for the city within the 
resources available, by taking a structured approach to identifying savings and further 
efficiencies. 

Our plans for 2013/14 include: 

 Contributing to continuing reductions in recorded incidents of anti-social behaviour.

 Reviewing the impact of our current interventions with the street life community and 
developing a refreshed action plan with our partners to maximise our transformative role 
with vulnerable individuals.

 Giving victims a greater say in the solutions to anti-social behaviour and low level crime 
by increasing our referrals to Neighbourhood Resolution Panels.

 Securing on-going resources for our Community Safety Partnership to enable continued 
strong inter-agency sponsorship of projects.

 Strengthening our partnership with the Local Enterprise Partnership and others to foster 
sustainable growth in the Greater Cambridge economy.

 Concluding negotiations for a City Deal for the Greater Cambridge sub-region with the 
Government, establishing effective governance arrangements and beginning to 
implement key projects.

 Exploring the potential for generating income from council services and the feasibility of 
sharing services with other partners in the public sector.

 Deciding on an accommodation strategy for the council and its associated savings.   

How to find out more 

Further information about the Council’s performance and the Council’s priorities for 2013/14 
can be found in our Portfolio Plans which are available on our website 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/portfolio-plans

Page 191



Page 192



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 15

                                 

Introduction

The services provided by local councils affect everyone’s quality of life. Money is needed to 
carry out the functions and services that the Council provides and the Council’s accounts are 
an important element in demonstrating the stewardship of public money.  They show the 
resources available and how they have been used to deliver everyday services to the City’s 
residents, visitors, businesses and other organisations. 

Each year, the Council is legally required to produce a Statement of Accounts that presents  
the Council’s financial activities and gives details of the overall financial position, however,  
much of the information in the document is of a technical nature in order to satisfy statutory 
requirements.

The following Summary Accounts are intended to be a more user-friendly version of the 
detailed publication and to provide a brief overview of the Council’s financial position for year 
ending 31st March 2013.

Director of Resources’ Statement

The Council’s Statement of Accounts has been prepared in accordance with the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2012/13 based on 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The figures in this summary were originally compiled having regard to proper accounting 
practice.  To help make this summary easier to understand we have simplified the 
presentation of some figures.

The full 2012/13 Statement of Accounts has been audited by the Audit Commission who 
gave an unqualified audit opinion.

David Horspool CPFA

A full copy of the Council’s 2012/13 audited accounts is available on our website or from:

Head of Accounting Services
Cambridge City Council
Lion Yard
Lion House
Cambridge
CB2 3NA

The Council can also produce electronic or large print copies.  We can arrange for a 
summary in Braille, on tape or in another language, although this will take longer.

Page 193



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
16 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

Income and Expenditure

This statement shows the costs of providing services in the year. 

The total expenditure incurred in running our services was £128.8 million.  Service income,
such as fees and charges was £102.3 million.  The net cost of each service, totalling £26.4
million, is shown in the table below.  

£m

Central services to the public (elections, land charges and local tax collection) 1.6

Cultural & related services 9.3

Environmental & related services 8.3

Planning services 6.2

Transport (3.4)

Council housing (Housing Revenue Account) (3.4)

Other housing services 5.0

Corporate and democratic services 2.9

Non-distributed costs (0.1)

Cost of Services 26.4

Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 0.9

Surplus or deficit on the sale of assets (0.6)

Interest receivable (0.8)

Interest payable 7.5

Revision to estimated recovery of Icelandic bank deposits 0.1

Net income from commercial and industrial properties and changes in their value (8.8)

Net pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 2.7

Council tax income (6.7)

Share of national business rates (8.4)

Non-ringfenced government grants (2.4)

Capital grants and contributions (1.6)

Net Deficit for the year 8.3

Page 194



Summary Statement of Accounts

Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 17
                                 

Movements in Usable Reserves

The Council’s usable reserves increased by £4.6 million in 2012/13.  Total usable reserves 
were £60.1 million at 31 March 2013, as shown below :

General 
Fund 

Balance
£m

Housing 
Revenue 
Account 

(HRA) 
Balance £m

Other 
Usable 

Reserves
£m

Total 
Usable 

Reserves
£m

Balance at 1 April 2012 (9.5) (7.0) (39.0) (55.5)

(Surplus) or deficit on the provision of 
services

5.5 2.8 8.3

Adjustments between accounting basis 
and funding basis under regulations

(4.5) (2.7) (5.7) (12.9)

Transfers to or (from) earmarked 
reserves

0.5 1.4 (1.9)

Decrease or (Increase) in the year 1.5 1.5 (7.6) (4.6)

Balance at 31 March 2013 (8.0) (5.5) (46.6) (60.1)

Other usable reserves at 31 March 2013 comprised :

General Fund 
reserves 

earmarked for 
asset repair 

and
replacement 

£14.2m

Other 
earmarked 

General Fund 
reserves £6m

Capital receipts 
and grants 
available to 
fund capital 
expenditure 

£17.4m

HRA reserves 
earmarked for 
asset repair & 
replacement 

£2.1m

Other 
earmarked 

HRA reserves 
£1.8m

HRA Major 
Repairs 
Reserve 

available to 
fund capital 
expenditure 

£5.1m

Page 195



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
18 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

Balance Sheet

At the end of each financial year, we draw up a balance sheet that presents how much the 
Council’s land and buildings are worth, what is owed to others (liabilities), what others owe 
us (debtors and investments) and how much cash and other reserves we have.

Net Assets at 31 
March 2013

£m

Value of land, property, equipment and vehicles 732.6

Long-term debtors and investments 2.8

Cash and short-term cash investments 66.8

Short term debtors 8.1

Short term land and property held for sale 0.8

Stock 0.3

Current liabilities (15.2)

Long-term liabilities (311.0)

Net Assets 485.2

Usable reserves (60.1)

Unusable reserves (425.1)

Total Reserves (485.2)

Unusable reserves are not available to use to provide services.  This category of reserves 
includes, for example, amounts which would only become available if the related assets 
were sold.

Cash Movements

The council handled significant amounts of cash during the year.

2012/13
£m

Cash at 1 April 2012 4.8

Cash receipts 266.0

Cash payments (263.1)

Cash at 31 March 2013 7.7

Page 196



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 19

                                 

The detailed Statement of Accounts publication includes many notes of explanation and 
detailed analysis of figures in the main financial statements.  A selection of the notes which 
may be of particular interest to the public have been summarised and are presented below. 

Employee Remuneration

The numbers of employees whose remuneration, excluding employer’s pension 
contributions, was £50,000 or more in bands of £5,000 were :

2012/13 2011/12

£50,000 to £54,999 3 2

£55,000 to £59,999 1 3

£60,000 to £64,999 9 9

£65,000 to £69,999 2 3

£70,000 to £74,999 4 3

£75,000 to £79,999 0 1

£85,000 to £89,999 1 1

£90,000 to £94,999 2 2

£115,000 to £119,999 1 1

The remuneration of senior officers, who are included in the above table, is disclosed in 
more detail, including employer’s pension contributions, below:

Senior Officers Remuneration 2012/13

Position / Name Salary
£

Allowances 
& Benefits 

in Kind
£

Pension 
Contribution

£
Total

£

Chief Executive (A Jackson) 117,859               45 21,922 139,826

Director of Resources (D Horspool) 91,891 0 17,092 108,983

Director of Environment (S Payne) 88,646 12 16,488 105,146

Director of Customer & Community Services 
(L Bisset)

91,891             62 17,092 109,045

Head of Corporate Strategy (A Limb) 63,778 0 11,863 75,641

Page 197



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
20 Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts

                                 

Members Allowances

The total of allowances paid to members during the financial year 2012/13 was £245,487 
(£242,910 in 2011/12).  Additional civic responsibility payments were made to the Mayor and 
Deputy Mayor outside of the Members Allowances Scheme.  These totalled £5,570 (£5,440 
in 2011/12). Details of payments to individual members are published annually in a local 
newspaper.  Details can also be found on the Councillors pages on our website. 

Capital Spending

We also spend money on buying assets and improving our council housing and other 
assets.  We account for this type of expenditure separately from the day-to-day running 
costs of services.

Capital expenditure totalled £18.7 million in 2012/13.

This capital expenditure was financed as follows:

£m

Capital receipts (from sale of council houses and other assets) 0.8

Government grants and other contributions 2.6

Revenue and reserves 13.6

Use of cash balances 1.7

Total 18.7

Council 
housing £9.9m

Investment 
Properties 

£0.7m

Land and 
buildings 

£2.9m

Vehicles, plant 
and equipment 

£1.0m

Assets in the 
course of 

construction 
£1.5m

Capital grants 
£1.8m

Other capital 
expenditure 

£0.9m

Page 198



Summary Statement of Accounts

             
Cambridge City Council Annual Report and Summary Statement of Accounts 21

                                 

Housing Revenue Account

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) records income and expenditure relating to the 
management and maintenance of council housing.

During 2012/13 the Council was responsible for an average of 7,252 dwellings.

£m

Dwelling rents (32.8)

Non-dwelling rents (0.6)

Charges for services and facilities (2.7)

Other income (0.5)

Income (36.6)

Repairs and maintenance 7.7

Supervision and management 6.4

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 0.2

Depreciation and impairment 18.9

Provision for bad debts 0.1

Share of corporate and democratic core costs 0.2

Expenditure 33.5

Net cost of HRA services (3.1)

Surplus on sale on assets (0.8)

Interest payable 7.5

Other income (0.8)

Deficit for the year 2.8

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations (2.7)

Contributions to earmarked reserves 1.4

Net HRA deficit for the year 1.5

The HRA deficit for the year of £1.5 million was deducted from the previously accumulated 
surplus.  The HRA is ‘ring-fenced’ by law which means its income and reserves cannot be 
used for any purpose other than the provision and management of Council housing.  The 
accumulated surplus on the HRA at 31 March 2013 was £5.5 million.

Page 199



Page 200

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL                                         

REPORT OF: Director, Customer & Community Services

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 19/09/2013

WARDS: None directly affected

ANNUAL COMPLAINTS REPORT 2012-13

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Council has been recording the number of complaints 
received by each department and how they were dealt with, for 
a number of years. Regular complaints monitoring is 
recognised as good practice in customer service, and by 
looking at data across the Council we can monitor our 
performance and see where we are doing well and where there 
is room for improvement. 

1.2 Civic Affairs Committee is asked for any comments        
             that it wishes before it is published. The report will be 
             considered at Civic Affairs on 19th September 2013.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Civic Affairs to:
Consider the draft Annual Complaints Report for 2012-13, 
shown at Appendix A, and approve for publication on the 
Council’s website.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The City Council has been recording information about 
complaints for the last ten years. In 2012-13 we received 498 
complaints a 25% increase on the previous year.
The increase in complaints was probably the result in the 
increased use of email that has allowed greater distinction 
between requests for service and genuine complaints.

Agenda Item 6

Page 201



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

3.2 The highest number of similar complaints was around missed 
bins. There were also a number of complaints for the Corn 
Exchange sound system.

3.3 Last year there were regular complaints about the time the 
Council took to do things like process benefit claims and 
undertake repairs. There were also complaints across a 
number of departments that the Council sometimes failed to 
communicate decisions and instructions clearly. Whilst there 
are still some complaints of this nature they are less common 
and departments do seem to have taken positive steps to 
improve these aspects of performance.

3.4 In January 2007 we reduced our target time to answer 100% of 
complaints to seven days. In 2012-13 we achieved a figure of 
85%. 
Where we are unable to respond fully within seven days we 
acknowledge receipt of the complaint and tell the complainant 
when they can expect a full response.

3.5 In 2003 the Council’s Standards Committee asked officers to 
start recording how complaints are received. In 2012-13 more 
complaints were received via email than by letter, with 70% of 
complaints received by e-mail and 19% by letter.  
The CCC online complaints form has proved a popular method 
of reporting of complaints. This allows for complaints to be 
recorded for action immediately through the customer service 
centre.

3.6 The number of compliments is continuing to rise year on year 
with 602 compliments for 2012-13 up 10% on the 2011-12 total 
of 541.

3.7 A summary of the FOI performance is to be sent around to all 
those managers and members who are on the weekly FOI 
distribution list.

3.8 During 2012-13 24 complaints were fully investigated by the 
ICI. 
Of these, nine cases were not investigated, and fifteen cases 
were investigated.  Of those fifteen cases that were 
investigated, ten cases were not up-held, one case was 
partially up-held, one case was largely up-held, and three 
cases were up-held.
Of the fifteen cases which were investigated, five cases were 
raised regarding City Homes, one case was raised regarding 

Page 202



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

Community Development, five cases were raised regarding 
Planning Services, one case was raised regarding Refuse and 
Environment, two cases were raised regarding Streets and 
Open Spaces, and one case was raised regarding Estates and 
Facilities. Three cases are current.

3.9 In 2012-13, the Local Government Ombudsman received 7 
enquiries and complaints. This year  The LGO have only 
presented the total number of complaints received and will not 
be providing the more detailed information that we have offered 
in previous years.
The reason for this is that the LOG changed their business 
processes during the course of 2012/13 and therefore would 
not be able to provide Cambridge City Council with a consistent 
set of data for the entire year.

3.10 Councillors must adhere to a specific Code of Conduct 
whenever they are conducting Council business, representing 
the council or conducting the business of the office to which 
they were elected. 

3.11 During 2012-13, the Council received two complaints that 
councillors had breached the Code of Conduct. The first 
complaint was that a councillor should not have participated in 
consideration of a planning application, as the complainants 
believed that the councillor had a personal interest by virtue of 
where they lived. The Monitoring Officer commissioned a report 
by the Independent Complaints Investigator, who concluded 
that there was no breach of the Code of Conduct. 

3.12 The second complaint was that a councillor should have 
declared a personal interest at a meeting of a local forum 
looking at a planning application. The owner of the site was 
linked with the councillor’s employer. The Monitoring Officer 
decided that the councillor had not breached the Code of 
Conduct but that it would have been good practice to declare 
the interest 

3.13 As well as complaints we also receive many positive comments 
about the Council’s services and staff. A section on 
compliments is included in the Annual Complaints Report 
because knowing where things are working well and are
appreciated is as important as knowing where things are not 
working.

Page 203



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

3.14 Subject to approval by Civic Affairs on the 19th September, 
officers will then finalise and publish the report on the Council’s 
website with hard copies being made available on request.

4. CONSULTATIONS

The Annual Complaints report is compiled by Customer & 
Community Services. Data on complaints and compliments is 
collected quarterly by a designated complaints coordinator 
within each department and collated annually by Customer 
Services.

5. IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications
The time and resources spent on responding to complaints and 
Freedom of Information requests is a not insignificant cost to the 
Council. Our aim should be to get things right first time as often as 
we can and to ensure that as much information as possible is 
available on our website so that people can access the information 
they require for themselves. 

(b) Staffing Implications
None

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications
Analysis and action taken as a result of complaints has an important 
role to play in ensuring that our services are accessible to all those 
who wish or need to use them and, that as far as possible, we are 
able to respond flexibly to the differing needs of our citizens and 
visitors.

(d) Environmental Implications
None

(e) Community Safety
None

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

Departmental Quarterly monitoring reports – June ‘12, September 
‘12, December ‘12, March ‘13

Page 204



Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No:

To inspect these documents contact Chris Bolton on extension 7611. The 
author and contact officer for queries on the report is Chris Bolton on 
extension 7611.

Report file: N:\Strategy & Partnerships\Performance\COMPLAINTS,COMPLIMENTS\2012-13 Annual Complaints 

Report\Covering Report to Civic Affairs FINAL 26 June.doc

Date originated: 09 September 2013
Date of last revision: 09 September 2013

Page 205



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Complaints Report 
2012-2013

Cambridge City Council

Page 207



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
’S

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 C
O

M
P

L
A

IN
T

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 2

0
1
2
-2

0
1
3

E
v
e

ry
 y

e
a

r 
w

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
n

 A
n

n
u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o

rt
, 

w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 
h

o
w

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

m
 (

w
e

 d
o
 n

o
t 
p

u
b

lis
h

 n
a
m

e
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

r 
p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

e
d

).
 

W
h

y
 w

e
 p

ro
d

u
c

e
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
o

rt

W
e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 l
e
a

rn
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
m

is
ta

k
e

s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

W
e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 c
a

u
s
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

la
in

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 u

s
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
. 

W
e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 s
h
o

w
 y

o
u

 h
o

w
 w

e
’v

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
’v

e
 d

o
n

e
 t
o

 t
ry

 a
n

d
 p

u
t 

th
in

g
s
 r

ig
h

t.
 

W
e
 w

a
n

t 
to

 p
u

b
lic

is
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

la
in

 o
u

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 

 

O
u

r
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

 

W
h

e
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 I
 m

a
k

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t?

Y
o

u
 s

h
o

u
ld

 c
o
m

p
la

in
 t
o

 u
s
 i
f:

 

 
Y

o
u

 a
re

 u
n

h
a
p

p
y
 a

b
o

u
t 

s
o

m
e

th
in

g
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 o
r 

h
a

v
e

n
’t
 d

o
n

e
. 

 
Y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 w
a

y
 a

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 t

re
a

te
d

 y
o

u
. 

 
Y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
h

a
p
p

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 a

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

h
a

s
 t

re
a

te
d

 y
o

u
. 

 
Y

o
u

 w
a

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
la

in
 f
o

r 
a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
re

a
s
o
n

. 

Page 208



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
2

H
o

w
 d

o
 I
 m

a
k
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t?

W
e
 p

u
b

lis
h

 a
 ‘
H

o
w

 t
o

 C
o

m
p

la
in

 L
e

a
fl
e
t’
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
t 
h

tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.c

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

o
r 

y
o

u
 c

a
n

 
a

s
k
 f

o
r 

a
 p

a
p

e
r 

c
o
p

y
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
re

c
e
p

ti
o
n

 p
o

in
ts

.

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 p
u

t 
th

in
g
s
 r

ig
h

t 
fo

r 
y
o

u
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 p
u
b

lis
h

e
d
 i
n

 o
u

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 g

u
a

ra
n

te
e

s
.

Y
o

u
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

b
y
 l
e

tt
e

r 
o

r 
e
m

a
il,

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e
 o

r 
fa

c
e

-t
o

-f
a
c
e

, 
o

r 
y
o

u
 c

a
n

 u
s
e

 o
u

r 
o

n
-l
in

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o

rm
.

W
e
 a

im
 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
q
u

ic
k
ly

 a
n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
. 

O
u

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 i
s
 s

e
v
e

n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
. 

If
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 l
o

n
g
e

r
to

 
re

s
p

o
n
d

, 
w

e
 w

ill
 t

e
ll 

y
o

u
 w

h
y
 a

n
d

 k
e

e
p
 y

o
u

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 o

u
r 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 t
e

ll 
y
o

u
 w

h
o

 i
s
 d

e
a

lin
g
 w

it
h

 
y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t.

W
e
 w

ill
 a

p
o

lo
g
is

e
 w

h
e

n
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a
d

e
 m

is
ta

k
e

s
, 

tr
y
 a

n
d

 p
u

t 
th

in
g
s
 r

ig
h

t 
a

s
 s

o
o

n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 w

e
 d

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

n
e

x
t 

ti
m

e
. 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
h

a
p

p
y
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
y
o

u
 c

a
n

 a
s
k
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
to

 b
e

 p
a

s
s
e

d
 t
o

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

r.
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 s

o
m

e
 t
h

in
g
s
 w

e
 c

a
n

’t
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 w
e

 a
re

 l
e

g
a

lly
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
e

m
 o

r 
b
e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y

o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

In
 t
h

e
s
e
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

e
 w

ill
 a

lw
a

y
s

e
x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
 w

e
 c

a
n

’t
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 t
h

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 t

e
ll 

y
o

u
 w

h
o

 e
ls

e
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

if
 y

o
u

 
a

re
 s

ti
ll 

u
n
h

a
p
p

y
. 

E
a

c
h

 o
f 

o
u

r 
d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n
ts

 h
a

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 c
o

-c
o

o
rd

in
a
to

r 
w

h
o

 k
e

e
p

s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
re

a
s
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

c
id

e
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 c
h
a
n

g
e

 t
h

in
g
s
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 
a
n

y
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 f

ro
m

 h
a
p

p
e

n
in

g
 a

g
a

in
. 

If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

h
o

w
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
, 
p

le
a

s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
o
u

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
e

n
tr

e
, 
p

h
o

n
e
 0

1
2

2
3

 4
5
7

0
0
0

, 
fa

x
 0

1
2

2
3

 
4

5
7
9

8
2

,T
y
p

e
ta

lk
 1

8
0

0
1

 0
1
2

2
3
 4

5
7

0
0

 o
r 

e
-m

a
il 

e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
@

c
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e

.g
o

v
.u

k

T
h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
t 
h

tt
p

s
:/

/w
w

w
.c

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/c

u
s
to

m
e

r-
c
h

a
rt

e
r-

a
n

d
-s

e
rv

ic
e

-

Page 209



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
3

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
.

T
h

e
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 I

n
v
e

s
ti

g
a

to
r

If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

t 
re

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

 r
e
p

ly
 t

o
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
w

it
h

in
 s

e
v
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 o

r 
y
o

u
 a

re
 n

o
t 

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

a
lt
 w

it
h

y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t,
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 a

s
k
 f

o
r 

it
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o
 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 I
f 

y
o

u
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

d
is

s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e

p
ly

 y
o

u
 c

a
n

 
re

fe
r 

th
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

to
 t
h

e
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r 

w
h

o
 w

ill
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
fo

r 
y
o

u
. 

T
h
e

 I
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r,

 (
IC

I)
,

is
 n

o
t 
a

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u
t 

is
 p

a
id

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

o
n

 a
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 
to

 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
T

h
is

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 r

o
le

 c
a
n

 b
e
 i
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e

 I
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
o
 s

e
e

 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 j
u

s
ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
a

n
t’
s
 

b
e

h
a

lf
 t

o
 t

ry
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
 a

 w
a

y
 o

f 
re

s
o

lv
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

im
 t
o

 a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 e
a

c
h
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

w
it
h

in
 s

e
v
e

n
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
t

th
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

t 
k
n

o
w

 a
 d

a
te

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 e
x
p

e
c
t 
a

 f
u

ll 
re

s
p

o
n
s
e

. 
T

h
e

y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 a
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n
ti
a

l 
in

te
rv

ie
w

 a
t 

a
 

c
o

n
v
e

n
ie

n
t 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

 i
f 

it
 i
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

T
h
e

 I
n
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r’
s
 r

o
le

 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

te
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 a

 s
u
b

s
ti
tu

te
 f
o

r 
h

a
n

d
lin

g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

in
 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
. 
It

 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
o

u
r

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

c
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 C
a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

 
C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 f
e

w
 c

o
u

n
c
ils

 t
o

 o
p

e
ra

te
 t
h

is
 s

e
rv

ic
e

. 

T
h

e
 L

o
c

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b

u
d

s
m

a
n

 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a

n
d

le
d

 y
o

u
 c

a
n

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n

’s
 

o
ff

ic
e

. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n
 i
n
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
f 

in
ju

s
ti
c
e

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 m
a

la
d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o
n

 b
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

a
n

d
 c

e
rt

a
in

 o
th

e
r 

b
o
d

ie
s
. 

T
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n

 c
a
n

 b
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
te

d
 o

n
 0

3
0
0

 0
6

1
0
6

1
4

 o
r 

b
y
 v

is
it
in

g
 w

w
w

.l
g
o

.o
rg

.u
k
 .

Page 210



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
4

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n

 2
0
1
2

-2
0
1
3
 

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

?
 

W
e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 4

9
8

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 a

2
5

%
in

c
re

a
s
e

 o
n

 t
h
o

s
e

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
a

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 i
n
 t

a
b

le
 1

 
b

e
lo

w
.

T
a

b
le

 1
. 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t

to
ta

ls
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
.

Y
e

a
r

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c
’s

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
T

o
ta

ls
%

 C
h

a
n

g
e

2
0

1
2

-1
3

2
7

2
8

3
3

4
1

4
9

8
+

2
5

2
0

1
1

-1
2

0
6

5
4

0
2

7
2

3
7

7
-3

5

2
0

1
0

-1
1

8
8

1
5

6
4

3
1

5
7

6
-3

0

2
0

0
9

-1
0

2
1

1
6

8
6

1
5

7
7

8
2

7
+

5

2
0

0
8

-0
9

8
1

6
9

3
6

5
7

6
7

8
9

-5

Page 211



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
5

D
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

th
e

tr
e

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
a

t 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t
o

 C
a
m

b
ri
d
g
e

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 f
a

lli
n

g
 a

n
d
 

h
a

v
e

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 3

7
%

 s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

.

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

2
0
0
8
-0

9
2
0
0
9
-1

0
2
0
1
0
-1

1
2
0
1
1
-1

2
2
0
1
2
-1

3

C
o

m
p

la
in

t 
to

ta
ls

, 
2
0
0
8
-0

9
-2

0
1
2
-1

3

F
ig

u
re

 1
. 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
c

o
m

p
la

in
t

to
ta

ls
 2

0
0
8

-2
0
1

3
.

T
o
 p

u
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 i
n
 c

o
n
te

x
t,

 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

o
v
e

r 
2

2
5

,0
0

0
 t
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 a
n

d
 2

1
,0

0
0

 v
is

it
o

rs
’ 
c
e

n
tr

e
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

.
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

t 
a

 t
im

e
 w

h
e

re
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
v
o

lu
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
. 

B
e

tw
e

e
n

2
0

1
0

-1
1

a
n

d
 2

0
1
2

-1
3

te
le

p
h

o
n
e

 c
o
n
ta

c
ts

 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 f
ro

m
 1

6
5

,0
0

0
 t

o
 2

2
5
,0

0
0

,
fa

c
e

 t
o
 f

a
c
e

 
v
is

it
s
 f

ro
m

 1
9

,0
0

0
 t

o
 2

1
,0

0
0

a
n

d
 e

m
a

ils
 f

ro
m

 2
5

,0
0

0
 t
o

 3
0

,0
0

0
.

Page 212



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
6

F
ig

u
re

 2
. 

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

v
o

lu
m

e
s

 a
t 

th
e

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
2

0
1
0

-2
0

1
3

0

5
0

0
0

0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
5

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0

2
5

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
9

-1
0

2
0

1
0

-1
1

2
0

1
1

-1
2

2
0

1
2

-1
3

T
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

s

F
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 

E
m

a
il
 

T
h
e

 f
ilt

e
ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
m

a
il

a
n

d
 o

n
lin

e
 f

o
rm

s
, 
h

a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 a
g
re

a
te

r 
d

is
ti
n

c
ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 r
e

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 g
e

n
u

in
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

rs
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

in
a

l 
to

ta
ls

.

In
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

rs
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d

 i
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 m

a
n

n
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p

a
p

e
r,

 s
p

re
a

d
s
h

e
e

ts
, 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

M
a

il 
s
y
s
te

m
.

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r

a
ll 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
lim

e
n

ts
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

 a
 r

e
p

ly
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
R

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t,
 (

C
R

M
),

s
y
s
te

m
.

F
u

ll 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

a
s

a
rr

a
n

g
e

d
 f
o

r 
a

ll 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 a
ll 

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

.
T

h
e
 

u
s
e

 o
f 

C
R

M
 h

a
s
 s

tr
e

a
m

lin
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
th

e
lo

g
g
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

p
lim

e
n

ts
.

Page 213



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
7

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r 

w
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

G
o

v
m

e
tr

ic
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
o

l.
 G

o
v
m

e
tr

ic
 c

o
lle

c
ts

 c
u
s
to

m
e

r 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 

a
t 

th
e

 f
ir
s
t 

p
o

in
t 
o
f 

c
o

n
ta

c
t,

 f
a

c
e

 t
o

 f
 a

c
e

, 
te

le
p
h

o
n
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 w

e
b

.

H
o

w
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
c

e
iv

e
d

?

In
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
m

o
re

 c
o

m
p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 v

ia
 e

m
a

il 
th

a
n

 b
y
 l
e

tt
e

r,
 w

it
h

 7
0

%
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 e

-m
a

il 
a
n
d

 1
9

%
b

y
 l
e

tt
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
a

b
le

 2
 b

e
lo

w
.

T
a

b
le

 2
. 

H
o

w
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
.

Y
e

a
r

F
a

c
e

 t
o

 
F

a
c

e
 %

L
e

tt
e

r 
%

E
m

a
il

 %
T

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 %

O
th

e
r

(G
o

v
M

e
tr

ic
, 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t 
C

a
rd

s
 %

T
o

ta
l 

%

2
0

1
2

-1
3

1
1

9
7

0
8

2
1

0
0

2
0

1
1

-1
2

2
2

6
4

8
6

1
8

1
0

0

2
0

1
0

-1
1

1
2

4
5

6
4

1
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
9

-1
0

4
3

4
4

7
1

1
4

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

-0
9

5
3

7
4

0
1

4
4

1
0

0

2
0

0
7

-0
8

2
5

6
2

9
1

0
3

1
0

0

Page 214



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
8

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
id

 w
e
 r

e
s

p
o

n
d

 t
o

 o
n

 t
im

e
?

T
h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

2
-1

3
 s

h
o

w
 a

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
d

 t
o

 o
n

 t
im

e
 f

a
lli

n
g
 

fr
o
m

 9
2

%
 t
o

 8
5

%
 a

s
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 t
a

b
le

 3
 b

e
lo

w
.

T
a

b
le

 3
. 

C
o

m
p

la
in

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
s

Y
e

a
r

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c
’s

 
%

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

%
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

 %
C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

&
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 %

T
o

ta
ls

 %
%

 C
h

a
n

g
e

2
0

1
2

-1
3

1
0

0
7

2
7

8
8

9
8

5
-7

2
0

1
1

-1
2

N
A

8
0

7
3

9
7

9
2

+
4

3

2
0

1
0

-1
1

3
8

7
8

4
3

6
8

4
9

-4
1

2
0

0
9

-1
0

6
2

7
7

9
0

9
1

9
0

-3

2
0

0
8

-0
9

1
0

0
8

5
9

2
9

6
9

3
+

1
2

Page 215



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
9

A
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
n

y
 t

re
n

d
s

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
h

a
v
e

 w
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

?

E
a

c
h

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lim
e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 

it
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

s
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

a
 q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 b

a
s
is

. 

T
h

is
 e

n
a
b

le
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 i
f 

th
e

re
 a

re
 a

n
y
 t

re
n

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t
y
p

e
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 b
e

in
g
 m

a
d

e
 o

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

re
 

b
e

in
g
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o

u
t.
 A

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 m

a
y
 b

e
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

. 
E

x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
h
o

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
h

a
s
 c

h
a

n
g
e

d
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 m

a
d

e
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 
y
e

a
r 

a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 b

e
lo

w
:

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t

R
e

fu
s

e
 &

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

F
o

r 
re

fu
s
e

 a
n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

th
e

m
a

in
c
o
m

p
la

in
t

tr
e

n
d

w
a

s
 t

h
a
t 

re
fu

s
e

 b
in

s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
b
e

in
g
 e

m
p
ti
e

d
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 t
o
 

e
m

p
ty

 t
h

e
 b

in
s
 o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 i
n
fo

rm
e
d

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
 w

h
y
 t

h
e

 b
in

s
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

e
m

p
ti
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
o

 b
in

 r
o

u
n

d
s
.

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

E
s

ta
te

s
 &

 F
a

c
il
it

ie
s

T
h
e

 b
u

lk
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 d

a
y
-t

o
-d

a
y
 r

e
p

a
ir
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r.
In

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
b

a
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 o
r 

s
n
a

g
s
 t

h
e

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
A

p
o

llo
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
v
e

s
 m

a
d
e

 g
o

o
d
 t
h

e
 j
o
b

s
.

T
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 s
o

m
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 m

is
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

p
e

ra
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

In
 t

h
e

s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 a

p
p

o
in

tm
e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 r
e

-
s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 o
r 

a
 c

a
s
e

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
a

p
p
o

in
te

d
.

T
h
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 u

n
d
e

rg
o

in
g
 a

 L
e
a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
p

u
tt

in
g
 t
h

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
a
t 
th

e
 h

e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

&
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Page 216



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
0

A
rt

s
 &

 R
e

c
re

a
ti

o
n

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
tr

e
n

d
fo

r 
th

e
 A

rt
s
 &

 R
e

c
re

a
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

w
a

s
 t

h
a

t
o
f 

th
e

p
o

o
r

s
o
u

n
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

t
th

e
 C

o
rn

 E
x
c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e
 A

rt
s
 &

 
R

e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
s
e

c
ti
o
n

 a
re

to
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

 t
h

is
is

s
u

e
v
ia

 s
o
m

e
 p

la
n
n

e
d
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 a

 n
e

w
 s

o
u

n
d

 s
y
s
te

m
.

F
o

lk
 F

e
s

ti
v
a

l

T
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 3
6

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
/c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 F
o

lk
 F

e
s
ti
v
a

l 
e

v
e

n
t.

 T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 c
a
m

e
 f

ro
m

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

w
h
o
 w

e
re

 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 S

k
y
 L

o
u
n
g

e
’s

 e
ff

e
c
t

o
n
 w

ild
lif

e
a
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s

T
h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 f
o

r 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

e
re

 w
it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

fa
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 w
a

it
in

g
 t

im
e

s
 e

a
rl
ie

r 
in

 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
a

n
d

 d
is

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
o

lic
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

a
ls

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 H
o
m

e
lin

k
 r

e
-r

e
g
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
it
 w

a
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 n
e

e
d

e
d

.

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a

v
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

k
ill

s
 t

ra
in

in
g

to
 h

a
n
d

le
 s

u
c
h

 o
c
c
u

rr
e

n
c
e

s
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

F
o

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

f 
g

ra
n
ts

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

o
th

e
s
c
o
u
ts

. 
T

h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
C

I.

C
it

y
 H

o
m

e
s

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

g
ra

n
ts

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 f
o

r 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 d
id

 n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
g
ro

u
p
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 t

h
e
ir
 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
o

r 
n

o
t 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

r 
re

fu
s
e
d

.
A

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 s
e

n
t 
fi
rs

t 
to

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 P

a
n
e

l 
(a

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

te
n
a

n
t 
a

n
d

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 w

h
o

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
e

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
 b

e
fo

re
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 H

o
m

e
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

.

Page 217



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
1

H
o

u
s

in
g

 A
d

v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

M
u

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
e
n

c
e

 t
h
a

t 
is

 l
o

g
g
e

d
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
e
n

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n
d

e
n

c
e
 i

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

f 
a

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
/h

o
u

s
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

.
In

 t
h

e
s
e
 c

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
a

n
t 

is
 u

p
d
a

te
d
 o

n
 w

h
e

re
 w

e
 a

re
 a

t 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 c
a

s
e

.

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
is

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
s
u

it
a
b

le
, 

n
o

ta
b

ly
 b

e
d

 a
n

d
 b

re
a

k
fa

s
t 

in
 

P
e

te
rb

o
ro

u
g
h

.
In

 t
h

e
s
e

 c
a

s
e

s
 t

h
e

 t
e

a
m

 e
x
p

la
in

 t
h
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d
a

ti
o

n
 g

e
n
e

ra
lly

 a
n

d
 c

h
e

c
k
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

A
d

v
is

o
r 

h
a

s
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
.

Page 218



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
2

C
o

m
p

li
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n

 2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
3

T
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
lim

e
n
ts

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 r

is
e

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 6
0

2
 c

o
m

p
lim

e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
2
0

1
2

-1
3

u
p

 1
5

%
 o

n
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

5
4

1
 a

s
 s

e
e

n
 i
n
 t

a
b

le
 4

 b
e

lo
w

.

T
a

b
le

 4
. 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
C

o
m

p
li

m
e
n

t 
to

ta
ls

 2
0

1
2

-1
3

Y
e

a
r

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

’s
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
&

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

T
o

ta
ls

%
 C

h
a

n
g

e

2
0

1
2

-1
3

0
8

2
3

5
7

1
6

0
2

+
1

0

2
0

1
1

-1
2

0
7

3
5

3
1

5
4

1
+

1
5

2
0

1
0

-1
1

6
3

5
1

2
4

0
8

4
6

1
+

7

2
0

0
9

-1
0

2
1

2
1

N
o

t 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
3

0
8

4
3

1
+

6

2
0

0
8

-0
9

0
8

6
N

o
t 

re
c

o
rd

e
d

3
2

1
4

0
7

+
1

9

Page 219



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
3

R
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 I
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
to

r 

Y
o

u
r 

ri
g
h

t 
to

 h
a

v
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

p
e

rs
o

n
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
. 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 n
o

t 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t,
 y

o
u

 c
a

n
 a

s
k
 t

h
e

 I
n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r 

(I
C

I)
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
. 
B

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
 I

C
I 

o
p

e
ra

te
s
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tl
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
, 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 g
iv

e
 a

n
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

 
o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
a

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

t’
s
 h

a
n

d
lin

g
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 

S
o

m
e

ti
m

e
s
 a

 d
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 r
e

fe
r 

a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

to
 t

h
e

 I
C

I.
 T

h
is

 h
a
p

p
e

n
s
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
y

fe
e

l 
th

a
t 

a
n

 i
m

p
a

rt
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 

re
s
o

lv
e

 a
 p

ro
b

le
m

. 

T
h
e

 I
C

I 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

a
 f

o
rm

a
l 
in

v
e
s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t.
 S

o
m

e
ti
m

e
s
 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 f

in
d

 a
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

 b
y
 t

a
lk

in
g
 t

o
 t
h

e
c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

t 
a
n

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ts
. 

T
h
e

 I
C

I 
re

v
ie

w
s
 e

a
c
h

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
to

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

w
e

 d
id

 a
n

y
th

in
g
 w

ro
n

g
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
: 

 
W

e
 t
o

o
k
 a

 l
o
n

g
 t

im
e

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o
m

e
th

in
g
 

 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
fo

llo
w

 o
u

r 
o
w

n
 r

u
le

s
 o

r 
th

e
 l
a

w
 

 
W

e
 b

ro
k
e

 a
 p

ro
m

is
e

 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g
 

 
W

e
 t
re

a
te

d
 s

o
m

e
o

n
e

 u
n
fa

ir
ly

 

 
W

e
 g

a
v
e

 s
o
m

e
o
n

e
 w

ro
n

g
 o

r 
m

is
le

a
d

in
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

; 
o

r

 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

a
k
e

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
w

a
y
. 

S
o

m
e

ti
m

e
s
, 

th
e

 I
C

I 
w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a

 c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
a

b
o

u
t 

s
e

v
e

ra
l 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
T

h
e

y
 m

ig
h

t 
fi
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

b
u

t 
n

o
t 
o

th
e

rs
. 

In
 t

h
e

s
e
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
ly

 a
g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t.

 

Page 220



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
4

H
o

w
 m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
id

 t
h

e
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 I

n
v
e

s
ti

g
a

to
r 

d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 i
n

 2
0

1
2
-1

3
?

 

 
D

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
, 

2
4

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 w
e

re
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
b

y
 t

h
e

 I
C

I.
 

 
O

f 
th

e
s
e

2
4

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
re

c
e

iv
e

d
, 

1
5

c
a

s
e

s
 w

e
re

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

a
n

d
 9

c
a

s
e

s
 w

e
re

n
o

t
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d
.

 
O

f 
th

o
s
e

 1
5

c
a

s
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
d

, 
1

0
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
u

p
-h

e
ld

, 
1

 c
a

s
e

 w
a

s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 u
p

-h
e

ld
, 

1
c
a

s
e

 w
a

s
la

rg
e

ly
 u

p
-

h
e

ld
, 
a

n
d
 3

c
a

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 u
p

-h
e

ld
.

F
ig

u
re

 5
. 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 b
re

a
k

d
o

w
n

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 f

o
rw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 I
C

I

012345

2
0

1
2

-1
3

C
it

y
 H

o
m

e
s

C
o

m
m

 D
e

v

P
la

n
n

in
g

R
e

fu
s

e
 &

 W
a

s
te

S
tr

e
e

ts
 &

 O
p

e
n

s
 S

p
a

c
e

s

E
s

ta
te

s
 &

 F
a

c
il
it

ie
s

Page 221



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
5

T
h

e
 L

o
c

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b

u
d

s
m

a
n

, 
(L

G
O

).

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 s
ti
ll 

n
o

t 
s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 h
a

n
d

le
d

 y
o

u
 c

a
n

 c
o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n

’s
 

o
ff

ic
e

. 
T

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b
u

d
s
m

a
n
 i
n
v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
s
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
s
 i
f 

th
e

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 a
n

y
 i
n

ju
s
ti
c
e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 
m

a
la

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
O

m
b

u
d

s
m

a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 a
ll 

c
o

u
n

c
ils

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 

J
u
n

e
 e

a
c
h

 y
e
a

r 
s
ta

ti
n

g
 h

o
w

 
m

a
n

y
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
m

.

T
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e

L
G

O
h
a
v
e
 o

n
ly

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 

h
a
v
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 i
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

. 

T
h
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
d
 t

h
e
ir

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
re

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

C
a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

w
it
h
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
s
e
t 

o
f 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

n
ti
re

 y
e
a
r.

In
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 C

a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 7

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
is

 c
o
m

p
a
re

s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

(r
e
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

f 
a
 s

im
ila

r 
ty

p
e
):

D
is

tr
ic

t/
B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

-
1
0
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

U
n
it
a
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
-

3
6
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

-
4
9
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
ils

-
5
4
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
s
-

7
9
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

T
h
e

L
G

O
 r

e
m

a
in

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 s

h
a
ri

n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
C

a
m

b
ri
d
g

e
C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

in
 n

e
x
t 

y
e
a
r’
s

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 l
e

tt
e

r.

Page 222



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
6

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

lo
rs

’ 
C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

m
u

s
t 

a
d

h
e

re
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 C

o
d
e

 o
f 

C
o

n
d
u

c
t 

w
h

e
n

e
v
e
r 

th
e

y
 a

re
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 

re
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

o
r 

c
o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
ic

e
 t

o
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h

e
y
 w

e
re

 e
le

c
te

d
. 

 T
h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

is
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
h

ig
h

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
e

th
ic

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 t
re

a
t 
e

v
e

ry
b

o
d

y
 i
n

 a
n

 e
q
u

a
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t,

 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 a

t 
a

ll 
ti
m

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
n

te
g
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d

 i
n

 a
n

y
 w

a
y
. 

 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 
m

a
d
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

th
e

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 r

e
g
im

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 i
n

 2
0

1
2
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 a

b
o

lis
h

e
d
 t

h
e
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 B

o
a

rd
. 

In
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
, 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
d

o
p
te

d
 a

 n
e

w
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 
fo

r 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 a
n

d
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
id

e
ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 a

b
o
u

t 
c
o
u

n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
re

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

(w
h

o
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
L
e

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
).

 
W

h
e
n
 h

e
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

s
 a

 c
o
m

p
la

in
t,

 h
e

 c
o
n

s
u

lt
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

tw
o

 “
In

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n
t 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
” 

a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 
“I

n
d

e
p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
s
” 

is
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

c
a
n

 r
e

s
p
o

n
d

 t
o

 a
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t,
 c

a
n

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 a

 f
o

rm
a

l 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
c
a
n

 r
e
fe

r 
it
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il'

s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 S

u
b

-C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 
T

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
s
 m

a
d
e

 u
p

 o
f 

th
re

e
 c

o
u
n

c
ill

o
rs

.

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 2

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 t
h
a

t 
c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
rs

 h
a

d
 b

re
a

c
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d

u
c
t.
 T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

c
o

m
p

la
in

t 
w

a
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
te

d
 i
n

 c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

, 
a

s
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

la
in

a
n

ts
 b

e
lie

v
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

h
a

d
 a

 p
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 
b

y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
w

h
e

re
 t
h

e
y
 l
iv

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 t

h
e

 I
n

d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
In

v
e

s
ti
g
a

to
r,

 w
h

o
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 n

o
 b

re
a

c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e

 o
f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t.

 

T
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 
w

a
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

s
h

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

c
la

re
d

 a
 p

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
in

te
re

s
t 

a
t 
a

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
fo

ru
m

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
a
 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 o
w

n
e

r 
o
f 

th
e

 s
it
e

 w
a

s
 l
in

k
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
ill

o
r’
s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

r.
 T

h
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

d
e

c
id

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

h
a

d
 n

o
t 
b

re
a
c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
C

o
n
d

u
c
t 
b

u
t 
th

a
t 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 t
o

 d
e

c
la

re
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
re

s
t.

 

T
o
 f

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

o
d
e

 o
f 
C

o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
n
d

 h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

a
b

o
u
t 
a

 c
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

g
o

 t
o

 
h

tt
p

s
:/
/w

w
w

.c
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/c

o
m

p
lim

e
n

ts
-c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

-a
n
d

-s
u

g
g
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
c
o
n

ta
c
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 S
im

o
n

 P
u

g
h

 
(s

im
o

n
.p

u
g
h

@
c
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
).

Page 223



A
n
n

u
a

l 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 R
e

p
o
rt

 2
0
1
2
-1

3
1
7

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
’s

 W
h

is
tl

e
 b

lo
w

in
g

 P
o

li
c

y

T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

ts
 e

q
u

a
lly

 h
ig

h
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
c
o
n

d
u

c
t 
fo

r 
it
s
 o

w
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
to

le
ra

te
 m

a
lp

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
r 

w
ro

n
g
d

o
in

g
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 A
ll 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
y
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
b

a
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

r 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r,

 i
n

 
a

n
y
 a

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 w

o
rk

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 ‘
W

h
is

tl
e

 b
lo

w
in

g
’ 
p

o
lic

y
 t

h
a

t 
a

im
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
e

n
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 
c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
ti
a

l 
ro

u
te

 f
o

r 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t
o

 s
te

p
 f
o

rw
a

rd
 a

n
d

 v
o

ic
e

 t
h
e

ir
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
fe

a
r 

o
f 

re
p

ri
s
a

l.
  

A
n

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 ‘
W

h
is

tl
e

 b
lo

w
in

g
’ 
is

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n

 a
n

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 o

u
r 

P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

ra
u
d

 a
n

d
 C

o
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 p

o
lic

y
.

Page 224



Annual Complaints Report 2012-13 18

Departments 2012-13

Chief Executive’s Department

 CEX Office

 Corporate Strategy

Resources Department 

 Accounting Services

 Human Resources

 Internal Audit

 Estates and Facilities

 ICT Client 

 Property Services

 Legal Services

Environment Department

 Planning

 Refuse and Environment

 Specialist Services

 Tourism and City Centre Management

 Streets and Open Spaces

Customer and Community Services Department
 Arts and Recreation

 City Homes

 Community Development

 Customer Service

 Strategic Housing

 Revenue and Benefits

Page 225



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Chief Executive

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 19/09/2013

WARDS: All wards

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS, POLLING PLACES AND POLLING 
STATIONS

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 introduced a 
change to the timing of reviews of polling arrangements and it is 
required that the next review must be started and completed within a
sixteen-month period, between 1 October 2013 and 31 January 2015 
(inclusive).  The process for conducting a review is prescribed and 
the Electoral Commission gives comprehensive guidance on how a 
review is carried out.

1.2. Each local authority in Great Britain is responsible for reviewing 
polling districts and polling places in its area. The Civic Affairs 
Committee has been delegated this function.

1.3. Responsibility for deciding how many polling stations are required for 
each polling place lies with the Acting Returning Officer for 
Parliamentary elections, who must allocate electors to the polling 
stations in such a manner as they think most convenient.

1.4. Definition of terms:

 A polling district is a geographical area created by the sub-
division of a parliamentary constituency. In practice, the same 
polling district boundaries are used at all elections.

 A polling place is the building or area in which polling stations 
are located.

 A polling station is the room or area within the polling place 
where voting takes place. Unlike polling stations and polling 

Agenda Item 9

Page 227



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

places, which are set by the local authority, the (Acting) 
Returning Officer for the election selects polling stations.

1.5. The last review of polling districts, places and stations in Cambridge 
was completed on 1 December 2010.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. That the committee consider the arrangements for designating polling 
districts, places and stations for the purpose of parliamentary and 
local government elections.

2.2. That the starting point for public consultation be the current polling 
arrangements (see copy of the notice of consultation attached at 
appendix b).

2.3. That the recommendations arising from the public consultation are
reported to the committee at its meeting on 29 January 2014, to 
consider and approve any changes to polling districts and places.

2.4. Such amendments are implemented with effect from the date of the 
next publication of the revised Register of Electors on 17 February 
2014.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1. While there have been a number of issues already raised by 
members of the Council in 2012/13 regarding polling district 
boundaries and polling stations (e.g. the area of Jack Warren Green 
in Abbey ward and location of polling stations in Newnham and 
Romsey wards), the recommendation is that the current polling 
arrangements are presented as the starting point for the consultation.
This will make the administrative process more straightforward and 
provide a structured approach to all consultation responses and 
subsequent recommendations.

3.2. The current polling district and polling station arrangements are 
shown at appendix a.

3.3. Requirements of a review:

 The authority must designate a polling place for each polling 
district, unless the size or other circumstances of a polling 
district are such that the situation of the polling stations does 
not materially affect the convenience of electors. E.g. there is
Fisher Hall, a polling station for Newnham ward, located in 
Market ward.

Page 228



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

 The polling place must be within the authority area, unless 
special circumstances make it desirable to designate an area 
wholly or partly outside that area.

 The polling place must be small enough to indicate to electors 
in the different parts of the district how they will be able to reach 
the polling station.

 Local authorities must seek to ensure that all electors in the 
area have such reasonable facilities for voting as are 
practicable in the circumstances.

 Local authorities must seek to ensure that so far as is 
practicable, every polling place for which it is responsible is 
accessible to electors who are disabled.

4. PROCEDURES FOR CARRYING OUT A REVIEW

4.1. When carrying out the review, local authorities must:

 Publish a notice of the holding of the review.

 Consult the (Acting) Returning Officer for every parliamentary 
constituency that is wholly or partly in its area.

 Publish all representations made by the (Acting) Returning 
Officer.

 Seek representations from such persons as it thinks have 
particular expertise in relation to access to premises or facilities 
for persons who have different forms of disability.

 On conclusion of the review, give reasons for its decisions and 
publish all correspondence, minutes, representations and details 
of designations of polling districts and places.

4.2. Timetable of proceedings:

Preliminary report to Civic Affairs 19 September 2013

Publish notice of the review 11 October 2013

Consultation responses to be made by 22 November 2013

Roundtable of interested parties (if appropriate) Date in December TBC

Final recommendations to Civic Affairs 29 January 2014

Changes made to Register of Electors 17 February 2014

Page 229



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

4.3. Once public notice has been given on 11 October, a six-week 
consultation period will allow interested parties to make comments 
and suggestions on the current arrangements (see appendix b).

4.4. The notice is required to be displayed at the Guildhall and published 
on the council website. City councillors, County Councillors and both 
MP’s as well as local political parties, election agents, tenant 
associations, groups representing disabled persons and any other 
relevant stakeholders, will be informed of the review and asked for 
comment. The councils social media feeds will also be utilised to 
draw attention to the review and consultation period.

4.5. Maps and statistics will be available during the period of the 
consultation on the council website and for those who cannot access 
the internet, on request from the Electoral Services office.

4.6. If there has been significant response to the consultation, a 
roundtable discussion can be arranged to allow members and those 
who have responded to the review to discuss suggested changes. 
This would enable the final proposal to Committee to have a clear 
direction.

4.7. If the review results in one or more alterations to polling districts, a 
revised Register of Electors must be published. This review has been 
timed in order to allow changes to take effect at the next scheduled 
publication of the register on 17 February 2014.

5. HOW TO DECIDE ON POLLING DISTRICTS AND PLACES

5.1. The following information is taken from regulations and Electoral 
Commission guidance.

5.2. The following should be considered as part of the assessment of the 
suitability of polling district boundaries:

 Are the boundaries well defined? Do they follow the natural 
boundaries of the area?

 Are there suitable transport links within the polling district and 
how do they relate to the areas of the polling district that are 
most highly populated?

5.3. There are a number of factors that need to be considered when 
reviewing existing or assessing new polling places:

 Location: Is it reasonably accessible within the polling district?

Page 230



Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No:

 Size: Can it accommodate more than one polling station if 
required?

 Availability: Would a polling station in the polling place be readily 
available in the event of an unscheduled election?

 Accessibility: Would a polling station in the polling place be 
accessible to all those entitled to attend?

5.4. All electors must have reasonable facilities to be able to vote. The 
place for voting must be accessible for all electors, including those 
with disabilities. The polling station should be easy to find on polling 
day and be as close to electors as possible.

5.5. Consideration should be given to the appropriate number of electors 
per polling place. Guidance issued by the Electoral Commission in 
2011 indicates that polling stations should not exceed 2,500 voters. 
Given that, in Cambridge, the average indicates that 12% of electors 
now vote by post, the aim should be to allocate no more than 2,800 
electors to a polling station.

5.6. Consideration of polling district size should also take account of 
future population growth in the City. For example, we may look to 
create a third polling district within Trumpington ward.

5.7. The choice of polling place will often be a balance between the 
quality (access, facilities, etc.) of a building and the distances 
between the residents and that building compared to other options for 
polling places. Availability and co-operation of the building 
management can, sadly also be a factor in deciding on polling 
places.

5.8. Once a decision on the proposals is made, two key factors must be 
addressed in the reasoning given for the change to or maintaining the 
status quo:

 The reasonable requirements of the electors in the constituency, 
and

 The accessibility for disabled persons to the probable polling 
stations within the polling place.

6. CONCLUSION OF THE REVIEW

6.1. The council must agree final proposals for the polling districts and 
polling places, taking account of any representations received. The 
final proposals will then be placed on public deposit, together with 

Page 231



Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No:

any copies of all correspondence, minutes and representations 
relating to the review.

6.2. The Register of Electors must then be altered to reflect any changes 
in polling districts.

6.3. Following the conclusion of the review, individuals have a right to 
make representations to the Electoral Commission. Representations 
must be made within six weeks of the publication date of the final 
review.

6.4. The Commission will direct the authority to make changes (within two 
months) to any polling place if they find that the authority did not:

 Meet the reasonable requirements of the electors in the 
constituency, or a body of them, or

 Take sufficient account of the accessibility for disabled persons 
of a polling station/ polling stations within a designated polling 
place.

7. CONSULTATIONS

7.1. As indicated above (paragraph 4.4) public notice of the review will be 
given and all relevant stakeholders will be informed of the 
consultation period.

8. IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications

Changes to the location of polling stations could result in an increase
or decrease in rental charges, due to the differing rates charged by 
organisations.

An increase in the number of polling places/stations would mean an
increase in the number of polling station staff and consequently 
increase staff payments at an election.

(b) Staffing Implications

There are no staffing implications.

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

An Equality Impact Assessment for elections covers this report.

(d) Environmental Implications

This report has a NIL climate change impact.

Page 232



Report Page No: 7 Agenda Page No:

(e) Procurement

No procurement is required for this project.

(f) Consultation and communication

As indicated above (paragraph 4.4) public notice of the review will be 
given and all relevant stakeholders will be informed of the 
consultation period.

(g) Community Safety

There are no community safety implications.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

 Electoral Commission guidance on conducting a review of polling 
districts, polling places and polling stations. (Published August 2013)

 Equality Impact Assessment for elections.

To inspect these documents contact Vicky Breading on extension 7057.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Vicky Breading, 
Electoral Services Manager on extension 7057.

Report file:

Date originated: 28 August 2013
Date of last revision: 06 September 2013

Page 233



Report Page No: 8 Agenda Page No:

Appendix a

Cambridge City Council
Polling Districts, Polling Stations & Electorate*

Abbey

AA+ Barnwell Baptist Church, Howard Road 3,104

AB East Barnwell Youth Centre, Newmarket Road 1,911

AC River Lane Community Room, River Centre 1,734

Arbury

BA^ Good Shepherd Church Hall, Mansel Way 3,810

BB^ St. Luke’s Church Centre, Victoria Road 3,013

Castle

CA^ St. Augustine’s Church, Richmond Road 3,899

CB Castle End Mission, St. Peter’s Street 2,637

Cherry Hinton

DA St. Andrew’s Church Centre, Cherry Hinton 1,902

DB^ Cherry Hinton Village Centre, Colville Road 3,111

DC St. Philip Howard Church Centre, Walpole Road 1,356

Coleridge

EA St. Martin’s Church Hall, Suez Road 2,512

EB Lichfield Hall, Lichfield Road 2,575

EC St. Thomas’ Church Hall, Ancaster Way 1,407

East Chesterton

FA Scout Centre, Logan’s Way 1,894

FB Chesterton Methodist Church, Green End Road 2,728

FC Brownsfield Centre, Green End Road 2,050

King’s Hedges

GA+ Arbury Community Centre, Campkin Road 3,313

GB+ North Arbury Chapel, Cameron Road 2,997

Market

HA Fisher Hall, Guildhall Place 1,844

HB^ Wesley Church Buildings, King Street 4,586

Page 234



Report Page No: 9 Agenda Page No:

Newnham

IA+ No fixed location 2,969

IB St. Mark’s Church Community Centre, Barton Road 2,712

IC Fisher Hall, Guildhall Place 968

Petersfield

JA^ St. Matthew’s Church Hall, St. Matthew’s Street 2,673

JB^ Salvation Army Hall, Tenison Road 3,297

Queen Edith’s

KA^# St. John The Evangelist, Hills Road 3,394

KB^# St. James’ Church, Wulfstan Way 3,227

Romsey

LA^ Ross Street Community Centre, Ross Street 4,097

LB Romsey Mill, Hemingford Road 2,281

Trumpington

MA+ Christian Science Church, Panton Street 3,188

MB Trumpington Village Hall 2,897

West Chesterton

NA+ Milton Road Library, Ascham Road 3,256

NB+ St. Laurence’s Catholic Church, Milton Road 2,993

*Electorate as at 1 September 2013
^ Indicates polling station is split into two stations at all elections

+Indicates polling station is split into two stations at Parliamentary elections
# Polling district in South Cambridgeshire Parliamentary Constituency

Page 235



Report Page No: 10 Agenda Page No:

Appendix b

Notice of Review of Polling Districts

and Polling Places

In accordance with Section 17 of the Electoral Registration and Administration Act 
2013, Cambridge City Council gives notice that a review of all polling districts and 
polling places in the city of Cambridge is to be conducted.

 The (Acting) Returning Officer will comment on the suitability of polling stations 
within each polling district. These will be available for viewing at The Guildhall, 
Cambridge CB2 3QJ and on the council website within thirty days of the date of 
this notice.

 Electors residing within the authority area are invited to make representations in 
connection with the review or comment on the (Acting) Returning Officer’s 
proposals.

 The authority welcomes the views of all residents, particularly disabled residents, 
on the current polling arrangements, the (Acting) Returning Officer’s 
representation or any other related matters.

 The authority also welcomes any person or body with expertise in the access 
requirements of persons with any type of disability to on the current polling 
arrangements, the (Acting) Returning Officer’s representation or any other 
related matters.

 Any person or body making a comment should if possible, give alternative places 
that may be used as polling places.

Information concerning the existing arrangements may be obtained at the council 
website www.cambridge.gov.uk/elections or from the Electoral Services Office, The 
Guildhall, Cambridge CB2 3QJ.

The final date for submission of representations is 22 November 2013.

Representations, comments etc. should be submitted in writing to:
Electoral Services
Cambridge City Council
PO Box 700
Cambridge
CB1 0JH
Alternatively, by email to: elections@cambridge.gov.uk

Dated: 11 October 2013
Antoinette Jackson
Chief Executive

Page 236



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Head of HR

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 19/9/2013

WARDS: All

CONSIDERATION OF MEASURES TO DISCOURAGE TAX AVOIDANCE

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 At the Civic Affairs Committee meeting on 30 January 2013, when 
considering the proposed Pay Policy Statement for 2013/14, which 
contains a section on Tax Avoidance, the Committee asked for a 
further report back to Civic Affairs to consider measures to 
discourage tax avoidance arising from the employment of consultants 
through companies.   This report outlines proposals for consideration.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Civic Affairs Committee approve that the Director of Resources, 
Head of Legal Services, Support Services Manager and Head of HR 
develop contract clauses and guidance for use by Cambridge City 
Council managers when employing consultants through companies, 
in line with the suggested models and guidance set out in this report.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 At the Civic Affairs Committee meeting on 30 January 2013, when 
considering the proposed Pay Policy Statement for 2013/14, which 
contains a section on Tax Avoidance, the Committee asked for a 
further report back to Civic Affairs to consider measures to 
discourage tax avoidance arising from the employment of consultants 
through companies.

Agenda Item 10

Page 237



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

3.2 The wording on Tax Avoidance currently set out in the Council’s Pay 
Policy Statement 2013/14, approved by Council in February 2013 
states:

Tax Avoidance

The Council takes tax avoidance seriously and will seek to appoint 
individuals to vacant positions using the recruitment procedures on 
the basis of contracts of employment and apply direct tax and 
National Insurance deductions from pay through the operation of
PAYE.

Where consultants are recruited the Council will seek to avoid 
contractual arrangements which could be perceived as being 
primarily designed to reduce significantly the rate of tax paid by that 
person, such as paying the individual through a company effectively,
controlled by him or her.

3.3 Having obtained advice on what measures the Council could 
consider to discourage tax avoidance, please see Appendices A and 
B, the following proposals are made:

a) When using agency workers where there is a Personal Service 
Company (PSC) and the person does not pay PAYE/NIC via the 
agency, the Council could use procedures similar to those 
adopted by Government Departments and the NHS. 

An example of these is set out in Appendix B.

b) When using interim managers, not employed by the Council but 
engaged under a contract for services, the Council could verify the 
tax arrangements and include clauses in the contracts to enable 
termination of the contract if the information obtained is not 
satisfactory to demonstrate the person is complying with their tax 
and NIC obligations.

Suggested model contractual provisions are set out in Appendix B.

c) When using a consultant for specialist advice the Council could 
develop and use steps and contract clauses similar to those set 
out in the example contained in Appendix B.

Page 238



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

3.4  Appendix A sets out some background information on this issue.

3.5 Appendix B contains a Procurement Policy Note on Tax 
Arrangements of Public Appointees, produced by HM Treasury, for 
use by Government Departments.  The guidance note particularly 
refers to arrangements lasting more than six months and costing over 
£220 per day.

4.0. CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The Head of Legal Services, Director of Resources and Support 
Services Manager have been consulted on this report.

5.0 CONCLUSIONS

5.1 It is proposed that the Director of Resources, Head of Legal Services, 
Support Services Manager and Head of HR develop contract clauses 
and guidance for use by Cambridge City Council managers when 
employing consultants through companies, in line with the suggested 
models and guidance attached as Appendix B.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications

The measures set out in this report are considerations to manage risk 
and thereby reduce potential financial implications for the Council.

(b) Staffing Implications

The staffing implications arising from this report are officer time 
engaged in developing procedures. There is the potential that a 
consultant may choose not to work with the Council if checks are 
requested or the Council may choose not to work with a consultant if 
the information provided is not deemed satisfactory. 

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

An equality impact assessment has not been prepared for this item.

(d) Environmental Implications

None

Page 239



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

(e) Procurement

The procurement considerations relate to the engagement of 
consultants and further steps which could be put in place.

(f) Consultation and communication

This report relates to the engaged of consultants.

(g) Community Safety

There are no community safety considerations in this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

 The Council’s Pay Policy Statement 2013/14

 Minutes of Civic Affairs Committee – 30 January 2013 

 Advice note on tax arrangements, the appendices are attached to 
this report.

 Procurement Policy Note – Tax Arrangements of Public Appointees, 
Action Note 07/12.

To inspect these documents contact Deborah Simpson, Head of HR on 
01223 458101.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Deborah 
Simpson, Head of HR on 01223 458101.

Report file:

Date originated: 09 September 2013
Date of last revision: 09 September 2013

Page 240



Report Page No: 5 Agenda Page No:

Appendix A

Background Information

IR35

The intermediaries’ legislation, known as “IR35”, was introduced by the 
Government in 2000 in an attempt to discourage and deter the use of 
intermediaries or Personal Service Companies (“PSC”).  

These are the companies set up for the primary purpose of reducing tax, 
and National Insurance Contributions, for an individual who would 
otherwise be employed by the organisation, where the individual supplies 
their services through an intermediary (usually a PSC) and is paid in 
dividends.

The IR35 legislation shifted the responsibility of ensuring compliance from 
the employer back to the PSC. Since then there have been 
announcements about proposed changes to IR35 and measures targeted 
in the public sector, particularly for Government Departments, to seek 
assurance that highly paid individuals who are not on the payroll, are 
meeting their tax obligations, sufficient to prevent the loss of tax/NICs 
through disguised employment. 

Reasons for using a limited company

 The principal benefit of trading as a limited company has always 
been the limited liability bestowed upon the company's officers and 
shareholders. 

 As a sole trader or other non-limited business, personal assets are at 
risk in the event of failure of the business, but this is not the case for 
a limited company. 

 As long as the business is operated legally and within the terms of 
the Companies Act, directors' or shareholders' personal assets are 
not at risk in the event of a winding up or receivership. Sometimes, 
such events are not always under the control of the director.

 Operating as a limited company often gives suppliers and customers 
a sense of confidence in a business in terms of being able to deliver 
the goods or services efficiently and professionally. 

 Larger organisations including public sector entities may prefer not to 
deal with non-limited businesses where there is a potential risk to it or 
the good or services it has requested.

Page 241



Report Page No: 6 Agenda Page No:

HMRC action and Reputational Damage

If it appears to HMRC that an individual has been engaged who should 
have been on the payroll, HMRC will seek any tax and NICs (plus interest 
and penalties) from the Council. In addition to the financial cost, there 
could also be the adverse publicity and reputational damage.  

Agency Workers

Where an individual is engaged via an agency and no PSC/limited 
company is involved then the Agency is required to operate PAYE/NICs on 
any payments made to the individual. 

Where the engagement by the Agency involves a PSC/limited company
then the PAYE/ NICs liability will fall on the PSC/limited company.

Contract for Services

If an interim manager is not a temporary employee of the Council, with an 
employment contract, but is an employee/partner of a consulting firm and 
the contract is between the Council and the Consulting firm, the Council
does not have a requirement to deduct PAYE/NICs through the payroll.  

Consultants providing Specialist Advice

Contracts for such advice will normally be between the Council and a 
partnership or limited company. 

In any contract that is in place, other than one with an individual, the 
Council currently has no obligation to deduct tax/ NICs from payments 
made. The recipient is responsible for accounting for any tax/NICs. 

Where the contract is with an individual, the Council is required to consider 
the individual’s tax status and contract clauses could be used to seek 
assurances that the worker is complying with his/her tax obligations.

Where the contract is with an Agency directly, clauses could be included in 
the Agency contract, and the Council could request that similar clauses be
included in any contract between the Agency and the PSCs.

Page 242



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

Procurement  
Procurement Policy Note 

 

Procurement Policy Note – Tax 
Arrangements of Public Appointees 
 
Action Note 07/12    24 August 2012   
 

Issue 
 

1. On 12 July 2012, the Chief Secretary to the Treasury wrote to the Prime Minister, copying 
Cabinet colleagues, to set out implementation plans following the review of the tax 
arrangements of public appointees, published on 23 May 2012 (http://www.hm-
treasury.gov.uk/d/tax_pay_appointees_review_230512.pdf).  HM Treasury notified Finance DGs 
of these new arrangements on 26 July 2012. 

 
2. The recommendations from the review are due to be implemented by Departments within three 

months of the publication of the review – with the appropriate clauses inserted into new 
contracts from 23 August 2012, and all contract renewals carried out after that date.  Similar 
clauses will be inserted into the relevant existing Government Procurement Service Framework 
Agreements (i.e. CIPHER) and in the new central Framework Agreements for Contingent 
Labour being tendered later this year. 

 

3. In addition, Departments should seek to apply the recommendations of the review to existing 
relevant contracts, subject to ensuring value for money.  Departments should work with their 
legal teams to do this.  

 

4. This Procurement Policy Note (PPN) provides departments, their agencies and NDPBs with a 
guide to help them seek assurance about the tax arrangements of their contractors.  It also 
provides illustrative contractual clauses allowing that assurance to be sought, which 
departments should adapt as appropriate before including in contracts they let.  

Dissemination 
 

5. Please circulate this PPN within your organisation, its Executive Agencies and Non 
Departmental Public Bodies and to all Contracting Authorities for which you are responsible, 
drawing it to the attention of those with a purchasing role. 

Contact 
 

6. Enquiries about this PPN should be addressed to the ERG Service Desk on 0845 000 4999 or 
via servicedesk@cabinet-office.gsi.gov.uk. Queries regarding CIPHER and Government 
Procurement Service Frameworks can be directed to the Government Procurement Service 
Desk on 0345 410 2222. 

 

Page 243



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

 

Scope of this PPN  
 

7. The contents of this PPN apply to all Central Government Departments including their 
Executive Agencies and Non Departmental Public Bodies. Similar guidance will be provided to 
NHS organisations, and Academy Schools guidance will be updated to reflect the 
recommendations of the review. 

Background  
 

8. On 31 January 2012, the Chief Secretary to the Treasury announced a review of the tax 
arrangements of public sector appointees.  The aim of the review was to ascertain the extent 
of arrangements which could allow public sector appointees to minimise their tax payments, 
and make appropriate recommendations. 
 

9. The review was published on 23 May 2012  The key conclusions were: 

 the most senior staff must be on the payroll, unless there are exceptional temporary 
circumstances, which will require Accounting Officer sign-off and cannot last longer 
than six months;.  

 departments must be able to seek formal assurance from contractors with off payroll 
arrangements lasting more than six months and costing over £220 per day that income 
tax and national insurance obligations are being met. Departments should terminate 
the contract if that assurance is not provided. Departments also have the option of 
extending this requirement to other contractors as they believe appropriate. 

 implementation will be monitored carefully with financial sanctions for departments that 
do not comply.  

Next Steps 
 

10. Departments should now use the guide and illustrative clauses attached at Annex A and B to 
implement the recommendations of the review, ensuring they work closely with their 
colleagues in Finance and HR, and with their legal teams.   

11. To ensure the recommendations of the review have been successfully implemented, the 
Treasury and Cabinet Office will carry out a monitoring process in April 2013.  This process 
will request information including:- 

a. the number of off-payroll engagements for those earning more than £220 per day 
for longer than 6 months since 23rd August 2012; 

b. the number of these for whom assurance as to their tax obligations has been 
sought; 

c. the number who have successfully provided assurance; and 

d. action taken against those who have not 

12. In addition, Departments will be asked to report to Parliament on the outcome of applying 
these principles to existing contracts as part of the 2012-13 annual report and accounts 
process.  DGs for Finance will be provided with further details on this directly from HM 
Treasury in due course. 

 

 
  

Page 244



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

Annex A – Assurance Guide 
 
This guide is to help departments seek assurance regarding the income tax and NICS 
obligations of their appointees, as recommended by the CST Review of Tax Arrangements 
of Senior Public Sector Appointees.  

The department must have the contractual right to seek assurance that the worker is 
meeting their income tax and National Insurance obligations if an individual (the “worker”) is 
engaged by the Department for 6 months or longer and being paid £220 per day or more - 
but not being paid through the departmental payroll (with PAYE and NICs deducted at 
source).  

In line with the recommendations of the CST review, departments should decide when to 
seek the assurance. For example, they may wish to seek the assurance for some contracts 
only. They may seek the assurance at the start of the contract, if they know it will last for 6 
months or longer; alternatively they may seek the assurance at the 6-month or some other 
point.  

Workers should be responsible for the information provided, even if it comes from their 
accountant or professional adviser, and given a reasonable time (e.g. 20 working days) to 
provide information requested.  

Worker engaged directly  

Where the worker is engaged directly (not through a limited company or other body) it is the 
responsibility of the engaging Department to ensure that they correctly classify the status of 
the worker as employed or self-employed. They must do this prior to the engagement 
starting; this is a requirement for every UK employer. The status and tax treatment is 
determined by the terms and conditions under which a worker is engaged. Departments may 
seek assurance about the tax obligations of workers engaged directly by following step one 
below.  

Working through a limited company or other body operating PAYE on their whole 
salary  

Where a worker is not on the department payroll but is working through a limited company or 
other body and on the payroll of that body there is no requirement for the department to 
operate PAYE and NICs. The Department may seek assurance by following step two below.  

Worker working through their own limited company  

Where someone is working through their own limited company (a “personal service 
company” PSC) there is no requirement for the department to operate PAYE and NICs. 
Instead, the worker must consider the intermediaries’ legislation known as IR35.  

The IR35 legislation prevents people who would be classed as an employee if the company 
was not in place from paying less tax by operating through a PSC than by being engaged 
directly by the engager (the department). It says that if the relationship between the worker 
and the engager (the Department) would be employment if it weren’t for the interposition of 
the company, then the worker must treat the money from that contract as earnings and pay 
PAYE tax and NICS on the money.  

Departments may seek assurance in these circumstances by following step three below.  

Step One – employment status  

The Department should use HMRC’s online Employment Status Indicator (ESI) tool 
(https://esi2calculator.hmrc.gov.uk/esi/app/index.html) to determine if the worker is 
classed as self-employed or an employee for tax purposes. Then:  

 if the worker is classed as self-employed – the Department should confirm that 
the worker is registered to pay tax. For example if the worker has been working 
on a self employed basis for a number of years they might provide their previous 
year’s business accounts and filed tax return, or if they are newly self employed 

Page 245



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

they will be able to provide form SA250 as evidence that they have registered as 
self employed with HMRC. Once the evidence has been provided, the 
department need take no further action. This evidence can be provided at the 6-
month point. 

 if the worker is classed as an employee – they should be put onto the 
departmental payroll. (As explained above, if they are working through a limited 
company, seek assurance as set out at step two or step three below.)  

Step Two – engaged by (or seconded from) a company or other organisation  

If the worker is engaged through a limited company (or other organisation e.g. a 
partnership or a university) and is on the payroll of that company and having PAYE and 
NICs deducted at source by the limited company then the worker can provide evidence 
that all of the money they are paid by the Department is put through that body and they 
are receiving/withdrawing it with PAYE/NICs deducted at source.  

This can be evidenced by the production of their payslips which will show the salary, 
and PAYE and NICs deductions. (The company may deduct a small percentage for 
administrative costs.) The person may be the director of the company, working for a 
personal service company or one of many employees. This test also applies to those on 
secondment whose parent organisation is reimbursed for their salary. It will be possible 
for the worker to provide payslips at the 6 month point for the previous 6 months.  

Step Three – engaged through a personal service company  

Where the worker is engaged through their own limited company (a personal service 
company) and not withdrawing all their income from the department under PAYE (as set out 
in step two) they will need to provide evidence of one of the following:  

a) The worker should be able to show that their service company is low risk for IR35 
according to HMRC’s “business entity” tests described in HMRC guidance published 
May 2012 http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/ir35/guidance.pdf . This means that they are a low 
risk of HMRC checking whether they need to operate the IR35 legislation described 
in step three. The worker will be able to provide this at the 6 month point. Provided 
the terms of the engagement remain the same, the service company will remain low 
risk for the duration of the contract.  

b) If the worker is medium or high risk according to HMRC’s “business entity” tests but 
feels that they are outside the scope of IR35, then they will need to provide 
assurance in a different way – for example, following a contract review by HMRC’s 
independent IR35 helpline. The worker will be able to provide evidence of a contract 
review to say that they are outside the scope of the IR35 legislation at the 6 month 
point. If the terms of the contract remain the same, the assessment of the service 
company will not change for the duration of the contract.  

c) If the contract is within the scope of IR35, the worker can provide evidence that they 
are operating the IR35 legislation on the payments received from the Department. 
This can be evidenced by the worker providing a “deemed calculation”. This is a 
calculation that requires the worker to consider all the income for the year from a 
particular contract that is within IR35, make a ‘deemed payment’ to HMRC for 
employer NICs and pay employee NICs and PAYE on the remainder of the income. 
The deemed payment calculation can be accessed online at 
http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/ir35/ir35.xlt. The legislation only requires the individual to 
make this payment at the end of the tax year, so it will not be possible to provide 
assurance until this point – the individual will need to indicate that they are intending 
to do this when assurance is sought and commit to meeting this requirement at an 
agreed later date.  

If the department is not satisfied with the evidence they receive they may send details to 
their CRM or customer coordinator in HMRC to be considered alongside other intelligence to 

Page 246



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

support HMRC’s work to tackle non-compliance. Taxpayer confidentiality means that HMRC 
will not be able to share the results of any follow-up action with the department.  
 
  

Page 247



UNCLASSIFIED 

UNCLASSIFIED 

Annex B – Illustrative Contract Clauses 
 
Please Note  

These Clauses have been drafted on an illustrative basis and are not intended to be 
implemented in to any Contract without a thorough review involving a) the individual 
Department’s governance and (where applicable) information sharing practices and b) 
a review of the contracting parties in the particular circumstances (including tripartite 
arrangements) and termination provisions.  

Generic Clauses for Individual Worker [Department contracts with Worker, or obligation in 
Header Contract to be flowed down to worker*]  

1. Where [Worker*] is liable to be taxed in the UK in respect of consideration received under 
this contract, it shall at all times comply with the Income Tax (Earnings and Pensions) Act 
2003 (ITEPA) and all other statutes and regulations relating to income tax in respect of that 
consideration.  

2. Where [Worker] is liable to National Insurance Contributions (NICs) in respect of 
consideration received under this contract, it shall at all times comply with the Social Security 
Contributions and Benefits Act 1992 (SSCBA) and all other statutes and regulations relating 
to NICs in respect of that consideration.  

3. [Name of Contracting Authority/Agency] may, at any time during the term of this contract, 
request [Worker] to provide information which demonstrates how [Worker] complies with 
Clauses 1 and 2 above or why those Clauses do not apply to it.  

4. A request under Clause 3 above may specify the information which [Worker] must provide 
and the period within which that information must be provided.  

5. [Name of Contracting Authority/Agency] may terminate this contract if-  

 

(a) in the case of a request mentioned in Clause 3 above-  

(i) [Worker] fails to provide information in response to the request within a reasonable time, 
or  

(ii) [Worker] provides information which is inadequate to demonstrate either how [Worker] 
complies with Clauses 1 and 2 above or why those Clauses do not apply to it;  

(b) in the case of a request mentioned in Clause 4 above, [Worker] fails to provide the 
specified information within the specified period, or  

(c) it receives information which demonstrates that, at any time when Clauses 1 and 2 apply 
to [Worker], [Worker] is not complying with those Clauses.  

6. [Name of Contracting Authority/Agency] may supply any information which it receives 
under Clause 3 to the Commissioners of Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs for the 
purpose of the collection and management of revenue for which they are responsible.  

* - Where there is no ‘direct’ contract between the Worker and the Contracting Authority, the 
Contracting Authority will need to ensure that these provisions are contained in the ‘Header’ 
Contract/Framework agreement and that the ‘supplier’ is legally obliged to flow these terms 
down to the Worker with whom it contracts. One way to do this would be to include the 
provision as an annexe to the ‘Header’ Contract/Framework Agreement and confirm that it 
must be included in any terms between the ‘supplier’ and the worker. There will also need to 
be information provisions in the Header contract to ensure that the information supplied by 
the worker can be provided directly to government departments to carry out any necessary 
assurance, and make the decision to terminate if necessary (through the correct contractual 
route). 

Page 248



Report Page No: 1 Agenda Page No:

Agenda Item         

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

REPORT OF: Head of HR

TO: Civic Affairs Committee 19/9/2013

WARDS: All

IMPLEMENTATION OF NATIONAL PAY AWARD - REPORTING TO 
CIVIC AFFAIRS

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report updates the Civic Affairs Committee on the 
implementation of the national pay award for staff on National Joint 
Council for Local Government Services (NJC) terms and conditions 
of appointment, with effect from 1 April 2013, following the agreement 
reached under national collective bargaining in July 2013.

1.2 The report also asks Civic Affairs Committee to consider the need for 
further reporting on national pay awards and other allowances 
payable to officers at future meetings of the Committee.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Civic Affairs Committee is asked to note the implementation of the 
national pay award in accordance with national pay agreements for 
staff on City Pay Bands 1-9, with effect from 1 April 2013.

2.2 Civic Affairs Committee agree to recommend to Council a change in 
the scheme of delegation to remove the requirement for any action 
taken in pursuance of this delegation to the Director of Resources to 
be reported to the Civic Affairs Committee at its next meeting, and 
that instead Members be advised by the Director of Resources when 
such  action has been taken, and a record of that advice be made 
available to the public.

Agenda Item 11

Page 249



Report Page No: 2 Agenda Page No:

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Pay awards for staff on City Pay Bands 1-9 are determined in 
accordance with nationally negotiated collective agreements.  The 
City Council receives notification when an award as been agreed at 
national level and then implements this in accordance with staff 
contractual commitments.  

3.2 There have been no nationally agreed pay awards since 2009.  This 
is the first year of a national pay award since then.  The award was 
for 1% across the pay points on the national pay scales.  

3.3 Following the review of pay terms and conditions in 2012 the Council 
now uses the HMRC mileage allowances and no longer applies NJC 
car allowances. 

3.4 The Council moved to locally determined allowances following the 
2003 Single Status Agreement.  Where applicable, any allowances 
were reviewed in 2011/2012 as part of the Pay, Terms and 
Conditions Review, which was considered by Civic Affairs and 
Council in January 2012. 

3.5 The Council’s Constitution contains a delegation to the Director of 
Resources relating to Civic Affairs Committee as follows:

Service Area Delegations: Council or Regulatory Functions 

Power delegated by Civic Affairs Committee 

 To implement any award of a joint negotiating body so far as it 
concerns rates of salary, wages, car allowances or other 
allowances payable to officers and other employees of the Council 
except where the terms thereof involve the exercise of a discretion 
by the Council provided that any action taken in pursuance of this 
paragraph shall be reported to the Civic Affairs Committee at its 
next meeting.

3.6 This delegation contains a requirement to report to the Civic Affairs 
Committee at its next meeting when the Director of Resources has 
agreed to implement an award from a joint negotiating body, in this 
case the NJC, in so far as it concerns rates of salary, in this case, the 
nationally agreed pay award.

3.7 The Civic Affairs Committee is asked to consider the need for further 
reporting on national pay awards to this Committee.

Page 250



Report Page No: 3 Agenda Page No:

3.8 The City Council were notified of the nationally agreed pay award of 
the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services 
which covers over 1.4 million local government workers, by letter 
from the Local Government Association dated 15 July 2013.  The 
implementation date for the agreement was 1 April 2013. This is the 
first meeting of Civic Affairs following notification of the award.

3.9 The pay award and any backdating was paid with August salaries.  

4.     CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The Head of Legal Services and Director of Resources have been 
consulted on this report.

5.0  CONCLUSIONS

5.1 This report updates the Civic Affairs Committee in accordance with 
the delegation to the Director of Resources concerning national pay 
awards and asks Civic Affairs Committee to consider the need for 
further reports and whether to amend the delegation to the Director of 
Resources.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

(a) Financial Implications

The potential cost of the implementation of a national pay award was
considered and agreed as part of the Council’s budget setting 
process for 2013/14.  The implementation costs are in line with the 
budget.

(b) Staffing Implications

The national pay award applies to all staff on City Pay Bands 1-9.  It 
does not apply to staff on JNC grades (heads of service, directors, 
chief executive)

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

An equality impact assessment has not been prepared for this item.

Page 251



Report Page No: 4 Agenda Page No:

(d) Environmental Implications

None

(e) Procurement

There are no procurement considerations in this report.

(f) Consultation and communication

This report relates to a staffing matter.

(g) Community Safety

There are no community safety considerations in this report.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: The following are the background papers that 
were used in the preparation of this report:

 Letter dated 15 July 2013 from the Local Government Association 
(LGA) advising of the nationally agreed pay award for 2013 for 
staff covered by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local 
Government Services.

 The Council’s Constitution – Delegations to the Director of 
Resources

To inspect these documents contact Deborah Simpson, Head of HR on
01223 458101.

The author and contact officer for queries on the report is Deborah 
Simpson. Head of HR on 01223 458101.

Report file:

Date originated: 09 September 2013
Date of last revision: 09 September 2013

Page 252


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	5 Ernst and Young External Audit conclusions and approval of Statement of Accounts
	Accounts - Ap A
	Accounts - Appendix B
	Accounts - Appendix C
	Accounts - Ap D
	Accounts - Appendix E

	6 Annual Complaints Report 2012/13
	Annual Complaints - Ap

	9 Review of Polling Districts, Polling Places and Polling Stations
	10 Consideration of Measures to Discourage Tax Avoidance
	Tax Avoidance Ap B

	11 Implementation of national pay award

